Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

AUDIT COMMITTEE

200 om Tuesday Appointment Centre
HOP 24 February 2026 Rooms 7 & 8
Members 6: Quorum 3
COUNCILLORS:
Conservative Group Havering Residents’ Group Residents’ Association
(2) 3) Independent Group
1)
David Taylor Julie Wilkes (Chairman) Philip Ruck
Jacqueline Williams
(Vice-Chair)

John Crowder

For information about the meeting please contact:
Luke Phimister 01708 434619
luke.phimister@havering.gov.uk

Please would all Members and officers attending ensure they sit in their allocated seats
as this will enable correct identification of participants on the meeting webcast.




Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings. As such, should
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn
the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting
while this takes place.

Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed
as planned.

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

e filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

D
P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
| = any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
S * The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
1
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T S
I N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the meeting)
R Y
Y E
S
] - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T
Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

Principles of conduct in public office

In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, when acting in the capacity of a
Member, they are committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the following
principles to achieve best value for the Borough’s residents and to maintain public confidence
in the Council.

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family, or their friends.

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them
in the performance of their official duties.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of
public office should make choices on merit.

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to
their office.

OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the
decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating
to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that
protects the public interest.

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example.



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) — received.
3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to declare any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING (Pages 7 - 12)

To approve as correct the minutes and exempt minutes of the meeting held on 25"
November 2025 and authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTS 2024/25 AND EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (Pages 13 - 312)

Documents attached

6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2026/27 (Pages 313 - 346)

Document attached
7 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (Pages 347 - 374)
Document attached
Zena Smith

Head of Committee and
Election Services



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Appointment Centre Rooms 7 & 8 - Town Hall
25 November 2025 (7.00 - 8.50 pm)

Present:

COUNCILLORS:

Conservative Group David Taylor

Residents’ Group Julie Wilkes (Chairman) and John Crowder

Residents Association Philip Ruck
Independent Group

Through the Chairman, announcements were made regarding emergency evacuation
arrangements. The Chairman also advised that Item 5 (Internal Audit Progress) would be
taken at the end of the agenda due to an associated exempt report.

Apologies were received for the absence of Councillors Jacqueline Williams.
28 MINUTES OF THE MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 8™ July 2025 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

29 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS

The Committee received the standard progress report on the audit plan and
counter-fraud activity.

It was noted that the plan is aspirational and several audit engagements had not
yet started due to priority work and resource-intensive investigations. Officers were
confident that prioritisation had been appropriate. Members discussed the list of
non-started audits and the likelihood of completion by year-end with officers
confirming that not all items could be started and completed this year and that
prioritisation for the final quarter would be reviewed and made transparent.

ACTION: The Committee asked officers to circulate a revised plan for Quarter 4
prior to the next Committee meeting.

The Committee agreed to move into closed session to consider the exempt report
and the public recording was paused.

Following the closed session, the public recording was restarted and the
Committee noted the contents of the report.

30 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Committee was presented with the six-monthly summary of key strategic risks
considered by ELT/ELG.

Page 7



Audit Committee, 25 November 2025

31

The Committee was updated on progress with the Annual Governance Statement
actions. Members discussed risks arising from the “Big Move” IT migration,
including legacy systems and standalone datasets. The Committee noted the
mitigation that all future system purchases and implementations must be routed
through the corporate team, and that a log of legacy/standalone systems is being
maintained while issues are worked through.

The Committee requested greater visibility of risk movement. On cybersecurity, it
was noted that the Council has a specialist supplier contract for scanning and
emalil filtering, and that awareness and training for staff was a critical control given
many attacks originate from internal points of entry. The temporary issue with LXP
performance management reporting following the tenant migration was highlighted
for resolution.

ACTION: The Committee asked for officers to re-send the link to Members for
access to directorate risk registers; and to add a “direction of travel” column to the
strategic risk register.

The Committee considered, with the assistance of Officers, the current level of
risk to which the Council is exposed, and the progress on the Significant
Governance Issues

HALF YEAR TREASURY UPDATE

The Committee received the mid-year report covering 1 April to 30 September
2025.

Members noted the investment portfolio yielded 4.7% with the total investments as
at 30" September 2025 of £79.5m. The Debt Management Office and local
authorities investment income in the period was £2.9m against a full-year budget of
£1.25m. Authority debt totalled £606.5m fixed at 3.7% with an average maturity of
12.1 years; no new borrowing was undertaken in the period.

In discussion, Members sought assurance on deposits with other local authorities.
The Committee was advised that exposures are capped at £5m per authority,
investments are diversified, and local authority loans rank for repayment at the top
of the waterfall in the event of financial distress.

Members noted that base rate reductions had not materialised as quickly as
expected; however, fixed-rate debt meant current costs were unaffected. Officers
explained that cashflow remained in surplus through December and significant new
borrowing was not expected until mid—January/February when rates were
anticipated to be lower.

The Committee noted the treasury management activities to the end of September
2025.

Chairman

Page 8



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

»¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

AUDIT COMMITTEE 24 February 2026

Subject Heading: Statements of Accounts 2024/25 and
External Audit Reports to those charged
with Governance

ELT Lead: Kathy Freeman, Strategic Director of
Resources
Report Author and contact details: Heather Salmon, Head of Finance

E-mail: heather.salmon@havering.gov.uk

Policy context: The Council is required to produce an
Annual Statement of Accounts in line with
the Accounts and Audit Regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for
approving the accounts

Financial summary: There are no financial implications arising
directly from this report

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

People - Supporting our residents to stay safe and well []

Place - A great place to live, work and enjoy [1]

Resources - Enabling a resident-focused and resilient Council [X]
SUMMARY

This report presents the external auditor’s reports on the 2024/25 Statement of
Accounts for review, together with the 2024/25 Financial Statements for approval.

Page 13


mailto:heather.salmon@havering.gov.uk

Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to:

1.

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

Note the Audit Results Report for the Authority and the disclaimer of audit
opinion in relation to the financial year 2024/25, detailed at Appendix A.

Note the Audit Results Report for the Pension Fund and the unmodified
opinion for 2024/25, detailed at Appendix B.

Approve the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March
2025 and to delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer and the Chair of
the Audit Committee to sign the Accounts on behalf of the Council following
any further audit adjustments that might be required before release of the
audit opinion (Appendix C).

Approve the draft Letters of Representations for Havering Council and
Havering Pension Fund and delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer
and Chair of the Audit Committee to update and sign on behalf of the
Council once the audit opinions are provided (Appendix D and Appendix E).

Approve the 2024/25 Annual Governance Statement, signed by the Leader
and the Chief Executive, confirming the governance arrangements that were
in place during the year (Appendix F).

REPORT DETAIL

Introduction

The Council is required to prepare annual financial accounts covering the
period from 1 April to 31 March, in compliance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 amended the
deadline for English local authorities to publish unaudited (draft) accounts,
changing it from 31 May to 30 June for the financial years 2024/25 through to
2027/28.

The 2024 regulations require local authorities to approve and publish their

audited financial statements by a legislative ‘backstop’ date. For the financial
year to 31st March 2025 the backstop date is 27 February 2026.

Page 14



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

1.4.

1.5.

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

Regulation 9(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires
members to approve the Statement of Accounts that is to be published, either
by meeting as full council or through a committee.

Following approval of the Statement of Accounts by members, regulation 10
sets out the requirements for publication of an authority’s accountability
statements. These comprise of the Statement of Accounts together with the
opinion and any certificate, the Annual Governance Statement approved by
members and the Narrative Statement.

Audit Delays and Recovery

The timely publication of local government accounts has faced significant
delays in recent years. To tackle the backlog of outstanding local government
external audits, Government implemented a series of back-stop dates after
which auditors would no longer examine accounts for overdue periods. If
audits cannot be completed by these backstop dates, the auditor will typically
issue a disclaimer of opinion on the accounts.

As previously reported to the committee, the Council received disclaimed
audit opinions in 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24. It will take several years to
rebuild the audit assurances required to return to an unqualified opinion. The
table below shows the different audit opinions and gives a summary of each.

Audit Opinion | Description

Unmodified Unqualified. This is the best audit outcome and means the
auditor has obtained enough evidence to support a view
that the accounts are materially accurate and fairly
represent the financial position

Quialified The auditor has material concerns due to a lack of
evidence or evidence that suggests an error however, the
error is not widespread. An ‘except for’ opinion

Disclaimer This means the auditor is unable to form an opinion due to
insufficient evidence and the impact may be both material
and widespread

Adverse The worst-case scenario in that the auditor has evidence to
suggest material misstatements that undermine the
reliability of the accounts as a whole

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The Council published its draft 2024/25 Accounts on 30 June 2025, thereby
adhering to the statutory deadline. Following publication and in accordance
with the regulations, the accounts and supporting documentation were made
available for public inspection from 1 July to 11 August 2025 and the relevant
statutory public notice was published on the Council’s website. There were
no objections raised during the inspection period.

Page 15



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

The audit of the Council’'s accounts by Ernst & Young LLP (EY) commenced
in September, in line with the audit plan presented to the committee on 8 July
2025. The Audit Results Report (ARR), attached at Appendix A, details the
findings of the audit and sets out the adjustments made to the accounts since
they were published in draft in June 2025.

The key audit adjustments are:
e The correction of understated in-year depreciation (£2.3m)
e Reclassification between debtors and creditors (£3.5m)
¢ NNDR income reclassification within the CIES (£3.5m)
e Netting down of internal recharges in the CIES (£15.4m)

Unfortunately, due to the lack of assurance over the opening balances from

previous years’ disclaimed opinions, and despite every effort being made by
both the Council and the auditor team, it has not been possible to complete

the audit of the Council’s accounts before the backstop date of 27 February
2026.

As there are still a number of areas where the auditor has not been able to
gain full assurance, EY are expected to issue a disclaimed audit opinion for
the 2024/25 financial year. It is likely that a disclaimed opinion will also be
issued for 2025/26. The authority will work closely with its external auditor to
develop a realistic and achievable recovery plan as part of future audit cycles.

The Strategic Director for Resources (section 151 officer) is satisfied that the
accounts represent a ‘true and fair’ view of the financial position of the
authority at 31 March 2025.

Should any further audit adjustments be required prior to the audit opinion,
approval will be sought from the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the
Chair of the Committee.

Pension Fund Accounts 2024/25

The audit of the Pension Fund Accounts for the 2024/25 financial year
commenced in June and is substantially complete. The audited Pension
Fund Accounts are included within the Financial Statements, Appendix C.

The draft Audit Results Report for the Pension Fund can be found at
Appendix B and the Auditor will present their findings and update the
Committee on any matters that may have arisen since the conclusion of the
audit.

The auditor, subject to final completion procedures, expects to issue an
unqualified opinion on the 2024/25 Pension Fund Accounts.

Page 16



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

5.1.

5.2.

6.1.

6.2.

7.1

7.2

Letters of Representations

Upon completion of the audit, it is a requirement of International Auditing
Standards for the auditor to request a letter from the Council that sets out
management representations, both for the main accounts and for the Pension
Fund.

Copies of the draft letters are attached at Appendices D and E. These will be
completed and signed, on behalf of the authority, by the Council’s Section
151 Officer and the Chair of the Audit Committee on 26 February 2026. Upon
receipt of the signed letters the auditor will be able to formally issue the audit
opinions, which they aim to do on 26 February 2026.

Value for Money Assessment

The auditor identified three significant risks and has concluded that one of
those risks represents a significant weakness in arrangements. This will be
reported by exception in their Audit Report.

The external auditor’'s assessment of the Council’s value for money (VM)
arrangements for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 is included in the
ARR, Appendix A, along with a number of recommendations relating to
financial controls.

Annual Governance Statements

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2024/25 is attached at Appendix F.
A draft was presented to the committee on 17 April 2025 and approved by the
Leader and Chief Executive of the Council on 31 July 2025.

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations, publication of the annual
governance statement follows the same timetable as the financial statements
and the committee are asked to approve the AGS in accordance with the
regulations.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Legal implications and risks:
There are no legal implications arising from this report other than those referenced
within the body of the report.

Human Resources implications and risks:
There are no direct human resources implications in this report.

Page 17



Audit Committee, 24 February 2026

Equalities implications and risks:
There are no direct equalities implications in this report.

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have ‘due regard’ to:

(i) The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and,;

(iif) Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and
those who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage
and civil partnerships, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex/gender, and sexual orientation.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all
Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health determinants.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS
None arising directly from this report.

Appendices:

Appendix A — Draft Council Audit Results Report 2024/25

Appendix B — Draft Pension Fund Audit Results Report 2024/25

Appendix C — Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2025
Appendix D — Draft Letter of Representations for Havering Council, 2024/25
Appendix E — Draft Letter of Representations for Havering Pension Fund, 2024/25
Appendix F — Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Page 18



Appendix A

London Borough of
Havering

Audit Results Report
Year ended 31 March 2025

11 February 2026

EEN
The better the question. The better the answer. The better the world works.



Audit Committee

London Borough of Havering
Town Hall

Main Road

Romford

RM1 3BB

11 February 2026

Dear Audit Committee Members
2024/25 Audit Results Report

We attach our Audit Results Report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. We will update the Audit
Committee at its meeting scheduled for 24 February 2026 on further progress to that date and explain the remaining steps to the issue of our final opinion.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2024/25 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements. This report
contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on the London Borough of Havering (the Council’s) accounting policies and
judgements and material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge, the exercise of professional
judgement and the quality of evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management team for
supporting this process.

The Audit Committee, as the Council's body charged with governance, has an essential role in ensuring that it has assurance over both the quality of the
draft financial statements prepared by management and the Council's wider arrangements to support the delivery of a timely and efficient audit.

We consider and report on the adequacy of the Council's external financial reporting arrangements and the effectiveness of the audit committee in fulfilling
its role in those arrangements as part of our assessment of Value for Money arrangements; and consider the use of other statutory reporting powers to
draw attention to weaknesses in those arrangements where we consider it necessary to do so. We draw Audit Committee members' and officers’ attention to
the Public Sector Audit Appointment Limited's Statement of Responsibilities (paragraphs 26-28) which clearly sets out what is expected of audited bodies in
preparing their financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 24 February 2026.

Yours faithfully

Maucsw HonGSonS

Mark Hodgson
Partner,
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc




Appendix A

01 Executive Summary 02 Areas of Audit Focus (0)¢3 Value for Money

Assessment of
(0]5)

04 ) Audit Report 05 ) Audit Differences Control Environment

07 gtszeers Repoing 08 Independence (0]°) Appendices

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies-from-2023-24-audits)

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited
bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)" issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code), and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of London Borough of Havering in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Audit Committee and management of London Borough of Havering those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and management of London Borough of Havering for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not
be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 3




Appendix A

fnl

O1 ) Executive Summary




Appendix A

Executive Summary - Context for the audit

Context for the audit - Measures to address local audit delays

Timely, high-quality financial reporting and audit of local bodies is a vital part of the democratic system. It supports good decision making by local bodies and ensures transparency and
accountability to local taxpayers. There is general agreement that the backlog in the publication of audited financial statements by local bodies has grown to an unacceptable level and
there is a clear recognition that all stakeholders in the sector need to work together to address this. Reasons for the backlog across the system have been widely reported and include:

= lack of capacity within the local authority financial accounting profession;

= increased complexity of reporting requirements within the sector;

= alack of auditors and audit firms with public sector experience; and

= increased reqgulatory pressure on auditors, which in turn has increased the scope and extent of audit procedures performed.

MHCLG has worked collaboratively with the FRC and other system partners, to develop and implement measures to clear the backlog. The approach to addressing the backlog consists
of three phases:

_-U Phase 1: Reset involving clearing the backlog of historic audit opinions up to and including financial year 2022/23 by 13 December 2024. This has now been delivered.

Q) Phase 2: Recovery from Phase 1, starting from 2023/24, in a way that does not cause a recurrence of the backlog by using backstop dates to allow assurance to be rebuilt over

Q multiple audit cycles. The backstop date for audit of the 2024/25 financial statements is 27 February 2026. This process of rebuilding assurance will take several years to achieve.
The NAO, supported by the MHCLG and the FRC, are responsible for issuing guidance and have been liaising with audit firms to understand the complexities involved and to seek to

N ensure a more consistent approach for restoring assurance for disclaimed periods. The NAO has now published its Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance

(D (LARRIG) 06 setting out considerations for rebuilding assurance following the issue of disclaimed audit opinions under the backstop arrangements. The guidance predominantly
focuses on the rebuilding of assurance over reserves, where it is more difficult to obtain assurance because of the way in which they accumulate over successive years. It also
continues to recognise that the approach needed to rebuild assurance will differ authority to authority and will need to be considered in the context of both inherent risk factors
which all authorities subject to recently disclaimed opinions will share, and factors specific to each individual authority’'s system of internal control and financial reporting. We will
continue to consider the impact of this on our audit approach. In 2024/25 we have continued to audit the closing balance sheet and in-year transactions, which allows the build back
of assurances over a large number of balances within the financial statements where audit procedures can be completed for successive years.

= Phase 3: Reform involving addressing systemic challenges in the system and embedding timely financial reporting and audit.

As reported in our 24 February 2025 Audit Results Report we issued a disclaimer of opinion on the Council's 2023/24 financial statements under these arrangements to reset and
recover local government audit. We also issued a disclaimer of opinion on the 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial statements. In 2024/25, we have continued to audit the closing balance
sheet and in-year transactions. Although the level of assurance gained has increased, we have not yet obtained sufficient evidence to have reasonable assurance over all in-year
movements and closing balances.

As a result of the disclaimer of opinions on the 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 financial statements, we do not have assurance over some brought forward balances from 2023/24
where we did not gain assurance (the 2023/24 closing balances becoming 2024/25 opening balances). This means we do not have assurance over all 2024/25 in-year movements and
the comparative prior year movements. We also do not have assurance over all the 2023/24 comparative balances disclosed in the 2024/25 financial statements. Taken together with
the requirement to conclude our work by the 2024/25 back stop date, the lack of evidence over these movements and balances mean we are unable to conclude that the 2024/25
financial statements are free from material and pervasive misstatement of the financial statements. We therefore anticipate issuing a disclaimed 2024/25 audit opinion.

Appendix A sets out the current position of London Borough of Havering in rebuilding to return to a position of full assurance on its financial statements as compared with the timeline
envisaged by the NAO's LARRIG 01. This is informed by the summary of the assurances we have gained from our 2023/24 and 2024/25 audit procedures, set out at Appendix B.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 5



Appendix A

Executive Summary - Context for the audit

Scope update °

In our Audit Plan presented to the Audit Committee meeting on the 8 July 2025, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit of the financial
statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions:

Changes in Materiality

In our Audit Plan, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a planning materiality of £7.53 million and a performance materiality of £5.65 million which
represented 75% of materiality.

We updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft consolidated results to £8.08 million.

We reconsidered our risk assessment in light of findings, potential fraudulent activity and weaknesses in internal control reported by the Head of Internal Audit in his 2024/25 audit
opinion. As a result of this we reduced our performance materiality to 50% of planning materiality reflecting a higher risk of misstatement.

This resulted in an updated performance materiality of £4.04 million and a threshold for reporting misstatements of £0.40 million.

vz abed

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 6



Appendix A

Executive Summary (continued)

Status of the audit

Our audit work in respect of the group opinion is substantially complete. The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at the date of this
report.

Closing Procedures

= Review of the final version of the financial statements.
= Completion of subsequent events review.
= Receipt of the signed Management Representation letter.

= Final Manager and Engagement Partner reviews.

We will continue to challenge the remaining evidence provided and the final disclosures in the financial statements which could influence our final audit opinion, a current draft of
“Which is included in Section 04.

Gz obe

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 7



Appendix A

Executive Summary (continued)

Value for Money — ]

In our Audit Plan dated 28 April 2025, we reported that we had not fully completed our Value for Money (VFM) risk assessment but that we had, at that point, identified two risks of
significant weakness in respect of the governance of Group subsidiaries and OFSTED inspection findings. Upon completion of our Value for Money risk assessment, we identified one
additional risk of significant weakness in respect of internal control matters (including potential fraudulent activity) reported by the Head of Internal Audit in his 2024/25 audit
opinion. We have completed our procedures to address these risks of significant weakness and have identified a significant weakness in arrangements in respect of the weaknesses
identified in internal control. See Section 03 for further details.

Audit differences — °

Uncorrected Differences

_d\/e have identified one uncorrected misstatement relating to the valuation of Investment Properties which would decrease ‘Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure’ in the
Q) omprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement by £2.6 million. The uncorrected misstatements would have no impact on the Council's Useable Reserves.

((QbCorrected Differences

I\¥\Ie have identified five misstatements which Management have corrected for relating to:
(@)) 1. Depreciation: £2.3 million understatement of the in year depreciation charge.

2. Short-term Debtors: Management identified the incorrect classification of a Short-term Creditor balance of £3.5 million within Short-term Debtors.
3. NNDR Income: incorrect classification of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) income of £3.5 million within Net Cost of Services.
4

Management has identified and corrected for misstatements due to the grossing up of recharges in the draft Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of
£15.4 million. This adjustment reduces both expenditure and income within Cost of Services and does not impact the Net Cost of Services.

5. Disclosure misstatements: We identified a number of disclosure misstatements which management have adjusted for.

See Section 05 for further details.

Other reporting issues — °

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council. We have no matters to report as a result of this
work.

As the Council falls below the £2 billion threshold for review as per the NAO's group instructions, we are not required to undertake detailed procedures on your consolidation
schedule. We are able to submit the required Assurance Statement to the NAO confirming this at the same time as the audit opinion. However, we cannot issue our Audit Certificate
until the NAO has confirmed no further procedure are required of any auditor.

During the course of the audit, we became aware of instances of potential ‘Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations’ which have required us to complete both additional and
extended procedures in order to assess the risk of material misstatement to the financial statements, these procedures remain ongoing.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 8



Appendix A

Executive Summary (continued)

Areas of audit focus °

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of the Council. This report sets out our observations and status in relation to these
areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration of these matters and others identified during
the period is explained within the ‘Areas of Audit Focus' section of this report and summarised below.

Significant Risk Status of our work
Misstatement due to fraud and error Our work in this area is complete and we have not identified any indications of management override.
Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure (including Our work in this area is complete and we have not identified any indications of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute) expenditure.
Accounting adjustments made in the ‘Movement in Reserves We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.
_U'Statement’
Q
LC?)Valuation of Investment Property We have completed our work in this area.
B We have identified one misstatement relating to the valuation of one Investment Property which has not been

corrected for by Management. The impact of this uncorrected misstatement on the Council's financial statements
would be to decrease Non-Current Assets in the Balance Sheet and decrease total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement by £2.4 million.

See Section 02 of this report for further details.
The accounting treatment and valuation of inventory held in We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

the group subsidiaries

Consolidation procedures in the Group Financial Statements We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 9



Appendix A

Executive Summary (continued)

Areas of audit focus (continued) °

Risk of Material Misstatement (Inherent Risk) Status of our work

IFRS 16 Implementation We have been unable to conclude our planned procedures in relation to IFRS 16 Implementation, see Section 02 of
this report for further details.

Valuation of Land and Buildings and Council dwellings We have completed our audit work in this area and identified one observation relating to the valuation methodology
applied to assets valued under the Depreciated Replacement Cost Approach.

See Section 02 of this report for further details.

Pension Liability valuation We have completed our in this area and have no matters to report.
T
8Accounting for impairments of Receivables We have been unable to conclude our planned procedures in relation to the accounting for impairment of Receivables.
Management identified one disclosure misstatement in the Debtors note (Note 19) of £5.3 million, which Management
8 has adjusted for. This has no impact on the Balance Sheet or Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

See Section 02 of this report for further details.

Going Concern Disclosure We have completed our review of the Council's disclosure note (Note 1). Given the financial position of the Council,
whilst our audit report does not cover Going Concern, we do highlight the Council's disclosure note within our opinion.

We request that you review these and other matters set out in this report to ensure:

= There are no further considerations or matters that could impact these issues

= You concur with the resolution of the issue

= There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised

There are no matters, other than those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 10



Appendix A

Executive Summary (continued)

Control observations °

We have adopted a fully substantive audit approach, so have not tested the operation of controls at the Council.

During the audit, we identified the following significant deficiency in internal control:

= The Head of Internal Audit’s audit opinion for 2024/25 was one of ‘limited assurance’ as reported to the Audit Committee in July 2025. This limited assurance opinion was based
on several potential frauds identified within the Council and as a result the identification of several internal control weaknesses. As detailed in Section 03, we have identified a risk
of significant weakness in Value for Money (VFM) arrangements relating to these findings. We have completed our procedures in this are and have identified a number of control
observations which are detailed in Section 06.

In addition we identified a number of control observations and improvement recommendations in relation to Management's financial processes and controls. Please refer to Section
06 for details.

T

jabl
Q

Qndependence °
N

qalease refer to Section 08 for our update on Independence. There are no independence issues to bring to your attention.

Factors impacting the execution of the audit °

Management, and the Audit Committee, as the Council’s body charged with governance, have an essential role in supporting the delivery of an efficient and effective audit. Our ability
to complete the audit is dependent on the timely formulation of appropriately supported accounting judgements, provision of accurate and relevant supporting evidence, access to
the finance team and management'’s responsiveness to issues identified during the audit.

The table over-page sets out our views on the effectiveness of the Council’'s arrangements to support an external financial audit across a range of relevant measures.

We have been unable to undertake all planned procedures, and this is therefore likely to extend the timetable to recover assurance on the Council's financial statements. See
Appendices A and B for further details.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 11



Executive Summary (continued)

Appendix A

Factors impacting the execution of the audit (continued)

Timeliness of the draft financial
statements

Explanation

The Financial Statements were published by the 30 June 2025 deadline set out

Effective in the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

Quality and completeness of the draft
financial statements

Further detail

N/A

On initial review we identified a number of non-material internal inconsistencies,
disclosure, typographical and arithmetic errors in the draft Financial
Statements. Overall the draft Financial Statements were of a reasonable quality
for audit.

See Section 05 for details of
misstatements.

De

y of working papers in accordance
wit&reed client assistance schedule

Approximately 20% of working papers were not provided to the agreed
timetable. The most significant of these were working papers relating to Debtors
and Creditors.

As a result of delays in receiving
working papers, we were required
to reallocate work within the audit
team and consequently the audit
did not progress inline with the
agreed project plan.

®
w
o

Quality of working papers and supporting

evidence

Through the course of our audit we noted that overall the quality of working
papers had shown considerable improvement from prior years.

However, we did experience delays in the provision of supporting evidence from
the Council and in a number of areas the quality of evidence provided to support
accounting balances and transactions was not to the quality required to allow us
to conclude work first time, resulting in a significant number of requests for
clarification and further evidence.

Timeliness and quality of evidence
supporting key accounting estimates

We were unable to complete all
our planned procedures in several
areas. See Appendix B.

Working papers to support estimates (excepting Creditors as above) in the

Effective

Access to finance team and personnel to

support the audit in accordance with
agreed project plan

Financial Statements were provided as per our agreed project plan. N/A
We did not encounter significant issues or delays regarding access to the finance

team and other personnel. However, the Council in November have been

impacted by changes in IT systems due the Council migrating away from N/A

OneSource systems. This resulted in access issues for Council officers, to the
Council's own systems and supporting documentation/evidence and access to
EY’s client portal, delaying responses to audit queries during this period.

Volume and value of identified
misstatements

A relatively small number of misstatements were detected through our audit

Effective
procedures.

Volume of misstatements in disclosure

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

See Section 05 for details of
misstatements.

We identified a limited number of disclosure misstatements through our audit
procedures.

Effective

See Section 05 for details of
misstatements.

London 1Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 12




Appendix A

fnl

02 ) Areas of Audit Focus




Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Misstatements due to fraud or error o

-
=
Q
c
o
)
wn
=
[
[ )

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? + lIdentified fraud risks during the planning stages of the audit.

* Inquired of management regarding fraud risks and the controls implemented to address them.
The Council and Group Financial Statements as a whole are not free . . . . .
of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error. + Gained an understanding of the oversight exercised by Those Charged with Governance over
management'’s fraud-related processes.
As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to

perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting * Discussed fraud risks with Those Charged with Governance, including risks specific to the entity’s
_éecords directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent Financial business sector and operating environment.
tatements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be +  Assessed the effectiveness of management's controls designed to mitigate fraud risks.
perating effectively.
D » Determined an appropriate audit strategy to respond to the identified fraud risks.
) ) ) ) ) + Performed mandatory procedures regardless of identified fraud risks, including testing journal entries
e |dent|fyfnd respond to this fraud risk on every audit and other adjustments made during financial statement preparation.
€ngagement.

» Undertook procedures to identify significant unusual transactions.

» Considered the presence of management bias in key accounting estimates and judgments.

What are our conclusions?

We did not identify any material weaknesses in internal controls or evidence of management override.

No instances of inappropriate judgments were identified during our audit procedures.

Our audit procedures did not reveal any transactions that appeared unusual or outside the Council's normal course of business.
Journal entry testing did not identify any inappropriate postings.

We noted one journal where approval had been provided via Microsoft Teams. Due to the Council's 30-day message retention policy, the approval evidence was unavailable for
verification. While there was no evidence of approval for this journal, our testing did not identify any misstatements or indications of fraud. A recommendation addressing this matter
is included in Section 06.

Our journal testing identified one year-end journal posted to correct a series of historic and current system issues and miscoding's. Similar corrective journals have been posted in
prior years, indicating that some underlying issues remain unresolved within the Council's accounting arrangements. We recommend that the Council undertake a comprehensive
review of these recurring adjustments and address the root causes within its financial systems. This recommendation is detailed in Section 06.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 14



Areas of Audit Focus

Appendix A

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure (including Revenue
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute)

! I
‘ .
LWIT’TESE 777777 J Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement o

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? « Tested Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) / Investment Property (IP) additions to ensure that the
expenditure incurred and capitalised was clearly capital in nature.

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be .
misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the public
sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by
the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should
also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the

manipulation of expenditure recognition. .
“Wor the Council and Group Financial Statements we have assessed
he risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate .
apitalisation of revenue expenditure.
w

Assessed whether the capitalised spend clearly enhanced or extended the useful like of asset rather
than simply repairing or maintaining the asset on which it was incurred.

Considered whether any development or other related costs were reasonable to capitalise i.e. the
costs incurred were directly attributable to bringing the asset into operational use.

Tested REFCUS to ensure that it was appropriate for the revenue expenditure incurred to be financed
from ringfenced capital resources.

Identified and understood the basis for significant journals transferring expenditure from revenue to
capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the year.

What are our conclusions?

The Council's 2024/25 financial statements discloses £99.6 million of capital additions in Property, Plant and Equipment, no capital additions in Investment Properties and £5.9

million of REFCUS expenditure.

We have completed our work on capital additions and REFCUS and have not identified any additions that were incorrectly capitalised or REFCUS items which did not meet the

statutory definition.

Our testing of year end journals did not identify any movements from expenditure to capital outside of the normal course of business.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 15



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Accounting adjustments made in the ‘Movement in Reserves Statement .

-
=
Q
c
o
)
wn
=
[
[ )

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? » Reconciled entries for consistency to other audited accounts within the Financial Statements, for
example our work on Property, Plant and Equipment to support adjustments made for depreciation,

The Council is under financial pressure to achieve its revenue impairments, revaluation losses, and application of capital grants;

budget. Manipulating expenditure is a key way of achieving these « Reviewed the Council’s policy and application of the ‘Minimum Revenue Provision’ (MRP) and tested

targets. the accuracy of the adjustments made for MRP; and

We consider the risk applies to accounting adjustments made in the + Used our data analytics tool to identify and test journal entry adjustments made in the movement in
ovement in Reserves Statement. reserves statement.

QY he adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
(Regulation changes the amounts charged to General Fund balances.
(D?egulations are varied and complex, resulting in a risk that
(ranagement misstatement accounting adjustments to manipulate
J¥he General Fund balance. We have identified the risk to be highest
for adjustments concerning the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

What are our conclusions? °

We have completed our work on adjustments in the Movements in Reserves Statement (MiRS) and have not identified any transactions or movements made to the MiRS outside of
the normal course of business.

Entries were found to be consistent to other areas of the financial statements, and our testing of journals did not identify any instances of inappropriate posting to the MiRS.

Our testing of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) did not identify any misstatements or inappropriate adjustments.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 16



Areas of Audit Focus

Appendix A

Valuation of Investment Property

! I
‘ o .
L,,E?TIET,R,IS},,J Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement o

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? *
work performed, their professional capabilities and results of their work.

Investment Property represents a significant balance in Council and .
Group Financial Statements (2023/24: £102.69 million).

Management is required to make material judgments and apply .
estimation to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the
Balance Sheet.

.-
Q .
Q
®

Considered the work performed by the Council's valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the

Sample tested key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation (e.g. market
rent)

For a sample of Investment Property valuations engaged our internal specialist, EY Real Estate, to
review the valuations, assumptions and conclusions reached by the external valuer.

Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that investment properties had been valued
annually as required by the Code.

Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the Financial Statements.

V/hat are our conclusions?

We have completed our work on this risk.

In 2024/25, the Group financial statements discloses £110.1 million of Investment Property assets, of which £46.7 million are held by the Council, with the remaining £63.4 million

being held by Mercury Land Holdings Ltd.

We did not identify any specific changes to assets that had occurred that required communication to the valuer.

Testing of accounting entries confirmed they had been correctly processed in the financial statements.

We found no issues with the disclosure made in the accounts concerning the material uncertainty relating to year end valuations.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 17



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Valuation of Investment Property (Continued) °

What are our conclusions (continued)? °

Our Internal Valuers review identified one asset outside of a reasonable valuation range. The property at 39-43 South Street, Romford (occupied by M&S) is recorded in the
financial statements at £12.4 million. The current lease is due to expire in March 2027; however, the valuation assumes continuation beyond this date. At the balance sheet date
and the date of this report, the lease renewal remains uncertain, with the Council in negotiations with M&S regarding rent, lease terms, and potential capital contributions for
refurbishment. Given this uncertainty, we estimate the fair value at the balance sheet date to be within a reasonable range of £7.3 million to £9.8 million, as an investor would not
pay the same price for an asset with only two years remaining on the lease compared to one with a new medium to long-term lease. This results in an overstatement in the valuation
of the asset by a minimum of £2.6 million as at 31 March 2025 (being the difference of the Council’s valuation to the top of our reasonable range).

“Wanagement have chosen not to adjustment for this judgmental audit difference. Further details can be found in Section 05 of this report.
%ur Internal Valuers identified one observation regarding the valuation methodology employed by the Council's valuer.

O the UK market, yields used for valuing Investment Properties at fair value are typically quoted on a net basis. Net yields include purchaser costs such as stamp duty and agency
Ghees and are generally around 6.8%. Therefore, an adjustment is normally required to remove these purchaser costs to derive an asset’s fair value.

Our internal valuers noted that the Council's valuers do not make any adjustment for purchaser costs. They state that they use gross yields, which already incorporates this
adjustment. This approach differs from the majority of the market, which uses net yields. As a result, comparing the Council’s valuers yields directly to published market yields is
not possible because they are calculated on a different basis, adding complexity to the valuation process which then requires additional audit procedures for us to gain comfort over
the valuations.

For Investment Properties held in Mercury Land Holdings LLP, we have obtained assurance from the subsidiary auditors through their reporting to us and our detailed review of

their audit files. The subsidiary auditors did not identify any misstatements relating to the valuation of Investment Properties by the subsidiary's external valuers and we concluded
that we could rely on the work of the subsidiary auditors.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 18



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

The accounting treatment and valuation of inventory held in the group subsidiaries o
|

! Significant Risk i Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional _
b E judgement

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and _
estimates? h * Requested Management to prepare an assessment as to the accounting treatment
of these ‘inventory’ balances against the requirements of the CIPFA Code of

Practice considering the nature of these balances.

The group subsidiaries have material inventory (£32.6 million in 2023/24) held as a

current asset in the balance sheet in the subsidiaries Financial Statements. The Group + Tested Managements assessment to confirm the appropriate accounting
Financial Statements records this balance as a non-current asset within Property, Plant & treatment in the Group Financial Statements.

Equipment. Given the difference in accounting treatment there is a risk that these ) ) )
balances maybe incorrectly accounted for in the Group Financial Statements. * Prepared Group Instructions for the component auditors of the Council’s

subsidiaries; and,
Should these assets be inventory in nature they should be measured at lower of cost and ) ) )
et realisable value which requires the use of assumptions, judgements and estimates * Reviewed the work undertaken by component auditors and determined whether

egarding the expected returns from the project and total costs to complete the we could place reliance on their work to obtain assurance over the Inventory
evelopment. The variances between these assumptions and actual events could have a balances consolidated into the group accounts.
material impact on the ultimate net realisable value.

What are our conclusions? °

We have completed our work on this risk.

Management did not provide an assessment of the accounting treatment for these inventory balances. Consequently, we performed our own assessment against the CIPFA Code of
Practice and relevant accounting standards.

As at 31 March 2025, two of the Council’s subsidiaries, Bridge Close Regeneration LLP and Rainham and Beam Park Regeneration LLP, held inventory at cost totalling £39.3
million (£36.9 million at Bridge Close Regeneration LLP and £2.4 million at Rainham and Beam Park Regeneration LLP). Inventory is accounted for under IAS 2 by the subsidiaries.

We obtained assurance from the subsidiary auditors that the inventory cost was accurate in the subsidiary accounts and confirmed reliance on their work through our file review
and evaluation of their responses to our group instructions.

Upon consolidation, these inventory balances were reclassified in the Group's Balance Sheet as Assets Under Construction within Property, Plant and Equipment under IAS 16, also
at cost.

Our review and testing of the ‘cost’ did not identify any misstatements, as the components of the inventory cost were allowable under IAS 16. We also assessed the accounting
treatment of reclassifying inventory to Assets Under Construction upon consolidation and concluded that the treatment was appropriate, given the intention to develop property
assets for subsequent sale to the Council for its use.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 19



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Consolidation procedures in the Group Financial Statements ®

%)
a
E)
2
IS
Y
)
=
)
w
=
I
[ ]

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:

What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? » Reviewed the Council's assessment of its group boundary and the significance of the components in
the group Financial Statements;

The Council prepares group accounts to consolidate Mercury Land
Holdings Limited, Bridge Close Regeneration LLP, Havering &
Wates Regeneration LLP and Rainham & Beam Park Regeneration
LLP. In 20/21, we identified a number of misstatements with the
intercompany elimination adjustments.

-Ql 2023/24 we prepared and sent group instructions to the
ubsidiary auditors. We did not receive all responses to these
nstructions and therefore were unable to obtain assurance that the
evel of errors identified in 2020/21 have been rectified and

duced in subsequent years.

Given the nature and extent of the errors found in prior years, we
consider this to be significant risk as the balances consolidated into
the group accounts may be materially misstated. Management will
also need to consider the timing of the subsidiary audits to ensure
that subsidiary auditors are able to complete their procedures to
allow reporting to us as a group auditor during our audit.

Prepared group instructions for the component auditors of the Council's subsidiaries;

Reviewed the work undertaken by component auditors and determined whether we can place reliance
on their work to obtain assurance over the balances consolidated into the group accounts;

Ensured that appropriate consolidation procedures are applied in line with the Code of Practice when
consolidating subsidiaries into the Council’'s group Financial Statements:

Understood the process for consolidation;

Understood transactions between group subsidiaries and tested that the appropriate accounting
entries have been made to eliminate inter-group transactions;

Understood and tested the differences in accounting policies, ensured that the appropriate
adjustments are made on consolidation to align accounting policies set for the group; and

Reviewed the disclosures in the group Financial Statements and ensured that they are materially
accurate and complete.

What are our conclusions?

We have completed our work on this risk.

We did not identify any issues with the Council's assessment of its group boundary.

We obtained responses and assurances from the subsidiary auditors in line with our group instructions. Our review of their work confirmed that we were able to place reliance on

their procedures to obtain assurance over consolidated balances.

Our testing of the consolidation process and intercompany eliminations indicated that the procedures implemented by management were appropriate. We identified no

misstatements related to the consolidation of group balances and disclosures.

Additionally, we tested the differences in accounting policies between the subsidiaries and the group and found no differences which led to any misstatements.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 20



Areas of Audit Focus

Appendix A

IFRS 16 Implementation

What is the risk, and the key judgements and _
estimates?

IFRS 16 Leases is applicable in local government for periods beginning 1 April 2024. It has been
adopted, interpreted and adapted in the 2024/24 CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting which sets out the financial reporting framework for the Council and Group’s
2024/25 Financial Statements.

IFRS 16 eliminates the operating/finance lease distinction for leases and imposes a single model

geared towards the recognition of all but low-value or short-term leases. Where the Council is
ssee these will now be recognised on the Balance Sheet as a 'right of use’ asset and lease
ability reflecting the obligation to make lease payments.

(Successful transition will depend on the Council having captured additional information about
Meases, both new and existing, especially regarding future minimum lease payments. The Council
(Wil also have had to develop systems for capturing cost information that are fit for purpose, can
(®espond to changes in lease terms and the presence of any variable (e.g., RPI-based) lease terms

where forecasts will need to be updated annually based on prevailing indices.

The Council performed an initial impact assessment in 2023/24 and expected to recognise a
right of use asset of £11.5 million.

Our response to the key areas of challenge and o
professional judgement

In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:

Gained an understanding of the processes and controls developed by the
Council relevant to the implementation of IFRS 16. We will pay particular
attention to the Council's arrangements to ensure lease and lease-type
arrangements considered are complete.

Reviewed the discount rate that is used to calculate the right of use asset and
assess its reasonableness.

Reviewed management policies, including whether to use a portfolio approach,
low value threshold, and asset classes where management is adopting as the
practical expedient to non-lease components.

Gained assurance over the right of use asset included in the 2024/25 Financial
Statements

Sample tested leases to ensure that transition arrangements have been
correctly applied.

Considered the accounting for leases provided at below market rate, including
peppercorn and nil consideration, and the need to make adjustments to cost in
the valuation of right of use assets at the balance sheet date.

What are our conclusions?

We have not been able to complete our procedures over IFRS 16 implementation.

We performed procedures to gain an understanding of the Council's implementation of IFRS 16, including its processes, controls, and related policies.

We commenced testing of leases; however, we were unable to complete these procedures as we could not obtain sufficient assurance over the valuation of the right-of use (ROU)
assets or the valuation of the lease liabilities. The Council holds a significant number of property leases accounted for as ROU assets. During our testing of lease liability and ROU

values on a sample basis, we identified the following:

1) Incorrect Lease Terms: For some sampled leases, the lease term applied was incorrect, resulting in factual misstatements. While these were immaterial on an individual asset

basis, further consideration is required regarding the potential impact across the untested population.

2) Unsupported Lease Terms: For certain leases, the applied lease term lacked supporting evidence. A three-year term had been used based on anticipated future lease agreements,
which have not yet been finalized or signed. Some leases have been rolling since 2009, raising concerns about whether a three-year assumption is appropriate given the absence of

signed agreements.

A recommendation addressing these matters is included in Section 06.
Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 21



Areas of Audit Focus

Appendix A

Valuation of Land and Buildings and Council dwellings

What is the risk, and the key judgements and R
estimates? -

The valuation of land and buildings and Council dwellings represent significant
balance in the Council's Financial Statements (2023/24: £1.30 billion). These
balances are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews, and depreciation
charges. In calculating amounts recorded in the balances sheet, management are
required to make material judgements and apply estimation techniques. We
nsider that the judgments and estimates made by management are likely to have a
mnaterial impact on the valuation of these assets.

«Q

(I?SAS (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of
perts and assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

The Council performed an initial impact assessment in 2023/24 and expected to
recognise a right of use asset of £11.5 million.

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional _
judgement

In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:

Considered the work performed by the valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the
work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

Sample tested key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation
(e.q. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within
a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE. We also considered if there
are any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been
communicated to the valuer;

Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2024/25 to confirm that the remaining asset
base is not materially misstated;

Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation;
and

Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the Financial Statements.

What are our conclusions?

We have completed our work on this risk.

We have not identified any issues from our review of the work performed by the valuer over the Council's assets, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their

professional capabilities and the results of their work.

No specific asset changes requiring communication to the valuer were noted. We also identified no issues regarding useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation.
All assets were appropriately revalued within the Council's five-year rolling programme, and testing confirmed that accounting entries were correctly processed in the financial

statements.

During our review, we noted an issue with the valuation methodology applied to assets valued under the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach. For the 2024/25 valuation cycle,
the valuer applied an average build cost adjustment of 1% based on general asset categories commonly used by Councils. For two specific assets, Harold Hill Youth Facility and
Upminster Crematorium, the actual changes in build rates for their respective categories were significantly different, at -18% and +32%. Although the current-year impact is
immaterial, this approach could result in a material misstatement in future valuation periods if similar variances occur.

A recommendation addressing this matter is included in Section 06.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 22



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Pension Liability valuation °

Our response to the key areas of challenge and
professional judgement

What is the risk, and the key judgements and In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
estimates? » Liaised with the auditors of London Borough of Havering Pension

Fund, and obtained assurances over the information supplied to
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive the actuary in relation to the London Borough of Havering;

disclosures within its Financial Statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension
Scheme administered by the Council.

[
I I
| |
I I
5 1
I = |
| (_KD |
I g |
[
(|
[
I @ |
= 1
| I
I I
I I
I I
L

[ )

* Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans
Robertson) including the assumptions they have used, by relying
The Council's pension fund asset is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the

disclosed on the Council's balance sheet. At 31 March 2024 this totalled £92.84 million. National Audit Office for all local government sector auditors, and

. . . . . . consider relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to the

—Qouncil. » Evaluated the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary's
calculations by comparing them to the outputs of our own

ccounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management auditor’s specialist’s model; and

(Iyngages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to ) ) ) )
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value + Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made
ﬁstimates. within the Council's Financial Statements in relation to IAS19.

What are our conclusions? o

We have completed our work on this risk.

We obtained assurance from the Havering Pension Fund auditor regarding the information supplied to the actuary.
We have reviewed the assessment of the Pension Fund actuary by PwC and EY Pensions and identified no issues with the assumptions and methodologies applied by the Actuary.
We have agreed the Council's IAS 19 disclosures to the actuaries’ report and ensured these are fairly stated in the accounts.

As at 31 March 2025, the Pension balance was an asset, requiring application of the asset ceiling under IFRIC 14. The draft financial statements were based on an initial IAS 19
report, adjusted by Management to reflect IFRIC 14 and the asset ceiling. Management subsequently obtained an updated IAS 19 report from the actuary incorporating IFRIC 14.
This updated report confirmed that the draft financial statements were not misstated but required adjustments to certain disclosures in Note 42.

Our EY Pensions team reviewed the updated IAS19 report, and found that the estimate was appropriate, and the balance calculated by the actuary fell within a reasonable range.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 23



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Accounting for impairments of Receivables *

! I
‘ .
Lﬁlinfieff'fli””} Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement o

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? » Reviewed the calculation of the bad debt provision for reasonableness and accuracy; and

» Reperformed the bad debt calculation and test managements judgements regarding the recoverability

The impairment of Receivables (Bad debt provision) is a material of debt by testing a sample of trade receivables.
estimate in the Council's Financial Statements (£56.7 million in
2023/24). The estimate is made up of several separate complex
calculations which requires management to make a number of
accounting judgements as to the recoverability of debt. in 2023/24

e identified a number of immaterial misstatements and there

herefore remains an inherent risk of misstatement over this

(yalance.

D
D
N
What are our conclusions?

We have been unable to complete our procedures over the accounting for impairments of Receivables.

[ ]

The Council's Bad Debt Provision (impairment) for 2024/25 is £66.2 million, reducing total Short-term Debtors from £140.9 million to £74.7 million as disclosed in the Balance
Sheet. This provision comprises several individual elements, including Council Tax, NNDR, Housing, Housing Benefit, Social Services, Parking Enforcement, and Other Sundry
Debtors.

Our review of supporting working papers during detailed testing identified that many of these provisions are based from historic data dating back to 2017/18, with an accumulating
effect each subsequent year. The methodology applies a 100% provision for the oldest debts, with a reducing provision for more recent years.

Given that we issued disclaimed opinions for 2021/22, 2022/23, and 2023/24 and have not performed rebuild assurance work, we are unable to obtain assurance over the bad
debt provision because these disclaimed years are included in the balance.

A recommendation addressing this matter is included in Section 06.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 24



Appendix A

Areas of Audit Focus

Going Concern Disclosure °

5
>
®
=
®
S
=
)
(%]
=
I
[ ]

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

. . . In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:
What is the risk, and the key judgements and
estimates? *  We will meet the requirements of the revised auditing standard on going concern (ISA 570) and
consider the adequacy of the Council's going concern assessment and its disclosures in the Financial

The Council's updated Medium Term Financial Strategy, estimates a Statements by:

budget gap of £72.1 million in 2025/26 which rises to £183.4 « Testing the appropriateness of the Council's going concern disclosure to corroborating evidence,
million over the next four years. In February 2025, the Secretary of including
State approved a capitalisation direction of £88.0 million for the . i i . ) n
financial year 2025/26 following approved support of £32.5 million » the Council's cashflow forecast and the Council's consideration of whether it has sufficient
in 2024/25 and £18.1 million in 2023/24. liquidity to continue to operate as going concern.
Tiven the continuing financial support from the Secretary of State * The Council's latest medium term financial plan and budget monitoring reports to confirm the
Qlo enable the provision of core services, it is unlikely that the position of it's reserves and projected budget gaps.

(X ouncil will be unable to continue operating as a going concern, but
here is a risk that the Council and Group's Going Concern

JMisclosure note does not adequately reflect the Council and Group's

Udnancial position and requirement for exceptional financial support.

» Undertaking a ‘stand back’ review to consider all of the evidences obtained, whether corroborative or
contradictory, when we draw our conclusions on going concern.

What are our conclusions?

We have completed our review and testing of the Councils going concern disclosure and conclude that it adequately reflects the Council's financial position and requirements
exception financial support.

The provisions of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in
which local authorities operate. These provisions confirm that local authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription and that they must prepare their
financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting.

Local authorities carry out functions essential to the local community, are themselves revenue-raising bodies and the financial reporting framework (Practice Note 10) presumes
the continuation of service provision. However, the Council is required to carry out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to the risks it faces. Under the auditing
standard in relation to going concern (ISA570), the Council is required to ensure that its going concern disclosure within the Financial Statements adequately reflects its going
concern assessment and in particular highlights any uncertainties it has identified.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 25



Value for Money

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 26




Appendix A

Value for Money

The Authority’'s responsibility for Value for Money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and securing value for
money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and how this has operated during the
period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Authority tailors the content to reflect its own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements
set out in the NAO Code of Audit Practice. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Risk assessment and status of our work

We are required to consider whether the Council has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
—ffectiveness on its use of resources.

Financial
(QOur value for money planning and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable

Sustainability
(D us to document our evaluation of the Council's arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three
_breporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses in those
(Brrangements and making appropriate recommendations.
We will provide a commentary on the Council arrangements against three reporting criteria:
= Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its
services;
= Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
= Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

In our Audit Plan dated 28 April 2025, we reported that we had not completed our Value for Money (VFM) risk Governance
assessment. Having updated and completed the risk assessment and associated planned procedures, we have
identified three risks of significant weakness.

We are in the process of completing our audit procedures in relation to the three risks of weakness. These are set out \_/
on the following page.

Based on evidence to date, we expect to conclude that one of these risks represent significant weaknesses in the
Council's underlying arrangements. We therefore anticipate that we will have ‘Other matters' to report by exception
within our Audit Report. See the following page for details of the risk of significant weakness identified.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 27



Corporate Governance (continued)

Appendix A

Risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

What is the risk of significant weakness?

OFSTED inspection findings

In 2023/24 we reported a significant weakness relating to the outcome of an
Ofsted inspection report, where the overall effectiveness in respect of the
Council's Children's Service has been rated as ‘inadequate’. Without an
appropriate and timely response to the report findings, and how effective
those responses have been, constitutes a risk of weakness in 2024/25.

T

(C®overnance of Group subsidiaries

atements. These subsidiaries are audited by three different auditors and in

023/24 the group subsidiary auditors did not fully respond to our group
instructions prior to the 2023/24 backstop date. The lack of timely assurance
from the subsidiary auditors, over which the Council has responsibility, could
give rise to a risk within any of the subsidiary bodies of which Members are not
aware.

9]
%Itﬁe Council consolidates four subsidiaries into the Group Financial

We have therefore identified a risk of weakness relating to the governance of
these subsidiaries and timely financial reporting.

Potential fraud and internal control weaknesses

The Head of Internal Audit's audit opinion for 2024/25 was one of ‘limited
assurance' as reported to the Audit Committee in July 2025. This limited
assurance opinion was based on several potential frauds identified within the
Council and as a result the identification of several internal control
weaknesses.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

What arrangements did this impact? What did we do?
|mprOVing economy, efﬂciency and Our approach focused on:

effectiveness: .
How the body uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers services.

Assessing the arrangements the Council has put in place
to address the issues raised in the Ofsted inspection
report.

Assessed the progress the Council has made against
action plans to address the issues raised in the Ofsted
inspection report.

Enquired of and considered the impact of any additional
reporting in respect to children's services

Governance: Our approach focused on:

How the body ensures that it makes informed :
decisions and properly manages its risks.

Reviewed the governance arrangements for the Group and
the ability for those charged with governance to have
appropriate oversight to enable the Council to make
informed decisions.

Considered Management's plans to ensure subsidiaries
report to the group in a timely basis.

Governance: Our approach focused on:

How the body monitors and assess risk and
how the body gains assurance over the
effective operation of internal controls,
including arrangements to prevent and detect
fraud.

Reviewed Internal Audits reports and findings relating to
the potentially fraudulent activity.

Employed our own Forensics experts to review the work
undertaken by Internal Audit to confirm that work
completed was robust and adequately designed to assess
the impact of the potential frauds on the Council.

Assessed the impact of the potentially fraudulent activity
on the Councils compliance with Laws and Regulations.

Assessed the progress the Council has made against
action plans to address the weakness identified by Internal
Audit.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 28



Appendix A

Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

We have completed our audit procedures in relation to the three risks of weakness and have concluded the following:

OFSTED inspection findings

No significant weakness in arrangements identified.

Governance of Group subsidiaries

No significant weakness in arrangements identified.

J1Y)
(&otential fraud and internal control weaknesses

che have identified a significant weakness in arrangements.

~Xe limited assurance opinion reported by Internal Audit reflects instances of potentially fraudulent activity identified in the final quarter of 2024/25 which highlight weaknesses in the
Council's budgets monitoring arrangements. These incidents highlight common issues regarding the robustness of management oversight of expenditure in each of the respective services.
Given that this potentially fraudulent activity have all occurred in distinct business areas, this gives rise to concern that budgets are not being monitored effectively and increases the risk
that the Council is incurring unnecessary expenditure.

We will include an ‘Other matter’ to report by exception within our Audit Report.

We will issue our VFM narrative commentary, including the findings in relation to the risk of significant weakness, in our 2024/25 Auditor's Annual Report. We have issued a draft
commentary to Management, on the 27 November 2025, and we expect to issue our final report in March 2026.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 29



OE> Audit Report

Confidential — All Rights Reserved



Audit Report

Draft Audit Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING
Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of London Borough of Havering (‘the Council’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2025. The financial
statements comprise the:

> Council and Group Movement in Reserves Statement,

> Council and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
> Council and Group Balance Sheet,

» Council and Group Cash Flow Statement,

15 the related notes 1 to 42 including material accounting policy information and including
Q the Expenditure and Funding Analysis,

«Q Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the
Housing Revenue Account Statement, and the related notes 1 to 5,

@ Collection Fund and the related notes 1 to 3.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2024/25.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Council. Because of the significance of the matter described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 (Statutory Instrument 2024/907) (“the Regulations”) which came into force on 30 September 2024 required the
accountability statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 to be approved not later than 27 February 2026 (‘the backstop date’).

Our planned audit work in the current year was focused on transactions in the year and the current year balance sheet.

Due to the disclaimers of opinion on the financial statements in the prior years and delays in receiving associated audit evidence, we have not been able to complete the detailed audit
procedures that would be needed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to issue an unmodified audit report on the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025.

Therefore, we are disclaiming our opinion on the financial statements.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 31



Audit Report

Draft Audit Report

The audits of the financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 for London Borough of Havering were not completed for the reasons
set out in our disclaimers of opinion on those financial statements dated 10 December 2024 and 26 February 2025 respectively.

In addition, we draw attention to the uncertainty in respect of the Council's funding position for 2025/26 and beyond as set out in Note 1.

Matters on which we report by exception

Notwithstanding our disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements we have nothing to report in respect of whether the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent
with other information forthcoming from the audit, performed subject to the pervasive limitation described above, or our knowledge of the Group and the Council.

We report to you if:
") we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)
(8 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)
@ we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)
O we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)
> we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended).

We have nothing to report in these respects.
In respect of the following, we have matters to report by exception:

Report on the Group and the Council's proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We report to you, if we are not satisfied that the Group and the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

On the basis of our work, having regard to the Code of Audit Practice 2024 and the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024, we have identified the
following significant weaknesses in relation to the specified reporting criteria of the Group and the Council's proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 32



Audit Report

Draft Audit Report

Significant weaknesses in arrangements
In relation to governance

Our judgement on the nature of the weaknesses identified:

The Head of Internal Audit gave a limited assurance opinion for 2024/25 due to instances of potential fraud in the final quarter of the year, highlighting weaknesses in the Council's
budget monitoring. These incidents point to insufficient management oversight of spending across various services, raising concerns about ineffective budget monitoring and an
increased risk of unnecessary costs for the Council.

The evidence on which our view is based:
» The Head of Internal Audit's 2024/25 audit opinion.
> Internal audit and the Council’s Counter Fraud teams reports and their detailed testing and investigations.

> Meetings with Council Management, Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud.

Hfed

(D he impact on the Council:

(Failure by the Council to take appropriate corrective actions to address the identified weaknesses in internal control may increase exposure to potential fraud or errors that result in
Fennecessary expenditure.

The action the body needs to take to address the weakness:

Strengthen internal controls by fully implementing the Improvement action plans developed by Internal Audit.

Responsibility of the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151) Responsibilities set out on page 16, the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is responsible for
the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the Group and Council financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such internal control as the Chief Financial
(Section 151) Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is responsible for assessing the Group and the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Group and the Council either intends to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 33



Audit Report

Draft Audit Report

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group and the Council's financial statements in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) and to issue an auditor's
report.

However, because of the matter described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

We are independent of the Group and the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard and the Code of Audit Practice 2024 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

e have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 2024, having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by the Comptroller and

uditor General in November 2024, as to whether London Borough of Havering had proper arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and improving economy, efficiency
(cnd effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
(Dvhether London Borough of Havering put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2025.

OWe planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether
Nondon Borough of Havering had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’'s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

Certificate

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until the National Audit Office, as group auditor, has confirmed that no further assurances will be required from
us as component auditor of the Council.

Until we have completed these procedures, we are unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of London Borough of Havering, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) and for
no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Group and the Council's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 34



Audit Differences

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 35




Appendix A

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and amounts actually
recorded. These differences are classified as 'known' or ‘judgemental’. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or
circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of Adjusted differences —————

We highlight the following misstatements greater than £0.40 million which have been corrected by management that were identified during the course of our audit.

1. Known difference: Depreciation - Our testing of depreciation identified seven Vehicle, Plant and Machinery assets where no depreciation had been charged in the year. These assets

were capital additions in 2023/24 and therefore should have been depreciated for the first time in 2024/25 but had been incorrectly omitted from the 2024/25 depreciation calculation
exercise.

This has the following impact:
Dr CIES - Net Cost of Services Depreciation Charge £2.3 million
Cr Balance Sheet - Property, Plant and Equipment £2.3 million

o
b

. Known difference: Short-term Debtors - Management identified a £3.5 million Creditor that had been incorrectly classified as a Short-term Debtor. This amount should have been
ecorded as a Short-term Creditor and relates to sums owed to the Department for Work and Pensions for Housing Benefit Subsidy.

ﬂhis has the following impact:
Dr Balance Sheet - Debtors £3.5 million

Cr Balance Sheet - Creditors £3.5 million

3. Known difference: NNDR Income - Our testing of NNDR Income in Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income identified that £3.5 million was incorrectly classified in Net Cost of Services.

This has the following impact:
Dr CIES - Net Cost of Services Expenditure £3.5 million

Cr CIES - Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income £3.5 million

4. Known difference: Grossing up of recharges - Management identified and has corrected for misstatements in the draft Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of £15.4

million as both income and expenditure were overstated due to the incorrect grossing up of recharges. This adjustment reduces both expenditure and income within Cost of Services and
does not impact the Net Cost of Services.

This has the following impact:
Dr CIES - Net Cost of Services Income £15.4 million

Cr CIES - Net Cost of Services Expenditure £15.4 million

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 36



Appendix A

Audit Differences (Continued)

Disclosure differences - °
During the audit, we identified a number of non-material internal inconsistencies, disclosure, typographical and arithmetic errors in the draft financial statements.

We also identified several disclosure misstatements, the most significant of these being:

Note 18 - Financial instruments: A number of disclosure adjustments were required to the disclosed balances in table b of the note.

Note 19 - Debtors: Management identified that £5.3 million of Housing bad debt impairments had been incorrectly included within the gross Debtors balance, this understated the
Gross and Impairment Allowance balances within the Debtors note. This has no impact on the net Debtors balance in the note or the Balance Sheet.

Note 32 - Officers Remunerations: the disclosure did not include all payments and employers contributions for all senior officers disclosed.

Note 42 - Defined Benefit Pension Schemes: Several disclosure adjustments were required to the note following receipt of a combined IAS19/IFRIC 14 Actuarial report. Refer to
Section 02 for further details.

o

gummary of Unadjusted differences —

q?n addition, we highlight the following misstatement greater than £0.40 million to the financial statements and/or disclosures which were not corrected by management. We ask that
e Audit Committee request of management that these uncorrected misstatements be corrected or a rationale as to why they are not corrected be considered and approved by the
Uﬂudit Committee and provided within the Letter of Representation:

1. Judgemental difference: Investment Properties - Our Internal Valuers review determined a reasonable range for the property at 39-43 South Street, Romford (occupied by M&S)
to be between £7.3 million to £9.8 million. The draft financial statements record the property at £12.4 million, resulting in a judgmental minimum overstatement of £2.6 million (to
the top of the reasonable range).

This has the following impact:
Dr CIES - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure £2.6 million

Cr Balance Sheet - Investment Properties £2.6 million

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 37



Assessment of Control
Environment




. Appendix A
Assessment of Control Environment bR

Financial controls

It is the responsibility of the Council to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy and
effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Council has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal
financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

We have reviewed Internal Audit reports issued to Management in respect of the 2024/25 financial year to consider any financial statement risks that could be identified through
any limited assurance opinions by the Head of Internal Audit and therefore the impact on the extent of our audit procedures.

The Head of Internal Audit’s audit opinion for 2024/25 was one of ‘limited assurance’ as reported to the Audit Committee in July 2025. This limited assurance opinion was based
on several potential frauds identified within the Council and as a result the identification of several internal control weaknesses. As detailed in Section 03, we have identified a
significant weakness in Value for Money (VFM) arrangements relating to these findings and have identified the following recommendations:

Recommendation 1 - Review and document all operational controls to ensure they support effective budget management and identify gaps in oversight, roles, and responsibilities
within the service.

0
DRecommendation 2 - Ensure adequate training for Budget Managers, including effective use of financial systems and report generation.
D
ﬁecommendation 3 - Build dedicated time into work schedules to support proactive budget monitoring and control.

N

Recommendation 4 - Identify and define the key management information required to support effective budget oversight and decision-making.

e ARy
N

Recommendation 5 - Implement clear procedures for budget monitoring and payment approvals.

Recommendation 8 - Ensure there is comprehensive, mandatory and ongoing Fraud Awareness Training for officers.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 39



Appendix A

Assessment of Control Environment

Financial controls

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of
testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you the following
control observations and recommendations:

1. Journals:

» Asreported in Section 02, we identified one journal where the approval for the journal had been completed via Microsoft Teams and therefore due to the councils 30 day
Microsoft Teams message retention policy the approval was unavailable for testing. Whilst there was no evidence of approval for the journal we did not identify any
misstatements or indications of fraud from our testing of the journal.

Recommendation: All journal approvals should be performed by a method which allows evidence of approval to be retained by the Council.

» Asreported in Section 02, We also identified one year-end journal that was posted to correct a series of historic and current system issues and miscoding's. Similar corrective
journals have been posted in prior years, indicating that these underlying issues remain unresolved.

ARecommendation: The Council should undertake a comprehensive review of these recurring adjustments and address the root causes within its financial systems.

D
D

J3. Leases:

x-) As reported in Section 02, our testing of leases and the implementation of IFRS 16 identified issues in the calculation of lease liabilities and right-of-use (ROU) asset
valuations. Specifically, for some sampled leases, the lease term applied was incorrect, and for others, there was no supporting evidence for the lease term used.

Recommendation: Management should review its working papers to ensure that lease terms applied to assets are accurate and supported by appropriate lease agreements.

3. Land and Building Asset valuations:

* Asreportedin Section 02, we identified that for assets valued under the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach, the Council's valuer applied an average build cost
adjustment rather than the actual build cost for the type being valued..

Recommendation: Management should, as part of its review of the specialist’s report, ensure that the assumptions and methodologies applied are appropriate and tailored to the
specific assets being valued.

4. Bad Debt Provision:
« Asreported in Section 02, we identified that the Council's Bad Debt Provision is based on historic data going back to 2017/18 accumulating each year with the oldest debts
being 100% provided for with a reducing provision for more recent years.

Recommendation: Given that the Council's current bad debt provision represents nearly 50% of its outstanding short-term debtors and includes balances dating back to 2017/18,
management should review the provision and assess the collectability of these historic debts. While these amounts are fully provided for in the financial statements, the Council
should consider whether, given the age of the debts, they should be formally written off.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report|

40



Appendix A

Assessment of Control Environment

Status of previous year's recommendations

Recommendation Update

In 2024/25 all reconciliations reviewed as part of the financial statements audit had
Recommendation: We recommend that all reconciliations are performed on a timely basis been performed on a timely basis.
to support year-end balances.

We therefore deem this recommendation to be closed.

6G abed

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 41



Appendix A

Assessment of Control Environment

Preparation of robust draft financial statements, provision of quality working papers and support during the audit

As reported in the Executive Summary, Management, and the Audit Committee, have an essential role in supporting the delivery of an efficient and effective audit. Our ability to
complete the audit is dependent on the timely formulation of appropriately supported evidence, access to the finance team and management'’s responsiveness to issues identified
during the audit.

We do however recognise that the last full audit was of the Council’'s 2020/21 financial statements. Therefore, to support the audit process, we worked with the Council to
provide the following areas of support:

» Effectively supporting an external audit training session held with the Finance Team on 27 March 2025

» Planning calls with the Chief Financial Officer.

» Project plan agreed with Management in advance of the audit start date setting out the timing of each audit task.

» Agreement with Management for a 3-day turnaround time for audit queries and 5-day turnaround time for sample evidences.

Provision of audit evidence matrix for samples to enable evidence is provided right first time.

Weekly audit priority queries communications and reqgular calls between audit senior and finance team.

espite the additional support we have encountered the following during our audit:

FaVal ﬁRV\

o)

Ly

D

3

D  Whilst some working papers were provided in advance of our audit, approximately 20% of the working papers were not provided to the agreed timetable. The most significant

of these were working papers relating to Debtors and Creditors. As a result of delays in receiving working papers, we were required to reallocate work and consequently the

audit did not progress inline with the agreed project plan.

*  We have experienced some delays in the provision of supporting evidence from the Council and in a number of areas the quality of evidence provided to support accounting
balances and transactions has not been to the quality required to allow us to conclude work first time, resulting in a significant number of requests for clarification and further
evidence.

»  During November 2025 Council officers were impacted by changes in IT systems due the Council migrating away from OneSource systems. This resulted in some access issues

for Council officers to the Council's own systems, supporting documentation/evidence and access to EY's client portal, delaying responses to audit queries during this key
delivery period.

These issues caused slippage to the agreed project plan and inefficient use of the planned audit resources. This resulted in areas of the audit that we were unable to conclude and
therefore we are unable to provide assurance over Creditors, Expenditure and Leases which have contributed to our consideration of disclaiming the audit opinion in 2024/25,
the level of assurance obtained for 2024/25 is further detailed in Appendix B.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 42



Appendix A

Assessment of Control Environment (continued)

Preparation of robust draft financial statements, provision of quality working papers and support during the audit (Continued)

Recommendation: The Council should continue to enhance its approach for supporting the audit process in the following areas:
Build Capacity and Expertise for Audit Support

» Ensure sufficient capacity of skilled finance professionals with the necessary technical knowledge and experience to support the audit.

Improve Quality of Audit Working Papers
» Continue to implement robust processes to produce high-quality financial statements supported by complete, accurate, and well-referenced working papers.

» Ensure all responses to audit queries are timely, address the questions raised and include appropriate supporting evidence.

"@nhance Responsiveness and Communication

23 Adhere to agreed turnaround times for audit queries (3 days) and sample evidence (5 days).

D

D Establish clear escalation protocols for delays or unresolved issues.

T "\RV\

2 Continue regular communication between audit leads and the Finance Team to monitor progress and resolve issues promptly.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 43



Appendix A

fnl

OD Other Reporting Issues




Appendix A

Other Reporting Issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the London Borough of Havering financial statements 2024/25 with the audited financial
statements.

Financial information in the London Borough of Havering financial statements 2024/25 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial
statements.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies with relevant
guidance.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements, and we have no other matters
to report.

T
jb)

%Vhole of Government Accounts

— o

(A longside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of our review,
and the nature of our report, is specified by the NAO.

The Council falls below the £2 billion threshold for audit procedures within the NAO group instructions. We will confirm this position within the Assurance Statement to the NAO at the
point of issuing our Audit Report. However, we cannot issue our Audit Certificate until the NAO has confirmed no further procedure are required.

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit, either
for the Council to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. "a report in the public interest”). We are also able to issue statutory recommendations under Schedule 7 of
Section 27 of the Act. Statutory recommendations under Schedule 7 must be considered and responded to publicly and are shared with the Secretary of State.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest or to issue statutory recommendations under Schedule 7.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 45



Appendix A

fnl

OE> Independence




Appendix A

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your company, and its directors and senior management and its
affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your company, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known
connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence and the related safequards
that are in place and why they address the threats.

Relationships .
There are no relationships from 1 April 2024 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by EY —

There are no services provided by EY from 1 April 2024 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.
As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

EY Transparency Report —e

he 2025 Transparency Report for EY UK provides details regarding the firm's system of quality management, including EY UK's system of quality management annual evaluation
(cxonclusion as of 31 October 2025.
D

audit Fees —o

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of the Code
of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

A breakdown of our fees is shown in the table to the right.

As set out in our Audit Plan the agreed fee presented was based on the following assumptions:
» Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

» Our financial statements opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

» Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

» The Council has an effective control environment

» The Council complies with PSAA's Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies. See https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-
of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies-from-2023-24-audits/. In particular, the Council should have regard to paragraphs 26
- 28 of the Statement of Responsibilities.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we seek a variation to the agreed fee. A narrative summary of the areas where we expect to raise scale fee variations for the
audit of the Council are set out in the fee analysis on the following page.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 47



Appendix A

Independence

Current Year Prior Year

£'s £'s

Scale Fee - Code Work 452,308 421,745

Proposed scale fee variation TBD 99,977

P Note 2 Note 1

Total fees TBD 521,722
All fees exclude VAT

Notes:

(1) For 2023/24 we submitted a scale fee variation to PSAA covering the following areas:
0 Technical Accounting Issues - Additional work required in respect of the Going Concern disclosures.
8 VFM additional Risks - Additional audit work required to address VFM risks identified in 2023/24.
(D ISA 315 - Additional fee in relation to the implementation of ISA 315 in 2023/24.
) Quality or preparation issues - Additional audit procedures and time required due to quality issues identified in working papers and to address control deficiencies.
Prior Period Adjustments - Additional work required to audit adjustments made to comparative figures in 2022/23.

Changes in Materiality - In 2023/24 we were required to lower our Planning Materiality to 1% (from 1.8%) and Performance Materiality to 50% (from 75%) resulting in increased audit
testing.

Disclaimer Planning and Reporting - additional time required to consult in respect of our opinion wording for our disclaimed opinion.
PSAA determined a scale fee variation for 2023/24 of £99,977.

(2) We propose to submit a scale fee variation to PSAA for additional 2024/25 work covering the following areas:

VFM additional Risks - Additional audit work undertaken to address the three VFM risks identified in 2024/25 including use of internal Forensics team and assessment of the impact of
the potentially fraudulent activity on Laws and Regulations.

Changes in Materiality - In 2024/25 we have again been required to lower our Planning Materiality to 1% (from 1.8%) and Performance Materiality to 50% (from 75%) resulting in
increased audit testing.

Disclaimer Planning and Reporting - additional time required to consult in respect of our opinion wording for our disclaimed opinion.
Additional audit work required to address significant and other risks identified in 2024/25, including

» Significant Risk Valuation of Investment Properties - including use of our internal valuation experts.

» Significant Risk The accounting treatment and valuation of inventory held in the group subsidiaries

+ Significant Risk Consolidation procedures in the Group Financial Statements

* Other Risk IFRS 16 Implementation

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 48



Appendix A

fnl

09 ) Appendices

Confidential — All Rights Reserved ondon Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 49



Appendix A — Progress to full assurance

Progress to full assurance

Appendix A

—

Set out below is the illustrative timescale for the process of re-building assurance set out in the NAO's Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance (LARRIG) 01,
together with our view of the Council’'s actual progress against that timescale, the reasons for that and what still needs to be done to successfully rebuild assurance. The timetable
set out in LARRIG 01 assumes that disclaimers for 2022/23 and all prior open audit years were issued by the statutory backstop date of 13 December 2024.

g9 abed

EXPECTED STATUS

2023/24

Disclaimer opinion

Pervasive gaps over opening
balances, comparators, and in-year
movements.

Lack of assurance over PPE balances
which are valued on a cyclical basis,
from the 22/23 audit.

Lack of assurance over Reserves
(cumulative nature).

T

Current audit year

2024/25

Jeiy

Disclaimer or qualified opinion

Continuing impact from 2023/24:

Lack of assurance over the PPE and
reserves balances.

Due to gaps in PPE assurance, there is
a likely lack of assurance over related
in-year transactions.

Potential for qualified except for, but
more likely to be disclaimed.

2025/26

2026/27

Qualified (except for) opinion

Assurance in place over opening and
closing balances, and assurance gained
over each in-year movement.

Likely gap over specific comparator
balances may remain on PPE due to
the extent items have not been valued
since 2022/23 or prior. The impact on
the CIES & reserves would require
assessing.

However, with the anticipation of
incorporating build-back guidance
focusing on reserves, there is
increasing probability that gaps in
assurance can be specifically
identified, leading to high likelihood of
a qualified report (not disclaimed).

CURRENT AUDIT STATUS OF LONON BOROUGH OF HAVERING COUNCIL
The Council’s progress is behind the expected timescales set out in LARRIG O1.

This is because no or limited procedures were completed in 2021/22, 2022/23 or 2023/24 - being multiple years as opposed to the single year of the

LARRIG example.

In 2023/24 there were some accounts where no planned procedures have been able to be completed for 2023/24, such as Group, Debtors, Creditors,

Expenditure and Grant Income, hindering the build back of assurance.

We do not expect to be able to complete all planned procedures on Creditors, Expenditure and leases as part of our 2024/25 audit, therefore extending

the period over which we will need to rebuild audit assurances.
This means it is unlikely that audit assurances can be rebuilt to enable an unqualified opinion by 2026/27.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

QSZ;@

Unqualified opinion

Expectation that all items resolved.
Auditor will need to reassess the PPE
cyclical valuation impact - but may be
able to work with the authority to
ensure that items previously valued in
2022/23 were revalued by this time
or would be immaterial.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report|

50

\ 4



Appendix A

Appendix B — Updated summary of assurances

Summary of Assurances - °

The table below summarises the audit work we have completed on the 2023/24 and 2024/25 financial statements to demonstrate to the committee the level of assurance that has
been obtained as a result of the financial statements audit.

Assurance  Assurance

Account area rating rating Summary of work performed
2023/24 2024/25
Short-Term Debtors Partial  We have completed our planned testing of balances within Short-Term Debtors but have been unable to complete procedures

over the Bad Debt Provision as reported in Section 02 and therefore have only been able to obtain partial assurance over the
Short-Term Debtors balance at 31 March 2025.

Borrowings (short and long Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March

tej-:g) 2025.
h Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March
o) 2025.

SIMt-Term Creditors In 2023/24 we were unable to complete audit procedures over Short-term Creditors due to delays in the receipt of evidence and
© the quality of working papers and evidence.

In 2024/25 the Council undertook a detailed review of the creditors working papers, as reported in Section 06 this resulted in

significant delays in the receipt of these working papers. Whilst the quality of the working papers showed considerable

improvement in 2024/25, due to the delays in receipt of these working papers and the quality of the evidence provided to

support our sample of Short-term Creditors we were unable to complete our procedures over Short-Term Creditors in 2024/25.

We have therefore been unable to obtain assurance over Short-Term Creditors balances.

Grants received in advance Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March

2025.

Investments Substantial Substantial \We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March
2025.

Investments in Subsiduaries | Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March

& Joint Ventures 2025.

Long Term Debtors Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March
2025.

Pension Scheme Liability Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March
2025.

Provisions Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31 March
2025.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 51



Appendix A

Appendix B — Updated summary of assurances

Summary of Assurances (continued) ———=*

Assurance Assurance
Account area rating rating Summary of work performed
2023/24  2024/25

Reserves We have completed our work on the movements in reserves in 2023/24 and 2024/25 but, until we have completed our work
programme on the rebuilding of assurance following the disclaimed audit opinions, we are unable to obtain assurance over the
useable and unusable reserves of the Council reported in the financial statements.

Group Accounts and Partial  As reported in Section 02, we have completed our planned audit procedures for 2024/25 but, as a result of not having

assurance over the opening balances, we do not have full assurance over the in-year movements or prior year comparatives

for the Group Accounts

Property, Plant and Equipment Partial Partial  We have completed our audit procedures over PPE and Investment Properties, and we have:

(‘PEE’) and Investment Property > audited the 31 March 2025 valuation of a sample of assets, testing valuation movements since the prior year for PPE and
Investment Property assets;

> completed testing of 2024/25 additions and disposals in the fixed asset register for PPE and Investment Property assets;

> tested the annual depreciation charge for PPE assets in 2024/25; and

> performed procedures to obtain assurance over the existence of assets on the fixed asset register and the Council's right

to recognize those assets in 2024/25 for PPE and Investment Property assets.

However, until we are able to rebuild assurance over the completeness and accuracy of the asset base through testing of PPE

additions and disposals during prior disclaimed years 2020/21 to 2023/24, we are unable to obtain full assurance over the

completeness and valuation of PPE at 31 March 2025.

CIES - Finance and Investment Partial Partial  Our work on Finance and Investment Income and Expenditure in 2024/25 is complete but, as we do not have assurance over

Income and Expenditure the opening balance position at 1 April 2023, we are unable to obtain assurance that all of the in-year movements recorded in
the statement are accurate.

CIES - Net Cost of Services - Partial Partial  Our work on Employee Costs in 2024/25 is complete but, as we do not have assurance over the opening balance position at 1

Employee Costs (Council & April 2023, we are unable to obtain assurance that all of the in-year movements recorded in the statement are accurate.

Schools)
CIES - Grant Income Partial  Our work on Grant Income in 2024/25 is complete but, as we do not have assurance over the opening balance position at 1
April 2024, we are unable to obtain assurance that all of the in-year movements recorded in the statement are accurate.

consolidation

0/ abe

CIES - Taxation and Non-Specific | Substantial Substantial \We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31
GrantIncome March 2025.

CIES - Net Cost of Services - Partial Partial  We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31
Housing Benefits March 2025. Our testing of Housing Benefit expenditure is performed by undertaking predictive analytical procedures which

uses the prior year 2023/24 balance as a starting point. As we do not have assurance over the 2023/24 balance, we are
therefore unable to obtain full assurance over the 2024/25 expenditure.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 52



Appendix A

Appendix B — Updated summary of assurances

Summary of Assurances (continued) e

Assurance Assurance
Account area rating rating Summary of work performed
2023/24  2024/25

CIES - Net Cost of Services - Other
Expenditure

In 2023/24 we were unable to complete audit procedures over Other Expenditure due to delays in the receipt of evidence and
the quality of working papers and evidence.

Due to the delays in receipt of these working papers and the quality of the evidence provided to support our sample of Other
Expenditure which was not to the standard required to allow us to test balances first time, meant we were unable to complete
our procedures over Other Expenditure in 2024/25. We have therefore been unable to obtain assurance over Other
Expenditure balances.

CIES - Net Cost of Services - Other  Partial Partial  Our work on Other Income in 2024/25 is complete but, as we do not have assurance over the opening balance position at 1
Inogme April 2023, we are unable to obtain assurance that all of the in-year movements recorded in the statement are accurate.
CRXS - REFCUS Partial Partial  Our work on REFCUS in 2024/25 is complete but, as we do not have assurance over the opening balance position at 1 April
«Q 2023, we are unable to obtain assurance that all of the in-year movements recorded in the statement are accurate.
Dl(é‘g:losures Substantial Substantial We have completed our planned audit procedures in this area and have obtained assurance over the closing balance at 31
~ March 2025.
Le'gs'es (IFRS 16 Implementation) As reported in Section 02, we have not been able to complete our procedures over Leases and the implementation of IFRS 16
in 2024/25. We have therefore been unable to obtain assurance over these balances and disclosures.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 53



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance

Required communications with those charged with governance —

There are certain communications that we must provide to those charged with governance. We have detailed these here together with a reference of when and where they were
covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where
Terms of engagement Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the The statement of responsibilities serves as the
engagement letter signed by both parties. formal terms of engagement between the PSAA's
g appointed auditors and audited bodies.

(Dur responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. The statement of responsibilities serves as the
D formal terms of engagement between the PSAA's
~ appointed auditors and audited bodies.
I\19Ianning and audit approach Communication of: Audit plan - 8 July 2025 Audit Committee

= The planned scope and timing of the audit

= Any limitations on the planned work to be undertaken
= The planned use of internal audit

= The significant risks identified

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team.

Significant findings from the = Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
audit policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures Committee

= Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

= Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

= Written representations that we are seeking

= Expected modifications to the audit report

= Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 54



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where
Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as  Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
a going concern, including: Committee

= Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going concern

= Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements

= The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements = Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by law or Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
regulation Committee

=  The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
= Arequest that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
= Material misstatements corrected by management

¢) abed

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 55



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance (continued)

Required communications  What is reported?

Our Reporting to you

When and where

Fraud =

/) abed

Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a fraud
may exist

Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any identified
or suspected fraud involving:

= Management;

= Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

= Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when fraud
involving management is suspected

Matters, if any, to communicate regarding management's process for identifying and
responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including,
when applicable:

Non-disclosure by management

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 56



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY's, and all individuals involved in  Audit plan - 8 July 2025 Audit Committee
the audit, integrity, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of independence ~ Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
and objectivity such as: Committee

= The principal threats

= Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

= An overall assessment of threats and safeqguards

= |nformation about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity and
independence

Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to integrity, objectivity

and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

G, abed

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 57



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications  What is reported? When and where

External confirmations = Management's refusal for us to request confirmations Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
= |nability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures. Committee

Consideration of laws = Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or suspected Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit

and regulations non-compliance with laws and reqgulations, other than those which are clearly inconsequential Committee

and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance may also include those
that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur imminently or for which there is
reason to believe that they may occur

= Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and

U regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the audit

8 committee may be aware of

(O]

~Jignificant deficiencies in = Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Omternal controls identified Committee

during the audit

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 58



dix,
Appendix C — Required communications with those charg e(? |"cAi1

governance (continued)

Required communications

Group Audits

T
QWWritten representations we
Qre requesting from
anagement and/or those
~dharged with governance

System of quality
management

Material inconsistencies or
misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused to
revise

Auditors report

What is reported?

= An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

= An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to be
performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant components

= Instances where the group audit team'’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor gave rise
to a concern about the quality of that auditor's work

= Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team's access to
information may have been restricted

= Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, employees
who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud resulted in a
material misstatement of the group financial statements.

= Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

= How the system of quality management (SQM) supports the consistent performance of a quality
audit

= Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

= Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor's report
= Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Our Reporting to you
When and where

Audit plan - 8 July 2025 Audit Committee

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report|

59



Appendix A

Appendix D — Reqgulatory update

The English Devolution and Community Empowerment Bill - Audit Measures

Background

On 16 December 2024, the Government published the English Devolution White Paper. The White Paper outlines how England is one of the most centralised countries in the world
and contends that over-centralisation is holding back the prosperity of the regions. As a result, there is an intention from Government to widen and deepen devolution to local
areas across England. The English Devolution and Community Empowerment Bill (the Bill) in intended to provide the legislative framework to do this by setting out a standardised
framework of devolved powers, duties and functions. The bill is in six parts:

= Part 1 introduces the new devolution architecture for England, centred around the new category of “strategic authorities” (SAs). These are organisations designated by
Government to have responsibility for strategy development and programme delivery over larger functional economic areas.

Part 2 outlines the powers and duties which existing and future SAs will have, and the new process by which new powers and duties can be conferred on SAs by Government in
the future.

Part 3 is focused on measures designed to strengthen local government and communities.

Part 4 in intended to strengthen the accountability of the local government sector by reforming the local audit system, including the establishment of the Local Audit Office
(LAO) as the body responsible for overseeing local audit.

Part 5 concerns the banning of upwards only rent review clauses for commercial leases to prevent vacant shops and regenerate high streets in communities across England.

g) abed .

Part 6 contains the technical sections related to the Bill, including on regulations, commencement and extent.
The draft legislation can be found in full at English Devolution and Community Empowerment Bill.
Part 4 of the Bill - Reforming local audit

The Bill is intended to overhaul the local audit system as is part of the wider measures to address the backlog in local government audit previously considered by this report.
Specifically:

= The LAO will be established with the aim of radically simplifying the current audit system and bringing functions together under a single organisation with a clear remit. The
LAO will be responsible for coordinating the system, standard setting, contracting, quality oversight and reporting. It will also support and enable wider measures to address

pressing challenges, including reforms to financial reporting; strengthening audit capacity and capability; and establishing public provision of audit to support the private
market.

= The LAO will be responsible for audit quality and the requlation of audit providers. Regulatory powers can be delegated.

= The LAO will be responsible for auditor appointment to all local audits other than for NHS bodies, will set indicative fees, publish those fees and make final determinations on
the fees to be paid. The ability of local authorities to appoint their own auditors is removed.

= Audit firms will be required to nominate ‘lead individuals' and have pre-approval of their own eligibility criteria.
= The responsibility for production of the Code of Audit Practice passes from the NAO to LAO. The LAO is also able to determine technical standards that auditors must follow.
= Statutory guidance for Audit Committees will be developed by LAO in conjunction with the Local Government Association, CIPFA and other relevant bodies.

We will continue to keep you updated as these arrangements develop.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 60



Appendix A
Appendix F — DRAFT Management representation letter

Draft Management representation letter

[To be prepared on the entity's letterhead]
[Date]

Mark Hodgson

Ernst & Young

One Cambridge Square
Cambridge

CB4 OAE

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the
'@onsolidated and parent Authority financial statements of London Borough of Havering
Q§“the Group and Authority") for the year ended 31 March 2025. We recognise that

(O»btaining representations from us concerning the information contained in this letter is
(D significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the
~pnsolidated and parent Authority financial statements give a true and fair view of (or
(Opresent fairly, in all material respects,’) the Group and Authority financial position of

London Borough of Havering as of 31 March 2025 and of its financial performance (or

operations) and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with, for the Group

and the Authority, the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting

in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our consolidated and parent Authority
financial statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an
examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent
you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor
necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities,
should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with, for the Group and
the parent Authority, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Group and Authority, our
responsibility for the fair presentation of the consolidated and parent Authority
financial statements. We believe the consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance (or results of operations) and cash flows of the Group and
parent Authority in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25, and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

The material accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of the Group
and Authority financial statements are appropriately described in the Group and
Authority financial statements.

As members of management of the Group and Authority, we believe that the Group
and Authority have a system of internal controls adequate to enable the
preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25
for the Group and for the Authority that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements taken as
a whole. We have not corrected these differences because [specify reasons for not
correcting misstatement].

We confirm the Group and Authority does not have securities (debt or equity) listed
on a recognised exchange.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 61



A
Appendix F — DRAFT Management representation Ietterpg

Draft Management representation letter (continued)

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud

1.

N

08 abed .,

We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Group and
Authority's business activities are conducted in accordance with laws and
regulations and that we are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance
with applicable laws or regulations, including fraud.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of a system of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and that
we believe we have appropriately fulfilled those responsibilities.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you, and provided you full access to information and any
internal investigations relating to, all instances of identified or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, known to us that may have
affected the Group or Authority (regardless of the source or form and including,
without limitation, allegations by “whistle-blowers"), including non-compliance
matters:

Involving financial improprieties

Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the consolidated and parent Authority
financial statements

Related to laws or regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements, but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of the Group and
Authority's business, its ability to continue in business, or to avoid material
penalties

Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal
control, or others

In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, requlators or others.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

endix A

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

We have provided you with:

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit; and

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements.

We have made available to you all minutes of the Group, Authority, Cabinet and
Audit Committee through the year through to the date of this letter.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Group and
Authority's related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of
which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities
and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances
due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the consolidated and parent Authority
financial statements.

We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in
making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and
consistently applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 62

continued)



Appendix A
Appendix F — DRAFT Management representation Ietterpgggnlzc(inued)

Draft Management representation letter (continued)

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Group and Authority has complied with, all
aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all
outstanding debt.

=

From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of
this letter we have disclosed to you, to the extent that we are aware, any (1)
unauthorised access to our information technology systems that either occurred or
is reasonably likely to have occurred, including of reports submitted to us by third
parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security
consultants), to the extent that such unauthorised access to our information
technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material effect on the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements, in each case or in the
aggregate, and (2) ransomware attacks when we paid or are contemplating paying
a ransom, regardless of the amount.

. Liabilities and Contingencies

.18 9bed

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected
in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether
or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation
and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 41 to the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements all guarantees that we have
given to third parties.

4. No other claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be
received.

E. Going Concern

1. Note 1 to the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements discloses all
the matters of which we are aware that are relevant to the Group and Authority's
ability to continue as a going concern, including significant conditions and events,
our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those plans.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

F. Subsequent Events

1. Other than described in Note 46 to the consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements, there have been no events subsequent to period end which require
adjustment of or disclosure in the consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements or notes thereto.

G. Group audits

1. There are no significant restrictions on our ability to distribute the retained profits
of the Group because of statutory, contractual, exchange control or other
restrictions other than those indicated in the Group financial statements.

2. Necessary adjustments have been made to eliminate all material intra-group
unrealised profits on transactions amongst parent Authority, subsidiary
undertakings and associated undertakings.

H. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement.

2.  We confirm that the Annual Governance Statement for 2024/25 is a true
reflection, in all material respects, of the governance arrangements and the
effectiveness of those arrangements in 2024/25 and includes disclosure of all
significant governance issues and findings relating to that financial year, through to
the date of this letter.

3. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent
with the financial statements.

|. Climate-related matters

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant to the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-related matters
has been and reflected in the consolidated and parent financial statements.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 63



A
Appendix F — DRAFT Management representation Ietterpg

Draft Management representation letter (continued)

J

N

- 28 dbed .,

. Ownership of Assets

1.

Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Authority and Group has
satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet, and there are no liens
or encumbrances on the Authority's assets, nor has any asset been pledged as
collateral. All assets to which the Authority has satisfactory title appear in the
balance sheet.

All agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold have been properly
recorded and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

We have no plans to abandon lines of product or other plans or intentions that will
result in any excess or obsolete inventory, and no inventory is stated at an amount
in excess of net realisable value.

There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of
our cash and investment accounts.

. Use of the Work of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the value
of the Authority and Group's share of the pension fund assets and liabilities and the
value of subsidiary company buildings and have adequately considered the
qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures
included in the financial statements and the underlying accounting records. We did
not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the
values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or
objectivity of the specialists.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

endix A

L. Estimates

Pensions Liability

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties - valuations,
impairments and depreciation

Provision for Impairment of Receivables
Stock valuations

We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the fair value of
Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Properties, provisions, stock valuations
and pension fund asset and liabilities have taken into account all relevant
information of which we are aware.

We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data
used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the
above accounting estimates.

We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the above accounting
estimates appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out our statutory
services on behalf of the entity.

We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to
the accounting estimates, including those describing estimation uncertainty, are
complete and are reasonable in the context of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

We confirm that appropriate specialised skills or expertise has been applied in
making the above accounting estimates.

We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and
disclosures in the financial statements.

London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 64

continued)



Appendix A
Appendix F — DRAFT Management representation Ietterpgggnlzc(inued)

Draft Management representation letter (continued)

M. Retirement benefits Appendix 1 - Unadjusted Audit Differences
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate Judgemental difference: Investment Properties - Overstatement in the valuation
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme of 39-43 South Street, Romford (occupied by M&S).

liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant
retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been identified and
properly accounted for.

The draft financial statements records the asset at £12.4 million, External Audit
have determined a reasonable range for this asset of £7.3 million to £9.8 million
resulting in a judgmental minimum overstatement of £2.6 million (to the top of the
N. Reserves auditor’s reasonable range).

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the useable and
unusable reserves.

Contingent Liabilities

0.
g. We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the
Q effects of which should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or
D o the basis of recording a contingent loss (other than those disclosed or accrued in
0 the financial statements).
.

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the
requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial
reporting requirements, and there have been no communications from regulatory
agencies or government representatives concerning investigations or allegations of
non-compliance, except as follows:

e Matters of routine, normal, recurring nature (e.g., examinations by bank and
insurance examiners, examinations by taxing authorities) none of which involves
any allegations of noncompliance with laws or regulations that should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a
loss contingency.

Yours faithfully,

(Chief Financial Officer)

(Chair of the Audit Committee)

Confidential — All Rights Reserved London Borough of Havering Audit Results Report| 65



EY | Building a better working world

EY is building a better working world by creating
new value for clients, people, society and the
planet, while building trust in capital markets.

Enabled by data, Al and advanced technology,
EY teams help clients shape the future with
confidence and develop answers for the most
pressing issues of today and tomorrow.

EY teams work across a full spectrum of
services in assurance, consulting, tax, strategy
and transactions. Fueled by sector insights,

a globally connected, multi-disciplinary network
and diverse ecosystem partners, EY teams can
vrovide services in more than 150 countries
2nd territories.

All in to shape the future with confidence.

Appendix A

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company
limited by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. Information
about how EY collects and uses personal data and a description of the
rights individuals have under data protection legislation are available
via ey.com/privacy. EY member firms do not practice law where
prohibited by local laws. For more information about our organization,
please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001
and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2026 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

UKC-038208 (UK) 03/25. Creative UK.
ED None

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general
outline of the subjects covered. It should neither be regarded as
comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it be
used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no
responsibility for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken
by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk




Appendix B

Havering Pension Fund

Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2025
5 February 2026

EEN
The better the question. The better the answer. The better the world works.



Appendix B

Private and Confidential 5 February 2026

Audit Committee

London Borough of Havering
Town Hall

Main Road

Romford

RM1 3BB

Dear Audit Committee Members,
2024/25 Audit Results Report

We attach our audit results report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. We will update the Audit
Committee at its meeting scheduled for 24 February 2026 on further progress to that date and explain the remaining steps to the issue of our final opinion.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2024/25 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements. This report
contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on Havering Pension Fund's (the Fund) accounting policies and judgements and
material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge, the exercise of professional judgement and the
quality of evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management team for supporting this process.

The Audit Committee, as the Council's body charged with governance, has an essential role in ensuring that it has assurance over both the quality of the
draft financial statements prepared by management and the Council's wider arrangements to support the delivery of a timely and efficient audit.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Pension Fund Committee, and Management. It is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 24 February 2026.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun
Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl




Appendix B

1 Executive Summary 2 Areas of Audit Focus 3 Audit Report

4 Audit Differences 5 Other Reporting 6 Assessment of

[ssues Control Environment

7 Independence 8 Appendices

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies". It is available from the PSAA website (Statement of responsibilities of auditors and
audited bodies (from 2023/24 audits) - Page 4 of 7 - PSAA). The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises
where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance from July 2021" issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and legislation and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and Management in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Audit Committee, and
Management of Havering Pension Fund those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and Management for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 3




Appendix B

fnl

O1 ) Executive Summary




Appendix B

Executive Summary

Scope update °

In our Audit planning report presented at the 8 July 2025 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit of the financial
statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions:

= Changes in materiality: We updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft financial statements and reconsidered our risk assessment. Based on our materiality
measure of Net Assets, we updated our overall materiality assessment to £10.1 million (Audit Planning Report, £9.7 million). This results in updated performance materiality, at
75% of overall materiality, of £7.6 million (Audit Planning Report, £7.3 million), and an updated threshold for reporting misstatements of £0.50 million (Audit Planning Report,
£0.49 million).

We have not made any revisions to the audit risks and planned audit procedures set out within the Audit Planning Report.

Status of the audit o

Our audit work in respect of the Pension Fund opinion is well-progressed. The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at the date of this
report.

= Going concern review and disclosures;
Review of the final version of the Annual Report and financial statements.
(@ Completion of subsequent events review to the date of the audit report.
@ Receipt of the signed management representation letter and financial statements.
% Final Manager, Engagement Partner and Engagement Quality Reviewer reviews.

Given that the audit process is still ongoing, we will continue to challenge the remaining evidence provided and the final disclosures in the Annual Report and financial statements
which could influence our final audit opinion.

Audit differences ®

Subject to completion of the outstanding procedures noted above we have identified the following audit differences:

Uncorrected audit differences

We have identified one uncorrected audit difference of £3.5 million relating to timing difference in the valuation of level 3 Investments. See Section 04 for details.

Corrected audit differences

We identified one material disclosure misstatement and a number of disclosure misstatements which management have adjusted for. See Section 04 for details.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 5



Appendix B

Executive Summary (cont'd)

Areas of audit focus °

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of audit risks and areas of audit focus for our audit of the financial statements of Havering Pension Fund. This report sets out our
observations and status in relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration
of these matters and others identified during the period is explained within the ‘Areas of Audit Focus' section of this report and summarised below.

Misstatement due to fraud or error - Fraud Risk
Our work in this area is substantially complete and subject to Final Manager and Engagement partner review we have not identified any indications of management override.

Valuation of complex investments (unquoted investments) - Significant Risk
We have completed our work in this area. We have identified one misstatement of £3.5 million relating to timing difference in the valuation of level 3 Investments which has not been
corrected for by management. See Section 04 for further details.

-[5\526 Disclosure - Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits - Other Area of Audit Focus
QyVe have completed our in this area and have no matters to report.
«Q
e request that you review these and other matters set out in this report to ensure:
O There are no further considerations or matters that could impact these issues
= You concur with the resolution of the issue
= There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised

There are no matters, other than those reported by Management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee or
Management.

Control observations °

During the audit, we did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal controls. We have taken a wholly substantive approach to the audit.

Independence °

During the audit, we did not identify any issues relating to our independence and objectivity. Please refer to Section 07 for our update on Independence.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 6



Appendix B

fnl

02 ) Areas of Audit Focus




Areas of Audit Focus

Misstatement due to fraud or error (Fraud Risk)

What is the risk, and the key judgements and

estimates?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unigue position to
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting
records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively.

e identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit
ngagement.

«Q
®
O
N

What are our conclusions?

Subject to final Manager's and Engagement Partner's file review,
we have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or
evidence of material management override.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements
being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which
appeared unusual or outside the Fund's normal course of business.

Our journal entry testing has not identified any instances of
inappropriate posting of journals.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

Appendix B

In response to this risk, we undertook the following procedures:

Identified fraud risks during the planning stages.
Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.

Gained an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of management's
processes over fraud.

Discussed with those charged with governance the risks of fraud in the entity, including those risks
that are specific to the entity's business sector (those that may arise from economic industry and
operating conditions).

Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.
Determined an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of fraud.

Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including testing
appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions outside the normal course of
business.

Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report|

8



Appendix B

Areas of Audit Focus (cont'd)

Valuation of complex investments (unquoted investments) (Significant Risk)

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

What is the risk, and the key judgements and

estimates?

The Fund's investments include unquoted pooled investment
vehicles such as private equity, infrastructure and property
investments.

Judgements are made by the investment managers to value these
investments whose prices are not publicly available. The material
nature of this type of investment, means that any errorin
judgement could result in a material valuation error

$ "What are our conclusions?

e have completed our work on this risk.

O
(We did not identify any issues during our review and evaluation of
the Custodian and Fund Managers.

Our reconciliation of the financial statements to the Custodian and
Fund Manager reports did not reveal any misstatements.

Our procedures also did not identify any material valuation
differences in the reported fund valuations within the financial
statements.

However, we identified a misstatement of £3.5 million related to
Level 3 investments. This variance arose from timing differences
between the draft and final valuations of these investments. The
draft financial statements were prepared using December 2024
valuation estimates, the final investment valuations being received
after the draft statements had been produced.

Management have not to adjust for this difference, see Section 04
for details.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

We undertook the following procedures to address the significant risk, which include:

Analysed a schedule of investments and ensured correct classification, presentation and disclosure of
items in the financial statements and corresponding notes.

Gained an understanding and evaluation of the work of management'’s experts and evaluated the ISAE
3402 report for the Custodian and Fund Managers.

Reviewed the latest audited accounts for the relevant Fund Managers and ensured there were no
matters arising that highlighted weaknesses in the fund'’s valuation.

Reviewed the basis of valuation for property investments and other unquoted investments and
assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methods used.

Reviewed investment valuation disclosures and verified that significant judgements surrounding the
valuation of Level 3 Investments had been appropriately made in the financial statements.

Performed triangulation work to agree amount per the financial statements to Fund Manager and to
Custodian.

Tested the accounting entries had been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Assessed topside adjustments and journal entries for evidence of management bias and evaluated
them for business rationale.

Reviewed the year end investment balance in the draft financial statements and in year investment
additions and determined whether there were any new individually complex investments that would
pose a significant risk.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report|

9



Appendix B

Areas of Audit Focus (cont'd)

IAS26 Disclosure — Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits (Other Area of Focus) ———

What is the risk, and the key judgements and

Our response to the key areas of challenge and professional judgement

estimates?

We undertook the following procedures to address this other area of focus, which include:
IAS26 requires post-employment benefits plans to disclose annually = Assessed the work of the pension fund actuary including the assumptions they used by relying on the
the basis used to determine the actuarial present value of promised work of the Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit Office for all local government
retirement benefits, including demographic and financial key sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

assumptions.

The estimate is based on a roll-forward of data from the previous
triennial valuation in 2022, updated where necessary, and takes
into account assumptions. = Ensured that the IAS 26 disclosure was in line with the relevant standards and consistent with the
he information disclosed is based on the IAS 26 report issued to valuation provided by the Actuary.
e Fund by the actuary to the Fund.

(Q\ccounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
(Dudgement and therefore management engages an actuary to
ndertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540
J¥equire us to undertake procedures on the use of management
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

What are our conclusions?

Our work in this risk is complete and we have not identified any
matters to report.

= Evaluated the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s calculations by comparing them to the
outputs of our own auditor’s specialist's model.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 10



Appendix B

Areas of Audit Focus (cont'd)

Valuation methods applied °

Impact of changes made to the valuation method

Financial statement area Valuation method applied and related disclosures

applied

Level 1 Investment Assets Fair value using observable market data, including published bid market price No changes made to the valuation method
Level 2 Investment Assets Fair value using valuation techniques where inputs are based on observable market data. No changes made to the valuation method
Level 3 Investment Assets Fair value using unobservable data that are determined by Fund Managers No changes made to the valuation method
IAS26 actuarial present Projected credit unit method No changes made to the valuation method
value of promised retirement
benefits

U

Q

«Q

0]

@oinq concern ®

The provisions of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in
which local authorities operate. These provisions confirm that local authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription and that they must prepare their
financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting. Local authorities carry out functions essential to the local community, are themselves revenue-raising bodies and the
financial reporting framework presumes the continuation of service provision. However, the Pension Fund is required to carry out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to
the risks it faces. Under the auditing standard in relation to going concern (ISA570), the Pension Fundis required to ensure that its going concern disclosure within the financial
statements adequately reflects its going concern assessment and in particular highlights any uncertainties it has identified.

Our work in this area will be concluded closer to the Audit Report date. We are awaiting for Management to review and where required update the going concern disclosures in the
final version of the Annual Report and financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed to date, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Pension Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 11



Appendix B

Areas of Audit Focus (cont'd)

Other matters °
As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they are significant to
your oversight of the Fund's financial reporting process. They include the following:

= Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

Matters regarding management's process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity

Disagreements with management, if any arising during the audit

Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process, including the strengths and weaknesses of the finance function and the quality of the financial
statement preparation process

Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Related parties

External confirmations

. .960brd. . . ..

Consideration of laws and regulations, including any significant matters involving actual or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations or articles of association which
were identified in the course of the audit, in so far as they are considered to be relevant in order to enable the audit committee to fulfil its tasks.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 12



OE> Audit Report

Confidential — All Rights Reserved



Audit Report

Appendix B

Draft audit report

Our opinion on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LONDON BOROUGH OF
HAVERING ON THE PENSION FUND'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the Pension Fund (“the Fund") financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2025 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as

amended). The pension fund financial statements comprise the Fund Account, the Net

Assets Statement and the related notes 1 to 25, including material accounting policy
"U'nformation.

8The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
(Dapplicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
(OAccounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.
oo
In our opinion the pension fund financial statements:
> give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Fund during the year
ended 31 March 2025 and the amount and disposition at that date of its assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2025; and
> have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report below. We are independent of the Council as administering
authority for the Pension Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General's AGNO1, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Financial
(Section 151) Officer's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of 12 months from when the Fund's financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial (Section 151)
Officer with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the authority's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts 2024/25, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is responsible for the other
information contained within the Statement of Accounts 2024/25.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 14



Audit Report (cont'd)

Appendix B

Our opinion on the financial statements

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:

> we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended);

> we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended);

> we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as
amended);

> we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability
“Uact 2014 (as amended); or

(©Q»> we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
(D Accountability Act 2014 (as amended).

8\Ne have nothing to report in these respects

Responsibility of the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer's
Responsibilities set out on pages [XX], the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Council’'s Statement of Accounts, which
includes the pension fund financial statements, in accordance with proper practices
as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2024/25, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is also responsible for such internal
control as the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer is
responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Administering Authority either intends to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irreqularities, including fraud

Irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irreqularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests
with Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer.

Our approach was as follows:

» We obtained an understanding of the legal and requlatory frameworks that are
applicable to the Fund and determined that the most significant are the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended), and The Public Service
Pensions Act 2013.

» We understood how the Fund is complying with those frameworks by making
enquires of the management. We corroborated this through our reading of the
Pension Board minutes through inspection of other information.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 15



Audit Report (cont'd)

Appendix B

Our opinion on the financial statements

» Based on this understanding, we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved making enquiries
of the management for their awareness of any non-compliance of laws or regulations
and review of minutes.

> We assessed the susceptibility of the Fund's financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by considering the key risks impacting
the financial statements and documenting the controls that the Fund has established
to address risks identified, or that otherwise seek to prevent, deter or detect fraud.

> In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of London Borough of Havering, as a body,
in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as
amended) and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the London Borough of Havering and its
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

vorocedures to respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of
fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of
(Qjournal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in
(D making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any identified significant transactions that were unusual or
utside the normal course of business. These procedures were designed to provide
Oy easonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.

> To address our fraud risk we tested the consistency of the investment asset
valuation from the independent sources of the custodian and the fund managers to
the financial statements.

> The Fund is required to comply with The Local Government Pensions Scheme
regulations, other legislation relevant to the governance and administration of the
Local Government Pension Scheme and requirements imposed by the Pension
Regulator in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme. As such, we have
considered the experience and expertise of the engagement team including the use of
specialists where appropriate, to ensure that the team had an appropriate
understanding of the relevant pensions regulations to assess the control environment
and consider compliance of the Fund with these regulations as part of our audit
procedures.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 16



Audit Differences

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 17




A dix B
Audit Differences ppendix

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and amounts actually
recorded. These differences are classified as 'known' or ‘judgemental’. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or
circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

0

During the audit, we identified a number of non-material internal inconsistencies, disclosure, typographical and arithmetic audit differences in the draft Annual Report and financial
statements which management have adjusted for.

We Identified one material disclosure misstatement that has been adjusted for by management:

—ghe London CIV Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Paris Aligned Fund valued at £133.8 million as at the 31 March 2025 was classified in the draft financial statements in note 15a as a Level
Qyl investment. Our audit procedures determined that this should be classified as a level 2 investment as there are no readily available quoted market prices available for this

nvestment and therefore does not meet the definition of a Level 1 investment. Management have adjusted the note 15a disclosure moving the .8 million investment from leve
«© t t and therefore d t t the definiti falevelli t t.M th djusted th te 15a discl ing the £133.8 million i t tf level

(D1 to level 2.
Bhis adjustment has no impact on the value of the investment or on the net assets of the fund.
N

Summary of unadjusted differences —

In addition we highlight the following misstatements to the financial statements and disclosures which were not corrected by management. We ask that the Audit Committee request

of management that these uncorrected misstatements be corrected or a rationale as to why they are not corrected be considered and approved by the Audit Committee and provided
within the Letter of Representation:

1. Total investments asset value - we have identified an audit difference of £3.5 million related to Level 3 Investments. This variance arose from timing differences between the

draft and final valuations of these investments. The draft financial statements were prepared using December 2024 valuation estimates, the final investment valuations being
received after the draft statements had been produced. The final valuation showed a net increase of £3.5 million in the value of Level 3 Investments.

This has the following impact:
Dr Net Assets Statement - Investment Assets, £3.5 million

Cr Fund Account - Change in market value of investments, £3.5 million

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 18



O5 ) Other Reporting Issue

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 19




A dix B
Other Reporting Issues PPENcig

Consistency of information published with the financial statements

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the information published with the financial statements, including the financial and non-financial information in the Pension Fund
Statements of Accounts with the audited financial statement of London Borough of Havering, the consistency of the Pension Fund Statements of Accounts with the financial
statements in the Pension Fund Annual Report, and the consistency of the Pension Fund Annual Report with the audited financial statements. The work remains outstanding and has

not been completed yet as we are awaiting final version of the Annual Report and financial statements. We will provide the Audit Committee an update on the work once it's
completed.

Other powers and duties

e have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit, either for the
Qiuthority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority,
(Cyopied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We had no reason to exercise these
(Miuties.

=
Ether reporting issues

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they are significant to
your oversight of the Fund's financial reporting process. We had no matters to report.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 20



Assessment of Control
Environment




. Appendix B
Assessment of Control Environment bR

Financial controls

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of
testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control.

It is the responsibility of the Pension Fund to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy and
effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Pension Fund has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the systems of
internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls. We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of an internal control that might result in @ material misstatement in your financial statements of which you are not already aware.

ed

90T ®

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 22



Appendix B

fnl

OD Independence




Appendix B

Independence

Relationships

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the Pension Fund, and its members and senior management and its
affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the Pension Fund, its members and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known
connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence and the related
safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.

There are no relationships from 1 April 2024 to the date of this report which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

EY Transparency Report 2025

nst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence and integrity
e maintained.
(etails of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to
(Publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2025: 2025 Transparency Report

=
o

oo
Services provided by EY —o

There are no services provided by EY from 1 April 2024 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

The table on the subsequent page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2025 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard
and in statute. Full details of the services that we have provided and the related threats and safequards are included below. We have adopted the necessary safeguards in our
completion of this work and complied with Auditor Guidance Note 1 issued by the NAO in February 2025.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 24



Independence

Appendix B

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory
responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in
accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and
supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial
reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards
applicable to auditors’ work.

A breakdown of our fees is shown in the table to the right.

As set out in our Audit Planning Report the agreed fee presented was
based on the following assumptions:

Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
Our financial statements opinion being unqualified;

Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Pension
Fund; and

The Pension Fund has an effective control environment

60T sbed

The Pension Fund complies with PSAA’s Statement of
Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies. See
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-
responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/statement-of-
responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies-from-2023-24-
audits/. In particular the Pension Fund should have regard to
paragraphs 26 - 28 of the Statement of Responsibilities.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we seek a
variation to the agreed fee. A narrative summary of the areas where we
expect to raise scale fee variations for the audit of the Pension Fund are
set out in the fee analysis on this page.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

2024/25 2023/24

Current Year Prior Year

£ £

Scale Fee - Code Work 96,974 85,945
_ TBC

Proposed scale fee variation (Note 2) 26,017

Total fees TBC 111,962

All fees exclude VAT

(1) For 2023/24, we re-assessed the scale fee to include procedures that were performed to address the
risk profile of the Pension Fund, as set out in our Audit Results Report. PSAA have determined a final
scale fee variation for 2023/24 of £26,017.

(2) We propose to submit a scale fee variation to PSAA for additional 2024/25 work covering the
following area:

» Pension Valuation - relating to IAS26 actuarial calculation (including the use of our internal valuation
experts)

The 2024/25 scale fee details can be found in PSAA website

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees-
2023-24-2027-28/2024-25-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 25



Appendix B

fnl

08 ) Appendices




ppendix B

A
Appendix A — Required communications with the Audit

Committee

Required communications with the Audit Committee ——

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a reference of when and where they were

covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the The statement of responsibilities serves as the

engagement letter signed by both parties. formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s
appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the PSAA's
appointed auditors and audited bodies.

“lanning and audit approach Communication of: Audit Planning Report - 8 July 2025 Audit
g * The planned scope and timing of the audit Committee
o) = Any limitations on the planned work to be undertaken
= The planned use of internal audit
||: = The significant risks identified

Significant findings from the = Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
audit policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures Committee
= Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
= Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
= Written representations that we are seeking
= Expected modifications to the audit report
= Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as  Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
a going concern, including: Committee
= Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going concern
= Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements
= The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements = Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by law or Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
regulation Committee
= The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
= Arequest that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
= Material misstatements corrected by management

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 27



ppendix B

A
Appendix A — Required communications with the Audit

Committee (cont'd)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where
Fraud = Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual, Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity Committee
= Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a fraud
may exist

= Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any identified
or suspected fraud involving:
= Management;
= Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
= Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.
= The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when fraud
mv involving management is suspected
Q) = Matters, if any, to communicate regarding management's process for identifying and
© responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and our assessment of the risks of material
@ misstatement due to fraud
= = Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.
==
N3

elated parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity's related parties including, Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
when applicable: Committee
= Non-disclosure by management

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions

Disagreement over disclosures

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY's, and all individuals involved in  Audit Planning Report - 8 July 2025 Audit
the audit, integrity, objectivity and independence. Committee
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of independence
and objectivity such as: Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit

= The principal threats Committee

= Safequards adopted and their effectiveness

= An overall assessment of threats and safequards

= Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity and
independence

Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to integrity, objectivity

and independence and the appropriateness of safequards put in place.

External confirmations = Management's refusal for us to request confirmations Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
= |nability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures. Committee

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 28



ppendix B

A
Appendix A — Required communications with the Audit

Committee (cont'd)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications = What is reported? When and where
Consideration of laws = Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or suspected Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
and regulations non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly inconsequential Committee

and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance may also include those
that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur imminently or for which there is
reason to believe that they may occur

= Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the audit
committee may be aware of

Significant deficiencies in = Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
internal controls identified Committee
_Uduring the audit
QiVritten representations we = Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
(Qre requesting from governance Committee

anagement and/or those
[=sharged with governance

[EEY
OSystem of quality = How the system of quality management (SQM) supports the consistent performance of a quality Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
management audit Committee
Material inconsistencies or = Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
misstatements of fact management has refused to revise Committee

identified in other
information which
management has refused to

revise
Auditors report = Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
Committee
Use of statutory powers » Identification of issues that are likely to lead to a form of public reporting, including: Audit Results Report - 24 February 2026 Audit
» Statutory recommendations Committee

» Public interest reporting

Confidential — All Rights Reserved Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 29



Appendix B

Appendix C — Management representation letter

Management representation letter (draft)

[Date]
Ernst & Young
[Address]

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of Havering Pension Fund (“the Scheme") and examination of the
Scheme's summary of contributions for the year ended 31 March 2025. We recognise
that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in this
letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the
financial statements give a true and fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in all material
espects’) the financial transactions of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March
3 025, and of the amount and disposition at that date of its assets and liabilities, other
than liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the end of the year, in accordance
(D With applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ and contain the information
specified in Regulation 3A of the Audited Accounts Regulations and making a
statement about contributions.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of the Scheme's financial statements is
to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the
accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered
necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be
expected to disclose all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any
exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

2. We confirm that the Scheme is a Registered Pension Scheme. We are not aware of
any reason why the tax status of the Scheme should change.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

3. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Fund, our responsibility for
the fair presentation of the financial statements and the Summary of Contributions.
We believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the
financial transactions and the financial position of the Scheme in accordance with
applicable law the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2024/25, and are free of material misstatements, including
omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

4. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

5. As members of management of the Fund we believe that the Scheme has a system
of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and pertaining
to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate,
to the financial statements taken as a whole. We have not corrected these differences
identified by and brought to our attention from the auditor because [specify reasons
for not correcting misstatement].

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Scheme's activities
are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to
identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of a system of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and that we
believe we have appropriately fulfilled those responsibilities.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have not made any reports to the Pensions Requlator, nor are we aware of any
such reports having been made by any of our advisors.

5. There have been no other communications with the Pensions Regulator or other
regulatory bodies during the Scheme year or subsequently concerning matters of
non-compliance with any legal duty.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 30



Appendix C — Management representation letter

Appendix B

Management representation letter (draft)

6. We confirm that we are not aware of any breaches of the Payment
Schedule/Schedule of Contributions or any other matters that have arisen which we
considered reporting to the Pensions Regulator.

7. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Scheme (regardless of the
source or form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers"),
including non-compliance matters:

> Involving financial improprieties

> Related to laws or reqgulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the Scheme's financial statements

> Related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
“Wdisclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be
Q fundamental to the operations of the Scheme's business, its ability to continue in
business, or to avoid material penalties

> Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal control,
j=or others

ol In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance with
laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
requlators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:

» Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters.

» Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

» Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. You have been informed of all changes to the Scheme rules.

3. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

4. We have disclosed to you the use of all applications or tools using artificial
intelligence, including generative artificial intelligence, that are reasonably likely to
have a direct or indirect material effect on the financial statements

5. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of members of the
management of the Fund and committees of members and of the management of the
Fund held through the [period] to the most recent meeting on the following date: [list
date].

6. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Scheme's related
parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware,
including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing
arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no
consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such
parties at the period end. These transactions have been appropriately accounted for
and disclosed in the financial statements.

7. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding annuities held in
the name of the members of management of the Fund.

8. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in
making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently
applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2024/25.

9. We have disclosed to you, and the Fund has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements
in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other
requirements of all outstanding debt.

10. No transactions have been made which are not in the interests of the Scheme
members or the Scheme during the year or subsequently.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 31



Appendix B

Appendix C — Management representation letter

Management representation letter (draft)

11. From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of
this letter we have disclosed to you, to the extent that we are aware, any (1)
unauthorized access to our information technology systems that either occurred or is
reasonably likely to have occurred, including of reports submitted to us by third
parties (including requlatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security
consultants), to the extent that such unauthorized access to our information
technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the financial
statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and (2) ransomware attacks when we
paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless of the amount.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

TOL. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
Q) whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in
Qthe financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether
IAor not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

O3, We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation
and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the financial statements
all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

E. Subsequent Events

1. Other than the events described in Note 6 to the financial statements, there have
been no events subsequent to the period end which require adjustment of or
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

F. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the annual report, other than the financial
statements, the auditor’s report and the statement about contributions.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent
with the financial statements.

G. Advisory Reports

We have not commissioned any advisory reports which may affect the conduct of
your work in relation to the Scheme's financial statements and schedule of
contributions/payment schedule.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

H. Independence

We confirm that, under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995, no members of
management of the Fund is connected with, or is an associate of, Ernst & Young LLP
which would render Ernst & Young LLP ineligible to act as auditor to the Scheme.

I. Derivative Financial Instruments

We confirm that all investments in derivative financial instruments have been made
after due consideration by the members of management of the Fund of the limitations
in their use imposed by The Occupational Pension Schemes (Investment) Regulations
2005; namely that they contribute to a reduction in Scheme risk, facilitate efficient
portfolio management, and that any such investment has been made to avoid
excessive risk exposure to a single counterparty and to other derivative operations;
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016. The Fund's Investment Strategy Statement has been duly reviewed
to ensure that such investments comply with any limitations imposed by their
provisions. The financial statements disclose all transactions in derivative financial
instruments that have been entered into during the period, those still held by the
members of management of the Fund at the Fund year end and the terms and
conditions relating thereto.

The members of management of the Fund have duly considered and deemed as
appropriate the assumptions and methodologies used in the valuation of ‘over the
counter’ derivative financial instruments which the Fund is holding, and these have
been communicated to you.

We confirm that all investments in pooling arrangements, including the use of
collective investment vehicles and shared services, meet the criteria set out in the
November 2015 investment reform and criteria guidance and that the requirements
of the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 in respect of
these investments has been followed.

J. Actuarial valuation

The latest report of the actuary Hymans Robertson LLP as at 31 March 2025 and
dated [date of report] has been provided to you. To the best of our knowledge and
belief we confirm that the information supplied by us to the actuary was true and that
no significant information was omitted which may have a bearing on his report.

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 32



Appendix B

Appendix C — Management representation letter

Management representation letter (draft)

K. Estimates
Level 3 Investments and IAS 26 valuation Estimates

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the estimates have
taken into account all relevant information of which we are aware.

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data
used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the
estimates.

3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the estimates
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out the specific courses of action
on behalf of the entity.

4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to
Q) the accounting estimate(s), including those describing estimation uncertainty are
@complete and are reasonable in the context of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
@ Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

IAS. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been applied in
~Jnaking the estimates.

6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and
disclosures in the financial statements,

L. Use of the Work of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of the specialists that we have engaged to value the Fund
assets and liabilities and have adequately considered the qualifications of the
specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures included in the financial
statements and the underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any
instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or amounts
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any
matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

Confidential — All Rights Reserved

M. Going Concern

Based on our assessment of going concern, the details of which have been shared
with you, we confirm that we are not aware of any material uncertainties related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Scheme's ability to
continue as a going concern. We do not intend to wind up the Scheme. We are
satisfied that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Note 2 to the financial statements discloses all of the matters of which we are aware
that are relevant to the Scheme's ability to continue as a going concern, including
significant conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of
those plans.

N. Climate-Related Matters

1. Whilst recognising that the Climate Change Governance and Reporting Regulations
do not cover the Local Government Pension Scheme, we confirm that to the best of
our knowledge all information that is relevant to the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of climate-related matters has been considered in the
financial statements.

2. The key assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are, to the extent
allowable under the requirements of United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice aligned with any statements we have made in the other information or other
public communications made by us.

Yours faithfully,

Chief Finance Officer

Chair of Audit Committee

Date

Havering Pension Fund Audit Results Report| 33



EY | Building a better working world

EY is building a better working world by creating
new value for clients, people, society and the
planet, while building trust in capital markets.

Enabled by data, Al and advanced technology,
EY teams help clients shape the future with
confidence and develop answers for the most
pressing issues of today and tomorrow.

EY teams work across a full spectrum of
services in assurance, consulting, tax, strategy
and transactions. Fueled by sector insights,

a globally connected, multi-disciplinary network
and diverse ecosystem partners, EY teams can
provide services in more than 150 countries
and territories.

All in to shape the future with confidence.

Appendix B

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company
limited by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. Information
about how EY collects and uses personal data and a description of the
rights individuals have under data protection legislation are available
via ey.com/privacy. EY member firms do not practice law where
prohibited by local laws. For more information about our organization,
please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001
and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2025 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

UKC-038208 (UK) 03/25. Creative UK.
ED None

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general
outline of the subjects covered. It should neither be regarded as
comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it be
used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no
responsibility for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken
by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk




Appendix C

&¢ Havering

meirss LONDON BOROUGH

Statement of

Accounts
2024 /25




Appendix C

f Accounts

15

23
25
26
28
tatements (Accounting Policies) 29

| Statements (Other) 48

108
114
118

157

Page 120



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Dear Residents,

We continue to face some of the most challenging years we have ever seen. The Council’s focus
remains on providing services to residents of our Borough under extremely difficult circumstances. This
year, we once again have the challenge of trying to balance the budget, set against a backdrop of
enormous financial pressures, resulting from increases in inflation and the ongoing demands of a rising
population. Due to the increase in older and younger people social care costs, our spending pressures
are going up, so that for every pound that we spend as a Council, 70p of it goes on statutory services for
adults and children.

Unfortunately, these sharp increases in cost, due to additional demand and complexity, have not been
matched by the Government grant. Since the publication of the draft Statement of Accounts, the
Government have now re-distributed the funding formula to reflect the latest population changes. Although
Havering benefits by £40m over the three-year funding period, the change in funding is simply insufficient
to meet the rising cost of our services. Without additional funding going into the Local Government sector,
Havering will continue to face significant financial challenges in the medium-term. We will continue to work
closely with the Government to push for fairer funding that is reflective of our costs.

The pressures the Council is facing for 2025/26 has meant that we have, for the second year in a row, had
to ask central Government for Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) to balance our budget. Havering is an
efficient Council and this position has only come about through years of underfunding on our central
Government grants. The Government assumes we will apply this increase as part of our funding settlement
so we have also had no choice but to put forward a 4.99% increase in Council Tax, which will include
2.99% for the Council budget plus 2% social care precept. We understand that this increase is unwelcome
at a time when many are struggling with the general cost of living, but this is an important part of how we
deliver a balanced budget, which we must do by law.

However, not only do we have a legal duty to balance the books, we are a Borough that also listens and
responds to the priorities residents tell us matter most and below are a few examples of services we have
continued to deliver well:

¢ renewed funding to maintain and improve roads, pavements and street lighting

e continuing to fund the S92 police officers to help keep the Borough safe

e improving customer services and digital platforms for residents to access Council services

e investing in new affordable homes for residents through our regeneration programme and
looking at more cost-effective solutions for temporary accommodation through modular homes
on our regeneration sites

e continued investment and improvements in vital social care services to adults and children

e maintaining sixteen green flag parks

e ensuring suppliers and other service providers continue to be paid and funded.

So, despite the extreme financial pressures we find ourselves under, this Council has produced a balanced
budget that maintains front line services, improves safety, the environment, our infrastructure and provides
more homes.

| am confident that the Council, and our dedicated workforce, will continue to go above and beyond to
respond to these unprecedented times and will carry on delivering vital front-line services.

This is all while continuing to root out further savings and looking to find more efficient ways to deliver our
services to residents. Together, | hope we can continue to make the Borough the Havering you want to
be part of.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Blake-Herbert
Chief Executive, London Borough of Havering

Page 121



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

2024/25: Narrative Report

Introduction

The Council’s Statement of Accounts represents the financial performance of the past year and the overall
financial position of the Authority. It is important to understand how service performance has driven income and
expenditure, leading to the year-end financial position.

This narrative report explains the wider context by outlining how we use resources to drive performance and
deliver the vision and strategy set by our Councillors. It provides an overview of how we have delivered outcomes
throughout the year, and how we are planning ahead to respond as effectively as possible to future challenges.

The Borough of Havering

Havering is the third largest Borough in London geographically, covering approximately forty-three square miles.
It is characterised by suburban development, with almost half of the area dedicated to open green space.

As of 2023, the population of Havering was estimated to be 268,145 The number of people that live in Havering
increased by over 10% between the 2011 and 2021 Census. This growth rate was higher than the London and
England averages, indicating a rapidly expanding community.

Havering is the fourth fastest-growing Borough in terms of young population percentage nationally and has the
second oldest population in London.

In 2021, Havering's residents were 10.7% Asian, 75.3% White, 8.2% Black or African, and 3.7% Mixed.

The Borough also has a mixed socio-economic profile, with areas of both affluence and deprivation.

Organisation and Governance

The London Borough of Havering operates a Leader and Cabinet governance model. The Council Leader,
elected every four years by all Council Members, provides political leadership and strategic direction. The Council
has fifty-five Councillors who meet as Full Council to agree the main priorities, approve the budget and set the
Council Tax. The Leader selects up to nine Executive Members for the Cabinet to manage service portfolios.
Scrutiny is vital in Havering's decision-making, with an Overview and Scrutiny Board and several sub-committees
ensuring fair decisions. Various other committees also contribute to governance.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS), coordinated by the Assurance Service and monitored by the
Executive Leadership Team, provides further details on the Council's governance framework and processes.
The Council has responsibility for a wide range of services, these are organised into three Directorates: People,
Place, and Resources, and are overseen by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) led by the Chief Executive.
The Council is also the ‘corporate parent’ to children and young people in its care.

Havering Council employs 3,172 staff (including Directly Employed/ Agency / Casual)?- The Council's workforce
is diverse, with a mix of gender (70.5% women and 29.5% men), ethnicity (67.5% white, 21.6% ethnically
diverse), and disability (10.1% with a disability) -Havering is committed to promoting equality, celebrating
diversity, and ensuring inclusion for all employees and community members.

The Council's values and behaviours are encapsulated in the iCARE values: Integrity, Creativity, Ambition,
Respect, and Everyone. These values were written by the workforce, supported by Trade Unions, and are at the
heart of all Council activities. The Council's culture is built on these values, aiming to create an inclusive and
respectful workplace where everyone is held accountable for upholding these principles.

1 Office for National Statistics Population Estimates
2 Havering Workforce Information Portal March 2025

Page 122
3




London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Corporate Strategy

The Havering Corporate Plan sets out the vision "The Havering you want to be part of" for the organisation and
the Borough, using strategic objectives to guide its actions. The plan is structured around three main themes:

The Havering you want to be part of

Q&ﬂ?,

A

Supporting our residents to A great place to live, work Enabling a resident-focused
stay safe and well and enjoy and resilient Council

ot |
\%’/1}

The Corporate Plan details the outcomes the Council aims to achieve and the actions it will take to deliver them.
The plan was reviewed in April 2025, updating the metrics to monitor progress and performance against.

The Corporate Plan helps residents hold the Council accountable for its performance and challenges the Council
to continually improve what we do.

The Council's performance is regularly reviewed through meetings and reports. For example, the ELT
Performance meeting discusses performance data and prepares reports for the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Performance

Havering Council remains dedicated to its strategic objectives, continuously enhancing its services and ensuring
accountability to residents through comprehensive performance reporting.

Performance monitoring is essential for obtaining the necessary information to facilitate prompt action. We track
performance against the Corporate Plan on a quarterly basis, utilising Power Bl to present the data. An annual
written report is also submitted to the Cabinet each year, providing a high-level evaluation of the Council’s key
achievements and contributions towards our priorities within the Corporate Plan, as well as identifying significant
challenges for the upcoming year.

As of the end of Q4 (315t March 2025) 113 metrics were measured in the Corporate Plan. Fifty of these were
narrative updates, with a further 22 not having a target set. Of the remaining 40 metrics monitored within the
Corporate Plan Performance Report 53.7% (22) of them have a RAG status of Green (above the annual target),
9.7% (4) have a RAG status of Amber (below target, but within the variable tolerance) with the remaining 15
(36.6%) below target and outside of the variable tolerance (Red RAG Rated). Current Performance is presented
on the data intelligence hub.

The Council uses Power Bl to present interactive dashboards that provide enhanced insights for decision-
making. These dashboards are used across various departments, including Finance, IT, Digital and Customer
Services, and Social Care, to monitor performance and share data with managers and members.

The Havering Climate Change Action Plan (HCCAP) outlines the Council's commitment to tackling the climate
emergency and achieving carbon neutrality by 2040. The plan is dynamic, allowing for the addition of new actions
and modification of existing ones as new technologies and Government grants become available. As of the end
of the 2024-25 financial year, 30% of the actions in the HCCAP were completed, and a further 48% of in-year
actions were on track.

Page 123
4



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Financial Performance

Havering’s Balance Sheet

As can be seen below, Havering has a strong balance sheet. Nonetheless, only by careful management is it able
to undertake carefully considered capital investments across the Borough by considering increases in the level
of borrowing and the cost of that borrowing over its payback period.

31/03/2023  31/03/2024  31/03/2025

£'000s £'000s £'000s
Long-term assets 1,690,801 1,677,506 1,728,868
Current assets 106,259 143,355 205,347
Current liabilities (128,136) (141,489) (426,201)
Long-term liabilities (473,719) (547,766) (364,169)
Net Assets 1,195,205 1,131,604 1,143,845
funded by:
Usable reserves 209,329 181,163 196,676
Unusable reserves 985,876 950,441 947,169
Total Reserves 1,195,205 1,131,604 1,143,845
Borrowing 328,716 454,100 609,924
Debt to Equity Ratio 27.5% 40.2% 53.3%

Revenue Outturn

The Council has encountered increasing challenges in balancing its budget in recent years, due to a combination
of sharply rising demographic demand, escalating provider costs, and insufficient funding from central
Government. The current funding model relies on data that is over a decade old and does not accurately reflect
the present level of need. As such, the Council has had no choice but to seek Exceptional Financial Support to
set a balanced budget.

In 2023/24 the Council used £18.1m of exceptional financial support financed by capital receipts to balance the
overspend for that year. For 2024/25 the Council set a budget with the expectation that it would need £32.5m of
support to balance the budget and finance the expected overspend at year end.

The budget position has been reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis through the year, culminating in this
outturn report setting out the final position for the year. It became apparent as early as the first quarter monitoring
report that the Council was likely to need to use all of the £32.5m capitalisation directive available to it. The
Council has acted robustly throughout the year with the aim of reducing spend and identifying efficiencies.
Recovery Boards were set up for each department and a recruitment panel was set up to review and approve
all appointments. The Council also reviewed all agency placements and, in the Resources department in
particular, spend and agency numbers were reduced significantly

The table below sets out the final revenue outturn position of the Council, which is a £30.4m overspend against
the original budget without exceptional financial support. This table also provides a comparison to the Period 9
forecast which was submitted to Cabinet in March

Page 124
5



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Revenue Outturn 2024/25

Appendix C

Resources

People

Place

Corporate

Worst Case contingent budget
TOTAL

Capitalisation requirement
TOTAL OVERSPEND
Settlement Funding Assessment
Council Tax

Total Funding

25.9 (0.6) 0.0
180.0 20.6 223
16.4 1.6 2.5
5.6 (5.2) @.7)

0.0 (18.5) (18.5)
227.9 (2.1) 1.6
0.0 32.5 32.5
227.9 30.4 34.1
(39.5) 0.0 0.0
(158.0) 0.0 0.0
(197.5) 0.0 0.0

The revenue overspend was financed by using £30.4m of Exceptional Financial support as agreed with the

Government in February 2024.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

The use of resources to finance capital spend is changing over time as less and less capital receipts are being
generated from the sale of assets and greater reliance, particularly for the large regeneration schemes, is being

placed on the use of borrowing.

The Council’s capital funding used to finance the capital spend in 2024/25 is illustrated below.

Capital Receipts

Revenue & Reserves
Infrastructure Tariff & S106
Grants

Borrowing

Total Funding

Treasury Management

13%
13%
2%
18%
54%
100%

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments for the Authority on 315t March 2025 amounted to £117m (£71m
on 318t March 2024). The Authority’s cash investments increased during the year as proceeds from PWLB
issuance (£293m) were received to refinance maturing debt of £118m and to reduce the internal borrowing
position as a result of historic capital spend. The average yield from the Authority’s cash investments for 2024/25

was 5.26% (5.04% for 2023/24).

The guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to security, liquidity, and yield in that
order. The primary objective of the Authority’s investment strategy is therefore to minimise security risk with the

Page 125
6



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

credit ratings of the banks and market information monitored regularly by officers who engage in the investment
process. Officers kept treasury investments in short-term instruments of less than 1 year so they can be used to
fund the Capital Programme and reduce the need to borrow whilst maintaining a liquidity buffer of £40m as a
contingency.

The Authority’s debt portfolio as at 31t March 2025 totals £607m and is fixed at an average rate of 3.7% with an
average duration of 12.6 years. The Authority has balanced the need to minimise costs from funding capital
expenditure by using internal cash balances and defer where possible the drawdown of more expensive long-
term debt against the protection it offers in reducing interest rate risk and stabilising capital financing costs in the
budget strategy.

Pension Fund

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for the majority of its staff. The net
estimated pension liability for Havering applying “IAS19” is
£26.2m as at 31st March 2025 compared with £92.8m as at  g50000

Pensions Net Liability in £m

1000000

31st March 2024. Estimating liability involves judgments 000000 92844
about the discount rate, salary increases, retirement age
changes, longevity, interest rates, inflation, and expected 850000 —
asset returns. It also considers the effects of the recent  sooooo
McCloud ruling and GMP equalisation. 750000
The Pension Fund’s net assets decreased in 2024/25, from 700000 2023124 S024125
£865m to £810m due to investment market decreases in o
u Assets Net Liability

2024/25 and the liability decreased from £958m to £837m
partly due to slightly lower interest costs. Further information
on the basis of the IAS19 disclosure is included at Note 42.

The net liability is the additional amount that the Council will have to set aside or generate through investment
returns to fund the pension entitlements that have been built up to date by members of the Pension Fund.

During 2023 the Pension Fund received the results of its 2022 valuation. In comparison to the 2019 valuation
the overall Funding level saw a significant improvement, increasing from 70% to 80%. The Pension Fund has a
robust funding plan in place that concludes that the Council has a viable long-term solution to reducing the
Pension Fund deficit to zero. The next Triennial Review will take place during 2025.

Looking ahead — Opportunities and Challenges

In the upcoming financial year, Havering presents numerous promising opportunities. The Council has
commissioned the creation of a new special educational needs and disabilities school for 300 students aged 4
to 19, to address the pressing SEND requirements within the Borough. Furthermore, the Council will continue to
invest in infrastructure, which includes the installation of a modern CCTV system, funding for police officers, and
enhancements to parks and roads, all aimed at improving safety and supporting local businesses. Initiatives
such as the Live Well Havering Network and the Havering Food Alliance will offer avenues for collaboration and
support to promote residents' health and wellbeing.

As outlined in the Corporate Plan Annual Report for 2024/25, we expect significant challenges related to meeting
the rising demand for social care services, particularly for children and vulnerable adults. We also foresee
pressures concerning increasing costs of placements for children in care and the need for sustainable funding
solutions. The introduction of the food waste service, mandated by Government legislation, will receive limited
funding from the Government and will not cover the full cost of implementing the service. At this moment, we
await details of the funding the Council will receive to deliver this new Government initiative.

The Havering Improvement & Transformation Plan aims to enhance the Council's productivity, efficiency, and
financial stability. It supports the medium-term financial position by achieving key goals and reducing waste. The
plan incorporates CIPFA recommendations and includes developing a “Family Welcome Centre” for vulnerable

Page 126
7



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

families via the Harold Hill Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan. It addresses governance issues, such as
appointing directors for Mercury Land Holdings to prevent conflicts of interest. The plan involves working with
residents, community groups, and health partners to meet its objectives.

The Havering Climate Change Action Plan aims for the Council to achieve carbon neutrality by 2040. According
to the annual review sent to Cabinet in May 2025, continuous action is necessary, and contributions are expected
from everyone. Implementing this action plan is intended to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and support the
transition away from high-carbon practices in working, travelling, conducting business, and living. Encouraging
residents and businesses to adopt sustainable practices and lower their carbon footprint requires significant
effort.

It has recently been confirmed that the Statutory Override on the Dedicated High Needs deficit will continue
beyond March 2026 and continue to the end of 2027/28. Due to the increase in the children’s population over
the past decade, Havering’s cumulative high needs deficit is now over £35m and estimated to increase to beyond
£60m by the end of 2025/26. This is a significant issue for Councils nationally, and the Government must respond
with a sustainable solution that addresses the need for Councils to deliver its statutory duties against the funding
available.

2025/26 will be important for Local Government Finance. On June 20th, the Government launched the Fair
Funding Review 2.0 consultation to re-balance national funding distribution with new allocations starting in
2026/27. This offers an opportunity to address Havering’s funding needs and support service delivery without
borrowing. Additionally, the Government released a paper on Council Tax modernisation. Officers will respond
to both consultations to strongly advocate for Havering's interests.

Reserves position

The Council has had a low level of Earmarked Reserves and General Balances in recent years. This position is
a result of the shortfall in funding the Council has received, which has resulted in overspends and utilisation of
reserve balances. The Council has recognised the need to increase its general reserves in order to improve
resilience to meet future risks. The need to increase reserves was also noted as an action in the recent CIPFA
review of the Council’s finances.

The Council has a budgeted £5m contribution to general balances built into its budget and was able therefore to
increase general unallocated reserves from £10.1m to £15.1m on March 315t 2025. The Council has a further
planned contribution built into the 2025/26 budget and will keep the adequacy of general reserves under close
review moving forward.

The Council was also able to increase earmarked reserves through careful planning to allow key reserves to be
set up to support future IT expenditure. This enhancement of the Council’s reserves to build resilience is a key
part of the overall strategy to improve the Council’s financial health.

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2025-2029

In February 2025 Full Council agreed a balanced budget for 2025/26. In setting the 2025/26 budget the Council
has also developed its Medium Term Financial Strategy for future years. The strategy makes assumptions about
future pressures such as demographic growth, inflation and future Government funding, as well as including the
full year effect of savings proposals already developed. The strategy shows that, without significant additional
future funding from the Government, the Council’s budget gap will grow on an annual basis despite Council Tax
increases and any future savings.

The budget report to Council in February 2025 included a snapshot of the Medium Term financial strategy but
the strategy is, in reality, a live document which is continually updated as new information becomes available.
The Council has an annual process, which commences during the spring and summer, using the Medium Term
Financial Strategy to establish the extent of savings and efficiencies that will be needed to balance the following
year’s budget.

Page 127
8



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The table below shows the MediumTerm Financial Strategy set out in the February 2025 budget report to
Council.

20252029 MTFS i L SIS
Underlying 24/25 base budget position 34.5

Demographic and unit cost pressures 21.3 14.0 14.5 15.0
Other service pressures 4.1 5.9 1.0 1.0
Inflation and Pay award 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2
Investment and Growth 4.4 -0.8 0.0 0.0
Capital Financing 10.6 5.9 2.2 0.9
Other Corporate Pressures 9.9 2.8 2.3 5.1
One off items in 2024/25 budget 7.4 0.0 0.0 0.0
Worst Case contingent budget 17.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
TOTAL PRESSURES 115.2 33.0 25.2 27.2
Savings -10.3 -2.8 -1.1 -1.1
Government funding -8.3 5.1 -2.1 -2.3
Fees and Charges -0.7 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7
Council Tax 4.99% -7.9

Underlying Budget gap (mid case) 70.2 112.1 144.7
Financing costs of Underlying Budget Gap 7.3 11.3 14.6
TOTAL GAP before EFS Support 88.0 1121 144.7 182.4

The 2025/26 budget position was underpinned by Exceptional Financial Support agreed with the Government of
£88m based on a worst-case scenario. The Council is aiming to mitigate and control as many of the pressures
as possible to reduce the level of financial support needed, but the budget is a realistic and robust assessment
of the pressures the Council is facing.

The 2025/26 budget included a package of £10.3m of savings which was developed and reviewed throughout
the budget process. The Council will closely monitor the progress on these savings and indeed the level of
service pressures as the year goes on. The Council has baselined all its major budgets to use metrics, user
numbers and unit costs to measure variances from the original budget.

The Council’s financial position has changed in a way nobody could have imagined over the last few years, firstly
due to the pandemic then the increased cost of living driven by rising inflation levels.

The Government has provided additional grant to help Authorities address social care pressures, but Councils
are still faced with sharply rising costs and increases in demand. There are also other opportunities and the
Council, as part of its recovery plan, is reviewing the way it provides all services to ensure high-quality services
are delivered efficiently and change delivery methods where appropriate.

The Medium-Term Financial Position continues to be directly impacted by the following items:

e Demographic and Unit Cost Pressures

Page 128
9



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The Council continues to experience demographic pressures and rising unit costs, particularly across social care
but also across other services, as the population increases each year. The Government has provided funding to
help combat these pressures and has allowed the use of an Adult Social Care precept to raise further income in
recent years.

e Inflation

Staff pay awards are negotiated nationally and so the Council needs to plan assuming rises will be agreed. The
Council also plans for contractual inflation on our main contracts and social care providers. Growth has been
built into the 2024/25 budget to help combat these increases. Each year the Council reviews the fees and
charges it sets to ensure that the rising costs of the services are recovered where possible. In 2025/26 the
Government also announced an increase in National Insurance contributions. Most of the additional Council
spend for this increase was funded by a grant, but there was no such support for any of the Council’s providers
resulting in increased prices for our supplies and placements.

e  Government funding

The Government have committed to introducing a fair funding review for 2026/27 to re distribute Local
Government Funding based on new updated formulae. This is long overdue and will result in a multi-year
settlement from 2026/27 onwards to give the Council clarity on future funding. The 2025/26 settlement however
was, in effect, a roll over from previous years and so did not address the Council’s financial position in anyway,
resulting in the need for a further £88m exceptional financial support request.

The Spending Review in June 2025 confirmed that Local Government spending would marginally rise and
Councils would be able to increase funds by a 3% general Council Tax increase, supplemented by a 2% precept
for Adult Social Care. Whilst this is welcomed, there is concern across the sector that this funding level is
inadequate to meet national future demand.

The Government have also committed to a reset of Business Rates in 2026/27 and will set out its SEND reform
plans in an Education white paper, to be published in the autumn.

e The revenue cost of the Capital Programme

The Capital Programme will bring long term financial benefits particularly through the successful completion of
the Council’s ambitious regeneration programme. The IT programme will also upgrade the Council’s digital offer
and enable efficiencies in the medium term. In the short term however, there are borrowing and repayment costs
which are fully factored into the Council’s medium term financial planning. The Capital Programme is reviewed
quarterly as part of the Council’s monitoring process each year.

In summary, the Council will only use general balances and earmarked reserves as a last resort to finance in
year overspends. In setting the 2025/26 budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy, the Council has included
planned contributions to increase general balances to £20m and will continue to review reserve levels moving
forwards. The Council will continue to review all expenditure and income streams to improve the financial position
and will identify both new efficiencies and larger medium-term projects with the aim of reducing costs and
improving service delivery for our residents

Page 129
10



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Capital Programme 2025/26 to 2029/30

The Council is required by statute (The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities) to agree and

set the capital

programme and associated capital strategy. The Capital Programme agreed by Members for the

next 5 years amounts to £1.1bn and is set out in the table below:

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30
£m £m £m £m £m
People 26.715 19.000 3.353 0.000 0.000
Place (excluding HRA) 96.972 118.229 48.188 7.500 7.000
Resources 12.119 0.300 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total GF 135.806 137.529 51.541 7.500 7.000
Place (HRA) 189.074 168.735 133.129 191.001 117.372
Total Capital Expenditure 324.880 306.264 184.670 198.501 124.372
Key Risks

The Council aims to embed a consistent, effective approach to risk management, using the Risk Management
Strategy and Toolkit. This places an emphasis on risk management as a key part of good governance and
decision-making and not just compliance. The Council seeks to be risk-aware but not risk-averse, encouraging
innovation while managing threats.

The current risks in the Council’s Strategic Risk Register are included below:

Financial Resilience - Inability to deliver a balanced budget

Potential harm to people we owe a duty of care

External Inspection Requirements - conditions attached to the
Capitalisation Direction inc. an external assurance arrangement to
review the effectiveness of our Financial Management arrangements,
extending to a review of our governance and decision-making
processes. Terms remain to be defined by MHCLG.

Failure to adapt to the potential impacts of climate change and meet
Council's carbon neutral ambition for 2040

Failure to deliver strategic corporate priorities set out in the Corporate
Plan - The Council's in-year savings targets may impact on delivery of
priorities if not achieved.

Culture, governance, capacity, and knowledge

Technology: Cyber Security (Technical Controls and Platforms),
Information Security and Risk Management

Significant operational disruption to the Council's critical services.

Regeneration (Shaping the Future of the Borough) - impact of costs
inflation, social change, and economic downturn.

Technology: ICT Resilience and Legacy Systems - The Council's ability to
deliver critical and key services in the event of ICT outages and be able
to recover in the event of system and/or data loss.

Page 130
11

Appendix C

Total

£m
49.068
277.889
12.419
339.376

799.311
1,138.687



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The strategic risks and their mitigations are regularly reviewed and updated at the Executive Leadership Team
meetings. Directorate and service risk registers are managed locally, with a process to monitor and escalate
emerging and increasing risks.

Kathy Freeman

Strategic Director of Resources
London Borough of Havering
Date: XX February 2026

Page 131
12



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Explanation of Accounting Statements

Whilst these accounts are presented as simply as possible, the use of some technical terminology cannot be
avoided. To aid a better understanding of the terminology used a glossary of the terms is set out at the end of

the document.
The key financial statements set out within this document include:

e Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) — This statement shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into usable reserves and unusable reserves. It
analyses the increase and decrease in the net worth of the Authority as a result of the surplus/deficit in
year and from movements in the fair value of the assets. It also analyses the movement between

reserves, in accordance with statutory regulations.

e Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) — This statement summarises the

expenditure and income for the year.

e Balance Sheet — This records the Authority’s year-end financial position. It shows the balances and
the reserves at the Authority’s disposal, its long-term debt, net current assets, and liabilities, and

summarises information on the long-term assets held.

e Cash Flow Statement — This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash transactions over the
financial year; split between flows that have occurred as a result of operating activities, those arising

from investing activities and those attributable to financing decisions.

o Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide more detail about the items contained in the
key financial statements, the Authority’s accounting policies and other information to aid the

understanding of the financial statements.

e Expenditure Funding Analysis (EFA) — This note shows how the funding available to the Authority
has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by

authorities in accordance with accepted accounting practices.

e Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — This records the Authority’s statutory obligations to account

separately for the cost of the landlord role in respect of the provision of the Authority’s housing.

e Collection Fund — The Authority is responsible for collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates,
and for keeping a separate account that details the amounts owing to and from the Council, the Greater

London Authority, and the Government.

e Pension Fund — The Pension Fund accounts show the contributions from the Authority, participating
employers, and employees for the purpose of paying pensions. The Fund is separately managed by

the Council, acting as trustee, and its accounts are separate from those of the Authority.

Page 132
13



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The authority’s responsibilities

The authority is required to:

e make arrangements for the proper
administration of its financial affairs and to
secure that one of its officers has the
responsibility for the administration of
those affairs. In this Authority, that officer
is the chief financial officer

e manage its affairs to secure economic,
efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets

e approve the statement of accounts.

Clir Julie Wilkes
Chair, Audit Committee
XXt February 2026

The chief financial (section 151) officer’s
responsibilities

The chief financial (section 151) officer is
responsible for the preparation of the authority’s
statement of accounts in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this statement of accounts, the chief
financial (section 151) officer has:

o selected suitable accounting policies and
then applied them consistently

e made judgements and estimates that were
reasonable and prudent

e complied with the Code.
The chief financial (section 151) officer has also:

e kept proper accounting records that were
up to date

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

| certify that the statement of accounts presents a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council as at 31 March 2025 and its income and
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Strategic Director of Resources,
Chief Financial (Section 151) Officer

XXt February 2026

Page 133
14



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of
London Borough Of Havering

Page 134
15



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 135
16



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 136
17



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 137
18



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 138
19



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 139
20



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 140
21



London Borough of Havering Ap pend iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Page 141
22



Appendix C

g 9Jou Ul s|iejep - uoneroaidap pue sabieyoal eoiales Joddns sepnjour ainypuadxa [ejuswiiedsp ajoN

(6czZ‘2L) alnjipuadxa pue awooul aAisuayaidwod [ejo] [209‘c9
(L55°09) ainjipuadxa pue awoodul dAIsuayatdwod 1Yo |9e‘LL
. juswisnipe Buljieo .
(£99'29) ese JOSSe JO Jau saljljiqel| / s}jesse uoisuad uo (suleb)/sasso| [elenjoy (016°ge)
s)asse
(+88'2) ese yuswdinbs pue jued ‘Apadoud jo uonenjeaas uo H_ocooxw:_w‘_:mv €L2°05
zie'sy S92IAI9S JO uoisiaoid uo yoyaq/(sniding) vz zs
(121'022) el awooul juelb oyoads-uou pue uonexe] |(G81°L5Z)
8/G‘6 ZL alnjipuadxa pue awooul JUsWIsSaAUl pue Buloueul4|gges‘/,
oL¥'L Ll aunypusdxe Bunelado Joyi0|691 ‘2L
G61°LOS (816°85¥) SLy 092 S9DIAIDS JO }S0D|129°€82 (r8c‘ocy) 650°VLL
2sL'L (6G1'L) Lesy Hg71 paleys-uoN|yeL'l (615'69) €G2'19
9v.'G (G50°1) 1089 paJeys 92Inogauo|90.‘9 (8v1'2) vSh'6
v.L'€L (802) z86'cl syebpng ejelodio (199 (e18'1) /87’8
L0S L (G81°¥2) 989°L¢ $90IN0S8Y (215 12 (9¢v'22) Sv6'Ch
R A4S (£95'9/2) 808'96¥ a|doad|ye/. /8L (¢61'2¥2) 9z6'621
180°€S (v¥2'601) Gz8'29l 90B|d(G.E'6S (g19'101) 066'091
w:o_uﬂhwn_o m:_::_gcoo
Jo ainjipuadxa jau pue awosuj ssoab ‘ainjipuadxa ssoun
19N awoou| ssol9 ainjipuadx3 S9JON JoN awoou| ssol9 3imipuadx3
ssol9 ssol9
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
SZ0Z Y21e L€ — ¥20T 1udy | ¥20z Ud1eN L€ — €202 1dy |

"JUBWIBIBIS SBAIBSY Ul JUBLUBAO\ 8U) pue siskjeuy Buipun4 pue ainjipuadx3 8y} Yyjog ul umoys si uopisod uonexe) ay| 1809 Buiunoooe
8y} WoJy Juataylp aq Aew siy) ‘sjuawalinbal A10jnjels ym souepiodoe Ul ain)ipuadxa J8A0D 0} (Sjual pue) Uolexe)} asiel seiloyiny "(sjusl Jo) uopjexe) Wolj papuny 8q 0} Junowe sy} ueyy
Jayjes ‘seoioeld Bununoooe peydedoe Ajjelsusb yym soueplodoe Ul sediaies Buipiroid Jo Jesh sy ul 100 Buiunoooe 8y SMoYs Juswelels ainjipusdxy pue swoou| sAlsusyaidwo) syl

GZ/¥Z0Z Juswaje}s ainjipuadxy pue awosu| aAIsuayasdwo) Ajuoyny

§¢/v20Z SIUN0dY JO JuaWalels
Sulianey jo y3noiog uopuo

Page 142

23



Appendix C

(1L95‘9) ainjipuadxa pue awodul aAIsuayaidwod |ejo] |616°G9
(82£09) ainjipuadxa pue awodul aAIsuayaidwod Jay0|c9e‘LL
(29926) saljigel / syosse uoisuad uo (suieb)/sasso| [elenoy|(£80°6E)
(L122) sjasse yuawdinba pue jueld ‘Auadoud jo uoienjeaas uo youaa/(sniding) |9y 0g
L18°€S youaq /(snjding) dnoio|98s‘ys
ON@:V siseq >«_Jcm ue uo JoJ pajunodde alnjusA Julor|Q
1688y S92IAI9S JO uoisiAoid uo }oiaQ/(sn|ding) (985S
(1L21°022) awooul juelb oyoads-uou pue uonexe] (681 1G2)
Nmmh:‘ w‘_:«_ucmaxw pue sawodul JUswisaAul pue mc_ocmc_n_ Zl r.rr
mNON w._E_Ucwaxw mc_«m._wao JBUIO|LL _&N_‘
£67°662 (829 19%) 121192 S9DIAISS JO IS0 (LY5°Z8T (erL'cep) GGZ9LL
zs1L (6S1°L¥) LLe'sy HE1 paJeys-uoN|(veL‘L (615'69) €G2°19
9v1's (g50°1) 1089 paJeys 921N0g8U0|90.'9 (8v1'2) ¥51'6
vi1'€lL (802) z86°cl syebpng ejelodiod (¥19'9 (e28°1) 181'8
1052 (g81'v2) 989°L¢ $80IN0S8Y (215 12 (9¢t'22) 8v6'ch
L2 0ze (£95'912) 808°96% a|doad|ye. /81 (¢61'2v2) 926'62¥
60°LS (Ysv'zil) £€5'€91 80e|d|2vZ'98S (Pv6'v01) 981'¢9l
suonesado
Buinuiuod jo ainjipuadxa j}ou pue sawodsu] ssoib ‘ainyipuadxad ssolo
awoou aJn: d ou ainjipuadx
JoN 1 Jpuadxy 1N awoou| Hnp 3
S§S0I9 SS0I9 SS0I9 S§S0I9
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
GZ0Z YdIe L¢ — 20z 1dy | ¥20Z yd1eN Lg — €202 Hdy |

"JUSWIBJE)S SBAISSDY Ul JUBWBAO|A 8y} pue Sishjeuy Buipun4 pue ainyipuadx3 sy} Yyjog ul umoys si uopisod uolexe) ay] °}1S00 BuiuNoooe 8y} Wodj Juaiaylp g Aew
sIy} ‘syuswalinbas A10)NJe)s Ylm 8oUBpI0od. Ul Binjipuadxe JOA0D O} (Sjuel puB) uolexe; asiel seijloyIny *(Sjusl J0) uolexe) Wwodj papuny aq 0} Junowe sy} uey) Jayjel ‘seonoeid
Buiunoooe paydacoe Ajjesauab yym eouepioooe Ul seoiales Buipiaoid Jo Jeak ayy Ul }s00 Buiunoooe sy} sSmoys juswalels ainjipuadxy pue awoou| aAisuayaidwo) dnols) eyl

GZ/¥20Z Juswaje}s ainjipuadxy pue awoou] aAlsuayaidwos dnoig

§Z/2T0T SIUN0DY 4O JUBWILE]S
Sulianey jo y3noiog uopuo

Page 143

24



London Borough of Havering

Appendix C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority and
the group. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves
are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may
use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use

(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in
Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'.

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2024 Notes | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2025 |
Authority Group Authority Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,525,131 1,557,773|Property, plant and equipment 14a 1,558,299 1,597,518
2,350 2,350[Heritage assets 15 4,632 4,632
47,921 102,693|Investment property 16b 46,729 110,093
156 156(Intangible assets 17 1,374 1,374
Right of Use Assets 39 8,518 8,518
33,106 0O|Long term investments in subsidiaries 16d 44,786 0
2,456 2,456(Long term investments in joint ventures 16d 0 0
66,386 19,110|Long term debtors 19 64,530 11,340
1,677,506 1,684,538(Long-term assets 1,728,868, 1,733,475
50,394 50,394|Short-term investments 18 76,018 76,018
517 517{Inventories 465 465
64,676 61,184|Short-term debtors 19 74,740 67,537
27,768 28,343|Cash and cash equivalents 20 54,124 54,808
143,355 140,438| Current assets 205,347 198,828
(21,710) (21,710)[Short-term borrowing 18 (299,356) (299,356)
(119,779) (123,379)|Short-term creditors 22 (126,845) (127,748)
(141,489) (145,089)|Current liabilities (426,201) (427,104)
0 0|Long-term creditors 0 0
(7,818) (7,818)|Provisions 23 (9,174) (9,963)
(432,389) (430,477)|Long-term borrowing 18 (310,568) (310,210)
0 0|Long-term lease liability (4,102) (4,102)
(92,844) (92,844)(Other long-term liabilities 42 (26,228) (26,228)
(14,715) (14,715)|Capital grants receipts in advance 35b (14,097) (14,097)
(547,766) (545,854)|Long-term liabilities (364,169) (364,600)
1,131,604 1,134,031 |Net assets 1,143,845 1,140,599
181,163 175,636|Usable reserves 24 196,676 185,652
950,441 958,395|Unusable reserves 25 947,169 954,947
1,131,604 1,134,031|Total Reserves 1,143,845 1,140,599

| certify that the statement of accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at 31 March 2025
and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Page 144
25

Loty

-

‘l“'\w\.

Authorised for Issue

Kathy Freeman



Appendix C

's|lejop Jay}iny Joj (| 8}0U 98S 9SEd|d 'SPoUB|eg S|00UOS PUB SBAISSOY PaMyIBWIRT JUNODOY SNUSASY BUISNOH sepnjoul 8oue|eq SIy} 9}ou 9ses|d ,

SY8‘ehL’L 691°Ly6 99961  |5.8°L9 €L18 6LLve LLEYE LTV eLL'SL GZ0Z U21e| L€ Je doueleg
62 (522°€) PLS'SL 8€2°C (81) m 968°G 82¢T 666V Jeaj ui aseasoul/(aseasdaq)
0 0 0 8ze'C (8ze'2) (01 S10N) soAleseY poylewles WoJy/o} siajsuel]
‘ (s22°€) ‘ ‘ (s1) ¢ . S9AI9Sal paylewes
6€2°CL Gl2'E yLS'S1L 8€TT 8l L 968‘s 0 12€°L 0} SISJSUEI) 51045 SSEAIOUI(2SESI99P) 19N
. . . . . (6 @10N) suonenbal Jepun siseq buipuny
0 (9z2'v6) 922'v6 8€2T'C (81) Ll 6916 0 9z/'z8 bUE siseq BUUNCOOE USBMIaY SUBWISNIDE JOUIO
0 00v°0€ (oot'0g) (oov'0€) (6 ®100)
uoyesijeyded aoueuly 0} Buipuny eyideo Jo Jajsuel |
6€z'cl 15509 (zLe'sy) |0 0 0 (ere‘e) 0 (666'v¥) awooul pue ainjipuadxa aAisusayaidwoo [ejo L
16509 1GG'09 0 awooul pue ainjipuadxe sAIsusyaidwod JByi0
(z1e'8Y) (z1E'8Y) (ere'e) (666'71) S80IAI8S JO UoIsiAoid uo snjdins/(Hoyeq)
GZ/¥20C bulinp SaAI9sal Ul JUSWAAON
S09°LEL'L TP 056 €91°18L  [1£9°'69 1618 809v¢  S1S'8T £60'vY vLL 0L ¥202 UdJe L€ je aouejeg
(209'c9) (gev'se) (zL1'82)  |[(289) LEE'y (cz8‘le) 969 (LpL's) £66°L lea) ul asealouljasealdaq
0 0 (821°2) (1v2'G) 6162 (01 ©JON) SoAIDSDY payewles Woly/o} sigjsuel ]
A ¢ v A . v A ‘ v A v ¢ A ‘ v ‘ A ‘ v S9AI9Sal payJewied
109°€9 SEV'SE zL1'82 186 LEEY £28°1€) €8S 0 996°G 0} SISJSUBI) 210} SSERIOUIESERIIOP JON
( ) . ( ) . ( “Lg) . . (6 @10N) suonenbal Japun siseq
0 zLLTy zlLey 185 Leey £z8°1e)  vrLze 0 125'1€ Bulpun) puE Siseq BUNUNOOE UBEMIS] SIUBLISNIDY
0 001'8} (00L'81) (00L'81) (6 @100)
uoijesijeyded aoueuly 0} Buipuny |eyideo Jo Jajsuel |
(209°c€9) (g9g‘L1) (rvzzs) o 0 0 (158°92) 0 (e6£'52) awodul pue ainjipudadxa dAIsuayaidwod [ejo)
(c9e'L1) (c9gL1) 0 awooul pue ainjipuadxe aAIsusyaidwod Jayl0
(v¥e2'es) (v¥e'es) (168'92) (e6€'62) S$90IAI8S 4O uoIsIAoid uo snjdinspoleq
¥2/€20¢ bulinp SaAI9Sal Ul JUSWAAON
L02°G61L°L 118°G86 0ce‘60z  [S2z99 098°c LEP'9S  0Z8'FC £€8'6Y 1918 €202 Yd1e| L€ Je aouejeg
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
JunodIdyY
S9AIaSaY sonlosoy SOAI9SdY peiddeun OAI9SdY OAIISIY JUNo22Yy sonsosey aouejeg
fuoyiny ajqesn sijeday s)digoay  anuanay pung
a|jgesnun sjueus) paysewsesy
|ejol lejol [enden Jolepy leyde) BuisnoH |eJauas)

‘sjuswisnipe asoyy Bumo||o) JeaA 8y} Ul SJUBWIBAOW 8dueleg JUN0JY
anuanay BuisNoH pue @oueleg pun4 [elauas) AIOINJE)S 8y} SMOYS dUl| 8SEI09(/0SESI0U| }8U 8y "IEaA 8y} Joj (Sjuai J0) Xe} [Iounod 0} 8|qealleyd sjunowe sy} 0} UIN}al O}
paJdinbau sjuswisnipe Aiojnjers ayy pue seonoeld Buijunoooe paydecoe Ajjeseush yjm 8oUBPIOIDE Ul PBLINDUI SBSSO| pue suleb usamjaq UMOP USY0Iq 8ie SaAlesal s Aloyine
8y} JO Jeak ul SjUSIB AOW BY} MOY SMOYS JUSWSIL)S BY] *,SeAIasal ajgesnun, Jayjo pue (Uojexe) [eo0] 8onpal Jo ainyipuadxa puny o} pajjdde aq ued jey} 8soy} "o°1) ,SoAI9sal
a|qesn, ojul pesAleue ‘Ajuoyine ay) Aq pley SeAlesal JusIayip 8yl UO pus 8y} 0} Jeak oy} JO Hels 8y} WOl JUSWSAOW B} SMOUS JusalelS SOAIesay Ul JUSWBAO 8yl

GZ/PZ0Z JUsWaleR)S SaAIaSaY Ul JUswaAop Ajoyiny

§¢/v20Z SIUN0dY JO JuaWalels
Sulianey jo y3noiog uopuo

Page 145

26



Appendix C

'S|IEJOP J8U}IN} 10} O] DJOU 93 aSea|d 'Saoue|eqg S|00YOS PUB SBAISSSY PadyIBWIET JUN0DOY anuaAay BuisnoH sapnjoul @oueleq siy) djou asesld

66s‘ovLL  |(9vz‘s) 691°L¥6 99961 G829 €L1'g 6LLYT LLEYE A TVor cLL‘Gh GZ0Z UdJeN L€ Je douejeg
1959 (829°g) (sL2'¢) y1S'S1L 82 (81) L 968'G 82¢€C 666 Jea) ul asealoul/(asealdnq)
0 0 0 8z¢e'e (8z2¢'2) SBAI8SaY payiew.e] (Woly)/0) Siajsuel |
‘ ( ‘G) ( ‘e) ‘ ‘ (81) ‘ ‘ S9AJaSal payewied
1959 8.9'G Gl2'€ yLS'SL 8€2'C 8l (AR 968'G 0 12€°L 03 SI0JSUEI} 810§0q 9SEBIOUY/(55€310P) JON
(922'v6) . . (s1) . . suolje|nbal Japun siseq Buipuny
0 922'v6 92¢'v6 8€2'C 8l AN 6916 0 92128 pUE siseq BUIUNODE UGBMISY SUBWISNIDE JOUI0
‘ ‘ . (6 @)0U) UOKOBIIP
0 00¥ 08 (0o‘0¢) (0or'0e) uonesijeydes aoueuly 0y buipuny [eyded Jo Jajsuel |
1959 (829°g) 15509 (ziLe'sy) 0 0 0 (e1e'e) 0 (6667¥) awodul pue ainjipuadxa dAlsusyaldwod |ejo L
8/€£09 (€21) 1GG09 0 awooul pue ainjpuadxa aAlsuayaldwod Jayj0
(218'€9) (Clolexe)] (zre'sy) (ere'e) (666'71) $801AI8S JO uolsiaoid uo snidins/(3oyeq)
GZ/P20Z bulLinp SaAIaSal Ul JUSWSAON
Ze0peL L |2ev'T ThP‘056 291181 8£9°G9 1618 80972 S15°8Z 2607y yLLOL ¥20zZ UdJe Lg Je aouejeg
(6¥6°G9) (zveT) (sev‘se) (zL182) (289) 1E€Y (ez8‘1€) G69°C (Lp2Ls) £56°L Jea) ui aseasoul/(asealdnq)
0 0 (821°2) (LyLg) 6162 SaNI9SaY payJewle] (Wouy)/0} siajsuel |
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . ( ‘ . S9AI3SAI paylewesd
(6¥6'9) (eveT) (sev‘se) (zL1'82) (289) LESY (ez81€) €18'G 0 (996°s) 01 SI0JSUEI} 810j0q 9SEIOUY/(558310P) JON
( Zh) ‘ ( ) . ( ) . . suone[nbas Japun siseq
0 2Ly A4 185 Lee'y £Z8'le vzl'ce 0 125°1€ Bulpun; pue siseq BUNUNCOOE UsEMISY SUBLLISNIPY
' (ooL‘81) (ooL‘gl) (6 8]0U) uonodBIIp
0 00181 0018} 0018l uonesijeyded aosueuly 0} Buipuny |eydes Jo Jajsuel ]
(6¥6°9) (zve?) (€9g11) (rrz‘es) 0 0 0 (1s8'92) 0 (e6€'52) awooul pue ainjipuadxa dAlsusyaldwon |ejoL
(06L°11) cll (€9e'L1L) 0 aWwooul pue ainjipuadxe aAIsuayaidwod Jayi0
(6GL'¥S) (515'2) (v¥z'ze) (198'92) (e6€'52) $92IAI8S JO uoisinoid uo snjdins/(oyeQ)
$2/€20¢ bulinp SaAIaSal Ul JUSWIAAON
186661k  [vLLY 118686 0€£°602 622'99 098¢ LEV'9S 02892 £€8'6Y 1918 €202 UdJe L€ Je aduejeg
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
SaJINJUIA JuloL
SOAI9SDY | sauelpisqng SOAI9SDY unosoy AAI9SY 9AI9SY juno22y aouejeg
T SOAI9SY paiddeun EETNELT)Y]
dnoug JO saAIaSdY ajgesn sijedoy sydieoay aNuaAady pung
ajqesnun sjuels) payJewle]
aul [ejo| jo aseys |ejol ende 1olepy |lende) BuisnoH |eJauan
s.fuoyny 1ended

‘sjuswisnipe asoy) Buimojjoy Jeak

BU} Ul SJUSWISAOW SoUEB|eg JUNOJDY SNUBASY BuiSNOH pue soueleg pun4 [1auas) AIOINIE)S DY) SMOYS dUl| 9Sea109(]/8Sealou| 18N a1 "Jeak sy} 4o} (sjual J0) xe} 1ounod o} ajqesbieyo
sjunowe ay} 0} uinjas 0} palinbau sjuswisnlpe Aiojnjels ay) pue seonoeld Buunoooe psjdeocoe Ajjelaush yjm 8ouBpIood. Ul PaLINOUl SBSSO| pue suleb usamiag UMOP UsX0lg aJe SaAIasal
dnouB ay) Jo JBBA Ul SJUBWIBAOW BY} MOY SMOYS JUSWSIBIS 8| *,S9AISSaI 8|gesnun, Jayjo pue (uonexe) [eoo] 8onpal Jo ainjipuadxa puny o} paijdde g ueo jey} 9soy} "o°1) ,SeAISsal
a|gesn, ojul pasAjeue ‘dnoib ay) pue Ajuoyine ayy Aq pley SeAIesal JusIalIp 8y} UO pue 8y} 0} Jeak 8y} JO LIBlS 8y} WOJ) JUSLUBAOW 8} SMOYS JUSWS)RIS SOAISSaY Ul JUBWSAOI 8y

GZ/¥Z0Z JUSWSYR)S SOAISAY Ul JUBWAAO dnoig

§Z/20T SIUN02JY JO Judwalels
SuuaneH jo ySnoiog uopuoi

Page 146

27



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Cash Flow Statement as at 31 March 2025

Appendix C

The Cash Flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority and the Group during the reporting period.
The statement shows how the Authority / Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as; operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which
the operations of the Authority / Group are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by
the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to
contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

2023/24 2023/24 Note 2024/25 2024/25
Authority Group Authority Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
(52,244) (54,586)|Net surplus on the provision of services (48,312) (53,817)
65,047 67,516 Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 26 65,347 71,253
movements
(39,124) (39,124) Adjust for items |nc|l_Jded |p the net_surpl.us or d'e_ﬁ'cn on the provision 26 (46,746) (46,746)
of services that are investing and financing activities
(26,321) (26,194)|Net cash flows from Operating Activities (29,711) (29,310)
(105,808) (109,109)]Investing activities 27 (99,757) (104,159)
124,789 127,834|Financing activities 28 155,824 159,934
(7,340) (7,469)|Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26,356 26,465
35,108 35,812|Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 20 27,768 28,343
27,768 28,343|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 20 54,124 54,808

Page 147
28




London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Accounting Policies
Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, on the assumption that the functions of the Council will
continue in their current or similar form for the foreseeable future. The Code requires that local authorities prepare
their accounts on a going concern basis, as they can only be discontinued under statutory prescription, and there
is no notice from Government to that effect.

The Council regularly reviews its cashflow forecasting and the medium-term financial strategy fully reflects the
potential borrowing costs required. The Council ensures it has sufficient liquidity to pay all its liabilities and keeps
a schedule of forthcoming major payments to help its short-term borrowing strategy. The Council does have a
significant capital programme over the next five years and there will be planned borrowing, either from the Public
Works Loans Board (PWLB) or other sources, to fund this programme. The timing and extent of the capital
programme is under regular review. The Council is of the view that appropriate loan arrangements will be available
if required. The Council is forecast to be within its authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt and
has significant headroom between its forecast gross debt and its capital financing requirement.

In making its going concern assessment, the Council must also consider its budgets and the level of reserves. The
Council assesses its financial position for future years through the medium-term financial planning process.

At the Full Council meeting in February 2025, the budget for 2025/26 was agreed relying on £10.3m of new planned
savings and £88m of assumed exceptional financial support from Government (in the form of a capitalisation
direction) to achieve a balanced position based on a worst-case scenario.

The Government required the Council to prepare a Transformation and Improvement Plan and undergo an
independent financial management assessment as a condition of receiving Exceptional Financial Support. The
CIPFA Review assessed the Council on the following areas:

e Financial management and sustainability

e Capital programme, debt, investments and assets

e Governance, management processes, culture and leadership
e Service delivery

e Improvement plan and roadmap

The Financial Management review was concluded by CIPFA in Summer 2024 and was formally signed off by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). Members approved the Council’s
Improvement and Transformation Plan on 24th July 2024 and the plan is now being adopted and monitored.

The Council has a number of spending controls in place to ensure that only essential spend takes place. These
include a recruitment panel, a debt board, spending panel and regular reviews of agency costs. This will help
control spend and keep within budget in 2025/26 and minimise future pressures moving forward.

The Council has needed Exceptional Financial Support in the last two years and again, for 2025/26, has required
£88m of support to balance the budget.

The Council however, continues to face rising demand due to Social Care demographics and unit costs and the
rising cost of meeting our statutory Housing duties. In developing the 2025/26 budget the Council identified new
pressures totalling over £60m in addition to the underlying budget gap of £32.5m brought forward from 2024/25.
These pressures have been partially mitigated by over £10m of savings proposals, a 4.99% Council Tax increase
and additional funding from central Government however, there remains a £70.2m gap for 2025/26 on a most likely
case rising to £88m worst case scenario. The Council has presented this position to MHCLG who have provisionally
agreed exceptional financial support of £88m for 2025/26 in order to balance the budget.

The Government has announced wide ranging reforms commencing with a review of the funding formula in 2025.
Havering has proactively set out its case to help inform these discussions. There is however, a significant shortfall

Page 148
29



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

in social care funding nationally and until this is recognised many authorities, including Havering, will need further
support from the Government in future years to balance their budgets.

The Government published a consultation paper on funding reform in June 2025 and has used the outcome of that
consultation to provide a three-year settlement for local authorities which was announced on December 17t 2025.
This announcement has provisionally increased the amount of grant available to Havering although the additional
funding will be phased in over three years. The additional funding will not fully close the Council’s budget gap and
so further exceptional financial support requests will be necessary moving forward. As a result, the Council applied
for EFS for 2026/27 in December 2025.

Due to the short-term nature of exceptional financial support, which is only announced a year at a time, currently
there is uncertainty on the Council’s future funding position. However, the Council has and will continue to have
sufficient liquidity over the MTFS period to make payments to the workforce, contractors, suppliers and honour all
its financial commitments. The Council will be reliant on either further exceptional financial support or a significant
improvement in the level of grant from central government in order to balance future budgets moving forward.

i. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2024/25 financial year and its position
at the year ending 31 March 2025. The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the Authority to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices
primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (the Code),
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12
of the Local Government Act 2003.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:

e Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is
recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance
with the performance obligations in the contract.

e supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet;

e expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.;

e interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure based on the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

e where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected; and

Page 149
30



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

e most accruals are automatically generated by the feeder system concerned however, a de minimis is
applied in respect of accruals raised manually unless material to grant funding streams or to individual
budgets. The de minimis for 2024/25 remains at £50,000.

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions, repayable without penalty on notice
of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in one month or less from
the date of acquisition or notice accounts of no more than 3 months and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

iv. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise because of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by
the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy
had always been applied. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

v. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:
e depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

e revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains
in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off; and

e amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its
overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in
accordance with statutory guidance (the Minimum Revenue Provision). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses, and amortisations are therefore replaced by an adjusting transfer to the General Fund Balance from the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

vi. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the major
preceptors (including Central Government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR for
themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (the Collection Fund) for the
collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for

Page 150
31



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and Central Government share proportionately the risks
and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
Authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of council tax and
NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to
the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the Authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and NDR
relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. Where
debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or determinable payments), the asset is
written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows.

vii. Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include such
benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the
Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. flexitime) earned by
employees but not taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange
for those benefits. Costs are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement when the Authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Authority recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund
and Housing Revenue Account balances to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the Pension
Fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority are members of three separate pension schemes:

e the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department
for Education (DfE);

Page 151
32



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
e the National Health Service Pension Scheme, administered by the National Health Service; and

e the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Authority.

All three schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as
employees work for the Authority. However, the arrangements for the Teachers’ and National Health Service
schemes mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Authority. Those
schemes are therefore accounted for as if they were defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The People’s and Resources Service lines in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are charged with the employer’s contributions payable to the
Teachers’ and National Health Service Pensions Scheme in the year.

The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.

e The liabilities of the London Borough of Havering Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included
in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings
for current employees

e Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate
of return on high quality corporate bonds.

e The assets of the London Borough of Havering Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in
the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

o quoted securities — current bid price;
o unquoted securities — professional estimate;
o unitised securities — current bid price; and
o property — market value.
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:
e  Service cost comprising:

o current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employees worked

o past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of Non Distributed Costs

o netinterest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the Authority
— the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the
passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is calculated by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit
payments.

Page 152
33



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
e Re-measurements comprising:

o the return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserve as other comprehensive income and
expenditure;

o actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries
have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve as other comprehensive
income and expenditure;

o contributions paid to the London Borough of Havering pension fund — cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash
flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers)
are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied
to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

viii. Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and

e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts
are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

ix. Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the

Page 153
34



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is
the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange
of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of
the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread
over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The Authority has a
policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was
payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by
a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the business
model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. There are three main classes of
financial assets measured at:

e amortised cost
e fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are
therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment of
principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are
subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most
of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable
for the year in the loan agreement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost [or where
relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease
receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the
authority.

Page 154
35



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses.
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a
lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-
month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL)

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair
value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

e instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
e other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:

e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority can
access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset. Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition
of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

x. Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is converted
into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign
currency are outstanding at the year end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting
gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

xi. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:

e the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that
specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant

Page 155
36



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-
fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

All Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) Section 106 contributions, because of their complex nature
and numerous legal conditions, are only recognised through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement once they have been spent. Only then are we certain all conditions have been met and there is no return
obligation.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed
out of the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account balances in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where
the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve.
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Non-Ring-fenced Grants

These are allocated by Central Government directly to local authorities as additional revenue funding. They are not
ring-fenced and are credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Business Improvement Districts

The Authority is the billing authority for the London Riverside Business Improvement District (BID) managed by
Ferry Lane Action Group, which provides a cleaner, safer, more secure business environment and promotes the
interests of the business community within the BID. The Authority acts as principal under the scheme, and accounts
for income received and expenditure incurred (including contributions to the BID project) on the balance sheet.
The Authority has similar arrangements for the Romford Town Centre BID.

xii. Heritage Assets

The Authority’s Heritage Assets are split into two categories
e Civic Regalia; and
e Heritage Buildings.

Civic Regalia

The collection of civic regalia includes the Mayor’s and the Deputy Mayor’s chains, which are worn on ceremonial
duties and various items with civic insignia. They are valued based on manufacturing costs and do not include any
element for rarity or collectable value, retail mark-up or VAT.

Heritage Buildings and Property

The Authority owns buildings and property that meet the definition of heritage assets which are valued on a
minimum of every 5 years on either a depreciated replacement cost basis or on an existing use basis.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for heritage assets,
e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage. Any impairment is recognised and measured
in accordance with the CIPFA code of practice and the Authority’s general policies on impairment.

xiii. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Authority as a
result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority.

Page 156
37



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible and is
intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Authority will be able to generate
future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised
where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the
development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). Expenditure on the development of websites is
not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Authority’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held
by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the
Authority meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation,
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

xiv. Inventories

The Authority has a small number of inventories. These are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned predominantly using the first in first out (FIFO) costing
formula.

xv. Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition
is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held
for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which
the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not depreciated but
are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and
result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted
by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Page 157
38



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
xvi. Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The code requires local authorities with, in aggregate, material interest in subsidiaries and associated companies

and joint ventures to prepare group financial statements.

The Group’s financial statement incorporate the financial statements of the London Borough of Havering and its
subsidiaries prepared as at the year-end date. As part of the consolidation process, Havering has aligned the
accounting policies of the subsidiaries with those of the Council and made consolidation adjustments where
necessary. It has consolidated the financial statements of the subsidiaries with those of the Council on a line-by-
line basis; eliminated in full balances, transactions, income and expenses between the Council and the

partnerships.

xvii. Interest in Joint Committee

oneSource is a participative arrangement between the Authority and the London Borough of Newham to share
back-office operations. It is governed by a joint committee and is not deemed to meet the definition of joint control;
hence the assets, liabilities, income, expenditure and cash flows of the joint committee are not consolidated into
the Authority’s group accounts. Instead, the Authority accounts for its own transactions arising within the
agreement, including the assets, liabilities, income, expenditure and cash flows, in its single entity financial
statements. Cost and savings are shared between the two authorities based on an agreed formula and are
allocated on an annual basis.

xviii. Leases
The Authority as Lessee

Leases with a term of less than 12 months or for items of low value (less than £10,000) are accounted for by
charging payments to the relevant service line in the CIES.

For longer-term leases and those for higher value items, the Council recognises the right acquired to use the
property, plant or equipment as an asset in the Balance Sheet and a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor for
the right. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the payments to be made after the
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset is deemed to be the initial liability plus the incremental
costs of obtaining the lease and any payments made before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently accounted for in accordance with the classification the underlying asset
would have if owned by the Council (property, plant and equipment; intangible assets; investment property). Where
the outcome would be materially different from the amount for the asset under the cost model, this will involve
remeasurement to current value.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured where future lease payments change as a result of a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Remeasurements are reflected in adjustments to the deemed
cost of the right-of-use asset.

Payments are apportioned between:

e acharge for the acquisition of the right-of-use asset — applied to write down the lease liability

e financing charges (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

e contingent rents not reflected in the calculation of the lease liability — debited to the relevant service line
in the CIES.

Page 158
39



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
The Authority as Lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal, with the gain/loss attributable to the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the Council’s net investment in the lease being credited/debited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the CIES. The net investment in the lease is recognised as a lease asset in the Balance Sheet,
net of any premium paid. Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

e a credit for the disposal of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease asset
e finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES).

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained
in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.

xix. Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service. The total
absorption costing principle is used — the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefits received.

xx. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but
does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
e the purchase price

e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management

e the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

Finance costs are excluded in valuations for all assets.

Page 159
40



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Havering has applied the following de minimis criteria for the capitalisation of expenditure, so that schemes which
cost less than this are classified as revenue rather than capital: -

e works to buildings £5,000
e infrastructure £5,000
¢ office and information technology £5,000
e other furniture and equipment £5,000

There are no de minimis limits for the following categories: land acquisition, vehicles and plant, energy conservation
work, health and safety improvements, aids and adaptations for the disabled.

These de minimis rules may be waived where grant or borrowing consent is made available for items of capital
expenditure below £5,000.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not
have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case,
where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given
up by the Authority.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
e infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost;
e dwellings — current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUVSH);

e council offices — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing
use (existing use value — EUV);

e  School buildings — current value, but because of their specialist nature, are measured at depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) which is used as an estimate of current value;

e surplus assets — the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use from
a market participant’s perspective;

e all other assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing
use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. Where non-property assets that have short useful
lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued as a minimum every five years, with high value
assets being re-valued annually, to ensure their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value
at the year end. In addition, an independent review is carried out annually. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged
to a service.)

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Page 160
41



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account

Development Costs

General feasibility studies are treated as revenue unless they lead to the creation of an asset. This is because
they are typically an options review of what schemes may or may not be considered for the capital programme.
They do not in and of themselves produce an asset. There would need to be an accompanying business case
justification as to why this expenditure could be capitalised and this would normally only occur in relation to large-
scale regeneration schemes.

The watershed moment between the feasibility and the development stage, when concrete designs are reviewed,
is normally the point at which expenditure may be considered for capitalisation. The Council’s policy at this stage
is to treat the expenditure as capital and then if the scheme does not go ahead or is stopped at an early stage
without producing any assets the expenditure is treated as an abortive revenue cost.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold
land and certain community assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is not charged in the year of acquisition but is charged in full during the year of disposal.

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

e dwellings and other buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by
the valuer;

e vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line allocation over a five-year period unless a suitably
qualified officer determines a more appropriate period; and

e infrastructure — straight-line allocation over 25 years.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item, the Code requires that these components are depreciated separately.

Page 161
42



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
Major components which have materially different asset lives will be identified in respect of:

e new capital expenditure as it arises; and

e existing assets as they become subject to revaluation.

Assets will not be valued on a componentised basis in the following circumstances on the basis that the impact
upon asset valuation and depreciation is not material to the accounting disclosures:

e capital expenditure of less than £300,000 per scheme; and
e assets valued at less than £3,000,000.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation
charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued
immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation
is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted
for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as
Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. Assets that are to be abandoned
or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Where an Asset is fully
depreciated and therefore has a zero net book value, it is deemed as being abandoned or scrapped and treated
as such (This will not have an effect on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the gross book
value and the accumulated depreciation are equal). Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted
off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset
in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal more than £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance of receipts is
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment or
set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Highways Network Infrastructure Assets
Highways network infrastructure assets include carriageways, footways and cycle tracks, structures (e.g.

bridges), street lighting, street furniture (e.g. illuminated traffic signals, bollards), traffic management systems and
land which together form a single integrated network.

Page 162
43



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition or replacement of components of the network is capitalised on an accrual basis,
provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Authority and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Highways network infrastructure assets are generally measured at depreciated historical cost. However, this is a
modified form of historical cost - opening balances for highways infrastructure assets were originally recorded in
balance sheets at amounts of capital undischarged for sums borrowed as at 1 April 1994 which was deemed at
that time to be historical cost. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by the carrying
amount of the asset being written down to the recoverable amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the parts of the highways network infrastructure assets that are subject to
deterioration or depletion and by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.
Annual depreciation is the depreciation amount allocated each year. Useful lives of the various parts of the
highways network have either been assessed by the Highways Engineer, based on industry standards, based on
existing inventories or by using best estimates where appropriate. The useful lives for each class are as follows:

Carriageways, Footways and Cycle tracks = 25 years
Structures® = 25 years

Street lighting = 25 years

Street furniture* = 25 years

Traffic management systems* = 25 years

Other Highways Network Infrastructure* = 25 years

*Significant expenditure on these assets is reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine if the weighted
average life set out in the policy is appropriate.

Disposals and derecognition

When a component of the Network is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the component in
the Balance Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). The written-off amount of disposals
is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where part of the network is replaced, an adaptation provided in a separate update to the Code assumes that,
from the introduction of the IFRS based Code when parts of an asset are replaced or restored, the carrying
amount of the derecognised part will be zero because parts of infrastructure assets are rarely replaced before the
part has been fully consumed.

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by borrowing, it must put aside resources to repay that debt in later
years. The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP). The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision issued in 2018.

Page 163
44



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period that is either reasonably
commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported
by Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of
that grant.

For capital expenditure incurred after 31st March 2008, MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure over
the expected useful life of the relevant assets in equal instalments, starting in the year after the asset becomes
operational.

For assets acquired by finance leases or the Private Finance Initiative, MRP will be determined as being equal to
the element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the balance sheet liability.

Third party loans — Under statutory requirements the payment of the loan will normally be treated as capital
expenditure. The subsequent loan repayments, (which are treated as capital receipts under statutory
requirements); will be used to reduce the long-term liability and consequently the Capital Financing Requirement.
As a result, MRP will not generally be charged on the loan as it is not appropriate to do so.

xxi. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. Provisions are charged as an
expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that
the Authority becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, considering relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year; where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed
and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a
note to the Accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Authority. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the Accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Page 164
45



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

xxii. Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in
that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. Certain reserves are
kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement, and employee
benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority — these reserves are explained in the relevant
policies.

xxiii Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement
from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that
there is no impact on the level of council tax.

xxiv. Schools

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom confirms that the balance of control for
local authority maintained schools (i.e. those categories of school identified in the School Standards and
Framework Act 1998, as amended) lies with the local authority. The Code also stipulates that those schools’ assets,
liabilities, reserves and cash flows are recognised in the local authority financial statements (and not the Group
Accounts). Schools’ transactions, cash flows and balances are therefore recognised in each of the financial
statements of the Authority as if they were the transactions, cash flows and balances of the Authority.

xxv. VAT and Tax Duty

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. If any tax duty is payable on goods purchased from EU,
this will be part of the purchase cost and is not recoverable from HMRC.

xxvi. Fair Value Measurement

The authority measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment properties, and
some of its financial instruments, such as equity shareholdings, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Page 165
46



London Borough of Havering

Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs
to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can access
at the measurement date

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Page 166
47



London Borough of Havering :
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C
2. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires disclosure
of the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by new accounting standards that have
been issued but not yet adopted.

The standards introduced by the 2025/26 Code where disclosures are required in the 2024/25 financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code, are:

a) IAS 21 Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate (Lack of Exchangeability) issued in August 2023.
This standard is not relevant to the Council as no non-exchangeable currency is held.

b) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts issued in May 2017. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 and sets out principles for
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts. As the Council has not
issued insurance contracts, this standard is not relevant

c) The changes to the measurement of non-investment assets within the 2025/26 Code include
adaptations and interpretations of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets.
These include setting out three revaluation processes for operational property, plant and equipment,
requiring indexation for tangible non-investment assets and a requirement to value intangible assets
using the historical cost approach. These have the same effect as requiring a change in accounting
policy due to an amendment to standards, which would normally be disclosed under IAS 8. However,
the adaptations also include a relief from the requirements of IAS 8 following a change in accounting
policy as confirmed in paragraph 3.3.1.4.

There are no other new accounting requirements introduced in the 2025/26 Code that are anticipated to
have a material impact on the Council’s financial performance or financial position.

3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies,

In applying the accounting policies, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the
Statement of Accounts are:

e there is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for Local Government however, the
Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets
of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service
provision; and

¢ the statement of accounting policies incorporates a number of de minimis thresholds below which certain
low value transactions are not recognised in strict accordance with the Code of Practice. These
thresholds have been selected for the purpose of reducing the volume and complexity of financial
transactions without materially altering the accounting disclosures. The areas most affected by this
policy relate to the recognition of pensions liabilities, non-current assets, leases and accruals.

4. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures based on assumptions made by the Authority about
the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience,
current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty,
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2025 for which there is a significant risk of material

Page 167
48



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Appendix C

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from

assumptions

Property, plant and | Assets are depreciated over useful lives | If the useful life of assets is reduced,

equipment that are dependent on assumptions about | depreciation increases and the
the level of repairs and maintenance that | carrying amount of the assets falls.
will be incurred in relation to individual | |t is estimated that the annual
assets. The current economic climate | gepreciation charge for Assets would
makes it uncertain that the Authority will | jncrease by £4.2m for every year that
be able to sustain its current spending on | \;seful lives had to be reduced.
repairs and maintenance, bringing into
doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

Assets have been valued by the If the asset valuation of all properﬁy

Authority’s external valuers on the basis of plant anq eqylpment were to fall by 1%

a five year rolling valuation programme. In a reductlpn in value of £15.6m would

the current economic climate, the Balance arise. This WOUI.d normally be reversed

Sheet valuation of £1,560m may be to the Revaluation Reserve.

subject to fluctuations. Where revaluation losses exceed
unrealised gains, the net loss would be
charged to the Consolidated Income
and Expenditure Statement and
subsequently written off to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Fair value When the fair values of financial assets The authority uses the discounted

measurements and financial liabilities cannot be cash flow (DCF) model to measure
measured based on quoted prices in the fair value of some of its
active markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), their investment properties and financial
fair value is measured using valuation assets.
techniques (e.g. quoted prices for similar | The significant unobservable inputs
assets or liabilities in active markets or used in the fair value measurement
the discounted cash flow (DCF) model). include management assumptions
Where possible, the inputs to these regarding rent growth, vacancy levels
valuation techniques are based on (for investment properties) and
observable data, but where this is not discount rates — adjusted for regiona|
possible judgement is required in factors (for both investment properties
establishing fair values. These and some financial assets)_
coneiderations such as unoerainty and | SInfcant changes n any of the

. - yan unobservable inputs would result in a
risk. However, changes in the ignificantly lower or higher fair value
assumptions used could affect the fair significanty "9

value of the authority’s assets and measur_ement fqr the _|nvestment
L properties and financial asset
liabilities.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available,

the authority employs relevant experts to

identify the most appropriate valuation

techniques to determine fair value (for

example for investment properties, the

authority’s chief valuation officer and

external valuer).

Information about the valuation

techniques and inputs used in

determining the fair value of the

authority’s assets and liabilities is

disclosed in notes 16 and 18 below.

Provisions The Authority has made a provision of An increase over the forthcoming year
£3.76m for the settlement of insurance of 10% in the value of claims to be
claims based upon an actuarial settled would have the effect of adding
assessment of the current level of £0.376m to the provision required.
liability.

Page 168
49



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Pensions liability Estimation of the net liability to pay | The effects on the net pension’s
pensions depends on a number of | liability of changes in individual
complex judgements relating to the | assumptions can be measured. For
discount rate used, the rate at which | instance, a 0.1% decrease in the
salaries are projected to increase, | discount rate assumption would result
changes in retirement ages, mortality | in anincrease in the pension liability of
rates and expected returns on Pension | £13.3m.

Fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries However, the assumptions interact in
is engaged to provide the Authority with | complex ways. During 2024/25, the
expert advice about the assumptions to be Authority’s actuary advised that
applied. changes in actuarial assumptions
gave rise to a gain of £145.7m offset
by a £88m asset ceiling adjustment,
net £57.7m for future pension deficit
payments. The gain in 2023/24 was
£38.9m. These amounts are taken to
the  Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Arrears At 31 March 2025, the Authority had a | If collection rates were to deteriorate,
gross debtor's balance of £141m | a 25% increase in the amount of the
(£121.4m at 31 March 2024). A review of | impairment of doubtful debts would
significant balances suggested that an | require an additional £16.6m to be set
impairment of doubtful debts of 47% | aside as an allowance.

(£66.2m) was appropriate.

NNDR Appeals At 31 March 2025, the Authority had a | In the event that the outcome of
provision of £2.2m in respect of appeals | appeals increases by 25% than the
which are still outstanding, based the | anticipated percentages this would
settlement of appeals. result in additional cost of £0.55m.

5. Material Items of Income and Expense

On 27 February 2024 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities agreed in principle to
provide the council with £32.5m of support for 2024/25, in the form of a capitalisation direction, to manage
financial pressures via the Exceptional Financial Support framework (EFS).

The Capitalisation Direction permits the Council to charge to capital, expenditure which would otherwise be
revenue expenditure and then to finance the capitalised revenue expenditure from capital resources. The
Council has utilised £30.4m of the capitalisation direction for 2024/25 to fund revenue expenditure from
capital resources.

6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Strategic Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) authorised the Statement of Accounts on 30 June
2025. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events
taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2025, the figures in
the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this
information.

No material post balance sheet events requiring adjustment to the 31st March 2025 balance sheet have
been identified.

Page 169
50



Appendix C

"JUBLUBIE)S SOAISSDY Ul JUBWIBAOI Y} 88S — YYH 8Y} PUB pun4 [eJausc) ay) usemiag aoueleq siy} Jo Hids e 1o .,
‘0L ©JON 998 'SeAIaSaY payieuLes ul JusWwaAoW a8y} sluasaidal siy] ,

v8v'ey ysJe g e adsuejeg 629°8e
VYH pue pun4 jesauas Buiso|n
G680l «IBOA Ul 9oUEleg YyH pue pun4 8¥9's
|elauas) uo JoiaQ 1o sniding sn|d/ssa
629°8¢ soueleg YyH pue pund [eieus Buiuedo 186C¢
zZIe'sy (22¢°2) v6v°L9 (ss8‘01) yoyaq Jo (sniding)|spz s WL's 151°2S (819°G)
(e81°¢52) (869°¢€) 9zv'6l (116'8€2) ainyipuadx3 pue awoodu| 1BUYI0|(6Z1°1£2) (895°22) 0v0°L (106'G12)
S6v°'1L0€ LLELE 8902y 950822 S9DIAIDS JO }SO) 19N |.29°€82 oLe‘se LLL'SY €sz'ore
[T (9¢) 8€9°C (ost'1L) Hg1 paieys-uoN|(veL’L (0462) 91¥'22 (zLL'81)
ovL's 9 yARY £2€'S paleys 82In0gauo|90.L‘9 G8lL'L - 128°S
vLL'EL 188 (619) 225'S syebpng ejelodio) (#19°9 Zre'6l (99t's¢) 1€1'22
10S°L (269°2) (44 0S.°6 $90IN0saY (21512 0612 11€'6 766
we'oze 966'2Z 1£8'8 Y5881 s|doed|yeL 8L 06Z'cl 09€'9 #8089l
180°cS 99Z'z 8G6€0¢ 16102 20e|d|5LE 65 (8zL'9) vZy'ey 6,022
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
S3%8I10 83U} xSjuawysnlpy saseq CERIBEDT »Suawysnlpy saseg
ul ainjipuadxgy Jayjo Bununoooy saouejeg ul ainjipuadx3y B Yy10 Bununoosoy saouejegq
JoN pue Buipun4 VdH pue pung 19N pue Buipun4y  VdH pue pung
uaamjaq |eJaus9 ay} 92IAIBS uaamjaq |eJaua ay}
sjuawysnfpy 03 d|qeabiey) syjuounsnlpy 0} 8jqeabiey)
ainyipuadx3y ainyipuadxy
1N 1N
GZ0Z Y21eN LE — 20T IHdy | $20Z yo1eN LE — €202 IHdy |

‘Juswale)s ainjipuadxg pue swoou| aAIsusyaidwo) ayy ul A|iny aiow
pajussaid si seopoeld Bununoooe pejdeooe Ajjelsusb Jspun 10y pajuNoooe ainjipusdxe pue awoou| ‘sjuswedop/seoiAIaS/Se)RIOJBIIP S,|IoUN0D By} usemiaq sesodind Buiyew uoisioap
1o} pajeoo|je s| ainypuadxa siy} Moy smoys os|e }| “seopoeld Buiunoooe pajdeooe Ajjeseusb yym aouepiodoe ul Sajloyine Aq paules JO PaWNSU0D $82IN0Sal 9SOy} YIm uosuedwod ul
saljuoyIne [eoo] Aq (sejel ssauIsng pue Xej [1ounod ‘syual ‘sjuelb juswuienob) s8oInosal Wolj papuny pue pasn si ainjipuadxa [enuue moy smoys sisAjeuy Buipun4 pue ainyipuadx3 syl

§2/¥z0z siskjeuy Buipung pue aunypuadxy ‘2

§¢/v20Z SIUN0dY JO JuaWalels
Sulianey jo y3noiog uopuo

Page 170

51



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

7a. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2024/25

Adjustments for |Net change for Other Total

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive|Adjustment for | Capital Purposes | the Pensions | Differences | Adjustments
at the Comprehensive Income and Capitalisation (Note 1) Adjustments (Note 3)
Expenditure Statement amounts Directive (Note 2)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Place 30,787 (744) 314 30,357
People 10,637 (2,003) 196 8,830
Resources 0 446 3) 443
Corporate Budgets (30,400) 29,735 (7,068) 7,113 (620)
oneSource Shared 0 420 (2) 418
Non-Shared LBH 2,638 0 (0) 2,638
Net Cost of Services (30,400) 73,797 (8,949) 7,619 42,067
Other income and expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 19,426 19,426
Difference between General Fund
surplus or deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (30,400) 73,797 (8,949) 27,045 61,493
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2023/24

Adjustments for |Net change for Other Total

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive|Adjustment for Capital Purposes | the Pensions Differences | Adjustments
at the Comprehensive Income and Capitalisation (Note 1) Adjustments (Note 3)
Expenditure Statement amounts Directive (Note 2)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Place 43,277 (51) (802) 42,424
People 7,720 (900) (461) 6,360
Resources 8,631 726 21 9,378
Corporate Budgets (18,100) (2,649) (4,873) (9,844) (35,466)
oneSource Shared 0 0 0 0
Non-Shared LBH 22,249 159 9 22,416
Net Cost of Services (18,100) 79,228 (4,938) (11,078) 45,112
Other income and expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 7,040 7,040
Difference between General Fund
surplus or deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (18,100) 79,228 (4,938) (4,038) 52,152
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Page 171
52




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Note 1 Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments for capital purposes — this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains
and losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of
assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for capital financing i.e.
Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from the income and
expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are adjusted for income not
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those
receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with
capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Note 2 Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension
related expenditure and income:

* For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as
allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

« For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined benefit liability
is charged to the CIES.

Note 3 Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises
adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference
between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and business rates that was
projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted
accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in
future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

Page 172
53



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

8. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2023/24 |Expenditure/Income 2024/25
£000 £000
Expenditure
234,346|Employee benefits expenses 249,674
366,923|Other services expenses 433,285
78,806|Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 79,415
28,890|Interest payments 20,599
18,535|Precepts and levies 18,907
(27)|Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool (44)
(6,339)|(Gain)/Loss on the disposal of assets (11,453)
721,134 |Total expenditure 790,383
Income
(125,411)|Fees, charges and other service income (163,330)
(17,436)|Interest and investment income (7,741)
(195,105)[Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (188,070)
(330,937)|Government grants and contributions (382,930)
(668,889)| Total income (742,071)
52,244|Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 48,312

9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding
Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a
description of the reserves against which the adjustments are made.

General Fund Balance: The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts
of an Authority are required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to
be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can
also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the
General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting
practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Authority
is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of
resources that the Authority is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. For
housing authorities the balance is not available to be applied to funding HRA services.

Housing Revenue Account Balance: The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance
reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local authority council
housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is
available to fund future expenditure in connection with the Authority’s landlord function or
(where in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants in future years.

Major Repairs Reserve: The Authority maintains a Major Repairs Reserve (MRR), through
which depreciation on HRA assets is reversed out and applied to the financing of capital
expenditure. The MRR is restricted to being applied to new capital investment in HRA
assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance shows the
extent to which the MRR has yet to be applied at the year end.

Capital Receipts Reserve: The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the
disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than
to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure.
The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these
purposes at the year end.

Capital Grants Unapplied: The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the
grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the Authority has met
the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to
be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital
expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take
place.

Page 173
54



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Usable Reserves

2024125 sl o4
To8| Z23E| 3Rl L8 zel| E=¢
2sSs ® g0 e O T 39 35S EYva
32T 339 S98 288 S58§ &332
0O o Ie<| Cge el ©°5 35¢&

=
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources:

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue|
for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Pensions costs (transferred from the Pensions

Reserve) 8,031 918 (8,949)
Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial (326) 326
Instruments Adjustments Account)
Transfer to negative DSG reserve (19,426) 19,426
Council tax and NNDR (transfers to or from
Collection Fund) (7.114) 714
Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated (180) 180
Absences Reserve)
T.rans.fer of capital funding to finance capitalisation (30,400) 30,400
directive
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in relation to capital
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital (14,497) (50,558) (26,917) 91,972
Adjustment Account
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (63,586) (49,966) 0 0 (26,917) 140,469
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources:
T fer of non- t t sall ds fi

ransfer of non cur'ren assg sale proceeds from 5.484 12,772 (18,256) 0
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve
Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital Receipts (131) 131 0
Reserve)
Payments to the government housing receipts pool
(funded by a transfer from the Capital Receipts 44 (44) 0
Reserve)
Posti f HRA f to th

0§ ing of ' resources from revenue to the 10,655 (10,655) 0
Major Repairs Reserve
Use of Capital Receipts To Repay Debt 1,458| (1,458)

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt
(transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) / 12,189 2,800 (14,989)
HRA Voluntary repayment of debt

Capital expenditure financed from revenue

balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment 6,041 500 (6,541)
Account)
Total Adjust ts bet R d Capital

otal Adjusiments between Revenue and L-apita 23,758 26,506|  (16,711)]  (10,655) o (22,988
|Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources:
Use_ of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 16,600 (16,600)
capital expenditure
Use of t.he Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital 10,673 (10,673)
expenditure
Applicaf[ion of capital grants to finance capital (12,498) 14,201 24,679 (26,382)
expenditure
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources (12,498) 14,201 16,600 10,673 24,679 (53,655)
Total Adjustments (52,326) (9,169) (111) 18 (2,238) 63,826

Page 174
55



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Usable Reserves
2023/24 e 4 -g c
- ‘© o =9 0
cg P25 s&f 53 G%| 3=
TS| %28 =28g x 3 s E%¢8
] o Q ] 5 Q S e [
gad Te<c| Ocfc S 85| 35¢
] = S =
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments to the Revenue Resources:
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different from
revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred from the Pensions 4153 785 (4,938)
Reserve)
Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial 329 (329)
Instruments Adjustments Account)
Transfer to negative DSG reserve (7,038) 7,038
Council tax and NNDR (transfers to or from
Collection Fund) 2,481 (2,481)
Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated
Absences Reserve) (330) (14) 344
T.rans.fer of capital funding to finance capitalisation (18.100) 18,100
directive
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in relation to capital
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital (7.102) (61,330) (23,143) 91,575
Adjustment Account
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (25,936) (60,230) 0 0 (23,143) 109,309
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources:
Transfer of non-current assgt sale proceeds from 2,458 11,604 (14,063) 1
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve
Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital Receipts (86) 86 0
Reserve)
Payments to the government housing receipts pool
(funded by a transfer from the Capital Receipts 0
Reserve)
Po§tlng of HRA resources from revenue to the 10,426 (10,426) 0
IMajor Repairs Reserve
Use of Capital Receipts To Repay Debt 154 (154),
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt
(transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) 6.177 (6.177)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue
balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment 1,934 500 (2,434)
Account)
Total Adjust ts bet R d Capital
|R° a Adjusiments between Revenue and Lapifia 10,569 22,444| (13,823)|  (10,426) ol (8764
esources
Adjustments to Capital Resources:
Use. of the Capltal Receipts Reserve to finance 45,646 (45,646)
capital expenditure
Use of t.he Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital 6,095 (6,095)
expenditure
Applica?ion of capital grants to finance capital (4,060) 5,061 23.730 (24.731)
expenditure
Cash payments in relation to deferred capital 0
receipts
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources (4,060) 5,061 45,646 6,095 23,730 (76,472)
Total Adjustments (19,427) (32,725) 31,823 (4,331) 587 24,073

Page 175
56



London Borough of Havering A p p e n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
10. Movements in Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance as earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet
General Fund expenditure in 2024/25. The movement on HRA earmarked reserves and schools balances is
also shown in this note.

ﬁ Q oo ﬁ I oo ﬁ 4

§7 | E28 | 2 | g8 | 5%

s ™ = = © = = P

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund Earmarked Reserves
Corporate Transformation reserve 118 (42) 76 (57) 19
Business Risk reserve 8,005 (2,713) 5,292 158 5,450
Provision for future IT Digital ) . ) 3,500 3,500
Homes for Ukraine ; . ; 2,519 2,519
Business Rates reserve 3,248 (362) 2,886 (18) 2,868
Regeneration 1,325 (347) 978 (489) 489
ICT Refresh 600 1,043 1,643 R 1,643
OneSource reserve 1,489 (612) 877 (122) 755
Insurance reserve 4,952 _ 4,952 (164) 4,788
Reserves for future capital schemes 6,021 1,074 7,095 (1,183) 5,912
Legal reserve 179 _ 179 _ 179
Crematorium and Cemetery reserves 659 (66) 593 (60) 533
Children's reserve 696 262 958 591 1,549
Public Health reserve 2,839 (533) 2,306 (156) 2,150
Adults Social Care Reserve 2,193 (369) 1,824 (692) 1,132
Whole life costing Transport Fleet reserve 300 (86) 214 (25) 189
Emergency assistance scheme 1,587 538 2,125 _ 2,125
Other reserves 7,078 (3,688) 3,390 860 4,250
Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves 41,289 (5,901) 35,388 4,662 40,050
Housing Revenue Account Earmarked
Reserves
HRA Major works 3,021 2,178 5,199 B 5,199
HRA Reserve for Future Capital - - - 257 257
Total Housing Revenue Account 3,021 2,178 5,199 257 5,456
Earmarked Reserve
Schools Balances
General Balances 956 1 957 (431) 526
Schools Balances 4,568 (2,019) 2,549 (2,160) 389
Centrally held schools balances (Note 34) 0 . 0 . 0
Total Schools Balances 5,524 (2,018) 3,506 (2,591) 915
Total Earmarked Reserves 49,834 (5,741) 44,093 2,328 46,421

In previous years this note shows combined reserve balances.

Page 176
57



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

General Fund Earmarked Reserves

Corporate Transformation and oneSource Reserves — These reserves will continue to be used to fund strategic
projects and the transformation agenda.

Business Risk Reserve — After a strategic review of the earmarked reserves, the Senior Leadership Team de-
committed various other earmarked reserves and reprioritised the funds to the Business Risk Reserve.

Provision for future IT Digital - This reserve has been set up to fund IT projects to enhance the Councils digital offer
and improve long term efficiencies in working practices.

Homes for Ukraine - This reserve has been set up to finance the Council's ongoing support to Ukrainian refugees.
The reserve is financed from unallocated and un-ringfenced grant funding from the Government in support of this
project.

Regeneration Reserve — This is earmarked for the Council's masterplan regeneration projects across the borough,
including the Romford masterplan.

ICT Refresh — This has been earmarked for the Council's Transitional Shift in operating models.

oneSource Reserve — This is earmarked to contribute to future projects and service improvement across all
oneSource services.

Insurance Reserve — In accordance with the Accounting Code of Practice, the Authority’s insurance fund has been
split between a provision for liabilities which are likely to be incurred and a reserve for possible future liabilities that are
“incurred but not reported” at this stage.

Reserves for future Capital Schemes — These reserves are set aside for capital schemes where expenditure has yet
to be incurred. The reserves are a mixture of revenue contributions, internal leasing arrangements and various invest
to save schemes.

Legal Reserve — This reserve provides funding for legal cases.

Crematorium and Cemetery Funds — These funds have existed for many years to maintain cemeteries and to help
finance improvements at the crematorium. They consist of a fund created by fees, and a Cemetery Memorial Fund.

Children's Reserve — This is to contribute towards the funding of projects within children services.

Public Health Reserve — This reserve arose out of a transfer of Primary Care Trust funding for Drugs and Alcohol
Action Team services and underspends against the Public Health grant. The intention is to use the reserve for Public
Health initiatives.

Social Care Reserve — This is additional contribution to the pooled Better Care Fund by the Clinical Commissioning
Group, which will be used on joint social care and health projects between the Local Authority and the Clinical
Commissioning Group.

Whole Life Costing Vehicle Fleet Reserve — This reserve funds whole life costing in the vehicle and plant system.

Emergency Assistance Scheme - The EAS is for assistance for extreme hardship in emergency situations. It is for
vulnerable residents and customers experiencing hardship or In need of support.

Other Reserves — This encompasses a range of several smaller reserves including Health and Safety reserve, Local
Plan and liberty protection safeguards.

HRA Earmarked Reserves

HRA Major Works - This is a reserve to fund major works in the HRA Capital Programme.

HRA Reserve for Future Capital - Reserve for HRA future capital expenditure.

Schools Balances

General Balances — This is income that has accumulated over a number of years from schools buying back services
from the Authority. The funds are being reinvested back into the development of support services provided to schools.

Schools Balances — These are balances that have been allocated to schools and are carried forward to the following
financial year.

Centrally Held Schools Balances — The Authority’s expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the
Department for Education, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for
2024/25 are shown at Note 34. An overdrawn balance on the DSG account of £19.4m has been transferred to a
unusable negative reserve in accordance with guidance to separate the balance from the Council General Fund.

Page 177
58



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

11. Other Operating Expenditure

Appendix C

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
18,535|Levies 18,907
(27)|Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool (44)
(6,339)|(Gain) / Loss on the disposal of non-current assets (11,453)
12,169 |Total 7,410
12. Financing And Investment Income And Expenditure
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
12,051 |Interest payable and similar charges 16,456
6,230 |Pensions net interest on the net defined benefit liability 4,143
(6,827)[Interest receivable and similar income (7,741)
(4,072)|Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties (note 16a) (4,472)
203 |Changes in the fair value of investment properties 1,192
7,585|Total 9,578
13.Taxation And Non-Specific Grant Income
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(149,959)|Council tax income (157,049)
(45,146)|National non-domestic rates income ' (47,329)
(31,933)[Non ring-fenced government grants (37,172)
(24,146)|Capital grants and contributions (28,621)
(251,185)| Total (270,171)

"includes s31 Government grant included within NNDR income to fund NNDR reliefs

Page 178
59



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in Balances 2024/25

) 1}
[}
£ T £ al o g
3 s s 2 S| 8 g5 5
3 ° - > I ° .0 o =
a £ o “ 0§ = < 5% °v §
—_ o)) [7: 3 7 =1 = c
3 42| @35E 2 g 0 £ &g E
e 55| S£8 E 3 3 B =8
3| £3| 553 §| 5| 88 °52
o om > o o (7] <O Fow
Gross Book Value £000 £000 £000 £000| £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2024 689,261 616,339 40,652| 4,978 1,738 60,267 1,413,235
Additions 54,065 12,361 4,576 445 0 28,149 99,596
Revaluation
increases/(decreases) to :
Revaluation Reserve (3,178)|  (10,556) 0 0 0 0 (13,734)
Revaluation gains to the CI&ES (30,398) (7,997) 0 0 0 0 (38,395)
Derecognition - Disposals (5,097) (145) (5,523) 0 0 0 (10,765)
Derecogpnition - other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications & Transfers 0 7,344 0 0 0 (8,929) (1,585)
At 31 March 2025 704,653 617,346 39,705 5,423| 1,738 79,487 1,448,352
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 31 March 2024 0 1,322 16,232 579 0 0 18,133
Depreciation Charge 10,365 7,136 6,988 88 0 0 24,577
Depreciation written out upon
Revaluation:
Revaluation Reserve (10,365) (6,253) 0 0 0 0 (16,618)
CI&ES 0 (908) 0 0 0 0 (908)
Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 (5,523) 0 0 0 (5,523)
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2025 0 1,297 17,697 667 0 0 19,661
Net book value at 31 March 2025 704,653 616,049 22,008| 4,756 1,738 79,487 1,428,691
Net book value at 31 March 2024 689,261 615,017 24,420| 4,399 1,738 60,267 1,395,102

Page 179
60



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in Balances 2023/24

[7]
& ®©
c kel - [7] n -
= s ST 2 © ® c E.
: T 25« z 4 T g 2 =
a s o ) S e < 586 °T §
T JE| 22§ g E 2 E S5 E
| BZ| S53 5| Bl 3F @ E:i:
3] da|l S&d4 o @ <0 Faw
Gross Book Value / NBV £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2023 681,311 633,965 26,930 4,039 2,144 85,016 1,433,405
Additions 60,519 6,914 13,722 0 0 22,263 103,418
Revaluation increases/(decreases) to
Revaluation Reserve (34,445) (28,187) 0 939| (201) 0 (61,894)
Revaluation gains to the CI&ES (50,278) (3,942) 0 0 0 0 (54,220)
Derecognition - Disposals (6,816) (454) 0 0| (205) 0 (7,475)
Derecognition - other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications & Transfers 38,970 8,043 0 0 0 (47,012) 1
At 31 March 2024 689,261 616,339 40,652 4,978 1,738 60,267 1,413,235
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 31 March 2023 0 1,190 10,796 491 0 0 12,477
Depreciation Charge 10,231 7,043 5,436 88 3 0 22,801
Depreciation written out upon
Revaluation:
Revaluation Reserve (5,299) (6,321) 0 0 0 0 (11,620)
Cl &ES (4,932) (572) 0 0 0 0 (5,504)
Derecognition - Disposals 0 (18) 0 0 (3) 0 (21)
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2024 0 1,322 16,232 579 0 0 18,133
Net book value at 31 March 2024 689,261 615,017 24,420 4,399| 1,738 60,267 1,395,102
Net book value at 31 March 2023 681,311 632,775 16,134 3,548 2,144 85,016 1,420,928

Page 180
61



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

14a. Highways Infrastructure Assets

In accordance with the temporary relief offered by the Update to the Code on infrastructure assets this
note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets
because historical reporting practices and resultant information deficits mean that this would not
faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial statements.

The authority has chosen not to disclose this information as the previously reported practices and
resultant information deficits mean that gross cost and accumulated depreciation are not measured
accurately and would not provide the basis for the users of the financial statements to take economic or
other decisions relating to infrastructure assets.

Movement on Balances

2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000
Net Book Value (modified historical cost)
at 1 April 127,430 130,029
Additions 9,599 7,140
Derecognition 0 0
Depreciation (7,000) (7,560)
Impairment 0 0
Oher Movement in Costs 0 0
at 31 March 130,029 129,609

Reconciliation of Highways and Other PPE assets to Balance Sheet figure

31 March 31 March

2024 2025
£000 £000
Net Book Value (modified historical cost)
Infrastructure Asset 130,029 129,609
Other PPE Assets 1,395,102| 1,428,691
Total PPE Assets 1,525,131 1,558,300

The authority has determined in accordance with Regulation 30M of the Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting) (England/Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2022 that the carrying amounts to
be derecognised for infrastructure assets when there is replacement expenditure is nil.

Page 181
62



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

14b. Property, Plant & Equipment continued

Capital Commitments

Estimated future capital commitments are shown below. Payment for these schemes will be incurred in

2025/26.

31 March 31 March
2024 2025
£000 £000

General Fund
955(Arts, culture, sport and leisure 935
9,701|Roads, footways and bridges 10,797
23,323|Education capital schemes 17,834
128,335|Town centre and environmental Improvements 116,793
33,143|Office accommodation, equipment, ICT and vehicles 15,516
5,704|Other smaller General Fund schemes 2,562
201,161 | Total General Fund commitments 164,437
147,509|Housing Revenue Account 234,852
348,670 | Total commitments 399,289

Revaluations

The following statement shows the progress of the Authority’s rolling programme for the revaluation of fixed assets. The valuations
are reviewed in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes issued by the Assets Valuation
Standards Committee of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The basis for valuation is set out in the statement of
accounting policies. Valuations are carried out by our external valuers, Wilks Head and Eve, and by the Authority’s Property

Strategy Manager on the basis of a five year rolling programme; the most recent of which was carried out on 31 March 2025.

» og E

=) o
£ T - 3 o ~
3 § |82 e < ol 5c £s
2 o - 3 > ol ©2e o £
a € ol .o & 3] = < I 2o
— S o|ln = @ =] < = o5
S - (o 3 g_ ..3 » g a 0 5 o =

— o = - = - -
2 22|53 23 g Bl 3¢ 5%
o Sa|>Cuw £< o | <O L&
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000( £000| £000 £000
Carried at historical cost - - 22,008] 129,609 4,756 - 79,487 235,860

Valued at fair value as at:

31 March 2025 704,653 564,198 - - - 1,738 - 1,270,589
31 March 2024 - 18,807 - - - - - 18,807
31 March 2023 - 10,359 - - - - - 10,359
31 March 2022 - 8,468 - - - - - 8,468
31 March 2021 - 14,217 - - - - - 14,217
Total cost or valuation 704,653 616,049 22,008 129,609| 4,756 1,738| 79,487 1,558,300

Page 182
63



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

15. Heritage Assets

Carrying value of heritage assets held by the Authority

Cost or Valuation Heritage
Civic Regalia Buildings| Total Assets
£'000 £'000 £'000
31 March 2020 110 22 132
Depreciation 0 (1) (1)
Revaluation 0 2,150 2,150
Transfers 0 38 38
31 March 2021 110 2,209 2,319
Depreciation 0 95 95
Revaluation 0 (27) (27)
31 March 2022 110 2,277 2,387
Additions 0 4 4
Depreciation 0 (29) (29)
Revaluation 0 0 0
31 March 2023 110 2,252 2,362
Additions 0 17 17
Depreciation 0 (29) (29)
31 March 2024 110 2,240 2,350
Additions 0 727 727
Depreciation 0 (29) (29)
Transfers from Property, Plant & Equipment 0 1,584 1,584
31 March 2025 110 4,522 4,632

The transfer from Property, Plant & Equipment in 2024/25 relates to construction costs relating to
Upminster Windmill.

16. Investment Properties and Joint Ventures Investment

a) The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
4,627 |Rental income from investment property 4,711
(555)|Direct operating expenses arising from investment property (239)
4,072 |Net gain 4,472

There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or
b) The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year.

2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000
48,124 (Opening Balance 47,921

(203)|Revaluation gains/(loss) from fair value adjustment (1,192)

0 |Disposal of investment properties 0
47,921 | Balance at the end of the year 46,729

The valuation of the Authority's investment property portfolio in 2024/25 was undertaken by Wilks Head &
Eve who provide specialist valuations advice and who have extensive experience in the property sector.

c) Investment Properties within the group balances

Mercury Land Holding own £63.364m of investment properties on an open market value for existing use
basis.

All properties in wholly owned subsidiaries are recorded in the group balance sheet within PPE and
Investment Property, as follows

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
54,772 |Mercury Land Holdings (Investment Properties) 63,364
32,642 (Bridge Close LLP 36,863
0 |Rainham & Beam Park LLP 2,357
87,414 | Balance at the end of the year 102,584

In addition the Council has a 50% stake of £29.6m of properties under construction in the
Havering & Wates Regeneration LLP.

Page 183
64



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Fair Value Hierarchy

Details of the authority's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31

Appendix C

March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

31st March 2025

Recurring fair value

Quoted prices in

Other significant

Significant

Fair value as

measurements using: active markets observable unobservable | at 31 March
for identical inputs (Level 2) |inputs (Level 3) 2025
assets (Level 1)

£000 £000 £000 £000
Office units 0 3,841 0 3,841
Commercial Units 0 34,094 0 34,094
Land 0 8,448 0 8,448
Misc 0 346 0 346
Total 0 46,729 0 46,729
31st March 2024 Comparative Figures
Recurring fair value Quoted prices in | Other significant| Significant |Fair value as
measurements using: active markets observable unobservable | at 31 March

for identical inputs (Level 2) |inputs (Level 3) 2024
assets (Level 1)

£000 £000 £000 £000
Office units 0 3,490 0 3,490
Commercial Units 0 35,803 0 35,803
Land 0 8,282 0 8,282
Misc 0 346 0 346
Total 0 47,921 0 47,921

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels during the year.

Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the
asset has been used.

Valuation Techniques
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties.
Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The fair value of the authority’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date. All
valuations are carried out externally, in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation
set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The authority’s
valuation experts work closely with property services and the capital finance manager reporting directly
to the chief financial officer on a regular basis regarding all valuation matters.

Group Investment Properties
In addition, Mercury Land Holding held £63.4m of level 2 investment properties. These were
predominantly for residential property purposes.

d) Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

The group consists of the Council, subsidiaries; Mercury Land Holdings, Bridge Close LLP, Rainham &
Beam Park LLP and Havering and Wates Regeneration LLP joint venture. The table below shows the
Council holding in these subsidiaries and the principal business activity.

Name Country of Class of shares Holding Principal activity
incorporation
Mercury Land England Ordinary 100% Development of the building
Holdings project
Bridge Close England Ordinary 100% Development of the building
LLP project
Rainham & England Ordinary 100% Development of the building
Beam Park project
LLP

The Council bought out the other 50% share of Rainham & Beam Park in 2024/25 for £1 plus provided
£140,000 additional loan financing to the scheme.

Page 184
65




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Joint Ventures
The following is a Council joint venture:

Name Corporation of Class of Holding Principal activity
incorporation shares
Havering & England Ordinary 50% Development of the
Wates building project
Regeneration
LLP

A summary of movements in Council investments in subsidiary and joint ventures is as follows:

2023/24 Investments in subsidiary companies and Joint 2024/25
£000 Ventures: £000
33,748 |Opening Balance 35,562
1,814 |Additions 9,224
35,562 |Closing Balance 44,786

17. Intangible Assets

The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

The maximum life attributed to software assets is currently five years on the grounds that it is a

reasonable estimate of the life of computer systems and is the life applied to computer hardware for
depreciation purposes.

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2023/24|Intangible fixed assets software and system development 2024/25
£000 £000
1,848 |Gross carrying amounts 1,848
(1,636)|Less accumulated amortisation (1,692)
212 |Net carrying amount at start of year 156

0 |additions 1,275
(56)|Less amortisation for the period (56)
156|Net carrying amount at end of year 1,375

Comprising:

1,848|Gross carrying amounts 3,123
(1,692)|Less accumulated amortisation (1,748)

Page 185
66



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

18. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Instruments - Classification

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and
government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Authority and can be
represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange
financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Authority.

The Authority’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and
comprised:

e long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders
® short-term loans from other local authorities or public sector bodies

e trade payables for goods and services received

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Authority that is represented by cash
or other instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset. The financial assets
held by the Authority during the year are held under the following classifications. Financial assets are
classified into one of three categories. Financial assets held at amortised cost. Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). Other than loans and
investments with subsidiaries where the Council bought out the other share of a joint venture (these are held
at FVTPL), all the other Authority's financial assets have been assessed to be held at amortised cost; these
represent loans and loan-type arrangements where repayments or interest and principal takes place on set
dates and at specified amounts. Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated for amortised cost
assets, applying the expected credit losses (ECL) model. Changes in loss allowances (including balances
outstanding at the dates of derecognition of an asset) are debited / credited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure lines in the CIES.

Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an
active market) comprising:

® cashinhand

®  bank current and deposit accounts

e fixed term deposits and reverse repurchase agreements with banks and building societies
®  loans to other local authorities

e loans to small companies

e trade receivables for goods and services delivered

Page 186
67



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

(b) Financial Instruments - Balances

Appendix C

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

31 March 2024 Financial Liabilities 31 March 2025
Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term
£000 £000 £000 £000
Loans at amortised cost:
PWLB
425,124 - Principal borrowed 303,096 297,029
1,199 | - Accrued interest 2,217
Market Loan
7,000 - Principal borrowed 7,000
106 | - Accrued interest 107
Other Loans
265 20,000 | - Principal borrowed 472
405 | - Accrued interest 2
432,389 21,710( Total borrowing * 310,568 299,355
Liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade payables
57,357 | - Trade Creditors 63,690
0 57,357 | Included in creditors 0 63,690
432,389 79,067 | Total financial liabilities 310,568 363,045

* The total short-term borrowing includes £2.324m (2023/24: £1.305m) representing accrued interest on long-
term borrowing (PWLB £2.2m & LOBO Market Loan £107k)

Page 187
68




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The Authorities financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

31 March 2024 Financial Assets 31 March 2025
Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term | Short-Term
£000 £000 £000 £000
At Amortised Cost
32,877 50,000 | - Principal at amortised cost 41,928 75,000
394 | - Accrued interest 1,018
At Fair Value Through Profit & Loss
2,685 - Investment in subsidiary 2,858
35,562 50,394 | Total Investments * 44,786 76,018
6,768 | - Cash (including bank accounts) 12,124
21,000 | - Cash equivalents at amortised cost 42,000
0 27,768 | Total cash and cash equivalents 0 54,124
10,948 - Amortised cost soft loans to group entities 13,054
43,994 - Amortised cost other loans to group entities 38,517
11,444 - Fair Value Through P&L - other loans to group entities 12,959
45,026 | - Trade receivables 56,613
66,386 45,026 | Included in debtors 64,530 56,613
101,948 123,188 | Total financial assets 109,316 186,755

Page 188
69



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The financial assets disclosed in the Group Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

31 March 2024 Financial Assets 31 March 2025

Long-Term| Short-Term Long-Term| Short-Term
£000 £000 £000 £000
50,000 |- Principal at amortised cost 75,000

394 |- Accrued interest 1,018

0 50,394 [Total investments 0 76,018
7,343 [-  Cash (including bank accounts) 12,808

21,000 |- Cash equivalents at amortised cost 42,000

0 28,343 |Total cash and cash equivalents 0 54,808

47 45,026 |- Trade receivables 69 48,701
47 45,026 |Included in debtors 69 48,701

47 123,763 |Total financial assets 69 179,527

Page 189
70



Appendix C

Z1 8J0U 0} 8|10U0DBI 0} PAPNJOUL INQ SJUSWINISU] [eloUBUl JON

8156 (08z°¢) (7)) evL'y 9591 Jeak ay} 1o} (ssoj) uteb jJaN
€98 (08z‘c) 0 evL'y 0 » 8WodU| dAIsuayaidwo) JayjQ ul Joedu)
VLY [NA% }SaJaju| }oN suoisuad
(22%'b) (229" sajpadoud
vy cry juswisaAul 0} Bunelal ainjipuadxa pue awoou|
4" 26L°1L salpadoud Juswisaaul Jo anjea ul sabueyn
(579))] 0 (579))] 0 0 2WODUI JUBWISAAUI PUE JSBIBJU|
0 0 an|eA Jlej Ul sasealou|
(Lv2'2) (X7)) awooUl }saI9jU|
9sv'9lL 0 0 0 9sv'9lL safueyo Jejiwis pue djqehed jsaidu)
9S1'9l 96191 asuadxa }saiau|
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
S3%I0
wm_%__w :m_zmoh_._« 109 pasiowy ybnoayy ww.w%%&
|ejoL BA 1124 anjep Jieq pesh v
GZiveoe s)}assy |eloueulq saljjigel |eloueulq

1SMO||0} SB 9J9M GZ/PZ0T Ul S9SSO| pue sujes

$9SS07 pue suleo - sjuawinijsuj [eroueuly (2)

Pagé 190

§2/20T SIUN0JJY JO JUdWILe]S

Suianey jo ySnoiog uopuoq



Appendix C

Z1 8)0U 0} 8|10U0DaI 0} PAPNJOUL INQ SJUSWINIISU] [eloUBUl JON

G8G‘L (698°¢) (2289) 0€Z‘9 15021 J1eak ayj 1oy (ssof) ureb JoN
19¢C (698°‘c) 0 0€Z‘9 0 » dwoou| aAIsuayasdwon 1ayjQ ul }oedwy
0€2'9 0€2'9 1S8I8)U| JON Suoisuad
(220 (220'%) saluadoud
cLow cLoy Juswisanul 0} Bunjejal ainjipuadxe pue awoou|
€0¢ €0¢ saluadoud JuswisaAul Jo anjea ul sebuey)
(228'9) 0 (228'9) 0 0 2WOdU| JUBWISDAUL PUR JSBIBU|
0 an[eA Jiey ul sesealou|
(£28'9) (228'9) awooul }saleu|
15021 0 0 0 15021 sabueyo sejiwis pue ajqeked jsaiaju|
[Kelo i [Kelolrd ! asuadxa jsala)u]
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
$3%2190 ybnoayy 1509 pasiowy $3%810 ybnouyy 3s0)
anjep Jieq anjep Jieq pasiowy
lejol
veiezoe S)assy |eloueuly sapljiqeln jeloueul

:swia)l BUIMO||04 BU JO 1SISUOD SjUBWINIISUI

[BIOUBUL 0} UOIJE[) Ul JUBWSe)S ainjipuadxg pue awoou| aAIsusyaidwo) ay) Ul pasiubooal sasso| pue suled ay

1SMO||0} SB dJ9M HZ/SZ0T Ul S9SSO| pue sujes

§2/¥T0T SIUN0IY JO JuUdWders
Suianey jo ySnoiog uopuoq

Page 191



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
(d) Financial Instruments - Fair Values

Financial assets classified as available for use are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most
assets, including bonds the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair values of other instruments
have been estimated calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows as at 31 March
2024. LINK, the Council's adviser have provided the fair value calculations.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non-derivative financial liabilities are carried in the
Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value
of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31 March 2025, using the following methods and assumptions:

® The value of “Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been calculated using the
PWLB new market loan discount rate. This involves using level two inputs.

¢ The fair values of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans are calculated using the premature
repayment rate published by the PWLB at 31st March 2025.

L]
No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument;

® The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount.

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:

® Level 1 —fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities, e.g. bond prices;

® Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments;

® Level 3 —fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow

forecasts or estimated creditworthiness;

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Balance Fair Balance
Fair Value Value Fair Value
Sheet Sheet
Level
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
425,124 342,994 | - Loans from PWLB 600,125 530,062
7,000 5,146 | -  Long-term LOBO loans 7,000 6,646
265 265 |-  Other long-term loans 472 472
20,000 20,000 | - Other Short-term loans 0 0
1,710 1,710 | - Accrued interest 2,326 2,326
454,099 370,115 |Total 609,923 539,506
57.357 57,357 L!ab|I|t|es for which fair value is not 63,690 63,690
disclosed
511,456 427,472 |Total Financial Liabilities 673,613 603,196

Page 192
73



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

31 March 2024 Fair 31 March 2025
Balance Fair Value Value Balance Fair Value
Sheet Sheet
Level
£000 £000 £000 £000
Recorded on balance sheet as:
57,357 57,357 | - Short-term creditors 63,690 63,690
21,710 21,710 | - Short-term borrowing 299,356 302,493
432,389 348,405 | - Long-term borrowing 310,568 237,013
511,457 427,472 | Total Financial Liabilities 673,614 603,196

The fair value of short-term financial liabilities including trade payables is assumed to approximate to the carrying

amount.

The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying amount because
the Authority’s portfolio of loans include a number of loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the current
rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date.

31 March 2024 i 31 March 2025
Balance . Fair Balance .
Sheet Fair Value Value Sheet Fair Value
Level
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets held at amortised cost:
32,877 32,877 \;entu:r;\;estments in Subsidiaries/Joint 3 41,928 41,928
54,942 54,942| - Long-term other loans 2 51,571 51,571
50,394 50,394 | - Short-term loans to local authorities 2 76,018 76,018
Financial assets held at fair value through profit
& Loss:
2,685 2,685| - Investments in Subsidiary 3 2,858 2,858
11,444 11,444( - Long-term loans to group entities 3 12,959 12,959
Cash and Cash equivalents
6,768 6,768 | - Cash amortised cost 12,124 12,124
21,000 21,000 | - Cash equivalents at amortised cost 42,000 42,000
180,110 180,110 | Total 239,458 239,458
45,026 45,026 | Assets for which fair value is not disclosed * 56,613 56,613
225,136 225,136 | Total Financial Assets 296,071 296,071
Recorded on balance sheet as:
33,106 33,106] - Long-term investments in subsidiaries 44,786 44,786
2,456 2,456| - Long-term Investments in joint venture 0 0
66,386 66,386/ - Long-term debtors 64,530 64,530
45,026 45,026/ - Short-term debtors 56,613 56,613
50,394 50,394 | - Short-term investments 76,018 76,018
27,768 27,768| - Cash and cash equivalents 54,124 54,124
225,136 225,136 |Total Financial Assets 296,071 296,071

The fair value of short-term financial assets including trade receivables is assumed to approximate to the carrying

amount.

Page 193
74




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

(e) Financial Instruments - Risks

The Authority has adopted CIPFA’'s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent
amendments) and complies with The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Authority approves a Treasury Management
Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the
management of risks associated with financial instruments. The Authority also produces Treasury
Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with the
Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government Investments. This Guidance
emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Authority’s Treasury
Management Strategy and its Treasury Management Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of
return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity.

The main risks covered are:

e Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its contractual
obligations, causing a loss to the Authority.

® [Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Authority might not have the cash available to make contracted
payments on time.

e Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in
market variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

® Re-financing Risk: The possibility that the Authority might be requiring, to renew a financial instrument
on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.

Credit Risk: Investments

The Authority manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with organisations of high
credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include commercial entities with a
minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without
credit ratings upon which the Authority has received independent investment advice. Recognising that credit
ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Authority has regard to other measures including credit default
swap and equity prices when selecting commercial entities for investment.

A limit of 10% of the total portfolio is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single
counterparty (other than the UK government). The Authority also sets limits on investments in certain sectors.

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies
of £70.0m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or
repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is
rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of non recovery applies to all of the
Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2025 that this was likely to crystallise.

Page 194
75



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The Annual Investment Strategy (details of which are available on the Council's web site) requires the
Authority to maintain a counterparty list that follows the criteria set out in the Treasury Management
Practices. Creditworthiness is assessed by the use of credit rating provided by Fitch, Moody's, and
Standard and Poor ratings to assess an institution's long and short-term financial strength. Other
information provided by Brokers, Advisers, and Financial and Economic reports is also collated and
assessed to produce rating parameters to monitor each individual institution. Credit watches and outlooks
from credit rating agencies, credit default to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings and
sovereign ratings. Only highly quality rated counterparties are included on the lending list.

Local authorities shall not recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset where
the counterparties for a financial asset is central government or a local authority for which relevant statutory
provision prevent default.

The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Authority’s investment portfolio by credit rating
for investments outside the Council's group:

31 March 2024 Credit Rating 31 March 2025
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
£000 £000 £000 £000
0 [AAA 0 0
0 0 [AA+ 0 0
0 21,000 [AA 0 37,000
0 0 [AA- 0 0
0 0 (A+ 0 0
0 0 (A 0 0
0 0 [A- 0 0
0 50,000 [Unrated local authorities & police 0 80,000
0 0 |Unrated Corporate Bonds 0 0
0 71,000 [Total Investments 0 117,000

Credit Risk: Receivables

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

e revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority;

e revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority;

e most accruals are automatically generated by the feeder system concerned, but a de minimis is applied
in respect of accruals raised manually unless material to grant funding streams or to individual budgets. The
de minimis for 2024/25 is £50,000.

The Authority’s credit risk on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of the assets leased,
which can be repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease contract.

The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure credit risk, based on the

experience gathered over the last five financial years on the level of default on trade debtors, adjusted for
current market conditions. Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included.

Page 195
76



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

Credit risk Average % Average % Credit risk
Gross
exposure default based | default based exposure
balance of
debtors on past on current
31 March 2024 experience experience 31 March 2025
£000 £000 % % £000
0| Capital 2,839 0 0 0
8,808 | Housing 14,195 63 80 11,376
1,322 | Social Services 19,251 13 22 4,203
18,575 | Parking 24,860 92 92 22,962
0 | Other local authorities 2,531 0 0 0
0 | Health authorities 6,725 0 0 0
5,321 | Other sundry debtors 19,978 21 16 3,137
34,026 |Total 90,379 41 46 41,678
Liquidity Risk

The Authority has ready access to borrowings from the Public Works Loan Board, other local authorities,
banks and corporates. There is no perceived significant risk that the Authority will be unable to raise finance
to meet its commitments. It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance a significant
proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates.

Refinancing Risk

The Authority approved Treasury and investment strategies are set to avoid the risk of refinancing on
unfavourable terms. The treasury team address the operation risks within approved parameters.

The maturity analysis of the principal sums borrowed is as follows:

31 March 2024 |Time to maturity 31 March 2025
£000|(years) £000
138,100 [Not over 1 297,029
4,029 (Over 1 but not over 2 16,525
52,512 [Over 2 but not over 5 52,512
82,624 [Over 5 but not over 10 66,099
30,000 [Over 10 but not over 20 30,000
165 [Over 20 but not over 30 0
32,959 [Over 30 but not over 40 32,960
105,000 |Over 40 105,000
7,000 |Uncertain date 7,472
452,389 (Total 607,597

The Authority has £7m of “Lender’s option, borrower’s option” (LOBO) loans where the lender has the option
to propose an increase in the rate payable; the Authority will then have the option to accept the new rate or
repay the loan without penalty.

Market Risks: Interest Rate Risk

The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and

investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in
interest rates would have the following effects:

® borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense will rise

e borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall
® investments at variable rates — the interest income credited will rise

e investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall

Page 196
77



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Investments classed as “loans and receivables” and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so
changes in their fair value will have no impact on income and expenditure. However, changes in interest
payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services. The Authority has an active strategy for assessing interest rate
exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget
quarterly during the year.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would

be:
2024/25
£000
Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 0
Impact on comprehensive income and expenditure 0
Decrease in fair value of loans and receivables * 0
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities * (25,386)

* Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gain and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not
impact on comprehensive income and expenditure.

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements
reversed.

Page 197
78



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

19. Debtors

Appendix C

Short-Term Debtors

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 £000
Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net
Allowance Allowance

Collection Fund Debtors

20,899 (13,703)|* 7,196(Council Tax payers 23,376 (16,906) 6,470

853 (569)|* 284|Business Rate payers 1,267 (483) 784

Other Debtors

10,914 o|* 10,914|Government departments 9,112 0 9,112

2,543 0 2,543|Capital 2,839 0 2,839

14,309 (8,808) 5,501[Housing 14,195 (11,376) 2,819

8,695 (7.439) 1,256|Housing Benefit 8,920 (7,159) 1,761

16,029 (1,322) 14,707|Social Services 19,251 (4,203) 15,048

20,102 (18,575) 1,527|Parking Enforcement 24,860 (22,962) 1,898

968 0 968|Other local authorities 2,531 0 2,531

531 0 531|Health authorities 6,725 0 6,725

4,607 0 4,607|Mercury Land Holdings 7,912 0 7,912

20,912 (6,270) 14,642|Other sundry debtors 19,978 (3,137) 16,841

121,362 (56,686) 64,676|Total Short-Term debtors 140,966 (66,226) 74,740

* These debtors are not included in Note 18(b), Financial Instruments (balances), as they do not meet the definition of a

financial asset.

Government departments, capital, and other local authorities do not have an impairment allowance applied.

Debtors for Local Taxation

The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-domestic rates) can be analysed by age as

follows:

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 Age of Debtors £000

5,788|Less than 1 year 6,756
3,575|Between 1 and 2 years 4,111
2,740(Between 2 and 3 years 2,915

9,649|More than 3 years 10,861
21,752|Balance at end of the year 24,643

Long-Term Debtors

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 £000
31,920{Mercury Land Holdings 30,254
20,655|Havering and Wates Regeneration LLP JV 18,157
13,768|Bridge Close LLP 16,050
43|Other 69
66,386|Total Long-Term Debtors 64,530

Page 198
79




London Borough of Havering

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 £000
(410)(Bank current accounts 4,726

21,000(Short-term deposits 42,000
7,178|Schools — under the LMS cheque book scheme 7,398
27,768 |Total cash and cash equivalents 54,124

21. Contingent Liabilities

MMI Scheme of Arrangement

Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI), a company limited by guarantee formed by Local Authorities, is
subject to a contingent scheme of arrangement which became effective on 21 January 1994. The company
has been the subject of an orderly run off since that time. However, the schemes administrators, Ernst and
Young, triggered the scheme of arrangement during 2012/13. A 15% levy was imposed based upon the
result of an actuarial valuation of claims as at 31 December 2012. In accordance with the Scheme of
Arrangement, the Levy Notice was received dated 1 January 2014 and a payment made of £338,000 in
respect of the 15% levy due. Following a further review of assets and liabilities a further levy of 10% was
made and an additional £285,000 paid by 12 May 2016. This brings the total levy to 25% for past and future
claims. Outstanding claims will continue to be paid with a 25% contribution from the Authority in respect of
the ongoing levy under the terms of the scheme of arrangement. The total levy to 31 March 2025 is
£760,547 with estimated scheme liabilities at the same date of £735,937. Additional demands for further
levy contributions above the 25% for past and future liabilities may be made. The Authority has made
provision for the levy within the Insurance Earmarked Reserve.

22. Short-Term Creditors

Appendix C

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 £000
Collection Fund creditors
7,370|Council Tax payers * 17,706
2,057|Business Rates payers * 3,544
10,467|Greater London Authority * 6,726
9,317|Central Government (NNDR)* 5,550
Other Creditors
3,994 (Central Government * 8,667
5,054|HMRC * 4,799
24,163|Pension Fund * 16,163
1,463|Capital creditors 4,260
O|Right of Use Assets Liability 4,631
45,964|0ther sundry creditors 47,386
9,930(Income in advance 7,413
119,779|Total 126,845

* These creditors are not included in Note 18(b), Financial Instruments, as they do not meet the definition of
a financial liability.

Page 199
80



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

23. Provisions

Self Insurance| Collection Water Rates Total

2024/25 Fund Provision
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2024 3,592 2,190 2,036 7,818
Additional provisions made in year 165 3 1,188 1,356
Balance at 31 March 2025 3,757 2,193 3,224 9,174

Self-Insurance Provision

The Authority’s insurance cover is arranged with Zurich Municipal with substantial excesses for which
a self-insurance provision is maintained. The self-insurance provision has been set up to meet the
excesses on the Authority’s public and employer’s liability, property and motor vehicle insurance
policies. It is not possible to determine the precise timing of the settlement of claims relating to this
provision. The excess levels for 2024/25 were; public and employer’s liability (£125,000), motor
vehicles (£25,000) and property (£100,000; up to 30th June 2024 £50,000).

Collection Fund Provision

As part of the changes in business rate retention, the Authority is required to create a provision in
respect of outstanding appeals. These appeals are currently with the Valuation Office Agency for
review or have been identified as very likely to have a proposal raised by an interested party and as a
result, it is not possible to determine the precise timing of the settlement of claims relating to this
provision. Based on estimates on the likely settlement year, we could assume that 20% (£0.4 million
will be settled within the next financial year, but this is a very high-level estimate. Only the Authority’s
30% share of the appeals is recorded within the provision note.

Water Rates Provision

The water rates provision related to a risk the council may be required to make refunds to tenants for
historical overcharged water costs based on a precedent from a previous High Court case against
Southwark Council.

24. Usable Reserves

31 March 2024 31 March 2025
£000 £000

10,113 |General Fund balance 15,113

44,093 |Earmarked Reserves 46,421

28,517 [Housing Revenue Account balance 34,372

65,637 [Capital Grants Unapplied 67,875

24,609 [Capital Receipts Reserve 24,720

8,194 |Major Repairs Reserve 8,175

181,163 |Total usable reserves 196,676

Page 200
81



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

25. Unusable Reserves

31 March 31 March
2024 2025
£000 £000

386,041 [Revaluation Reserve 386,232
673,482 |Capital Adjustment Account 630,446
(1,928)|Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (2,253)
(92,844)|Pension Reserve (26,228)
69 [Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 69
4,900 |Collection Fund Adjustment Account (2,213)
(15,296)|Dedicated School Grant Reserve (see note 34) (34,722)
(3,983)|Accumulated Absences Account (4,162)
950,441 |Total unusable reserves 947,169

a) Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the
value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The balance is reduced when
assets with accumulated gains are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost:

e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation: or

e disposed of and the gains are realised.
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the

reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance
on the Capitals Adjustment Account.

31 March 31 March
2024 2025
£000 £000

439,969 (Balance at 1 April 386,041
(50,273)|Net gain/(deficit) on revaluation of fixed assets 2,884
(3,278)|Excess of Fair Value Depreciation over Historical costs depreciation (2,660)
(377)|Removal of Revaluation balance upon sale (33)
386,041 |Balance at 31 March 386,232

Page 201
82



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

b) Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated
on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold
such gains.

Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
694,264 |Balance at 1 April 673,482

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(29,831)|Net charges for depreciation of non-current assets (37,879)
(48,715)|Net charges for impairment of non-current assets (37,488)
(56)|Amortisation of intangible assets (56)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(7,609)|Statement (6,672)

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

3,278 |Excess of Fair Value Depreciation over Historical costs depreciation 2,660
377 |Removal of Revaluation balance upon sale 33
(82,556) ;l:;rwrltten out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the (79,402)

Capital financing applied in the year:

45,646 |Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 16,600
6,095 |Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 10,673
24,731 |use of Capital Grants and Contributions to finance new capital expenditure 26,382
6,177 |Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 14,989
154 |Use of receipts to repay debt 1,458
2,434 |Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 6,541
85,237 |Capital financing applied in year 76,643
(5,160)|Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (5,885)
203 Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or 1.192
(203) credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,192)
0 |Movements in the fair value of Financial Instruments (2,800)
(18,100)|Capitalisation Direction (30,400)
673,482 |Balance at 31 March 630,446

Page 202
83



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

c) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing
losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. The Authority uses the account to manage premiums
paid on the early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement when they are incurred, but reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with
statutory arrangements for spreading the burden on Council Tax. In the Authority’s case, this period is the
unexpired term that was outstanding on the loans when they were redeemed.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(2,256)|Balance at 1 April (1,926)
330 |Gain from revaluation of group loans (327)
(1,926)|Balance at 31 March (2,253)

d) Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension
funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

The actuarial report for 2024/25 showed the £92.8m pension deficit at March 2024 had turned into a £61m
surplus, however this surplus is restricted by a £87.9m asset ceiling adjustment that results in a deficit of £26.2m
being disclosed in the pension reserve. The asset ceiling calculation is to restrict the amount of net asset
(relative to funding obligations) the Employer can disclose. Most of the reduction in the deficit in the year was
due to a higher discount factor of 5.8% being used to calculate the NPV of liabilities.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(136,692)|Balance at 1 April (92,844)
38,910 |Actuarial gains or (losses) on pensions assets and liabilities 145,653
0 |Actuarial asset ceiling adjustment (87,986)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
(29,548)|Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income (26,822)
and Expenditure Statement
34,486 !Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable 35,771
in the year
(92,844)|Balance at 31 March (26,228)

e) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for
which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these
gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred
cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
69 [Balance at 1 April 69

0 |Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 0

69 |Balance at 31 March 69

Page 203
84




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

f) Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and
non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council
tax payers and business rate payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the
General Fund from the Collection Fund.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
2,419 |Balance at 1 April 4,900

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council

2,481 tax and non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in accordance with (7.113)
statutory requirements
4,900 (Balance at 31 March (2,213)

g) Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement
carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the account.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(3,639)|Balance at 1 April (3,983)
3,639 |Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 3,983
(3,983)|Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (4,162)

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from

(344) remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory (179)
requirements
(3,983)|Balance at 31 March (4,162)

Page 204
85



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
26. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25

Authority Group Authority Group

£000 £000 £000 £000

78,546 78,546 Depreciation, impairment and downward revaluation 75,367 75,367

56 56| Amortisation 56 56

6,821 9,251|Movement in creditors 3,517 5,626

(43,848) (43,848)|Movement in long-term creditors 0 0

4,764 4,827|Movement in debtors (6,515) (6,652)

(8,389) (8,389)|Movement in long-term debtors 1,856 1,856

(44) (44)|Movement in inventories 52 52

(4,938) (4,938)|Movement in pension liability (8,949) (8,949)

525 (368)|Increase / (decrease) in provisions 1,356 1,356

0 0|Movement in Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability (4,416) (4,416)

7,609 7.408 Carrying amount of non-curren_t assets and non-current assets 6.672 6.672
held for sale, sold or derecognised

23.945 25,015 Othelr.non-cash |.tems charged to the net surplus or deficit on the (3,649) 285

provision of services
65,047 67,516|Net cash flows from operating activities 65,347 71,253

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provisions of services that are investing and financing

activities:
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25
Authority Group Authority Group
£000 £000 £000 £000

Capital grants credited to the Consolidated Income and

(24,146) (24,146) Expenditure Statement

(28,621))  (28,621)

(14,978) (14,978)|Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (18,125) (18,125)
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on

(39,124) (39,124)|the provisions of services that are investing and financing (46,746) (46,746)
activities

Page 205
86



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

27. Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25
Authority Group Authority Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
(126,678) (129,979) } ) (109,038) (113,440)
property and intangible assets
(5,188,596)| (5,188,596)|Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (9,361,351) (9,361,351)
14978 14978 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 18.125 18125
’ ’ equipment, investment property and intangible assets ’ ’
22,903 22,903|Capital grants received 26,003 26,003
5,171,585 5,171,585|Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 9,326,504 9,326,504
(105,808) (109,109)|Net cash flows from investing activities (99,757) (104,159)
28. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25
Authority Group Authority Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
254,041 257,086|Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing 583,936 588,046
(129,252) (129,252)|Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing (428,112) (428,112)
124,789 127,834|Net cash flows from financing activities 155,824 159,934
29. Trading Operations
2023/24 2024/25 2024/25 2024/25
(Surplus)/ Income Expenditure (Surplus)/
Deficit P Deficit
£000 £000 £000 £000
a) Open Air Market
The Authority operates an open air market three days
984 week (138) 476 338
b) Other Trading Accounts
(66)|Schools/Welfare Catering (9,335) 9,120 (215)

Open Air Market — The Market trading results have declined since 2023/24 as the market is only open for three days
a week in 2024/25 rather than four days a week in 2023/24.

Schools/Welfare Catering - In 2024/25, the Borough Catering Service has a surplus of £361k before overheads.
Once overheads are applied the surplus reduces to £215k.

The trading position improved significantly in 2024/25 due to the full year effect of Universal Free School Meals for
Primary children that had been introduced in the 2023/24 academic year.

Page 206
87




London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
30. Pooled Budgets

Mental Health

Under the National Health Services Act 2006 & Local Government Acts 1972 & 2000, a partnership arrangement
was established with the North East London Foundation Trust (NELFT). The agreement provides for The London
Borough of Havering (LBH) to host a pooled budget between the two partners (although NELFT became the host
partner from January 2011). This includes integrated services and joint commissioning in relation to the provision of
Health & Social Care Services, for Adults with Mental Health (MH) issues who qualify for such provision. The pooled
budget is accounted for under a joint arrangement

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000

Funding

Section 75 Joint Pooled Budget between London
1,371|Borough of Havering and North East London 1,149
Foundation Trust

607|Recharges (excluded from the Pooled Budget) 119
2,981|Non Pooled Budget codes 4,280
4,681|Total funding 5,015
4,959|Final outturn 5,548

Adult Services — Better Care Fund

Under the National Health Services Act 2006 section 13Z (2) and 14Z (3) & Local Government Acts 1972 & 2000, a
partnership arrangement was established with NHS Havering Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), now known as
Integrated Care Boards (ICB).

The agreement provides for The London Borough of Havering (LBH) to host a pooled budget between the two

partners, out of which payment was made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed local authority
functions and prescribed NHS functions through joint commissioning arrangements.

The agreed Pooled budget between LBH and the CCG/ICB is split into three main parts which are activities relating
to Capital, Commissioned services and items charged with LBH revenue costs.

The pooled budget is accounted for under a joint arrangement.

Page 207
88



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Expenditure in 2024/25 was as follows:

Section 75 Joint Pooled Budget between LBH and
CccaG/icB
2023-24 2024-25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

CCG LBH Total ICB LBH Total
Funding
Capital
Disability Facility Grant Allocation 2,236 2,236 2,552 2,552
Revenue
Social Care/ iBCF 6,825 6,825 6,825 6,825
Minimum CCG/ICB Contribution 22,771 22,771 24,060 24,060
Additional Contribution 527 874 1,401 874 874
ASC Discharge Fund 1,731 957 2,688 3,728 1,595 5,323
Demand and Capacity 1,159 1,159
Physical Capacity 736 736
Total 26,188 10,892 37,080 28,524 11,846 40,370
Expenditure
Capital
Disability Facility Grant Allocation 2,129 2,129 2,552 2,552
Revenue
Social Care/ iBCF 6,825 6,825 6,825 6,825
Minimum CCG/ICB Contribution 13,633 9,139 22,771 14,434 9,626 24,060
Additional Contribution 527 874 1,401 874 874
Hospital Discharge 1,731 957 2,688 3,728 1,595 5,323
Demand and Capacity 1,159 1,159
Physical Capacity 736 736
Total 15,891 21,082 36,973 18,162 21,472 40,370

Page 208
89



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

31. Members’ Allowances

Payments in year were £905,020 including expenses (£898,187 in 2023/24). Additionally, payments to co-opted members
totalled £1,300 (£1,117 in 2023/24).

32. Officers’ Remuneration

The number of employees (including teaching staff) whose remuneration, excluding employer pension contributions, was
£50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000 was:

2023/24 2024/25
Lower Band Upper Band | Schools Other Total Schools Other Total

£50,000 - £55,000 96 125 221 143 150 293
£55,000 - £60,000 38 105 143 93 114 207
£60,000 - £65,000 17 67 84 14 71 85
£65,000 - £70,000 15 29 44 27 30 57
£70,000 - £75,000 11 15 26 7 20 27
£75,000 - £80,000 10 11 21 10 15 25
£80,000 - £85,000 10 15 25 8 16 24
£85,000 - £90,000 6 4 10 10 1 1
£90,000 - £95,000 6 4 10 6 8 14
£95,000 - £100,000 2 9 11 5 5 10
£100,000 - £105,000 3 2 5 3 5 8
£105,000 - £110,000 0 3 3 1 4 5
£110,000 - £115,000 2 2 4 3 3 6
£115,000 - £120,000 0 2 2 1 1 2
£120,000 - £125,000 1 0 1 1 1 2
£125,000 - £130,000 0 1 1 0 1 1
£130,000 - £135,000 0 1 1 1 0 1
£135,000 - £140,000 0 1 1 0 3 3
£140,000 - £145,000 0 1 1 0 1 1
£145,000 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,000+ 0 3 3 0 6 6

217 400 617 333 455 788

The table includes staff for whom additional disclosures are required, as set out below (Senior Officers Remuneration).

Page 209
90



London Borough of Havering

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Senior Officers Remuneration

Appendix C

The following table sets out the remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers in accordance with regulation 7 of the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. Under the revised regulations, the definitions of Senior Officers which
are relevant to the Authority are:

a) the designated head of paid service, a statutory chief officer or non-statutory chief officer of a relevant body as defined
under the Local Government Act 1989; or

b) any person having responsibility for the management of the relevant body, to the extent that the person has the power
to direct or control the major activities of the body, in particular activities involving the expenditure of money whether solely
or collectively with other persons.

This has been determined to mean the Authority’s Chief Executive and Senior Leadership Team.

The relevant proportion of the Authority’s contribution to the Local Government Pension Scheme which can be related to
the Senior Officer is included in the table as required by the regulations.

R Total ti Total
emuneration Employer’s Remuneration
Other excluding : . . .
Notes Salary ) pension including pension
payments pension I I
: I contribution contributions
Post Holder Information contributions 2024/25
2024/25
£ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive - Andrew
Blake-Herbert 201,672 201,672 41,392 243,064
Strategic Director of
People - Barbara Nicholls 173,487 173,487 35,607 209,094
Strayeglc D|_rector of Place 173,487 173,487 0 173,487
- Neil Stubbings
Strategic Director of
Resources - Kathy 173,487 173,487 35,607 209,094
Freeman
Director of Ageing Well 1 45,304 8,185 53,489 12,978 66,467
(Adults)
Director of Ageing Well 2 96,058 7,839 103,897 16,989 120,886
(Adults)
Director of Living Well -
Patrick Odling-Smee 150,006 150,006 30,798 180,804
Director of Starting Well
(Children's) - Tara Geere 150,006 150,006 30,788 180,794
Director of Environment 135,912 135,912 27,895 163,807
Director of Exchequer & 144,162 144,162 29,597 173,759
Transactional Services
Director of |.T., Digital & 3 21,843 21,843 3,604 25,447
Customer Services
Director of Planning and 135,912 135,912 27,895 163,807
Public Protection
g're9t°' of Customer 4 124,586 11,729 136,315 26,026 162,341
ervices
Deputy Director of Legal
Services (Monitoring 104,205 104,205 21,387 125,592
Officer)
Head of Communications | 29,312 29,312 4,836 34,148
and Engagement
Director of Public Health 135,912 135,912 22,942 158,854
Total 1,995,351 27,753 2,023,104 368,341 2,391,445
Note 1 The Director of Ageing Well (Adults) left on 31/07/2024
Note 2  The Director of Ageing Well (Adults) started on 01/08/2024
Note 3  The Director of I.T., Digital & Customer Services started on 01/02/2025
Note 4  The Director of Customer Services left on 31/03/2025
Note 5 Head of Communications and Engagement started on 10/12/2024.

The Director of Partnerships, Impact and Delivery is employed by Health authorities.

Page 210
91



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

The comparative figures for 2023/24 are as follows:

Total Total
Remuneration Employer's Remuneration
Post Holder Notes Salary ao:::r:ts ex:;u::;g pension mzlr:JsdiLnng
Information pay p . ! . contribution p I
contributions contributions
2023/24 2023/24
£ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive -
Andrew Blake- 196,755 196,755 32,465 229,220
Herbert
Section 151
Officer and Chief 1 44,192 44,192 1,594 45,787
Financial Officer
Director of 2 7,522 7,522 1,241 8,764
Children’s
Strategic Director
of People - 3 169,254 169,254 27,927 197,181
Barbara Nicholls
Strategic Director | 4 143,866 143,866 0 143,866
of Place
Strategic Director | 109,784 109,784 18,114 127,898
of Resources
Director of Ageing
Well (Adults) 6 96,014 96,014 15,842 111,857
Director of Living
Well - Patrick 7 152,073 152,073 27,454 179,527
QOdling-Smee
Director of
Starting Well 8 109,760 109,760 18,906 128,665
(Children's)
E're.cmr of 9 83,929 83,929 13,848 97,777

nvironment
Director of
Planning and 10 96,014 96,014 15,842 111,857
Public Protection
Director of
Customer 11 74,678 74,678 12,322 87,000
Services
E'remr of Public 126,013 126,013 21,271 147,285

ealth
Total 1,409,855 - 1,409,855 206,827 1,616,682

Note 1 The Section 151 Officer and Chief Financial Officer left on 31/07/2023
Note 2  The Director of Children's left on 16/04/2023

Note 3  Up until June 2023, the Strategic Director of People postholder was the Director of Adult Services. The
remuneration covers both roles.

Note 4  Up until June 2023, the Strategic Director of Place postholder was the Director of Regeneration. The
remuneration covers both roles.

Note 5  The Strategic Director of Resources joined on 01/08/2023

Note 6  The Director of Ageing Well (Adults) is a new post from 01/07/2023

Note 7 Up until June 2023, the Director of Living Well postholder was the Director of Housing. The
remuneration covers both roles.

Note 8  The Director of Starting Well (Children's) is a new post from 01/07/2023

Note 9  The Director of Environment is a new post from 01/07/2023

Note 10 The Director of Planning and Public Protection is a new post from 01/07/2023

Note 11 The Director of Customer Services is a new post from 01/07/2023

Page 211
92



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

33. External Audit Costs

Fees payable in relation to external audit for 2024/25:

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Restated
Scale fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by
522 . f 452
appointed auditor
17|Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year 21
0|Fees payable in respect of other services provided during the year 0
539|Total for year 473

*the comparative figure has been restated

Page 212
93



London Borough of Havering A p p e n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

34. Dedicated Schools Grant

The Authority’s expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Education, the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly
included in the Schools Budget. The Schools Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services
provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB), which is divided into a budget
share for each school. Over and under spends on the two elements are required to be accounted for separately.
An overdrawn balance on the DSG account of £19.426million has been transferred to a negative unusable
reserve in 2024/25 to emphasise the balance is separate from Council general fund balances. The total negative
unusable reserve balance carried forward is now £34.722 million.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2024/25 are as follows:
Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated School

Grant
Central Individual Totals
Expenditure Schools
Budget

£000 £000 £000
Final DSG for 2024/25 before academy and high needs 318,512

recoupment |
Less academy and high needs figure recouped for 2024/25 (146,970)
Total DSG after academy and high needs recoupment 171,542

for 2024/25 ’
Plus: brought forward from 2023/24 0
Less: Carry-forward to 2025/26 agreed in advance 0
Agreed initial budgeted distribution for 2024/25 49,838 121,704 171,542
In year adjustments 277 277
Final budgeted distribution for 2024/25 49,838 121,980 171,818
Less: Actual central expenditure (69,264) (69,264)
Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools (121,981), (121,981),
Plus: Local authority contribution for 2024/25 0
In year carry forward to 2024/25 (negative DSG Reserve) (19,426) 0 (19,426)
DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2023/24 (15,296)
Net position at the end of 2024/25 (34,722)

Comparative figures for 2023/24 are as follows:

Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated School

Grant
Central Individual Totals
Expenditure Schools
Budget
£000 £000 £000
Final DSG for 2023/24 before academy and high needs 285,562
recoupment
Less academy and high needs figure recouped for 2023/24 (135,689)
Total DSG after academy and high needs recoupment 149,873
for 2023/24 ’
Plus: brought forward from 2022/23 0
Less: Carry-forward to 2024/25 agreed in advance 0
Agreed initial budgeted distribution for 2023/24 44,890 104,983 149,873
In year adjustments (195) (195)
Final budgeted distribution for 2023/24 44,890 104,788 149,678
Less: Actual central expenditure (51,928) (51,928)
Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools (104,788) (104,788)
Plus: Local authority contribution for 2023/24 0
In year carry forward to 2023/24 (negative DSG Reserve) (7,038) 0 (7,038)
DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2022/23 (8,258)
Net position at the end of 2023/24 (15,296)

Page 213
94



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

35. Grants and Other Income

Appendix C

a) The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2024/25:

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
1,899 |Revenue Support Grant 2,025
30,033 [Non ring-fenced Grants 35,147
24,146 |Capital Grants 28,621
56,078 |Total 65,793
Credited to Services
30,659 |Rent Allowances 24,008
22,630 |Rent Rebates 22,514
12,303 |Public Health Grant 13,059
149,236 |Dedicated Schools Grant 170,868
9,666 |Better Care Fund 9,626
1,613 |Hospital Discharge Fees 3,838
5,499 |Pupil Premium Grant 5,474
6,485 |Universal Free School Meals 8,186
2,561 |Other Children's and Education Funding 2,023
1,674 |Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Funding 1,149
3,286 |Homelessness Prevention Grant 3,426
1,012 | Teachers Pension and Pay Grants 3,978
1,102 |Homes for Ukraine 2,905
1,366 |Havering College Adult Education (HCAE) 1,419
30 |Energy Rebate Scheme 0
4,003 |Emergency Assistance Scheme 797
3,899 |Other 8,257
Other Contributions
3,525 |Contributions from Integrated Care Board (ICB) 5,425
6,271 |Contributions from Other Local Authorities 4,265
266,818 |Total 291,217
Current Liabilities
b) Capital Grants — receipts in advance:
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
14,958 |Brought forward 14,715
758 |Amounts received in year 1,086
(1,001)|Amounts applied to meet new capital investment (1,704)
14,715 |Carried forward 14,097

Page 214
95



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

36. Related Parties

Appendix C

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or
influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to
which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s

ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Members

Members of The Authority have direct control over its financial and operating policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2024/25 is

shown in Note 31.

The table below shows the Related Party interests in other entities as disclosed by Members and the transactions that took place between the
Authority and the Related Party. Individual transactions were approved by officers and not by Members named. Information is included to

ensure transparent disclosure.

A small number of council members declared a position of interest in schools, voluntary, charitable or public bodies with which the council
interacts with. It should be noted that these individual members were not in a position to direct or control any financial interaction with these
organisations. These relationships are illustrated below.

Payments to Balance Income to Income
Organisations | Outstanding | the Authority| Outstanding
Organisations Council Member by the by the
Authority Organisation
£000 £000 £000 £000
Adecco UK Ltd Councillor Viddy Persaud - - 45 -
BETRA Councillor Paul McGeary 354 - 17 -
Broadford Primary School Councillor Mandy Anderson
Councillor Paul McGeary - - 9,655 -
East London Waste Authority Councillor Barry Mugglestone 18,606 - 1 -
Havering Arts Council Councillor Jason Frost 1 - - -
Havering Association for People with Disabilities Councillor Christine Smith
86 - 3 -
Havering Citizen's Advice Councillor Mandy Anderson
Councillor Jane Keane 140 - 10 -
Integrated Care Board Councillor Gillian Ford - - 5 -
Langtons Infant's School Councillor Paul Middleton 1,757 - 1,452 -
Law Society Councillor Keith Darvill 13 - - -
Local Government Association Councillor Gillian Ford 4 - - -
Local Information Unit Ltd Councillor Ray Morgon 20 - - -
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham Councillor Robby Misir
Councillor Patricia Brown 486 - 1,186 -
London Borough of Newham Councillor Katharine Tumilty 2,463 - 2,112 -
London Councils Councillor Ray Morgon
Councillor Gillian Ford
Councillor Graham Williamson
Councillor Oscar Ford
Councillor Barry Mugglestone 1,024 - 565 -
London Riverside (BID Ltd) Councillor Graham Williamson
Councillor Osman Dervish 527 - 27 -
London Youth Games Foundation Councillor Gillian Ford 8 - - -
Mardyke Community Centre Councillor Trevor McKeever 7 - 3 -
Mead Primary School Councillor Mandy Anderson
Councillor Paul McGeary 44 - 426 -
Metropolitan Police Councillor Robby Misir 329 - - -
Notting Hill Gensis Councillor James Glass - - 2 -
Ogilby Housing Association Councillor Philippa Crowder
Councillor John Crowder - - 3 -
Romford Town Management Partnership Councillor Graham Williamson 614 - 28 -
The Havering Theatre Trust Ltd Councillor Gillian Ford
Councillor Trevor McKeever
Councillor John Wood 230 - 31 -
The Learning Federation - Mead and Broadford |Councillor Mandy Anderson
Schools Councillor Paul McGeary 12,955 - 6 -

Page 215
96




London Borough of Havering A p p e n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Officers

The table below shows the material related party disclosures by officers.

Payments to Balance Income Income
Organisations by | Outstanding Outstanding
Organisation Officer the Authority
£000 £000 £000 £000
Centre for Engineering and
Manufacturing Excellence Ltd Mr N Stubbings 342 - - -
(CEME)

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Authority — it is responsible for providing the statutory
framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of
many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits).

Transactions between the London Borough of Havering and the UK Government; its department, agencies, NHS bodies and other
authorities are disclosed elsewhere in the Accounts, most notably:

Note 11 Other operating expenditure: levies;
Note 13 Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income;
Note 30 Pooled budgets;

Note 34 Dedicated Schools Grant; and

Note 35 Grant Income

Entity controlled or significantly influenced by the Authority

Joint Committee with London Borough of Newham (oneSource)

oneSource is a public sector shared back-office support arrangement which is supported by members through a joint committee. The joint
committee receive key reports and make strategic decisions about oneSource’s operation. oneSource was set up with a view to making
savings by eliminating duplication, reducing senior management costs and introducing more efficient processes. oneSource started on 1
April 2014, when the London Boroughs of Havering and Newham contributed almost all their support services including HR, ICT, Finance,
Legal services, Exchequer and Transactional services, Asset Management and Business services. During 2022/23, each borough's
Cabinets agreed that HR, Pensions & Treasury, Procurement and Asset Management were to return to their sovereign boroughs over the
course of 2023/24, leaving ICT, Exchequer & Transactional and Legal services under oneSource’s management during 2024/25. Over the
course of 2025/26 it is expected that ICT will return to each borough’s sovereign control.

The oneSource net controllable expenditure for 2023/24 and 2024/25 is disclosed below indicating the share falling to each of the
authorities. The LBH share is charged against the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 oneSource £00/0

Net Expenditure

5,065 |Exchequer and Transactional Services 6,176

393 |Transactional Reconciliations 0

3,717 |Legal and Governance 4,336

13,631 |ICT 14,272

22,806 [Total Net Expenditure 24,784

Cost Sharing:
11,581 |London Borough of Newham 12,519
11,225 |London Borough of Havering 12,265

As at 31st March 2025, the Authority owed £1.951m to the London Borough of Newham in relation to the 2024/25 cost
share.

Page 216
97



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Mercury Land Holdings Ltd

The Authority controls Mercury Land Holdings Ltd through its ownership of 100% of the shares in the
company. Further details are included as part of the Group Primary Statements and note 16, investments
and note 19, debtors.

MLH is a wholly-owned subsidiary company that was formed in 2016 to facilitate the Authority's construction
and investment in private rental properties within the Borough

MLH directors who have held office since 1st April 2018 are as follows:
: Andrew Blake-Herbert

Anthony Huff

Christopher Hobbs

Garry Green

lan Rhodes

Havering and Wates Regeneration LLP

The LLP was formed on 19th April 2018 as a joint venture with two members, Wates Construction Limited
and the London Borough of Havering. The LLP’s principal activity is the building and selling of residential
apartments and houses in the London Borough of Havering.

The Council influences the joint venture through its 50% share in the LLP. For the financial year ended
31st March 2025, the share of the profit and loss account is a £6.5m loss. A 50% share of the assets and
liabilities of the joint venture is shown within the group accounts, this is predominantly a £29.6m property
development in progress. The Council's balance sheet includes the Council's loan to the LLP, £21.632m
as at 31st March 2025 - provision has been made for a possible £2.8m impairment.

Bridge Close Regeneration LLP

The LLP was formed on 4th April 2018 as a joint venture between FB BCR LLP (First Base and Savills
Investment Management) and the London Borough of Havering, in order to deliver the comprehensive
regeneration of the site at Bridge Close, Romford, including the development and sale of residential and
commercial property as well as the development of social infrastructure, a bridge, public realm and
environmental improvements to the River Rom.

The Council took full control over the joint venture during 2021/22 by buying First Base/Savill's 50% share
of the LLP through a wholly owned company, Bridge Close Regeneration Nominee Company Limited. For
the financial year ended 31st March 2025, Bridge Close had a small loss of £8k, £140k cumulatively. The
balance sheet includes the Council's and nominee company's funding in the LLP, £35.2m as at 31st March
2025 split between investments and long-term debtors.

Rainham & Beam Park LLP Joint Venture

The LLP was incorporated on 9th February 2018 as a Limited Liability Partnership. The LLP was set up to
partially purchase ten derelict industrial sites in Rainham and Beam Park in the London Borough of
Havering for the development of a high density residential scheme. The scheme will consist of 774 units of
mixed tenures. The scheme is currently at planning stage, with limited activities on-going. The Council's
£2.456m investment is shown on the balance sheet along with a £140k loan to fund the 2024/25 buy-out of
the scheme. In 2024/25 the Council acquired the other 50% share of the scheme. The negative goodwill
in the buy-out of the scheme had no value at 31 March 2025.

Pension Fund

As the administrator of the Pension Fund, the Authority has direct control of the fund. The transactions
between the Authority and the Pension Fund are detailed within Note 25 of the Pension Fund Accounts.

Page 217
98



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

37. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

Appendix C

The following statement shows how the Authority’s capital expenditure was financed and the consequent
change in underlying borrowing:

2023/24 Capital Expenditure 2024/25
£000 £000
113,017 Property, Plant and Equipment 106,737
17 Heritage 727
0 Intangible 1,275
5,160 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 5,885
18,100 Capitalisation Direction 30,400
3,039 Long Term Investments 13,433
5,150 Long Term Loans 2,193
144,483 Total capital expenditure 160,650
Less financed from
(45,646) Capital receipts (16,600)
(6,095) Major repairs (10,673)
(2,434) Revenue funds (6,541)
(24,731) Grants and contributions (26,382)
65,577 Increase in need to borrow 100,454
(6,177) Minimum Revenue Provision (14,989)
(154) Use of Receipts to repay Debt (1,458)
59,246 Change in Capital Financing Requirement 84,007

Page 218
99



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

38. Trust Funds

The Authority acts as sole trustee for the following trust funds, which are not included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or Balance Sheet and are not subject to
separate audit.

Richard Ballard Charity Lucas Children's Play Site
Charity
£ £
Balance 31 March 2024 6,500 157,206
Receipts 319 7,746
Payments (319) 0
Balance at 31 March 2025 6,500 164,952

The Richard Ballard Charity
Interest on the capital from the sale of two properties sold for a street widening scheme is used for
highway repairs.

The Lucas Children’s Play Charity
The income from this charity may be applied towards the provision, maintenance and improvements
of children’s playgrounds and equipment in the borough.

39. Leases

Change in Accounting Policies for Leases — Council as Lessee

In 2024/25, the authority applied IFRS 16 Leases as required by the Code of Practice for Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom. The main impact of the new requirements is that for arrangements
previously accounted for as operating leases (i.e. without recognising the leased property as an asset and
future rents as a liability) a right-of- use asset and a lease liability are to be brought into the Balance Sheet at
1 April 2024. Leases for items of low value and leases that expire on or before 31 March 2025 are exempt
from the new arrangements.

IFRS 16 has been applied retrospectively, but with the cumulative effect recognised at 1 April 2024. This
means that right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been calculated as if IFRS 16 had always applied but
recognised in 2024/25 and not by adjusting prior year figures. However, some practical expedients have been
applied as required or permitted by the Code:

- lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at 1 April 2024,
discounted by the authority’s incremental borrowing rate at that date.

- a single discount rate has been applied to portfolios of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
- the weighted average of the incremental borrowing rates used to discount liabilities was 5.44%.

- right-of-use assets are measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease payments that were in the balance sheet on 31 March 2024 — any initial direct costs have been
excluded.

- all leases were assessed as to whether they were onerous at 31 March 2024, so right-of-use assets have
not been subject to an impairment review — carrying amounts have been reduced by any provisions for
onerous contracts that were in the 31 March 2024 Balance Sheet.

This has resulted in the following additions to the balance sheet at transition on the 1st April 2024:
£14,782k Right of Use Assets (PPE)

£5,468k Current creditors (lease liabilities)

£9,314k  Non-Current creditors (lease liabilities)

Page 219

100



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
Council as Lessee
Right-of-use assets

As 2024/25 is the first year of new lease accounting arrangements, reliable comparative figures for
2023/24 are not available.

This table shows the change in the value of right-of-use assets held under leases by the Council:

Land and Vehicles, Plant Total
Buildings and Equipment
£000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2024 14,603 179 14,782
Additions 125 374 499
Revaluations 0 0 0
Depreciation charge (5,612) (100) (5,712)
Disposals (1,051) 0 (1,051)
Balance at 31 March 2025 8,065 453 8,518
Lease transactions under leases
The following expenses and cash flows in relation to leases were incurred:
2024/25
£000s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Leases (within the scope of IFRS 16)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 668
Principal element of lease payments that is applied to write down the
o 5,468
lease liability
Leases (outside of the scope of IFRS 16)
Expense relating to short-term liabilities 0
Expense relating to leases of low value items (excluding short term 49
leases)
Cash flow Statement
Total cash outflow for leases 6,185

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are due to be settled over the following time bands (measured at the
undiscounted amounts of expected cash payments):

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2025

£'000s £'000s
Less than one year 5,468 4,631
One to five years 9,314 4,101
More than five years 0 0
Total undiscounted liabilities 14,782 8,732

Page 220
101



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
40. Termination Benefits

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band, and total costs of compulsory and other redundancies, are
set out in the table below:

Exit Package cost Number of Total Number of
band (including Compulsory Number of exit packages by Total Cost of exit
special payments Redundancies |Departures Agreed Cost Band packages in each band
2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25

£0 - £20,000 14 4 7 18 16 139,554 116,590
£20,001 - £40,000 3 1 4 4 7 5 215,628 120,757
£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 56,238
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
>£150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 17 10 8 12 25 22 355,182 293,585

41. Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes
Teachers Pensions

Teachers employed by the Authority are members of the Teachers Pension scheme administered by the
Teachers Pension Agency (TPA). Although the scheme is unfunded, the TPA uses a notional fund as the basis
for calculating the employer’s contribution rates paid by Local Education Authorities (LEAs). However, it is not
possible for the Authority to identify a share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its own
employees. For the purposes of the Statement of Accounts it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a
defined contribution scheme.

In 2024/25 the Authority paid £12.1m (£9.2m 2023/24) to Teachers Pensions in respect of teachers’ pension
contributions. This represented a contribution rate of 28.68% (23.68% in 2023/24).

The Authority is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirements outside the
terms of the Teachers’ scheme.
NHS Pension Scheme

The Health and Social Care Act 2012, makes provision for the transfer of public health services and staff from
primary care trusts (PCTs) to local authorities.

In 2024/25 the Authority paid £34,769 (£43,060 in 2023/24) to NHS Pensions in respect of public health pension
contributions. This represented 16.88% of pensionable pay (16.88% in 2023/24).

Page 221

102



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d iX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

42. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the
time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Authority participates in two post-employment schemes:

® The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by London Borough of Havering. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that
Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

® Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement — this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which
liabilities are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be
generated to meet actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

The London Borough of Havering pension scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance
of the scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Committee of the Authority. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. The day
to day operations of the Fund have been delegated to the Statutory Section 151 Officer. The investment managers of the fund are appointed by the committee
and consist of the following Investment Fund Managers:

1. Legal & General Investment Management (LGIM)

N

London CIV ( Collective Investment Vehicle) Sub funds:
« Absolute Return Fund
* Global Alpha Paris Aligned Fund
* Global Bond Fund
« Infrastructure Renewables Fund
« Passive Equity Progressive Paris Aligned (PEPPA) Fund
« Pooled Property Fund

Royal London Asset Management

UBS

Stafford Capital

JP Morgan

Churchill

Permira

©® NN ®

Russell Investments

The principal risks to the Authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-
scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to
a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account the amounts required by statute as described in
the accounting policies note.

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are
made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities. The amount is included in the IAS 19 figures reported for the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they're earned by employees, rather than when benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge to be made make against council tax is based on cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been
made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement in the year:

Virgin Media Case

In June 2023, the UK High Court (Virgin Media Limited v NTL Pension Trustees Il Limited) ruled that certain historical amendments for contracted-out defined
benefit schemes were invalid if they were not accompanied by the correct actuarial confirmation. The judgment has now been upheld by the Court of Appeal. The
Local Government Pension Scheme is a contracted out defined benefit scheme and amendments have been made during the period 1996 to 2016 which could
impact member benefits. Work is being performed by the Government Actuary’s Department as the Local Government Pension Scheme actuary to assess
whether section 37 certificates are in place for all amendments and some of these have been confirmed however, at the date of these financial statements, the
full assessment is not complete. Until this analysis is complete, we are unable to conclude whether there is any impact to the liabilities or if it can be reliably
estimated. As a result, the Council does not consider it necessary to make any allowance for the potential impact of the Virgin Media case in its financial
statements.

Page 222

103



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of services:
Service Cost Comprising:
23,185 Current service cost 22,278
133 Past service costs 401
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
6,230 Net interest expense 4,143
29,548 |Total post-employment benefits charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services 26,822
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
(21,207) Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) (9,961)
(42,156) Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (55,958)
24,453 Other (11,670)
(38,910) | Total post-employment Benefits charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (77,589)
Movements in Reserves Statement
(29,548) aR:g/;:js:rI]gef r\:veitthc;aergcejd:ade to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services for post-employment benefits in (26,822)
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in the year:
34,486 |Employers' contributions payable to scheme 35,771
4,938 [Net movement in Pensions Reserve 8,949

Page 223

104




London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans

is as follows:
2023/24 2024/25
Restated
£000 £000
Local Government Pension Scheme
(958,061)|Present value of the defined benefit obligation (836,291)
865,217 |Fair value of plan assets 810,063
(92,844)|Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (26,228)
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets
2023/24 2024/25
Restated
£000 £000
Local Government Pension Scheme
808,296|Opening fair value of scheme assets 865,217
38,333|Interest income 41,531
Re-measurement gain (loss):
21,207 The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest (9,961)
expense
34,486|Contributions from employer 35,771
7,459|Contributions from employees into the scheme 7,894
(44,564)|Benefits paid (42,403)
0|Asset ceiling adjustment (87,986)
865,217|Closing fair values of scheme assets 810,063
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation):
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Funded liabilities: Local Government Pension Scheme
944,988 |Opening balance at 1 April 958,061
23,185 [Current service cost 22,278
44,563 |Interest cost 45,674
7,459 |Contributions from scheme participants 7,894
Re-measurement (gains) and losses:
(42,156)|Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (143,944)
24,453 (Other (11,670)
133 |Past service cost (Including curtailments) 401
(44,564)|Benefits paid (42,403)
958,061 |Closing balance at 31 March 836,291

Page 224
105



00001 22¢°168 22¢°168 s|ejol [00°00L 112°698 112°698
00'G 168°L2 168°/2 Iv | 00°€ £88°LY £88'LY
Sjus|eAIinbg yseH pue ysen
000 101 L0k abueyox3 ubleio4 (000 6L 6/
00°0 7692 ¥69'C 000 (g01) (g01)
SaAljeALIdq
006 G€8°.9 GE8'/9 J8yi0 |00'6 69€°G.L 69€°G.
0011 26066 26066 ainjonnseyul |00°6 6.2'86 6.2'86
00zt 059°501 0G9'G0L spuog [00°L 0Z8‘001 0Z8'001
00°€S ovL‘6Ly OvL'6.¥ sennb3 | 00°65 969°vS¥ 969'VSP
S)SNJ] }Iuf) pue spungj juaw}saAu|
00'e 8y8‘Le 8¥8'Le Apedolid seesianQ | 001 126'8C 126'82
00°'S 18L'sy 18l GY Apadoid Mn | 009 800'vY 800'v¥
a9je)s3 |eay
0 J8yi0 | 000 0
002 G88‘L¥ G88'LY swuIBA09 MN | 00°€ (Tl 4 6G2'12
0 (epeub juswysanul) spuoq ajelodiod | 000 0 0
SapuNoag 199d
% 0003 0003 0003 % 0003 0003 0003
(ST [SENTLETT] [SENTETT] [SENTLETT]
sjasse |ejo| AAIY AAIY sjasse |ejo| AAIY AAIY
Jo abejuaoiad 1eol ul jou sddld| ul saold KioBaje) jessy Jo abejuaoiad 1ejol ul jou sdsld| ul saoud
pajond pajond pajond pajond
S2Iv20z ¥z/£202

:posiIdwoD S}oSSE oWaYdS UOISUdd JUSWUIDAOL) [B20T]

§Z/2T0T SIUN0DY 4O JUBWILE]S
Sulianey jo y3noiog uopuo

106

Page 225



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions
that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by Hymans
Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Authority Fund being based on the latest full valuation

of the scheme

as at 31 March 2025

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Local Government Pension Scheme
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
21.2 years|Men 21.2 years
23.8 years|Women 23.8 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
22.1 years|Men 22.0 years
25.3 years|Women 25.3 years
2.80%|Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.80%
3.50%|Rate of increase in salaries 3.50%
2.80%|Rate of increase in pensions 2.80%
4.80%|Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.80%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or
decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2025 Approximate % Approximate
increase to Monetary amount

Employer Liability £000

0.1% increase in Real Discount Rate 2% 13,339
1 Year increase in life expectancy 4% 33,452
0.1% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0% 516
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 2% 13,189

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The Authority has
agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels
are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31st March 2025.

The Authority anticipates paying £26.309m contributions to the scheme in 2025/26.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17 years as 31st March 2025 (17
years 31 March 2024).

Page 226
107



London Borough of Havering Ap p e n d IX C

Statement o f Accounts 2024/25

Housing Revenue
Account

Page 227

108



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Housing Revenue Account
Income and Expenditure Statement 2024/25

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) includes all transactions relating to the provision, management and maintenance of the
Authority’s housing stock. The increase or decrease in the year on the basis of which rents are raised is shown in the
movement on the HRA Statement. The Account is “ring-fenced” in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act
1989. Transfers to and from the General Fund are only permitted in certain specified circumstances.

2023/24 Notes 2024/25
£000 £000
Income
(54,303)| Dwelling rents (61,948)
(463)[ Non-dwelling rents (496)
(13,830)| Charges for services and facilities (11,945)
(5,740)| Contributions towards expenditure (16,114)
(74,336)|Total Income (90,503)
Expenditure
13,856 Repairs and maintenance 14,342
26,928 Supervision and management 27,334
490| Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 658
604| Increased provision for bad/doubtful debts 250
54,514 Depreciation and Impairment of tangible fixed assets 41,361
88| Debt management -
96,480 Total Expenditure 83,945
22,144 |Net expenditure or income of HRA services as included in the whole (6,558)
212 HRA Services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 229
22,356 Net Expenditure of HRA Services (6,329)
HRA Share of the Operating Income and Expenditure included in the
(4,702)| Net gain on disposal of HRA assets (6,243)
10,609( Interest payable and similar charges 13,866
(1,083)| Interest and investment income (1,107)
(329)| Fair value gain/loss on Financial Instruments 3,126
26,851 |Deficit/(Surplus) for the year on HRA Services 3,313

Page 228
109



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance during 2024/25

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(24,819)|Housing Revenue Account balance brought forward (28,515)
26,851|(Surplus)/deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account 3,313
(32,725) Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under (9,170)
regulations

(30,693)|HRA balance before transfer to earmarked reserves (34,372)
2,178|Transfers to earmarked reserves 0
(28,515)|Housing Revenue Account balance carried forward (34,372)

Note to the Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000

Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure but excluded from the movement in the HRA balance

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

785| Pensions costs (transferred from the Pensions Reserve) 918

(14)| Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 0
Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to

(61,330) the Capital Adjustment Account (50,558)

399 Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 326

Services in relation to fair value changes in Bridge Close loan notes (326)

(60,230)| Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (49,966)

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
11,433|Receipts Reserve 12,771
8 Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a (131)
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve)

10,426|Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs Reserve 10,655

-|Voluntary provision for the repayment of debt. 2,800

500 Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the 500

Capital Adjustment Account)
-|Deferred Capital Receipt -

22,445|Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 26,595
14,201

5,061 Total Adjustments to Capital Resources:

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
(32,724)| regulations (9,170)

Page 229

110



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account

1. Information on Housing Fixed Assets

a) Number of Dwellings

2023/24 2024/25
Number Number
Flats

2,747| 1 bedroom 2,739

2,239| 2 bedrooms 2,265

361 3 bedrooms 366

21| 4 & 5 bedrooms 23

Houses

321 1 bedroom 320

1,076| 2 bedrooms 1,074

2,308| 3 bedrooms 2,307

186| 4 & 5 bedrooms 188
9,259| Total Number of Dwellings 9,282

b) Balance Sheet Value of HRA Tangible Fixed Assets
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Operational
689,261| Council Dwellings 704,653
13,762| Other Land & Buildings 13,989
0| Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 187
560| Infrastructure 406
45,475 Assets Under Construction 59,584
749,058 778,819
c) Valuation of Council Dwellings at Year End

2023/24 2024/25
£m £m
2,757 |Vacant Possession Value 2,819
2,068|Excess of Vacant Possession over Balance Sheet Value 2,114
689 (Balance Sheet value 705

The difference between the vacant possession value of HRA dwellings shown here and the balance sheet

Page 230

111



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

2. Movement on Major Repairs Reserve

Appendix C

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
3,863|Balance brought forward at start of year 8,194

10,426 Total depreciation from Capital Adjustment Account 10,654
(6,095)[less MRR used to fund Capital Expenditure on HRA Dwellings (10,673)
8,194| Balance carried forward at end of year 8,175
3. a) Total Capital Expenditure and Funding
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Capital expenditure on HRA property and other assets:
60,519 Dwellings 54,065
684 Other land buildings 722
13,795 Assets Under Construction 13,416
- Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 187
7,971 Investments 6,613
82,969| Total expenditure 75,003
Financed from:
6,095 Major Repairs Reserve 10,673
11,207 Grants and contributions 9,557
500 Revenue contributions 500
15,304 Capital receipts 16,600
49,863 Borrowing 37,673
82,969| Total funding 75,003
b) HRA Capital Receipts

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
4,586|Right to Buy sales 7,450
6,933|Other property sales 5,190

11,519|Total cash receipts 12,640
-|Transferred for Pooling 44
11,519| Total income 12,684

Page 231

112



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Appendix C

4. Depreciation

and Impairment Charge

The depreciation charged to the HRA breaks down as follows:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
10,231|Dwellings 10,365
139|Other buildings 136
0[Equipment 0
56| Infrastructure 154
10,426| Total HRA depreciation 10,655
44 088 |Revaluation credit/debit 30,706
54,514| Total HRA depreciation and Revaluation charge 41,361
5. Rent Income, Arrears and Bad Debts
2023/24, 2024/25
£'000|Rent £'000
117.30|Average weekly rent (including services charges unpooled) 128.10

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

£000(Arears and Bad Debts £000
5,335|Rent arrears at 31 March 4,942
(4,966)|Bad debts provision at 31 March (4,860)
369 Total 81

Page 232

113




London Borough of Havering Ap p e n d IX C

Statement o f Accounts 2024/25

Collection Fund
Account

Page 233

114



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Collection Fund 2024/25

These Accounts represent the transactions of the Collection Fund and have been consolidated with the Authority’s
main Accounts. The Accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis except in respect of sums due to or from the
General Fund and the Greater London Authority (GLA) for their share of the Collection Fund surplus and deficit.

Income and Expenditure Statement 2024/25

2023/24 2024/25
Business Council Tax Business Council Tax
Rates Rates
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income
(190,828)[  Income from Council Tax (203,881)
(71,314) Income from Business Rates (77,901)
(6,301) Transitional relief (882)
(2,117) (2,048)

Income collectable from Business Rate Supplement

Previous Year Deficit recognised in the CI&ES

(176) (989)[  London Borough of Havering 0
(193) Central Government
(217) (228)]  Greater London Authority 0
(80,318)[  (192,045)|Total Income (80,831) (203,881)

Expenditure

Previous Year Surplus recognised in the CI&ES

London Borough of Havering 4,336
Central Government 4,770
Greater London Authority 5,348
Precepts
23,988 149,071 London Borough of Havering 25,124 158,023
26,386 Central Government 27,636
29,585 39,128|  Greater London Authority 30,986 42,897

Charges to Collection Fund

1,315 0]  Write-offs 823 168

(710) 1,630] Increase/(decrease) in bad debt provision (285) 4,030
(4,638) Increase/(decrease) in provision for appeals 1
265 Cost of collection 264
Interest paid 235

Business Rate supplement

2,111 Payment to Greater London Authority 2,042

6 Cost of Collection 6
78,308 189,729 (Total Expenditure 101,296 205,118
(2,011) (2,316)[Movement in fund balance 20,465 1,237
(12,051) 1,450|Net deficit/(surplus) at start of year (14,062) (866)
(14,062) (866)|Net deficit/(surplus) carried forward notes 3a & 3b) 6,403 371

Page 234

115



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25
Notes to the Collection Fund Account

1. Income from Council Tax

Council Tax is based partly on the valuation of domestic properties and is partly a Personal Tax with
discounts for single occupiers. The Authority set the level of council tax in 2024/25 at £2,207.92 for band D
properties. The number of band D equivalent properties in each band making up the council tax base was

as follows:
Band Number of Band D
Equivalent
Properties
A1 2
A 2,204
B 5,666
C 21,299
D 31,5632
E 17,238
F 8,767
G 4,816
H 676
Allowance for losses in collection 1.30% (1,200)
Tax Base 91,000

2. Income from Business Rates

Under the arrangements for uniform business rates, the Authority collects Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) for
its area. These are based on local rateable values of £222.3m at 31 March 2025 (£223.1m at 31 March
2024) multiplied by uniform rates for large and small businesses. In 2024/25 the rate was 54.6p for large
businesses (51.2p in 2023/24) and 49.9p for small businesses (49.9p in 2023/24). The total amount, less
certain reliefs and other deductions, are shared between Central Government, Havering and The Greater
London Authority (GLA). In addition to the multiplier used to calculate business rates, all London local
authorities are required to collect from businesses with a rateable value in excess of £75,000 an additional
2p supplement, which is payable to the GLA. Under these arrangements the amounts included in these
Accounts can be analysed as follows

2a) Income collectable from Non Domestic Rates

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
105,835|Gross NNDR due in year 112,082
(34,521)|Less: allowances and other adjustments (34,181)
71,314 |Net NNDR Yield 77,901

Page 235

116



London Borough of Havering Ap pe n d IX C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

2b) Income collectable from Business Rate Supplement

2023/24, 2024/25
£000 £000
2,419|Gross Supplement due in year 2,116
(302)|Less: allowances and other adjustments (68)
2,117|Net Business Rate Surplus Yield 2,048

From 2024/25, Havering was a member of a Business Rates Pool overseen by Thurrock Council.

3. Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit
The deficit on the Collection Fund will be met by the precepting authority and the billing authority in the

following proportions and will be recovered by adjusting the level of precepts and demands in future
financial year.

3a) Council Tax

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(681)|London Borough of Havering 292
(185)|Greater London Authority 79
(866)| (Surplus) / Deficit 371

3b) Business Rates

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(4,219)[London Borough of Havering 1,921
(4,611)[Central Government 2,142
(5,232)|Greater London Authority 2,340
(14,062)| Deficit 6,403

Page 236

117



Pension Fund
Account

Page 237
118

Appendix C



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Appendix C

reporting period

2023/24 Notes 2024/25
£000 FUND ACCOUNT £000
Dealings with members, employers and others directly
involved in the fund
50,860 Contributions receivables 7 54,202
6,321| Transfers in from other pension funds 4,872
57,181 59,074
(44,696)| Benefits 8 (48,938)
(4,461)] Payments to and on account of leavers 9 (6,198)
(49,157) (55,136)
8,024| Net additions from dealings with members 3,938
(6,130)] Management expenses 10 (5,943)
Net additions/(deductions) including fund management
1,894 expenses (2,005)
Returns on investments
18,327| Investmentincome 1 20,118
Profit and losses on disposal of investments and changes in the
53,525 market value of investments 12a 20,829
71,852 Net returns on investments 40,947
Net increase in the net assets available for benefits during the
73,746
year 38,942
895,752| Opening net assets of the Fund at start of year 969,498
969,498| Closing net assets of the Fund at end of year 1,008,440
2023/24 Notes 2024/25
£000 NET ASSET STATEMENT £000
150| Long term investments - London CIV shareholding 12 150
946,100| Investment Assets 12 992,902
(449)| Investment Liabilities 12 (1,162)
945,801 Total net investments 991,890
24,707| Current Assets 20 17,306
(1,010)| Current Liabilities 21 (756)
969,498 Net assets of the Fund available to fund benefits at end of the 1,008,440

The financial statements summarise the transactions and the net assets of the London Borough of
Havering Pension Fund ("the Fund"). They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and
other benefits which fall due after the financial year end. The actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard IAS19 basis is disclosed at
Note 19 of these accounts.

Page 238

119




Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Notes to the Pension Fund Accounts
1 Description of the Fund

The Havering Pension Fund ("the Fund") is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is administered by the London Borough of
Havering. Responsibility for management of the Pension Fund has been
delegated to the Pensions Committee and the day to day operations of the Fund
have been delegated to the Statutory Section 151 officer.

a) General
The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is
administered in accordance with the following secondary legislation:

The LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended),

The LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014
(as amended),

The LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

The Fund is a contributory defined benefits scheme which provides pensions
and other benefits for pensionable employees of Havering Council and a range of
other scheduled and admitted bodies. Teachers, are not included as they come
within another national pension scheme.

The Fund is overseen by the London Borough of Havering Pensions Committee
and the Local Pension Board.

b) Membership
Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether
to join the scheme, remain in the scheme or make their own personal
arrangements outside the scheme.

Organisations participating in the Fund include:

Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are
automatically entitled to be members of the Fund.

Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the Fund under
an admission agreement between the Fund and the relevant organisation.
Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar bodies or private
contractors undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the
private sector.

Designated bodies, which are non-community schools, whose employer has
changed from the administering authority to a board of governors. Designated
body status allows continued membership in the LGPS for non-teaching staff at
non-community schools. These have been accounted for within London Borough
of Havering

There are 65 employer organisations with active members within the Havering
Pension Fund including the administering authority.

Page 239

120



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

The membership profile is detailed below:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
59|Number of employers with active members 65
Number of employees in scheme
5,205|London Borough of Havering 5,271
2,523|Scheduled bodies 2,566
112|Admitted bodies 152
7,840|Total 7,989

Number of pensioners and dependants

6,437|London Borough of Havering 6,555
534|Scheduled bodies 608
38|Admitted bodies 39
7,009|Total 7,202

Deferred pensioners

5,564 |London Borough of Havering 5,926
1,197|Scheduled bodies 1,475
39]Admitted bodies 42
6,800| Total 7,443
21,649|Total number of members in pension scheme 22,634

c) Funding

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made
by active members of the Fund in accordance with the LGPS Regulations 2013 and
range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the year ended 31 March 2025.
Employer contributions are set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations as at 31
March 2022. Current employer contribution rates range from 0% to 41.0% of
pensionable pay.

d) Benefits

Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable
pay and length of pensionable service. From 1 April 2014, the LGPS became a Career
Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme, whereby members accrue benefits based
on their average salary over their entire career, with each year's pension revalued to
account for inflation (Consumer Prices Index).

A range of other benefits are also provided including early retirement, disability
pensions and death benefits, as explained on the LGPS website — see link below.

https://www.lgpsmember.org/

Page 240

121



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

2 Basis of Preparation

The Statement of Accounts summarise the Fund’s transactions for the 2024/25
financial year and its position at year end, 31 March 2025. The accounts have been
prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 "(the Code") which is based upon
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public
sector, and Guidance on Investment Valuations issued by the Pensions Research
Accountants Group (PRAG).

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets
available to pay pension benefits. They do not take account of obligations to pay
pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year nor do they take
into account the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. The Code
gives administrating authorities the option to disclose this information in the net asset
statement, in the notes to the accounts or by appending an actuarial report prepared
for this purpose. The Fund has opted to disclose this information in Note 19.

The administering authority is satisfied that Havering Pension Fund is a going concern
and the financial statements for 2024/25 have been prepared on a going concern basis
as follows:

Investment returns were +3.64%% in 2024/25 and +2.38% over the three years to
31 March 2025. Invested asset values have increased by £38.9m over the year.

There is sufficient flexibility in the investment strategy to be able to respond to short
term market fluctuations. The Fund is comparatively low risk with smaller proportion of
its assets held in volatile equities.

Following the latest triennial actuarial valuation, the Fund was assessed as 80%
funded. A significant improvement on the funding level of 70% at 31 March 2019 and
includes a recovery period necessary to make good any potential increases in the
funding deficit. It is important to remember that that the Fund does not need to be
100% funded to be a going concern, it simply needs to be able to meet benefit
obligations each month as they fall due. The Fund held cash of £31.7m at the
Balance Sheet date, equivalent to 3% of the fund assets. In addition, the Fund
held £722m in Level 1 and Level 2 investment assets which could be realised
within 3 months if required. Based upon review of its operational cash flow
projections the Fund is satisfied it has sufficient cash to meet its obligations to pay
pensions, for at least 12 months from the date of authorisation of these accounts,
without the need to sell any investments.

Page 241

122



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fund Account — revenue recognition

a) Contribution income
Normal contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis as follows:

) Employee contribution rates are set in accordance with LGPS regulations, using
common percentage rates for all that arise according to pensionable pay

° Employer contributions are set at the percentage rate recommended by the Fund
actuary for the period to which they relate

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which
they are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary or on
receipt if earlier than the due date.

Additional employers' contributions in respect of ill-health and early retirements
(augmentation) are accounted for in the year the event arose. Any amount due in the
year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Amounts not due until
future years are classed as long term financial assets.

b) Transfers to and from other schemes
Transfers in and out relate to members who have either joined or left the fund.

Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally
when the member liability is accepted or discharged.

Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for in accordance with the terms of the transfer
agreement. The date set for the transfer of assets and liabilities is the date it becomes
recognised in the fund account.

c) Investment Income

i) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised in the Fund as it accrues, using the effective interest
rate of the financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination.

i) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted as ex-dividend.
Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net
Assets Statement as a current financial asset.

iii)  Distribution from Pooled Funds
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not
received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement
as a current financial asset.

Page 242

123



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

iv)  Property - Related Income
Property related income consists primarily of rental income and is recognised at the
date of issue.

v) Movement in the Net Market Value of Investments
Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and
comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.

Fund Account — Expense Iltems

d) Benefits payable
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at
the end of the financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net
Assets Statement as current liabilities, providing the payment has been approved.

e) Taxation
The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of
the Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received
and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas
investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is
permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises.

f) Management Expenses
i) Administrative Expenses

All staff costs of the pensions' administration team are recharged to the Fund.
Associated management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to
the Fund in accordance with Council policy and charged as expenses to the Fund.

i) Oversight and Governance Costs
All costs associated with governance and oversight are separately identified and
recharged to the Fund and charged as expenses to the Fund.

iii) Investment Management Fees
Investment management expenses are charged directly to the Fund as part of
management expenses and are not included in, or netted off from, the reported
return on investments. Where fees are netted off quarterly valuations by investment
managers, these expenses are shown separately in Note 10a and grossed up to
increase the change in value of investments.

Fees charged by external investment managers and custodian are set out in the
respective mandates governing their appointments. Broadly, these are based on
the market value of the investments under their management and therefore
increase or reduce as the value of these investments change.

The cost of obtaining investment advice from external consultants is included in
investment management charges.

Officers’ time spent on investment management functions are also charged to the
fund.

Page 243

124



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

g) Lifetime Allowances
Members are entitled to request the Fund pays their tax liabilities due in respect of
annual allowance and lifetime allowance in exchange for a reduced pension.

Where the Fund pays member tax liabilities direct to HMRC it is treated as an expense
in the year in which the payment occurs.

Net Assets Statement

h) Financial Assets

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the
reporting date. A financial asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date
the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date any
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of assets are recognised by the
Fund. Any amounts due or payable in respect of trades entered but not yet complete at
31 March each year are accounted for as financial instruments held at amortised cost
and reflected in the reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives in Note
12a.

The values of investments as shown in the Net Assets Statement have been
determined at fair value in accordance with the requirements of the code and IFRS13
(see Note 14). For the purposes of disclosing levels of fair value hierarchy, the Fund
has adopted the classification guidelines recommended in Practical Guidance on
Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association, 2016).

i) Foreign Currency Transactions
Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have
been accounted for at the spot market rates at the date of transaction. End of year spot
market exchange rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign currency bank
accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales
outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

i) Derivatives
The Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks
arising from its investment activites. The Fund does not hold derivatives for
speculative purposes.

Derivative contract assets are fair valued at bid prices and liabilities are fair valued at
offer prices. Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts are included in the
change in market value.

The future value of forward currency contracts is based on market forward exchange
rates at the year end date and determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the
outstanding contract was matched at the year end with an equal and opposite contract.

Page 244

125



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

k) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand (Fund's Bank account) and includes amounts held by
the Fund’s external managers.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.

1) Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund
becomes legally responsible for that liability. The Fund recognises financial liabilities
relating to investment trading at fair value and any gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the liability between contract date, the year-end date and
the eventual settlement date are recognised by the fund account as part of the change
in value of investments.

m) Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial
basis by the scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and
relevant actuarial standards. As permitted under the Code, the fund has opted to
disclose the actuarial present valve of promised benefits by way of a note to the Net
Asset Statement (Note 19).

n) Additional Voluntary Contributions
The fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for its members,
the assets of which are invested separately from those of the pension fund. AVCs are
not included in the accounts in accordance with Section 4(1)(b) of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2016 but are disclosed for information in Note 22.

o) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place giving rise to a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future
events.

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year-end giving
rise to a possible financial obligation whose existence will only be confirmed or
otherwise by the occurrence of future events. Contingent liabilities can also arise in
circumstances where a provision would be made, except that it is not possible at the
balance sheet date to measure the value of the financial obligation reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the net assets statement but are
disclosed by way of narrative in Note 25.

Page 245

126



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

4 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
Pension Fund Liability

The Pension Liability is calculated every three years by the appointed actuary, with
annual updates provided to the admitted and scheduled bodies in the Fund, as
requested, in the intervening years. The methodology used in the annual updates is in
line with accepted guidelines.

This estimate is subject to significant variances based on the changes to the
underlying assumptions which are agreed with the actuary and are summarised in
Note 18.

Actuarial revaluations are used to set future contribution rates and underpin the Fund’s
most significant investment management policies, for example in terms of the balance
struck between longer term investment growth and short term yield/return.

Page 246

127



Appendix C

Wwy8Z3 pue WySz3
Jo abuel ayy uIyIM

8sealoul 0 8Sealosp
pINoo uoien|ea

‘w800l 3

‘uonen|ea
BU} Ul paAJOAUI UOBWINRSS JO 92168p B sl a1ay) yons se pue
paisi| Ajo1ignd Jou ale SjusWlSaAUl 9S8y ZL0Z SaullepIing
uonenje) [euded ainjuap pue Aunb3 ajeAlld [euoneulaiu)

Sl

Gl

pInoo Aouejoadxe a)l| JoaquuaW Ul 8SeaJoul JBaA |
8SBaJoul %0 B Ul }nsal pjnod

a)ey asealou| Alejes ay ul aseasoul e'd 9L 0
9,2 JO 8sealoul ue Ul }nsal pjnoa (1dD)

a)ey 9seaJou| Uoisuad ayj ul asealoul ‘ed %0
92 10 9SBaJoul Ue Ul }Nsal p|noo

a)ey JuUnodsIq [eay 8y} ul aseasdap ‘e'd %10

:SMOJ|0} Se
Aqen) sehojdwa s,pung ayy uo syedwi Buimojjo)
ajewixoldde ay} aAey pjnod suondwnsse

ul sabuey) -ueoyiubis aq ued suondwnsse
|elienjoe ul sabueyo Jo s}iuaq Juswali}al
pasiwoud Jo anjeA juasaid a8y} uo s}o8ys ay |

w0/23 9yl 1ey) smoys JO anjeA pun4 |10} 8yl JO %/ sluasaidal 8y} U1 1no 18s sajdiourid pue sauljepInb yum souepiosoe (eg| ®10N)
sisAleuy AjiAnisusg UoIym ‘wo/Z3 |10} Sjuswisanul ¢ [aAe| ul siebeuely pund Ag paulwislop g Ued SJUSWISOAUL € [9A87| SJUSWISBAU| € [9AST
yAS aseaJoul %t B Ul nsal

paidde

aq 0] suondwnsse ay} Jnoge adIApe Jadxa yum pun4 ay}
apinoud oy pabebus si salenioe BuNsuod Jo Wl Y "S}asse
S,pun4 uo sulinjas pajoadxa pue ‘sabe juswalial ul sabueyo
‘asealoul 0} pajoaloid ale saleles Yolym je ajel ay} ‘pasn
ajel Junoosip ayj 0} buiejas syuswabpnl xajdwood jo Jaquinu
e uo spuadap suoisuad Aed 0} Ajijigel| 18U 8y} Jo uonewnsy

(61 ®10N)

S}Iyeuaq juswaliel
pasiwoud jJo anjeA
asald |euen)oy

(w3)
junowe Aiejauowi

ajewixouddy

suondwnssy
WioJj I3jIp s}NS3ay [enjay i 309443

sanuienaosun

w9}

:SMOJ|0} Sk aJe Jeak Buiwooylio) 8y} ul Jusuisnipe |elsiew Jo Ysu B S| 818y} YoIYyMm J0) JUsWS)L)s J8SSE Jau 8y} Ul swa)l 8y |

‘apew sajewnjsa pue suoidwnsse
B} WOJ} JUBIBYIP 8F PINOD SBWO02INO0 [eNnjoe ‘JOASMOH "suolje}oadxa aininy pue spuaJ) Jualind ‘eoualiadxa |edlo)sIy Jo Junodoe aye) suoidwnsse pue
sajewis3 ‘syjunowe pauodal sy} Joaye jey) suondwnsse pue sajewiiss ‘sjuswabpnl axew 0] Juswabeuew salinbas sjuswale)s |eloueul Jo uonjetedaud ay |

Auiepssun uonewsy Jo sa9unog Jolep 19Y3O pue aining ayj Jnoqy apey suondwnssy [

ON\mNON S3UNO0JJY JO juswalels

Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuon

Page 247



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

6 Events after the Reporting Date

The Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect events after the balance sheet
date, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting date and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for
issue. Adjustments are made that provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period unless deemed insignificant to the true and fair
value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities. Those events taking place after the date
of authorisation for issue will not be reflected in the statement of accounts. There
are no events after the reporting date that needs to be disclosed as part of the
financial statement.

Page 248

129



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Contributions Receivable

By category
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Employees’ contributions
Normal:
7,454 London Borough of Havering 7,907
2,003| Scheduled Bodies 2,280
146 Admitted Bodies 245
Additional contributions:
7| London Borough of Havering 7
-| Scheduled Bodies 1
9,610|Total Employees’ Contribution 10,440
Employers’ contributions
Normal:
20,088| London Borough of Havering 21,320
7,034| Scheduled bodies 7,812
616| Admitted bodies 968
Secondary contributions:
Employer contribution to deficit
12,821 London Borough of Havering * 13,033
269| Scheduled bodies 278
4| Admitted bodies 11
Employer reduction to surplus **
(39)] Scheduled bodies (36)
(31)] Admitted bodies (31)
Augmentation
488| London Borough of Havering 291
-| Scheduled bodies 116
41,250(Total Employers’ Contributions 43,762
50,860| Total Contributions Receivable 54,202

* The London Borough of Havering deficit figure reflects additional contributions made by the
Council to the Pension Fund. These consist £0m 24/25 (23/24 0.065m) voluntary planned

contributions

** Since the 2022 valuation performed by the actuary there are a number of employers with an

accounting surplus. These employers have a negative contribution rate.

By authority
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
40,858 London Borough of Havering 29,525
9,267| Scheduled bodies 10,450
735 Admitted Bodies 1,193
50,860| Total Contributions Receivable 41,168

Page 249

130




London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

8

Benefits Payable

By category
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
Pensions
36,105 London Borough of Havering 38,152
1,787| Scheduled Bodies 2,137
229| Admitted Bodies 251
38,121 |Pensions Total 40,540
Commutation and Lump Sum Retirements
4,656| London Borough of Havering 5,347
895| Scheduled Bodies 1,253
10| Admitted Bodies 146
5,561 |Commutation and Lump Sum Retirements Total 6,746
Lump Sum Death Benefits
787| London Borough of Havering 1,467
227| Scheduled Bodies 185
1,014|Lump Sum Death Benefits Total 1,652
44,696 | Total Benefits Payable 48,938
By authority
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
41,548| London Borough of Havering 44,966
2,909| Scheduled Bodies 3,575
239| Admitted Bodies 397
44,696 | Total Benefits Payable 48,938
Payments To and On Account of Leavers
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
42(Return of Contributions 90
4,294 |Transfer Values Paid Out 5,918
125|Interest Paid on Short Term Borrowing 190
4,461 |Payments to and on Account of Leavers 6,198

Page 250

131




Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

10 Management Expenses

By category
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
821|Administrative Costs 1,004
4,584 |Investment Management Expenses 4,264
628|Oversight and Governance Costs 552
90|Oversight and Governance - External Audit costs 114
7|Local Pension Board 9
6,130|Total Management Expenses 5,943

This analysis of the costs of managing the Fund during the period has been prepared in
accordance with CIPFA guidance.

In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on
investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of investment acquisitions
and in the proceeds from the sales of investments (see Note 12a).

The management expenses disclosed above include all investment management expenses
directly incurred by the Fund including those charged on pooled fund investments.

Page 251

132



(¥2/€202 Ul WyGe'|L3) [ood J9sse A|Q UopuoT 8y} Ul s}asse Joj pabieyd wg/G L3 sapnjoul,

(A4 R 7 sasuadx3 juswabeuepy jJusw)sau|
el S99} JUBWAINSEd|\ doUBWIONSd
ez so99} Apoisny
955V« 19€ 00¢C G66'C
Ge 0 0 Ge SJoBIUOD AdUBIIND PJBMIO - SBAIJBAIIBQ
049 0 0 049 198Q 8jeAlid
6.1 9zl 8zl Gzs Ayedoud pejood
SJuUaW)SaAuU| JIBY10
8191 zzl 0 965} Aynb3 [eqo|o
G¥6 0 4 €.8 alnjonuselu|
YASTA 475 0 4145 spung ymolas) payisisAig
4] 3 0 161 spuog
0003 0003 0003 0003
ejo S0J uoljoesue.l S99} paje|oy S99} Juswabeue
lejoL vz/€20z | B L ey 43 W ve/ezoe
(¥2/£202 Ul Wg /G| 3) |00d }9SSE A UOPUOT 8} Ul S}oSSE 10) pableyd wops |3 sepnjoul,
€92y [ sesuadx3 jusawabeuepy Juswysau]
- S99] Juswalnsesl) aduew.lollad
62 s99) Apoisn)
V€T P« 166G [4% S09°C
/€ - - /€ SJoBJUOD AduBIIND pJeMIO - SBAllBALIDQ
48 8le - 9¢s 198Q 8jeAlld
GGG 14" 4% 8.¢ Ausdold psjood
- - SJuaWSaAuU| J1BY}0
Ge9'l €zl - zLg'l Ainb3 |eqo|9
298 - - 298 aJnjonJiselju|
162 Ll - 08¢ spuog
0003 0003 0003 0003
ejo S0JD uoljoesue.l S99} paje|oy S99} Juswabeue
lejol G¢/¥20c } b 1L souewlopag ) N G2lveoc

sasuadxg juswabeue|y JuUswW)SaAU|

Page 252

eol

92/S70T S1Un0ddY Jo Juswajels
Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuo



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

11 Investment Income

By category
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
14,660|Pooled Investments - unit trusts and other managed funds 16,653
507|Bonds 249
173|Fixed income -
1,453|Pooled Property Investments 1,540
-|Income form Derivatives (Foreign Exchange Gains/(losses)) 110
1,427 |Interest on Cash Deposits 1,510
107 |Other income* 56
18,327 |Investment Income 20,118

* Fees and charges income

Page 253

134



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

12

Analysis of Investments

Appendix C

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

150

150

23,819

23,819

113,102
110,253
509,812

733,167

81,318
84,551

165,869

334
22,822

89

23,245

Investment Assets
LCIV Shareholding

Bonds
Index-Linked Securities

Pooled Investment
Fixed Interest Unit Trust
Infrastructure

Global Equity

Other Investments
Pooled Property
Private Debt

Derivatives - Forward Currency Contracts
Cash deposits Managers

Amounts receivable for sales

Investment income due

150

150

47,048

47,048

118,674
111,308
538,059

768,041

82,032
76,198

158,230

3,317
15,281
871
114

19,583

946,250

Total Investment Assets

993,052

(449)

Investment Liabilities
Derivatives - Forward Currency Contracts
Amounts payable for purchases

(376)
(786)

(449)

Total Investment Liabilities

(1,162)

945,801

Total Net Investments

991,890

Page 254

135



Appendix C

168166 628°02 108°5¥6

(982) - - saseyo.ind 10} a|gehed sjunowy

G386 rAS] 68 aNp awWodUul JUswisaAU|

182'GlL (821) 228'ce (ssebeuew puny) sysodaq ysed
.s9duejegd juswijsaAnul Jayjo

LLY'9.L6 65602 (68L°2Z1) GGL'PS1 068226

L¥6'C ziY'S (L¥Z'11) 1£8°8 (GL1) S}0BJJU0D AOUBLIND PIEMIO) — SBABALIRQ

0Lv'cL6 £8Y'GlL (zve‘oLt) ¥26'svl G00°€Z6

0€2'8sS1 (212) (261°L1) 0/zZ'0l 698'G91 SJUBWISAAU| JBYIO

161892 ¥G8'61 (G92°1¢) G8.'9op Lle'eel SB|0IUDA JUBWIISBAU| PBJ00d

670 LY (659°¢) (086°19) 69888 618'cT SOIIN08S PaYuUIl-Xapu|

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

G202C Ydie LE
je anjeA jeyiep

anjeA 1a)Ie\
ui abueyn

s)di9oaa aAljeALIap
pue sajes Jeah uj

sjuawied aAneALIap
pue saseyaand ueah uj

202 Ydie LE
je anjeA jayiep

SOAIJRALISP PUB SJUBWI)SBAUI Ul SJUSWISAOW JO UOIJBI|IOU0IDY Bzl

92/S70T S1Un0ddY Jo Juswajels
Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuo

Page 255



Appendix C

"S9|21YSA JuswsaAUl pajood UIylM SjuswlsaAul uo pealds Jayo-pig 8y} Yybnouy) paiindul e S}So9 J0alipul ‘OA0ge Paso|dsIp SIS0 UoloeSUEl) ay}
0} uonippe u] (WL9¢°03 ¥2/£202) W/6S 0F O} pajunowe Jeak ay) Bulinp palinoul S}S0d uojjoesuel| ‘sea) Jayjo pue Ainp dwels ‘SuoISSIWWOoD ‘saa)
Se yons awayos ay} 0} AoaJip pableyo s}soo apn|oul S)S00 uoljoesuel ] ‘spaadoid ajes pue saseyaind Jo }S0D 8y} Ul papnjoul 8Je S}S0D uoloesuel |

‘sjuswAed pue sydieoal ssolb se siseq ssolb e uo
payodal ale pouad ay) Buunp paes S}OeJUOD 1o} BA0JE 80U 8y} Ul pasiubodal aie (S}OBJIUOD JuaLINd PJEMIO)) SBAIJBALISP JO SBJES pue Saseydind

“1eak ay) Buunp sjuswsaAul JO SB|EeS U0 pasiieal sasso| pue sjiold Buipnjoul ‘Jeak ayy Bulinp awiy
Aue 1e pjay Sjusw)SaAUl JO dN|eA }o3JewW By} Ul S9SEaI0ap pue Sasealoul ||e sasudwod Jeak ay) Bulinp sjuswi)saAul JO anjeA jayJew ul abueyd ay|

108°S¥6 GZS'eS 20Z°'6.8

- € - X4 10dg

68 - g8l onp awooul JUBW)SaAU|

228'CC (871) 990°C1 (siebeuew puny) sysodeq yseo
.sdduejeg juswi}saAul J9yjo

068226 0.9°cS (e9z'es) 2£5'SS 156'998

(1) GolL'S (¢28'C1) Z¥0'9 1GG'L SJ0BJU0D AOUBLIND PIEMIO) — SBAIIBALIS(Q

S00°€Z6 G0S°‘8h (0o6€‘0v) 061°'6Y 00v°'G98

698Gl (vg6°c) (60g'8) 0Ge‘LL 786'991 SJUBLLISBAU| JBYI0

lle'eel ¥£6'GS (866'22) 25062 0€€'1L29 S9|2IYBA JUBLL)SBAU| PBJ00d

618°ce (r8r'e) (982°2) z5¢e'8 1€1'92 S9[}IN28S payull-Xxapu|

0 ol (260°1) 9g/ LGe S8NIN08g JsaIs)u| paxid

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

¥202Z Yyoie L€
je anjeA JoxJe

anjep 1a)iey
ul abueyn

s)dia0al aAIJeALIdp
pue sajes Jeak uj

sjuswAed anneAlIap
pue saseyound ieak uj

€202 Yo1e| L€
je anjeA JoxJe

92/S70T S1Un0ddY Jo Juswajels
Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuo

Page 256



Appendix C

00°001 068°166 pun4 |ejo1)00°00} 108°SV6
G6°'GE 055'95¢€ €1L°9¢ y6.L LYE
or'L 098°€l J18Yl0 1BYl0|[S6°L vZr'8l
ov'o0 926°€ awsabeuep Aouann) SJuaW)saAU| [|8ssny[8e 0 669°C
L6'C 8€8'8C 198 8}eAlld PS|00d SESSISAQ GSOd eliwliad|9l'¢ ¥E¥'0C
06°L L¥8'8l 199 8}eAlld P3|00d SE3SJaAO ¥SOd edlwliad|8l’¢ 860°0€
¥9'l ¥62 91 198( 8}eAlld P8|00d SES8SISAQ ALIY2INYJ[1L8’L €ClLL
€C'l vee el 198( 8}eAlld P8|00d SESSISAQ I11IY24nyD|$8°L 6v¥LL
10°S Gel'6y 2InjonJjseJju| psjo0d SeasIanO ueblol dr|/€'S 808'0S
€9'C L11'92 91njonJjseJju| pajood SeasIanO Al 4SIS [E}de] pJojels|69°g SEV'SC
8.'L 9921 8InjonJiselju| psjood SeasIsAQ Il 4SIS [eNde] pioyels(ol g 25861
Zl's 162°0G Auadoid pajood Auadoid san|/1L's 998'8¥
6LV 687 Lv Spuog SpeJs) JUsW]SaAU| spuog pa)ulT Xapu| uopuoT [eAoH[zZG'Z 618°€
4P 1280 ISnJ| Jlun 1salsju] paxi4 ¥pal) 19ssy Binjy\ uopuoT [eAoy[96'9 181'G9
:]00d }9SSE A\|D UOpUOT] 9Yj JO opiSjno pabeuew Sjuallsanu|
S0°v9 0ve's€9 18J01 AID uopuoT|/8'€9 L0009
Gl'e 182'LE Auadoid pajood [eqoio : v mm_m_mo EV'E lS¥'ce
. ‘ PHOAA 3IMin4/s}axIeN NIDT) Juswebeuep| .
0lee vicelc Buibisaw3 /seiinb3 |eqo|o) aAIssed JusWisSaAU| |elaudn) % [eba] 68°61 €L0'88}
:jood jasse A|D uopuoT yjim paubije sjusw)saau] SN1d
08'8¢€ S¥8'¥8¢€ GG 0¥ £87°€8¢
404 ¥58°Ly A wvcovm_ _mnm_o OONId|L0’S €EY' LY
. ‘ Vdd3d) paublly . ‘
¥6°G 088 89 stieq anIssaiBoig Ainbg anissey pajood SIOSIAPY [BQOID 1934)S S1e1S|L8°S ¢es SS
. ‘ pung . ‘
6v'€l c08'ceel pauBIly SHed yMols eydy [BqolS) pejood pioyio aljied|€9'91 68¢ LSL
1871 G66°'LL S9|qemausy aJnjonJiselju| psjood Headatiols 0s'L 191yl
9 }o0oJquINY ‘Moouxoe|g ybisalo4
[Ix4" ¥91°921 pund uiniay 8}njosqy pajood J9PNd|2cGLL 826801
2c0'0 0Gl pajonbun saiinb3 AIDQ UopuoT|z0o'o 051
:]00d }asse A\|D uopuo Aq pabeuew sjuawysanu]
% [o003 % [0003

G20¢C YdIe|N L€ anjeA

ajepue

Jobeuepy

202 YdIBN L€ SnjeA

Jabeuepy pun4 Aq pasAjeue sjuswisanu] ‘gzl

92/S70T S1Un0ddY Jo Juswajels
Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuo

Page 257



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

12c. Assets with greater than 5% holding

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the Fund:

Market o

Value Tf;t:: Securit Market Value EH BN
31 March| %% y 31 March Fund

2024 2025

£000 £000
157.289| 16.63 II;E:gon CIV Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Paris Aligned 133,802 13.27
108,928| 11.52|London CIV Ruffer Absolute Return Fund 126,164 12.52
107,757 11.39|LGIM Future World Fund 133,667 13.26
65,670 6.94[Royal London Multi Asset Credit Pooled Fund 70,821 7.03

London CIV Pooled Passive Equity Progressive Paris

55,522 5.87 Aligned (PEPPA) 58,880 5.84
48,866 5.17{UBS Property 50,751 5.04
50,808 5.37|JP Morgan infrastructure 49,725 4.93
594,840( 62.89|Total Fund 623,810 61.89

12d. Stock Lending

We do not carry out stock lending directly. We are investors of a pooled fund with the passive equity
manager, LGIM, who carry out stock lending as part of the Fund’s activities. Stock Lending occurs in limited
number of overseas equities index funds.

The Stock Lending programme is managed and administered by the custodian of the funds (Citibank) within
the risk control parameters set by LGIM. The programme has been operating for over 10 years and enjoys
an indemnity from Citibank. Stock lending is only undertaken with counterparties who have satisfied the
requirements in terms of market capability and minimum credit standing.

All income arising from stock lending less the custodian/administrator's costs are credited to the funds
lending the stocks. LGIM does not receive any revenue from the stock lending. As at 31 March 2025, the
value of quoted equities on loan was £194.5m (31 March 2024 £163.4m) These equities continue to be
recognised in the fund's financial statements.

Page 258

139



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

13 Analysis of derivatives

Objectives and policies for holding derivatives

Most of the holdings in derivatives are to hedge liabilities or hedge exposure to reduce risk in the Fund.
Derivatives maybe used to gain exposure to an asset more efficiently than holding the underlying asset.
The use of derivatives is managed in line with the investment management agreement agreed between
the Fund and various investment managers.

Forward foreign currency

The Fund currently has exposure to forward currency contracts and the purpose of this is to reduce the
Fund’'s exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates. The Fund managers who use forward currency
contracts are Royal London and Russell. A breakdown of forward contracts held by the Fund as at 31
March 2025 and prior year is shown below:

Settlement Currency Local Currency Local Asset Value Liability
Bought  Value Sold Value (Unrealised Value
Gain) (Unrealised
Loss)

000 000 £000 £000
One to six months GBP 56,803|EUR (67,793) 44 (219)
One to six months GBP 68,136|USD (86,982) 823 (80)
One to six months GBP 5,126|AUD (10,368) 117 (0)
One to six months EUR 6,542|GBP (5,497) 9 (6)
One to six months uUsb 5,702|GBP (4,453) 5 (40)
Up to one month GBP 38,107|(USD (46,798) 1,847 -
Up to one month GBP 2,809|AUD (5,521) 143 -
Up to one month GBP 24,309(EUR (28,609) 329 -
Up to one month usb 558|GBP (453) - (20)
Up to one month AUD 471|GBP (236) - 9)
Up to one month EUR 162|GBP (136) - (0)
One to six months AUD 363|GBP 177) - (2)
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2025 3,317 (376)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2025 2,941
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2024 | 334 (449)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2024 (115)

Page 259

140



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

14 Fair Value Basis of Valuation

Appendix C

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. All assets have been valued using fair value
techniques based on the characteristics of each instrument, where possible using market based information.

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year.

Asset and Liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of information
used to determine fair values.

Level 1

Where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
comprising quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts.

Level 2

Where quoted market prices are not available or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value based on

observable data.
Level 3

Where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable

market data.

The Valuation basis for each category of investment asset is set out below:

instruments
Infrastructure Funds
(JP Morgan)

are determined by the
Advisor at valuation
date and independently
appraised and adjusted
on a quarterly basis.

techniques can be
used, the market,
income or cost
approach. The
appropriateness of
each approach
depends on the type of
asset or business
being valued.

Description of Value Basis of valuation Observable and Key sensitivities affecting the
asset hierarchy unobservable inputs |valuations provided
Market quoted Level 1 Published bid market Not required Not required
investments price ruling on the final
day of the accounting
period
Quoted bonds Level 1 Fixed interest securities |Not required Not required
are valued at a market
value based on current
yields
Pooled quoted Level 2 Published bid market Not required Not required
investments price ruling on the final
day of the accounting
period
Pooled unquoted Level 2 Developed using market |No material difference |Not required
investments data between the value of
assets & liabilities and
their fair value
Forward foreign Level 2 Market forward Exchange rate risk Not required
exchange exchange rates at the
derivatives year-end
UK Pooled Level 3 Valuations carried out  |Market value in Valuations could be affected by
instruments property by the property funds accordance with the  [significant differences in rental value
funds external valuers, Knight |“RICS” Appraisal and [and rental growth
Frank LLP Valuation standards
Overseas Pooled Level 3 The valuation function is |A Pricing Committee, [Valuations could be affected by
instruments property performed by the composed of senior significant differences in rental value
funds (CBRE) Alternative Investment [members of the AIFM, |and rental growth. There may be a
Fund Manager (AIFM) in|is in place, who meet |timing difference between the date of
accordance with the quarterly and is the last reported underlying property
AIFMD responsible for valuation and the date of the Funds
overseeing proposed [financial statements, during which the
adjustments to the underlying property valuation may
value of investments [have increased or decreased by a
significant amount
Overseas Pooled Level 3 Estimated fair values Three valuation Risks to the valuation involve a

number of local, national and
international economic conditions.
Timing difference between the date of
the last reported valuation and the
date of the Funds financial
statements means that valuations
may have increased or decreased by
a significant amount

Page 260

141




London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Appendix C

Description of Value Basis of valuation Observable and Key sensitivities affecting the
asset hierarchy unobservable inputs |valuations provided
Overseas Pooled Level 3 Fair Value is determined |Fair Value is Risks to the valuation involve a
instruments by the Fund manager in |determined by the number of local, national and
Infrastructure Funds accordance with Fund manager in international economic conditions.
(Stafford Capital) guidelines and principles|accordance with Timing difference between the date of
set out by International [guidelines and the last reported valuation and the
Private Equity and principles set out by  |date of the Funds financial
Venture Capital International Private  [statements means that valuations
Valuations. Equity and Venture may have increased or decreased by
Capital Valuations. a significant amount
Overseas Pooled Level 3 Valuations undertaken [Unobservable inputs |Significant increases (decreases) in
instruments Private quarterly and are determined by the [discount yields could result in lower
Debt (Churchill) determined by the Investment Manager |(higher) fair value measurement.
Investment Manager. and shall take into Timing difference between the date of
To determine the value [accountitems thatit [the last reported valuation and the
the manager relies on  [reasonably believes [date of the Funds financial
guidance by various would impact the statements means that valuation may
regulatory and industry |valuation (such as have increased or decreased by a
organisations and expenses and significant amount.
authorised to use reserves).
independent third party
pricing services and
valuation firms.
Overseas/UK Level 3 Fair Value is determined |Unobservable inputs  |Use of estimates and changes in
Pooled instruments by the AIFM based on |are determined by the |assumptions may have significant
Private Debt advice from Portfolio Investment Manager. |impact on the valuations. Timing
(Permira) Manager and based on difference between the date of the
the International Private last reported valuation and the date of
Equity and Venture the Fund's financial statements
Capital guidelines or means that valuation may have
other standards agreed increased or decreased by a
by the Senior Fund significant amount.
Advisory Committee.
Overseas/UK Level 3 Fair Values are Unobservable inputs  [Use of estimates and changes in
Pooled instruments calculated in whole or in |are determined by the [assumptions may have significant
Renewable part using techniques Investment Manager. |impact on the valuations. Timing
Infrastructure based on assumptions difference between the date of the
using Investment last reported valuation and the date of
Association Statement the Fund's financial statements
of Recommended means that valuation may have
Practice (IA SORP) increased or decreased by a
significant amount.

Page 261

142




London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

15a

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with

Appendix C

independent

performance measurement service, the fund has determined that the valuation methods described
above are likely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent
potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2025.

Assessed Value at 31 Value on Value on
valuation March 2025 increase decrease

ranae (+/-)
% £000 £000 £000
Private Debt 4.70 76,198 79,779 72,616
Pooled Property 6.10 82,032 87,036 77,028
Infrastructure 6.00 111,308 117,986 104,629
Total 269,538 284,801 254,273
Assessed Value at 31 Value on Value on
valuation March 2024 increase decrease

ranae (+/-)
% £000 £000 £000
Private Debt 6.99 84,551 90,461 78,641
Pooled Property 719 81,318 87,164 75,471
Infrastructure 5.71 110,252 116,548 103,957
Total 276,121 294,173 258,069

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following tables provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which fair value is observable.

Quoted Using| With significant
Market price observable| unobservable
inputs inputs
Values at 31 March 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial as_sets at fair value 63.314 659,825 269,538 992,676
through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss (786) ] B (786)
Net Financial Assets 62,528 659,825 269,538 991,890
Quoted Using| With significant
Market price observable| unobservable
inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Values at 31 March 2024
He § £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 259,541 410,254 276,121 945,916
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss ] (115) ] (115)
Net Financial Assets 259,541 410,139 276,121 945,801

The adminstering authority has not entered into any financial guarantees that are

accounted for as financial instruments.

Page 262

143

required to be




Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

15b Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurement within Level 3

Market|Purchases |Sales 2024/25 Realised Market

Value Total gains / Value

31 March losses 31 March

2024 2025

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Infrastructure 110,253 6,709 (4,152) 616 (2,118) 111,308
Pooled Property 81,318 0 0 0 715 82,033
Private Debt 84,551 10,270 (16,997) 68 (1,695) 76,197
Total 276,122 16,979 (21,149) 684 (3,098) 269,538

Unrealised and realised gains and losses are recognised in the profit and losses on disposal and
changes in the market value of investments line of the fund account

There were no transfers between levels.

Page 263

144



89.°200°} 691696
(vee‘t) 2s.L°ze 0LY'9.L6 1ejo} pueas((300°L) 182°LY 068226
(vee‘t) 0 (9.2¢) lejo sanijiqer [eroueuld((800°L) 0 (6tv)
(809) - - sJ0)pa10((800°L) - -
- (92¢) S}0BJUOD BAlBALRQ | - - (6t71)
(982) - - seoueleg juswisanu| Joyo| - - -
sani|iqel |efoueul

- zsL°zE 98.°9.6 [ejoL sjessy [eldueuld( - 182°Ly 6€€'€Z6

- 8l - sio)geq| - 66 -

- G86 - saoue|eq JuswisaAu| Jaylo| - 68 -

- 6YvLLE - useg| - 660'LY -

- - 2028 Auedoid| - - 81e18

- - 86192 192@ d1eAud| - - [Rele

- - 17089/ S9IIYS/ JusWISeAUl pajood| - - l91'ee.

- - LlLE'e sjoenuod aaneAleq| - - vee

- - 8Y¥0' LY Se)N08s paxul Xapu| - spuog| - - 618'cZ

- - 0S1L sjuawisaAu| wia| Bbuo| - - oSl

S)osSsy |eloueul
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
SSO[puUe SSO[pue
}S09 pasiJowe | }s09d pasijowe joud ybnoayy }S09 pasijiowe | }s09d pasijowe yyoad ybnoayy
je saijljiqeiT je s)}ossy 9NjeA lle4 je sailjljiqeiT je s)lassy 9NjeA lle4
G20Z YoI1el L ¥20Z YoI1el Lg

‘pouad Buiunoooe ayy Bulinp payisse|oal

2J9M sjuswinsul [eioueUl ON “Buipesy juswa)e)s Josse Jou pue AloBsies Ag sjuswiniisul [eloueul Jo sjunowe Bulklied ay) sesAjeue ajqe) Buimolo) sy

sjuawinjsui [ejoueuly jo uonesyisse|y (e)

sjuswnijsuj [ejoueulq 9}

92/S70T S1Un0ddY Jo Juswajels
Sunaney jo ysnosog uopuo

Page 264



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

(b) Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
53,525|Financial assets 20,829
53,525(|Fair value through profit and (loss) 20,829
17 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Risk and Risk Management

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’'s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e.
promised benefits payable to members). Therefore the aim of investment risk management is
to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and to maximise the
opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves this through asset
diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate
risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to
ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows. The Fund manages
these investment risks as part of its overall pension fund risk management programme.

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the pension fund
committee. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the authorities’ pensions operations. Polices are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
activity and in market conditions.

(@) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its
investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure
depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the
asset mix.

The objective is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable
parameters, whilst optimising investment return.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the
portfolio in terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate
market risk, the pension fund and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of
market conditions and benchmark analysis.

Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign
exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market.

The Fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. The Fund's investment managers

mitigate this risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other financial
instruments is monitored to ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment strategy.

Page 265

146



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Other Price Risk — Sensitivity Analysis

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movements during the financial
year, in consultation with Pensions & Investments Research Consultants (PIRC), it has been
determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for 2024/25,
assuming that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates and interest rates, remain the

same:
Asset Type Value as at 31|Potential market Value on Value on
March 2025 movements Increase Decrease

£000 % £000 £000

Pooled Equities 538,208 12.09 603,277 473,139
Fixed income 165,723 9.67 181,748 149,697
Infrastructure 111,308 6.03 118,020 104,596
Pooled Property 82,032 6.07 87,015 77,049
Private Debt 76,198 4.69 79,772 72,624
Cash 18,421 1.61 18,718 18,124
Total 991,890 1,088,550 895,229
Asset Type Value as at 31|Potential market Value on Value on
March 2024 movements Increase Decrease

£000 % £000 £000

Pooled Equities 687,758 12.49 773,659 601,857
Pooled Overseas Unit Trusts 130,110 6.99 139,205 121,015
Pooled Property 81,318 719 87,164 75,471
Total Bonds 23,819 5.65 25,164 22,473
Cash 22,796 0.85 22,990 22,602
Total 945,801 1,048,182 843,418

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the
carrying value of fund assets, both of which affect the value of the net assets available to pay
benefits. A 100 basis point (BPS) movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity
applied as part of the Fund’s risk management strategy.

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

The analysis that follows assumes all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant,
and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 BPS (1%)
change in interest rates. The analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not
affect the interest received on fixed interest assets but will reduce their fair value, and vice versa.
Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of cash and cash equivalent balances but they
will affect the interest income received on those balances.

Page 266

147



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Assets exposed to Interest Rate Risk

Asset Values

Potential

Assets exposed to interest rate movement on Value on Value on
. as at 31 i .
risk 1% change in increase Decrease
March 2025 .
interest rates
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bond Securities 47,143 471 47,615 46,672
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,299 153 15,452 15,146
Cash Balances 16,163 162 16,325 16,001
Total Change in Asset Value 78,605 786 79,391 77,819
Asset Values LT
Assets exposed to interest rate as at 31 movement on Value on Value on
. o i .
risk March 2024 1 %o change in increase Decrease
interest rates

£000 £000 £000 £000
Bond Securities 23,819 238 24,057 23,581
Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,822 228 23,050 22,594
Cash Balances 24,276 243 24,519 24,034
Total Change in Asset Value 70,917 709 71,626 70,209

Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on any cash balances and

investment assets not denominated in UK sterling.

Following analysis of historical data in consultation with PIRC, it has been determined that a likely
volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements is 6.5% over a rolling 36 month period.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

A 6.5% strengthening and weakening of the pound against the various currencies in which the Fund
holds investments would increase or decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:

Currency Risk — Sensitivity Analysis

Asset Values

Assets exposed to currency as at 31 Potential Market| Value on Value on
risk March 2025 movement increase Decrease
£000 6.50% £000 £000
Overseas Pooled 153,816 9,998 163,814 143,818
Overseas Cash 11,632 756 12,388 10,876
Total change in assets 165,448 10,754 176,202 154,694
Assets exposed to currency Asz:ta\tla?’l:les Potential Market| Value on Value on
risk March 2024 movement increase Decrease
£000 5.55% £000 £000
Overseas Pooled 162,561 9,022 171,583 153,539
Overseas Cash 13,333 740 14,073 12,593
Total change in assets 175,894 9,762 185,656 166,132

Page 267

148




Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The market values generally
reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided
for in the carrying value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities.

In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk. However,
the selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk
that may occur through the failure to settle a transaction in a timely manner.

Credit risk may also occur if an employing body not supported by central government does not pay
contributions promptly, or defaults on its obligations. The Fund has not experienced any actual
defaults in recent years and the current practice is to obtain a guarantee before admitting new
employers so that all pension obligations are covered in the event of that employer facing financial
difficulties.

Cash not needed to settle immediate financial obligations are invested by the administering authority
in accordance with the Treasury Investment Strategy. The Treasury Investment Strategy sets out the
criteria for investing and selecting investment counterparties and details the approach to managing
risk.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure that it always has adequate cash resources to
meet its commitments.

The Fund's cash holding under its treasury management arrangements as at 31 March 2025 was
£16.163m (31 March 2024 £24.163m).The Fund has immediate access to its cash holdings that are
invested by the Authority and periodic cash flow forecasts are prepared to manage the timing of the
Fund’'s cash flows. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms part of the
Fund’s cash management policy and in line with the Fund’s investment strategy holds assets that
are considered readily realised.

The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. llliquid
assets are those assets which will take longer than three months to convert into cash. As at 31
March 2025 the value of liquid assets was £739m, which represented 73% of the total Fund (31
March 2024 £670m, which represented 72% of the total fund assets).

(d) Refinancing Risk

The key risk is that the Fund will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its pension fund
financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The administering authority does not
have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its investment strategies.

Page 268

149



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

18 Funding Arrangements
Actuarial Statement for 2024/25

This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1) (d) of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. It has been prepared at the request of the
administering authority of the Fund for the purpose of complying with the aforementioned
regulation.

Description of Funding Policy
The Funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement
(FSS) dated January 2024. In summary, the key funding objectives are as follows:

» take a prudent long-term view to secure the regulatory requirement for long-term
solvency, with sufficient funds to pay benefits to members and their dependants;

* use a balanced investment strategy to minimise long-term cash contributions from
employers and meet the regulatory requirement to memebers and their dependants

» where appropriate, ensure stable contribution rates;

» reflect different employers' characteristics to set their contribution rates, using a
transparent funding strategy; and

* use reasonable measures to reduce the risk of an employer defaulting on its pension
obligations.

The FSS sets out how the administering authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of
securing the solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2022. This valuation
revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 2022 were valued at £920 million, were
sufficient to meet 80% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised retirement
benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2022 valuation was £229
million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving
full funding within a time horizon and probability measure as per the FSS. Individual
employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026 were set in
accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2022 valuation report
and FSS.

Method

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account
pensionable membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected
future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable
membership.

Page 269

150



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Assumptions

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the
valuation of the Fund assets at their market value.

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2022 valuation were as follows:

Financial assumptions 31 March 2022
%
Discount Rate for Period 3.5
Salary increases assumption 3.4
Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.7

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life
expectancy assumptions are based on the Fund’s VitaCurves with improvements in line with
the Continuous Mortality Investigation (CMI) 2021 model, with a 0% weighting of 2021 (and
2020) data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial adjustment of 0.25% and a long term rate of
1.50% p.a. Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are

as follows:
Males Females
Current Pensioners 21.7 years 24.3 years
Future Pensioners™ 22.6 years 25.8 years

* Aged 45 at the 2022 Valuation

Copies of the 2022 valuation report and FSS are available on request from the
administrating authority to the Fund.

Experience over the period since 31 March 2022

Markets were disrupted by the ongoing war in Ukraine and inflationary pressures in 2022
and 2023, impacting on investment returns achieved by the Fund's assets. Asset
performance improved in 2024 and early 2025; however the recent increase in US tariffs on
imports has caused significant market volatility. The peak of this market volatility was
experienced immediately after 31 March 2025, however, generally lower than expected
asset returns were experienced in the month immediately prior to this.

High levels of inflation in the UK (compared to recent experience) have resulted in higher
than expected LGPS benefit increases of 10.1% in April 2023 and 6.7% in April 2024.
However, inflation has reduced towards historical levels and the Bank of England’s target
(2% pa), with LGPS benefits increasing by 1.7% in April 2025.

There has been a significant shift in the wider economic environment since 2022, resulting
in generally higher expected future investment returns and a reduction in the value placed
on the Fund’s liabilities. Overall, the funding position is likely to be stronger than at the
previous formal valuation at 31 March 2022.

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2025, and will be finalised by

31 March 2026. The FSS will also be reviewed at that time, and a revised version will come
into effect from 1 April 2026.

Page 270

151



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

19 Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirements

If an actuarial valuation has not been prepared at the date of the financial statements, IAS26 requires the
most recent valuation to be used as a base and the date of the valuation disclosed. The valuation should be
carried out using assumptions in line with IAS19 and not the Fund’s funding assumptions.

31 March 2024 |Year Ended 31 March 2025
£m £m
Present Value of Promised
(1,074) Retirement Benefits (936)
Fair Value of Scheme assets
969 (bid Value) 1,008
(105)[Net Liability 72

The promised retirement's benefits at 31 March 2025 have been projected using a roll forward approximation
from the latest formal funding valuation as at 31 March 2022. The approximation involved in the roll forward
model means that the split of benefits between the classes of members may not be reliable. However the
actuary is satisfied that the total figure is a reasonable estimate of the actuarial present value of benefit
promises.

The above figures include both vested and non-vested benefits, although the latter is assumed to have a
negligible value. Further, the actuary has not made any allowance for unfunded benefits.

It should be noted that the above figures are appropriate for the administrating authority only for preparation of
the pension fund accounts. They should not be used for any other purpose (i.e. comparing against liability
measures on a funding basis or a cessation basis).

Assumptions

The assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS19 report and are different as at
31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. It is estimated that the impact of the change in financial assumptions to
31 March 2025 is to decrease the actuarial present value by £168m. It is estimated that the impact of the
change in demographic and longevity assumptions is to decrease the actuarial present value by £2m.

Financial assumptions
The actuary’s recommended financial assumptions are summarised below:

31 March 2024 |Year Ended (% p.a) 31 March 2025
% p.a. % p.a.
2.80 Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 2.80
3.50 Salary Increase Rate 3.50
4.80 Discount Rate 5.80

Demographic assumptions

Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2023 model, with a
15% weighting of 2023 (and 2022) data, 0% weighting of 2021 (and 2020) data, standard smoothing (Sk7),
initial adjustment of 0.25% and a long term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a.. Based on these assumptions,
the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Males Females
Current Pensioners 21.1 years 23.8 years
Future Pensioners (assumed to be aged 45 at the latest valuation 22.0 years 25.3 years

Page 271

152



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

Sensitivity Analysis

CIPFA guidance requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used.
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the liabilities are set out below:

Approximate %
increase to Approximate
Change in assumptions at 31 March 2025 promised monetary amount
retirement (Em)
benefits
0.1% p.a. decrease in the Discount Rate 2% 15
1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% 37
0.1% p.a. increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0% 1
0.1% p.a. increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 2% 15

Page 272

153



London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

20

21

22

Current Assets

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
70|Contributions due - employers 199
261|Contributions due - employees 621
113|Pension Fund Bank Account Balances 305
24,163|Cash deposit with LB Havering 16,163
99|Receivables control account 18
24,706 (Current Assets 17,306
Current Liabilities
2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
(447)|Benefits Payable (148)
(270)|Sundry Creditors (330)
(293)|Holding Accounts (278)
(1,010)(Current Liabilities (756)

Additional Voluntary Contributions

Appendix C

Contributions

Market Value

Market Value

Contributions

Paid AVC Provider Paid
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25
£000 £000 £000 £000
47 807 |Prudential 784 32

- 97|Standard Life 86 -

Page 273

154




Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

23 Agency Services
The Fund pays discretionary awards to the former employees of Havering. The amounts
paid are not charged to the pension fund.

2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000
1,330{Payments on behalf of Havering Council 1,364

24 Related Party Transactions

The Fund is required to disclose material transactions with bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Fund, or to be controlled or influenced by the Fund.

The Fund is administered by the London Borough of Havering. During the reporting period,
the council incurred costs of £1.216m (2023/24 £1.077m) in relation to the administration
and management of the fund and was reimbursed by the Fund for these expenses.

As the largest employer in the Fund, the administering authority contributed in 2024/25
£34.644m (2023/24 £33.396m) to the Pension Fund in respect of employer’s contributions.
All amounts due to the Fund were settled within the year.

Part of the Pension Fund internal cash holdings are invested on the money markets by the
treasury management operations of London Borough of Havering, through a service level
agreement. As at 31 March 2025 cash holdings totalled £16.163m (2023/24 £24.163m),
earning interest over the year of £1.025m (2023/24 £0.989m).

The Fund is a minority shareholder in the London CIV Pool limited, and shares valued at
£0.150m at 31 March 2025 (2023/24 £0.150m) included as long term investments in the net
asset statement. London CIV manage a divers portfolio of pension fund investments, as
detailed in Note 12b. During 2024/25 the Fund incurred costs of £1.546m were charged to
the Fund by the London CIV in respect of investment management services (2023/24
£1.578m).

Governance

Responsibility for management of the Fund has been delegated to the Pensions Committee
and the day to day operations of the Fund have been delegated to the Statutory Section 151
officer and the Managing Director of oneSource.

No members of the Pension Fund Committee are in receipt of pension benefits from the
Havering Pension Fund.

Each member of the Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board are required to declare
their interests at each meeting.

During the year no Member or Council officer with direct responsibility for Fund issues has
undertaken any declarable material transactions with the Pension Fund.

The members of the Pensions Committee receive an attendance allowance for each
meeting and these costs are included within Note 10.

The members of the Local Pension Board receive an attendance allowance for each
meeting and these costs are included within Note 10.

Page 274

155



Appendix C

London Borough of Havering
Statement of Accounts 2025/26

24a Key Management Personnel

Paragraph 3.9.4.4 of the Code exempts local authorities from the key management
personnel disclosure requirements of 1AS24, on the basis that the disclosure requirements
for officer remuneration and members allowances detailed in section 3.4 of the Code (which
are derived from the requirements of Schedule 1 of The Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 satisfy the key management personnel disclosure requirements of paragraph 16 of IAS
244. This applies in equal measure to the accounts of the Havering Pension Fund.

The disclosures required by the above legislation can be found in the main accounts of
Havering Council.

25 Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments

Outstanding capital commitments (investments) at 31 March 2025 were £36.63m (31 March
2024 £50.24m). These commitments relate to outstanding capital call payments due on
unquoted limited partnership funds held in Private Debt and Infrastructure parts of the
portfolio. The amounts ‘called’ by these funds are irregular in both size and timing.

Following the Freedom and Choice provisions announced in the 2014 Budget, the Pension
Fund has seen some enquiries from members about transferring benefits out of the LGPS.
There are potential liabilities of £0.402m (2023/24 £0.003m) in respect of individuals
transferring out of the Pension Fund upon whom the Fund is awaiting final decisions.
Information is not available which shows how much of this is attributable to Freedom and
Choice provisions.

Five admitted bodies in the Pension Fund hold insurance bonds or guarantees in place to
guard against the possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds
total £2.587m and are drawn down in favour of the Pension Fund. Payment will only be
triggered in the event of employer default.

One admitted body, awaiting entry into the Fund, is subject to a pending legal agreement,
they will hold a bond or guarantee totalling £0.010m.

The administering authority, in conjunction with the other shareholders in the London CIV,
has entered into an exit payment agreement with the London CIV, acting as guarantor. The
Fund will meet any exit payments due should the London CIV cease its admission
arrangements with the City of London. Should the amount become due the Fund will meet
1/32 of the costs. The exact amount would only be determined at the time of cessation.

Page 275

156



London Borough of Havering .
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Glossary

Accounting Policies Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how
the effect of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements through:

(i) recognising

(i) selecting measurement bases for, and

(iii) presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and charges to reserves.

Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques.

Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in financial statements. For
example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may specify whether an asset or a loss is to be
recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; and where in the revenue account or balance sheet it is to be
presented.

Accruals The amounts by which receipts or payments are increased (or reduced) in order to record the full income
and expenditure incurred in an accounting period.

Actuary An independent consultant who advises on the financial position of the Pension Fund.

Actuarial Valuation Every three years the Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund and reports
to the Authority on the Fund’s financial position and recommended employers’ contribution rates.

Agency Arrangement An arrangement whereby an authority (the agent) acts on behalf of another (the principal) to
collect income or incur expenditure on the behalf of the principal. Such income or expenditure is not included in the
agent’s accounts other than any commission paid by the principal.

Amortisation The writing off of an intangible asset or loan balance over a period of time.
Appropriation The transfer of ownership of an asset from one service to another at an agreed (usually market) value.

Balance Sheet A statement of all the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Authority at the end of an accounting
period.

Bid Price The purchase price that a buyer is willing to pay for an asset.

Budget A forecast of future expenditure plans for the Authority. Detailed revenue budgets are prepared for each year
and it is on the basis of these figures that the council tax is set. Budgets are revised towards the year end to take
account of inflation, changes in patterns of services, and other factors.

Capital Expenditure Expenditure on the acquisition of fixed assets or expenditure which adds to the value of an
existing fixed asset.

Capital Financing Requirement The measure of an authority’s capital borrowing need under the Prudential Code and
the Local Government Act 2003. It is made up of the total value of the Authority's fixed assets and intangible assets
less the sums accumulated in the revaluation reserve, deferred grant reserve and capital adjustment accounts.

Capital Receipt Income received from the sale of a capital asset such as land or buildings.

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code) Local authorities in the United
Kingdom are required to keep their accounts in accordance with ‘proper practices’. This includes, for the purposes of
local government legislation, compliance with the terms of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (the Code), prepared by the CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board. The Code is
reviewed continuously and is issued annually.

Collection Fund A Statutory Account which receives council tax and non-domestic rates to cover the costs of services
provided by Havering and its precepting authorities.

Community Assets Assets that the Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life, and
that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of Community Assets are parks and historic buildings.

Page 276

157



London Borough of Havering .
Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement A statement showing the income and expenditure for the year
of all the functions for which the Authority is responsible and complies with accounting practices as required under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Contingent Assets A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority.

Contingent Liability A possible liability to future expenditure at the balance sheet date dependent upon the outcome
of uncertain events.

Defined Benefit Scheme A pension scheme which defines benefits independently of the contributions payable.
Benefits are not directly related to the investments of the Pension Fund.

Depreciation The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a fixed
asset, whether arising from use, passing of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes.

Earmarked Reserves Amounts earmarked to fund known items of anticipated expenditure for which the liability is not
chargeable to the current year’s Accounts.

Effective Interest Rate The rate of interest needed to discount the estimated stream of principal and interest cash
flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to equal the amount at the initial recognition.

Finance Lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the
lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the present value
of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially all of the fair value of the leased
asset.

Financial Asset A right to future economic benefits controlled by the Authority that is represented by:
e Cash
e An equity instrument of another entity
e A contractual right to receive cash (or other financial asset) from another entity.

e A contractual right to exchange financial assets/liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favourable to the Authority.

Financial Instrument A contract which gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another

Financial Liability An obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Authority that is represented by:
e A contractual obligation to deliver cash (or other financial asset) to another entity

e A contractual right to exchange financial assets/liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Authority.

General Fund (GF) Havering’s main Revenue Account from which is met the cost of providing most of the Authority’s
services.

General Fund Working Balance Revenue Funds which are uncommitted and available to support general funding
pressures not otherwise specifically covered by planned budget or earmarked reserves.

Historic Cost The actual cost of an asset in terms of past consideration as opposed to its current value.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) A Statutory Account maintained separately from the General Fund for the recording
of income and expenditure relating to the provision of council housing.

Impairment The reduction in value of a tangible or intangible fixed asset reflecting either (i) the consumption of
economic benefits such as obsolescence or physical damage or (ii) a general fall in prices. In the former case, the
impairment is a charge to the revenue account; in the latter, the impairment is a charge to the Revaluation Reserve or
Capital Adjustment Account.

Page 277

158



London Borough of Havering

Statement of Accounts 2024/25 Ap pe n d IX C

Infrastructure Assets Assets which have an indeterminate life and although valuable do not have a realisable value
e.g. roads.

London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) was launched in December 2015, is the first fully authorised and
regulated investment management company set up by Local Government in the UK. They have been established as a
collective vehicle for investments for Local Government Pension Scheme Funds.

Long Term Assets — assets that yield benefit to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more than
one year. Fixed Assets are sub-divided into Tangible and Intangible: the former are physical assets such as land,
buildings and equipment; the latter are assets such as computer software or marketable research and development.
Long term assets were previously called fixed assets on the balance sheet.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) The Authority is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis
determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance). The MRP is based on the Council’s capital
financing requirement.

Movements in Reserves Statement (MiRS) This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Authority’s services.

Net Book Value The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet after depreciation has been
provided for.

Net Current Replacement Cost The current cost of replacing or recreating an asset in its existing use, adjusted for
the notional depreciation required to reflect the asset’s existing condition and remaining useful life.

Net Realisable Value The open market value of the asset less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.

Non-Operational Assets Fixed assets held by the Authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery
of its services. Examples include investment and surplus properties.

Non Distributed Costs Costs which are not chargeable to services and comprise of:
e Retirement benefit costs (past service costs, settlements and curtailments)
e Unused share of IT facilities

The costs of shares of long term unused but unrealisable assets.

oneSource A partnership between the London Boroughs of Havering and Newham through a joint-committee
arrangement to deliver support services. This will release resources to be applied to the protection of front-line services.

Operational Assets Fixed assets held, occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of its
services.

Operating Lease A lease other than a finance lease, i.e. a lease which permits the use of the asset without substantially
transferring the risks and rewards of ownership.

Outturn The actual level of expenditure and income for the financial year.

Post Balance Sheet Events Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet
date and the date on which the Statement of Accounts are approved for issue by the Section 151 Officer

Precept The charge made by one authority (e.g. Greater London Authority) on another authority (e.g. Havering) to
finance its net expenditure.

Provisions Amounts set aside to fund known liabilities chargeable to the current year's Accounts where the exact
amount or timing of the payment are not yet certain.

Prudential Code Since April 2004 local authorities have been subject to a self-regulatory “prudential system” of capital
controls. This gives authorities freedom to determine how much capital investment they can afford to fund through
borrowing. The objectives of the code are to ensure that authorities’ capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and
sustainable, with authorities being required to set specific prudential indicators.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) Central Government Agency which funds much of Local Government borrowing.

Revenue Expenditure The day to day expenditure of the Authority, e.g. salaries, depreciation, goods and services.

Page 278

159



London Borough of Havering Ap pe nd |X C

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute Expenditure which would otherwise be classified as
revenue, but which is classified as capital expenditure for control purposes. Examples include items such as
improvement grants and loan redemption expenses.

Revenue Support Grant The main grant paid by the Government to local authorities.

Supported Borrowing supported by central government grant towards the financing costs, mainly through Revenue
Support Grant.

Page 279

160



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

Kathy Freeman
Strategic Director of Resources

. Resources
H a Ve rl n q London Borough of Havering
Town Hall, Main Road,
st L ONDON BOROUGH Romford, RM1 3BD

t 01708 433471
e Kathy.Freeman@Havering.gov.uk

Date XX February 2026

Mark Hodgson www.havering.gov.uk

Ernst & Young

One Cambridge Square,
Cowley Road
Cambridge

CB4 OAE

Dear Mark,

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the consolidated and
parent Authority financial statements of London Borough of Havering (“the Group and Authority”)
for the year ended 31 March 2025. We recognise that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form
an opinion as to whether the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements give a true and
fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in all material respects,’) the Group and Authority financial position of
London Borough of Havering as of 31 March 2025 and of its financial performance (or operations)
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with, for the Group and the Council, the
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting system,
internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and
is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors
and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge
and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of
appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with, for the Group and the parent
Authority, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

2.  We acknowledge, as members of management of the Group and Authority, our responsibility
for the fair presentation of the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements. We
believe the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements referred to above give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and
cash flows of the Group and parent Authgig in aé(grfance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of

ge



Appendix D

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25", and are free of
material misstatements, including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The material accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of the Group and
Authority financial statements are appropriately described in the Group and Authority financial
statements.

4. As members of management of the Group and Authority, we believe that the Group and
Authority have a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate
financial statements in accordance CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 for the Group and for the Authority that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.”

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the
accompanying schedule Appendix 1, accumulated by you during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate,
to the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements taken as a whole.” We have not
corrected these differences because they are judgmental differences, based on estimates and
are not material.’

6. We confirm the Group and Authority does not have securities (debt or equity) listed on a
recognised exchange.

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Group and Authority’s business
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to
identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of a
system of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and that we believe we have
appropriately fulfilled those responsibilities.’

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the consolidated and
parent Authority financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have disclosed to you, and provided you full access to information and any internal
investigations relating to, all instances of identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations, including fraud, known to us that may have affected the Group or Authority
(regardless of the source or form and including, without limitation, allegations by “whistle-
blowers”), including non-compliance matters:

¢ Involving financial improprieties

¢ Related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements

o Related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements, but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of the Group and

" ISA (UK) 580.10 and ISA (Ireland) 580.10; ISA (UK) 210.6(b)(i) and ISA (Ireland) 210.6(b)(i)
?1SA (UK) 210.6(b)(ii) and ISA (Ireland) 210.6(b)(ii)

*1SA (UK) 450.14 and ISA (Ireland) 450.14

*1SA (UK) 450.A29-1 and ISA(Ireland) 450.A24-1

*I1SA (UK) 240.40(a) (Revised May 2021) Page 282



Appendix D

Authority’s business, its ability to continue in business, or to avoid material
penalties

¢ Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal control,
or others

¢ Inrelation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:

e Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

e Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

e Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

2. We have disclosed to you the use of all applications or tools using artificial intelligence,
including generative artificial intelligence, that are reasonably likely to have a direct or indirect
material effect on the consolidated and parent Authority financial statement.

3. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements °

4. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of shareholders, directors and
committees of directors (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have
not yet been prepared) held through the year to the date of this letter.

5.  We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related
parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Group and Authority’s related parties and
all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales,
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period
ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the [period] end. These
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the consolidated and
parent Authority financial statements.

6. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in making
accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently applied to
achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25."

7. We have disclosed to you, and the Group and Authority has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the consolidated and parent
Authority financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants,
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

8. From the date of our last management representation through the date of this letter we have
disclosed to you, to the extent that we are aware, any (1) unauthorised access to our

°ISA (UK) 580.11(b)
"1SA (UK) 540.37 (Revised)) Page 283



Appendix D

information technology systems that either occurred or is reasonably likely to have occurred,
including of reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law
enforcement agencies and security consultants), to the extent that such unauthorised access
to our information technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material effect on the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and
(2) ransomware attacks when we paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless of
the amount.

9. We have disclosed to you, and provided you full access to information and any internal
investigations relating to, unauthorised access to our information technology systems that has
a material effect on the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements, including
disclosures.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies
1. Allliabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or
oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated and parent

Authority financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation and
claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated and
parent Authority financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.”’

4. No other claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be received.

E. Going Concern

1. Note 1 to the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements discloses all the matters of

which we are aware that are relevant to the Group and Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the
feasibility of those plans.

F. Subsequent Events

1. Other than described in Note 46 to the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements,
there have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure
in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Group audits

1. There are no significant restrictions on our ability to distribute the retained profits of the Group
because of statutory, contractual, exchange control or other restrictions other than those
indicated in the Group financial statements.

2. Necessary adjustments have been made to eliminate all material intra-group unrealised profits
on transactions amongst parent Authority, subsidiary undertakings and associated
undertakings.

H. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement.

2. We confirm that the Annual Governance Statement for 2024/25 is a true reflection, in all

®ISA (UK) 501.12 Page 284



Appendix D

material respects, of the governance arrangements and the effectiveness of those
arrangements in 2024/25 and includes disclosure of all significant governance issues and
findings relating to that financial year, through to the date of this letter.

3. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the
financial statements.

I. Climate-related matters

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant to the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-related matters has been considered and
reflected in the consolidated and parent financial statements.

J. Ownership of Assets

1. Except for assets recognised as right-of use assets in accordance with IFRS 16 Leases, the
Group and Authority has satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet, and
there are no liens or encumbrances on the Group and Authority’s assets, nor has any asset
been pledged as collateral. All assets to which the Group and Authority has satisfactory title
appear in the balance sheet.

2. All agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold have been properly recorded
and adequately disclosed in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements.

3. We have no plans to abandon lines of product or other plans or intentions that will result in any
excess or obsolete inventory, and no inventory is stated at an amount in excess of net
realisable value.

4. There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of our cash and
investment accounts.

K. Use of the Work of a Specialist

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the value of the
Group and Authority’s share of the pension fund assets and liabilities and the value of
Authority and Group’s land and buildings and investment properties and have adequately
considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures
included in the consolidated and parent Authority financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists
with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of
the specialists.

L. Estimates
e Pensions Liability

e Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties — valuations, impairments and
depreciation

e Provision for Impairment of Receivables
e Stock valuations
1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the fair value of Property, Plant and

Equipment, Investment Properties, provisions, stock valuations and pension fund asset and
liabilities have taken into account all relevlgnt inforggt'gn of which we are aware.
age



Appendix D

2.

We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data used by us
have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the above estimates.

We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the above estimates appropriately
reflect our intent and ability to carry out our statutory services on behalf of the entity.

We confirm that the disclosures made in the consolidated and parent Authority financial
statements with respect to the accounting estimates, including those describing estimation
uncertainty are complete and are reasonable in the context of CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

We confirm that appropriate specialised skills or expertise has been applied in making the
above accounting estimates.

We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and disclosures in the
consolidated and parent Authority financial statements.

Yours faithfully,

(Chief Financial Officer)

(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

Page 286



Appendix D
Appendix 1

Uncorrected misstatements

‘Analysis of misstatements Debit/(Credit)

Account (Note 1)

Assels
Current

Assels
Hon-current

Liabilities
Current

Liabilities
Hon-current

Equity
components

(misstatements are recorded as journal entries
with a description )

Debiti(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debiti(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)

Effect on the
current period
ocl

Income statement
effect of the current

period

Income statement effect]
of the prior period

Debit/(Credit)

Debit/(Credit)

Non
taxable

Prior period | Non
Debit/(Credit) |taxable

|Jndgmenta| misstatements:

Investment Property - M&S valuation misstatement

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2,604,900

Investment Properties

Prior year uncorrected misstatement - Other Sundry Debtors Bad Debt Provisiol

- provision provided was based on th

e 22/23 levels instead of the current year calculations

0SD BOP

Bad Debis Expense

[Factual misstatements:

|£riﬂr year uncorrected misstatement - Council Tax Bad Debt Provision - Incorrect calculation. Impact on the collection fund as a whole
DP

|C\:lunc|| Tax BDP

nsistent with the figures calculated by the external specialist.

|£rinr year uncorrected misstatement - The closing provision on the Councils Balance Shest is inco

DR Appeals

839,533

|Pruwsmn

[Total of m

0]

2,604,900]

Page 287



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Kathy Freeman
Strategic Director of Resources

. Resources
H a Ve rl n q London Borough of Havering
Town Hall, Main Road,
st L ONDON BOROUGH Romford, RM1 3BD

t 01708 433471
e Kathy.Freeman@Havering.gov.uk

Date XX February 2026

Hassan Rohimun .
www.havering.gov.uk

Ernst & Young

2 St Peter's Square,

Manchester,

M2 3EY

Dear Hassan,
2024/25 Havering Pension Fund

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Havering Pension Fund (“the Scheme”) and examination of the Scheme’s summary of
contributions for the year ended 31 March 2025. We recognise that obtaining representations from
us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to
form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of (or ‘present
fairly, in all material respects’) the financial transactions of the Scheme during the year ended 31
March 2025, and of the amount and disposition at that date of its assets and liabilities, other than
liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the end of the year, in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland’” and contain the information specified in Regulation 3A of the Audited Accounts
Regulations and making a statement about contributions.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of the Scheme’s financial statements is to express
an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and
related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose all fraud, shortages, errors and other
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge
and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of
appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations

2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2024/25.

Page 289



Appendix E

2.

We confirm that the Scheme is a Registered Pension Scheme. We are not aware of any
reason why the tax status of the Scheme should change.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Fund, our responsibility for the fair
presentation of the financial statements and the Summary of Contributions. We believe the
financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial transactions
and the financial position of the Scheme in accordance with applicable law the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25, and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. We have approved the-
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are
appropriately described in the financial statements.

As members of management of the Fund we believe that the Scheme has a system of internal
controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2024/25 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in Appendix 1,
accumulated by you during the current audit and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole. We have not corrected these differences identified by and brought to our attention from
the auditor because they relate to timing differences. Financial statements from private market
funds are issued quarterly in arrears; therefore, the valuations as at 31 March are not available
before the closure of accounts deadline. The Custodian reflects these updated market values
in the following quarter. These timing differences will continue to give rise to potential valuation
variances each year for as long as the Fund holds these assets.

. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud

We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Scheme’s activities are
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to identify and
address any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of a
system of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and that we believe we have
appropriately fulfilled those responsibilities.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have not made any reports to the Pensions Regulator, nor are we aware of any such
reports having been made by any of our advisors.

There have been no other communications with the Pensions Regulator or other regulatory
bodies during the Scheme year or subsequently concerning matters of non-compliance with
any legal duty.

We confirm that we are not aware of any breaches of the Payment Schedule/Schedule of
Contributions or any other matters that have arisen which we considered reporting to the
Pensions Regulator.

We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Scheme (regardless of the source or
form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-
compliance matters:

Page 290



Appendix E

¢ Involving financial improprieties

¢ Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material
amounts and disclosures in the Scheme’s financial statements

¢ Related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the operations of the Scheme’s business, its ability to continue in
business, or to avoid material penalties

e Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
others

¢ Inrelation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance with
laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:

o Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters.

e Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

e Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

2. You have been informed of all changes to the Scheme rules.

3. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

4. We have disclosed to you the use of all applications or tools using artificial intelligence,
including generative artificial intelligence, that are reasonably likely to have a direct or indirect
material effect on the financial statements

5.  We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of members of the management of
the Fund and committees of members and of the management of the Fund held through the
[period] to the most recent meeting on the following date: [list date].

6. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related
parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Scheme’s related parties and all related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related
balances due to or from such parties at the period end. These transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

7. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding annuities held in the name of
the members of management of the Fund.

8. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in making
accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently applied to
achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25.

Page 291



Appendix E

9.

10.

11.

We have disclosed to you, and the Fund has complied with, all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

No transactions have been made which are not in the interests of the Scheme members or the
Scheme during the year or subsequently.

From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of this letter we
have disclosed to you, to the extent that we are aware, any (1) unauthorised access to our
information technology systems that either occurred or is reasonably likely to have occurred,
including of reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law
enforcement agencies and security consultants), to the extent that such unauthorised access
to our information technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the
financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and (2) ransomware attacks when we
paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless of the amount.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or
oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation and claims,
both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the financial statements all guarantees that
we have given to third parties.

E. Subsequent Events

Other than the events described in Note 6 to the financial statements, there have been no
events subsequent to the period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

Other information

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the annual report, other than the financial statements, the auditor’s
report and the statement about contributions.

We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the
financial statements.

G. Advisory Reports

We have not commissioned any advisory reports which may affect the conduct of your work in
relation to the Scheme’s financial statements and schedule of contributions/payment schedule.

Independence
We confirm that, under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995, no members of management of

the Fund is connected with, or is an associate of, Ernst & Young LLP which would render Ernst
& Young LLP ineligible to act as auditor to the Scheme.

I. Derivative Financial Instruments

We confirm that all investments in derivative financial instruments have been made after due
consideration by the members of management of the Fund of the limitations in their use
imposed by The Occupational Pensicpé@”@rggﬁnvestment) Regulations 2005; namely that



Appendix E

they contribute to a reduction in Scheme risk, facilitate efficient portfolio management, and that
any such investment has been made to avoid excessive risk exposure to a single counterparty
and to other derivative operations; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016. The Fund'’s Investment Strategy Statement has
been duly reviewed to ensure that such investments comply with any limitations imposed by
their provisions. The financial statements disclose all transactions in derivative financial
instruments that have been entered into during the period, those still held by the members of
management of the Fund at the Fund year end and the terms and conditions relating thereto.

The members of management of the Fund have duly considered and deemed as appropriate
the assumptions and methodologies used in the valuation of ‘over the counter’ derivative
financial instruments which the Fund is holding, and these have been communicated to you.

We confirm that all investments in pooling arrangements, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services, meet the criteria set out in the November 2015
investment reform and criteria guidance and that the requirements of the LGPS (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 in respect of these investments has been followed.

J. Actuarial valuation

The latest report of the actuary Hymans Robertson LLP as at 31 March 2025 and dated [date
of report] has been provided to you. To the best of our knowledge and belief we confirm that
the information supplied by us to the actuary was true and that no significant information was
omitted which may have a bearing on his report.

K. Estimates
Level 3 Investments and IAS 26 valuation Estimates

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the estimates have taken into
account all relevant information of which we are aware.

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data used by us
have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the estimates.

3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the estimates appropriately reflect
our intent and ability to carry out the specific courses of action on behalf of the entity.

4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to the accounting
estimate(s), including those describing estimation uncertainty are complete and are reasonable
in the context of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2024/25.

5. We confirm that appropriate specialised skills or expertise has been applied in making the
estimates.

6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and disclosures in the
financial statements,

L. Use of the Work of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of the specialists that we have engaged to value the Fund assets
and liabilities and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in
determining the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the
specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and
we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or
objectivity of the specialists.

Page 293



Appendix E

M. Going Concern

Based on our assessment of going concern, the details of which have been shared with you,
we confirm that we are not aware of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern. We do
not intend to wind up the Scheme. We are satisfied that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Note 2 to the financial statements discloses all of the matters of which we are aware that are
relevant to the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern, including significant conditions
and events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those plans.

N. Climate-Related Matters

1.

2.

Whilst recognising that the Climate Change Governance and Reporting Regulations do not
cover the Local Government Pension Scheme, we confirm that to the best of our knowledge all
information that is relevant to the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
climate-related matters has been considered in the financial statements.

The key assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are, to the extent allowable
under the requirements of International Reporting Standards aligned with any statements we
have made in the other information or other public communications made by us.

Yours faithfully,

Chief Financial Officer

Chair of Audit Committee

Date

Page 294



Appendix E
Appendix 1

[Londen Borough of Havering Pension Fund Period Ended: currency:[ GBP(£)]
|Uncorrected misstatements Analysis of misstatements Debit/(Credit)

Account (Note 1) Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Equity Effecton the | Income statement effect Income statement effect of

Current Non-current Current Non-current ofthe the prior period
ocl
are recorded witha | Debit(Credit) | Debit{Credif) | Debit(Credit) | Debit(Creditj | DebitiCredit) | Debiti{Credit) | Debit(Credit) | Non Prior period Non
description ) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2) taxable Debiti(Credit) | taxable

Timing difference associated with the availability of Level 3 asset valuation statements
Investment Assets 3,479,145
Change in Market Value (3,479,145)| (1,.413,769),

Page 295




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Havering Annual
Governance Statement
2024/25

1
Page 297



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2024/25

This statement, from the Leader and Chief Executive, provides reasonable assurance to all
stakeholders, that within the London Borough of Havering, processes and systems have been
established which ensure that decisions are properly made and scrutinised, and that public money
is being spent economically and effectively to ensure maximum benefit to everyone who is served
by the Borough.

The Annual Governance Statement is co-ordinated within the Assurance Service and the production
and progress of the statement is monitored by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT).

Scope of responsibility

The London Borough of Havering is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The London Borough of Havering
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the London Borough of Havering is responsible for putting
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. ,

The London Borough of Havering is committed to operating in a manner which is consistent with the
seven principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
Framework 2016 Edition. This statement outlines how the London Borough of Havering has complied
with these principles and meets the requirements of regulations 6(1) (a) and (b) of the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015, requiring all relevant bodies to prepare an annual governance statement.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the
Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and
leads the community. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective
services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system
of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the London Borough of Havering’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework, available on the Havering website and provided in the link below, has
been in place at the London Borough of Havering for the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the
date of approval of the statement of accounts. This framework is due for review, and this will take

place in 2025. www.havering.gov.uk/code of governance

2
Page 298



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Review of governance effectiveness

Outlined below are the arrangements in place to review the effectiveness of the governance
framework and the sources of information and assurance on which this statement is based.

Constitution

The Monitoring Officer keeps the Constitution under continual review, having delegated powers to
make amendments arising from organisational changes and legal requirements and to correct
errors. Other amendments are recommended by the Governance Committee for decision by Full
Council.

A cross party constitutional working group (including officers) is currently up and running and is
systematically reviewing various sections of the constitution to ensure it is fit for purpose.
Amendments to the scheme of delegations and main constitutional articles were presented to
governance committee in February 2025 and thereafter approved by Full Council in March 2025.

The Constitution Working Party reviews the Constitution and includes representation from each
political group in its membership. The lead officer for the working party is the Council's monitoring
officer.

Executive Leadership (ELT and ELG)

ELT (formerly SLT, Senior Leadership Team) is Executive Leadership Team and members are the
CE, Strategic Directors & Directors.

ELG (formerly CLT, Corporate Leadership Team) is Executive Leadership Group and members are
ELT and Assistant Directors / Business Partners.

ELT meetings generally take place weekly, running on a rolling basis by theme (People, Place,
Resources & Performance). The Themed Board for each theme then follows two weeks after the
ELT meeting. ELG meetings happen every 6 weeks.

Governance Committee

The Council's Governance Committee, attended by the Leader of the Council and most other Group
Leaders, is charged with overseeing the organisation’s governance arrangements including the
review of the Constitution and the Code of Conduct for Members. The Governance Committee
oversees the Council's complaints process.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit,
the risk management environment, fraud and corruption arrangements and the provision of the
external audit service. They receive regular reports in line with this remit and agree the annual audit
plan, draft Annual Governance Statement and revisions to related policies. This monitoring is
integral in the process to compile a robust Annual Governance Statement, which is approved by the
Audit Committee. Significant governance issues are escalated to the Governance Committee by the
Chair of the Audit Committee as required. Approval of the annual Statement of Accounts also falls
under the remit of the Audit Committee.

3

Page 299



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Overview and Scrutiny

The Overview and Scrutiny function reviews and challenges decisions made by the Executive and
other bodies e.g. National Health Service organisations and the Police to assist in the development
of policy.

An overarching Board undertakes all call-in functions and acts as a vehicle by which the
effectiveness of scrutiny is monitored and where work undertaken by themed sub-committees is co-
ordinated to avoid duplication and to ensure that areas of priority are being pursued.

The Overview and Scrutiny Board and its sub-committees have the opportunity to consider
performance information within their area of responsibility using relevant performance data and other
tools such as the Council's Forward Plan.

Each year Overview and Scrutiny is tasked with identifying areas of the Council’s work that it wishes
to consider in detail, for which purpose task and finish groups comprised of members of the Board
or its sub-committees are set up to research the issue with the assistance of officers and sometimes
external bodies and report their findings and recommendations.

Local Pension Board

The role of the Local Pension Board is to assist Havering as the Administering Authority to ensure
compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the LGPS.

This established Board holds quarterly meetings and an annual general meeting. During 2024/25
the Board met on 4 June 2024, 17 September 2024, 3 December 2024and a meeting scheduled for
4 March 2025. An Annual General Meeting is yet to be arranged. The Board produced an Annual
Report for 2022/23, which sets out the work and training activities undertaken during the year. This
report was presented to the Pensions Committee, for noting, at its meeting on the 7 November 2023.
The report for 2023/24 is in production and expected to be presented to the Pension’s Committee
later in 2024.

The Pension Fund’s Governance Compliance statement also incorporates the Local Pension Board,
which is reviewed annually and reports the extent of compliance against a set of principles, this was
presented to the Pensions Committee on the 5th November 2024.

Internal Audit (Assurance Services)

Internal Audit is an independent assurance function that measures, evaluates and reports upon the
effectiveness of the controls in place to manage risk. In doing so Internal Audit supports the Chief
Finance Officer in their statutory role as Section 151 Officer. Annually the Head of Internal Audit
Opinion and annual report provides assurance to officers and Members regarding the system of
internal control; this assurance has also been considered in the production of this statement.

Head of Assurance Opinion 2024/25

The Head of Internal Audit (Head of Assurance) provides an annual opinion to the Audit Committee
on the Council’s governance, risk management, and control framework. The opinion is based on a

risk-focused audit plan, adjusted throughout the year to reflect changing risks. From April 2025, the
Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS) replace the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

4
Page 300



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

For 2023/24, Reasonable assurance was given overall. Procurement and contract management
were highlighted as significant risks. Significant work has been undertaken by the Council to
mitigate this risk during 2024/25 and continue into 2025/26.

The internal audit programme of work for 2024/25 identified four areas where only limited
assurance could be provided on the control environment. These issues are isolated and not
indicative of systemic failure. Management actions are in place and monitored. Therefore, based
on the work undertaken and finalised reports at the end of the 2024/25 financial year, reasonable
assurance could be provided that there is generally a sound system of internal control across the
Council.

However, instances of potentially fraudulent activity identified in the final quarter of 2024/25 and a
control failure in the Temporary Accommodation service do highlight a weakness in the
management of budgets across the Council, that covers the 2024/25 period and, in some cases,
prior to this year. Although the fraud cases are still being investigated and details cannot be
provided in this report, these incidents highlight common issues regarding the robustness of
management oversight of expenditure in each of the respective services. Given that these fraud
cases have all occurred in distinct business areas, this gives rise to concern that budgets are not
being monitored effectively and increases the risk that the Council is incurring unnecessary
expenditure.

Given the issues identified, but not yet reported to Audit Committee fully, in the latter half of
2024/25, the Head of Audit can only provide limited assurance on the overall effectiveness on the
control environment, specifically the management and oversight of departmental budgets and
expenditure. This opinion is also based on the impact that such losses and errors will have on the
limited resources the Council has available to discharge its duties.

Risk Management

The strategic risks to the achievement of the Authority’s objectives are captured within a strategic
risk register which is overseen by ELT and progress reported to the Audit Committee. Work has
continued during 2024/25 to review risk registers, fully embed the process and to ensure that the
strategic risk register continues to reflect the risks facing the Council.

The risk management strategy and supporting policies are reviewed regularly to ensure they remain
relevant to the Council's systems and procedures and will be approved by the Audit Committee.

External Inspectors

The Council is subject to review and appraisal by a number of external bodies; results of such
reviews are considered within the performance management framework. The work of the Council’'s
External Auditor, currently Ernst and Young (EY) is reported to the Audit Committee.

The council is required to publish its draft statement of Accounts for 2024/25 by 30 June 2025. The
audit opinion and completion certificates for the 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts were issued
on 10 December 2024. The audit opinion for the 2023/24 accounts was received on 26 February
2025. The Council and Group financial statements for 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 received
disclaimed opinions; this was as a direct result of the Government's introduction of statutory backstop
dates for local audit. No governance issues have been raised.

5
Page 301



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Information Commissioner’s Office

The Council must comply with the UK General Data Protection Regulation, Data Protection Act 2018,
and Freedom of Information Act 2000. In the financial year 2024/25, all data breaches that met the
required threshold were reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) and no fines were
imposed for weak controls. There were:

* 95 data breaches reported between 1st April 2024 and 31st January 2025

¢ 3 breaches reported to the ICO (ICO are taking no further action on these but have made
recommendations)

Although a number of data breaches did occur, staff followed the necessary processes to report
these and ensure appropriate controls were in place to mitigate any impact.

We continue to develop and improve processes and use mistakes and data breaches to inform those
improvements to ensure we uphold Individual Information Rights (IIR) and process all personal data
compliantly. Furthermore, we continually strive to improve processes and compliance with Freedom
of Information Act requests. We also focused on improving staff awareness of GDPR and cyber
security responsibilities through the mandatory L&D material. An average of 85% of staff have
completed all required modules. The aim is 95% completion rate with a 5% tolerance for changes in
staff numbers. This is monitored at the Information Governance board and a renewed push to
complete this training will commence with the next round of PDR setting.

Complaints

In 2024, following the transformation programme initiated in 2023, it became clear that modifications
were necessary. While our services have continued and a corporate system has been successfully
implemented, certain areas were identified as needing restructuring. Measures were put in place,
and an informal structure was implemented in mid-2024. As a result, we have seen improvements
in service delivery. Although ongoing efforts are required to keep the service on track, the Senior
Management Team is rolling out plans for 2025 to further enhance the service experience. Below
are some of the areas that have been improved and are planned for further improvement:

1. Team Structure: The team has remained centralized and has been divided into three areas
focusing on specialist knowledge and skills. Officers have received training to ensure as
much as possible, that they are equipped to handle complaints and are knowledgeable
about service areas. This training will continue throughout 2025.

2. Policy: The new consolidated Policy was implemented on December 1, 2023. An annual
review was scheduled for November 2024. A new draft has been completed, aligning the
Policy with the Housing Ombudsman Compliance Code for handling complaints, effective
since April 2024. Additionally, it will align with the Local Government Social Care
Ombudsman Compliance Code, due in April 2026, and the Social Housing Regulator. The
new Policy is expected to be approved and published in the first quarter of 2025.

3. Reporting: Following the centralization of all teams into one corporate team, we have seen
improvements in timely responses, particularly for Stage Two and Ombudsman cases.
Power Bl reporting was implemented in 2024 to provide instant live data reporting from the
corporate system and to enhance learning from complaints. Power Bl will be further
enhanced in 2025 to publish our learnings on the website for stakeholders to view.

4. Improvements: Improvements initiated in 2024 include reviewing the corporate system to
ensure effective data use and compliance in complaints handling. Annual reports have
been completed centrally to meet compliance with legislation and governance.

6
Page 302



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Complaint handling feedback surveys are being designed to be sent with every complaint to ensure
continuous learning and improvement. Further improvements are planned for 2025.

Overall, the service faced challenges in the first two quarters of 2024, but significant improvements
were implemented and observed in the last two quarters. We will continue to drive enhancements to
provide a robust, fair, and transparent service to our customers.

Ombudsman

All Council Services with the exclusion of Housing (except Housing Demand) falls under the
jurisdiction of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). in the year 2024/25,
a total of 63 Ombudsman cases were received from the LGSCO.

e Adult Social Care Services: Seven cases were received, with the LGSCO reaching a
determination on three cases. One case was closed after initial enquiries, and two cases
were upheld.

e Children’s Social Care Services: Thirteen cases were received, with the LGSCO reaching a
determination on four cases. Two cases were closed after initial enquiries, one case was
declined as outside of LGSCO jurisdiction, and one case was upheld.

e Other Areas (including parking, homelessness, and education): Forty-three cases were
received, with the LGSCO reaching a determination on twenty-three cases. Nineteen cases
were not upheld, and four cases found failures in the services.

Modern Slavery

Councils have a statutory key role to play in tackling modern slavery including the duty to notify the
Home Office of any individual encountered who we believe is a suspected victim of modern slavery
or human trafficking. Part of the commitment to the modern slavery Act 2015 requires an annual
transparency statement is to be written by every company with an annual turnover of £36m or more-
which includes us. The statement should set out what it has done to ensure that slavery and human
trafficking is not taking place in the Council or its supply chain. In summary the Councils role can be
separated into four distinct areas:

1. identification and referral of victims

2. supporting victims — this can be through safeguarding children and adults with care and
support needs and through housing/ homelessness services

3. community safety services and disruption activities

4. ensuring that the supply chains councils procure from are free from modern slavery

The 2024/25 annual statement was published in July 2024 following approval at Governance board.
The statement outlines the risks identified in relation to modern slavery and planed steps to ensure
the importance of Modern Slavery is being considered more widely across the whole organisation.
This was our second annual transparency statement and work is already underway reviewing and
updating this for 2025/26, which will be published by July 2025 in line with legal requirements of
within 6 months of our financial year-end.

.
Page 303



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Progress of significant governance issues raised in the 2023/24 AGS

The issues identified in the 2023/24 Annual Governance Statement have been monitored by
management and the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) throughout the year with review periodically
to challenge actions and progress. Whilst progress has been made during 2024/25 in each of the
areas identified in the 2023/24 AGS, and the decision made to close two issues, all other issues
were considered to have remained significant enough to be carried forward into the action plan for
2024/25, with some amendments, and with the addition of a further three Significant Governance
Issues.

The issues closed as at the end of 2023/24 and actions taken to address these are included below:

1. Delivery of a balanced budget 2024/25:

The Council was able to set a balanced budget for the 2023/24 financial year. The Councils
monitoring process of the 23/24 budget identified at an early stage that there would be a likely
ongoing overspend due to the continued pressures on the social care budgets and the
emerging temporary accommodation pressure. The MTFS process reviewed the ongoing
nature of these pressures and ensured that the development of the 24/25 budget included full
recognition of those ongoing pressures. The process included the development of £15.3m of
savings which were included in the 24/25 budget.

It became apparent at an early stage that as an efficient Council with low unit costs the Council
was going to struggle to balance the 24/25 budget without requesting exceptional financial
support from the Government. The Council acted quickly and entered into continued dialogue
with DLUHC on this subject. The development of the budget set out the future pressures of
the Council and the savings and increases in Government support from the 24/25 finance
settlement. Despite £15.3m of savings the Council had a remaining £32.5m budget gap which
was presented to DLUHC in a request for exceptional financial support. DLUHC agreed to this
request and the budget is underpinned using this Capitalisation directive

It should be noted the Council has taken a sensible and prudent approach to budget setting
and included a most likely and worst case scenario in its forecasting. The Capitalisation
directive sensibly was based on the worst case scenario but the Council will be aiming over
the coming months to contain spend towards the most likely scenario which will reduce the
level of exceptional financial support it may ultimately need at year end. This will be monitored
very closely as it will be also pivotal to the development of the 2025/26 budget

Actions taken during 2024/25

e Monthly reports provided to the Executive Leadership Team outlining anticipated outturn for
the financial year, assisting in identification of Medium-Term financial pressures and
opportunities.

* Regular update of the Medium-Term Financial Strategy and overarching financial position
provided to Cabinet throughout the year.

= Detailed monitoring of the financial standing of the Council and MTFS included as part of
the corporate monthly monitoring process, and compliance with the reporting requirements
on expenditure, loss of income and impact on savings proposals was achieved.

e Quarterly reports to Cabinet on revenue and capital monitoring

» Close monitoring of the revenue and capital plans and scrutiny of the balances and reserves
of the council is included in the monitoring reporting, including the potential impact on‘the
collection fund and forecast for year-end position.

e Regular reporting to Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Board on the sustainability of the
MTFS has taken place including the position in reserves, taking in to account the impact on
the base assumptions and the changing demographics and demand.

8
Page 304



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Continue to monitor the impact of the changing demographics and increasing demand on
the financial standing of the organisation and the MTFS which is reviewed as part of the
corporate monthly monitoring process.

The budget and MTFS reviewed as required to verify key assumptions/delivery plans.
Continued focus on the delivery of savings and close monitoring of the revenue and capital
plans.

Challenge and review of the adults and children’s social care budget assumption and
continued updates on the pressures facing temporary accommodation

Senior Leadership continue to monitor the MTFS and the recovery plan to ensure the
sustainability of the Council's finances.

A series of spending controls put in place to contain spend.

Controls include a recruitment panel to oversee all posts to be recruited to and regular
reviews of agency spend

All managers to review and curtail any non-essential spend

All managers to hold vacancies where possible and cover internally rather than recruiting
or getting agency cover

Production and delivery of the Council's Transformation and Productivity Plan which will
include:

Full analysis and updates on saving and efficiencies the Council is currently delivering
Robust data driven forecasting of future pressures to enable accurate modelled financial
forecasting

Continued transformational activity to modernise the Council’s outputs including a digital
strategy which will in the medium term deliver efficiencies

A capital strategy to deliver the accommodation and regeneration needed to meet future
needs which will ultimately relieve pressure on the general fund

A robust response on the actions taken following the recent OFSTED judgement setting out
the Council’'s approach to the recommendations in that report

A Communications strategy to raise awareness with the Public and Key stakeholders of
improvements to Council Services and how to access them

Robust baselining of all budgets including metrics

Accurate monitoring of the cost drivers linked to financial pressures to fully understand
emerging budget pressures

Action plans set up where necessary to ensure delivery of the savings included in the 24/25
budget

Robust planning approach to future years testing all MTFS assumptions and enabling timely
service options to generate savings and efficiencies

Monthly reporting of the revenue budget position to Councillors

Quarterly monitoring reports to cabinet on capital and revenue

Ongoing dialogue with MHCLG to raise awareness of the Councils continued financial
position

Reports to MHCLG as required to meet all requirements of the Capitalisation Directives
Forward planning of the 25/26 position including dialogue with MHCLG at an early stage
the likelihood of a further requirement for exceptional financial support

S151 Challenge meetings set up to provide service challenge on revenue and capital
budgets.

Status as of 31% March 2025

The Council set its budget for 2024/25 including a Capitalisation Directive of £32.5m. The budget
process leading up to the tax setting process had identified at an early stage that additional support
would be needed despite £15.3m of savings proposals and a 4.99% Council Tax increase. The
Government provisionally approved the Capitalisation directive subject to the development of a
transformation plan and an independent review of the Council's finances.

In June 2024 CIPFA we commissioned to undertake a 6 week review of the Councils finances.
This review was completed and the results were eventually released by the Government in

9
Page 305




Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

February 2025. The Council will be proactively actioning the recommendations of the report over
the next year. The Council submitted a transformation plan to full Council in July 2024

The Council has taken a sensible and prudent approach to budget setting and included a most
likely and worst case scenario in its forecasting. The Capitalisation directive sensibly was based
on the worst case scenario of £32.5m. The Council has actioned spending controls and continually
reviewed efficiency measures but despite this the monitoring position forecast throughout the year
has projected spend at or around the worst case figure of £32.5m. The final outturn position was
£30.4m overspent which is the extent of the capitalisation directive utilised.

The pressures are all caused by underlying cost issues across Social Care and Homelessness
and as these are all ongoing the Council has prudently fully included them in the development of
the 2025/26 budget. The Council has taken every measure it can to contain spend in 2024/25
including the set up of recovery boards and recruitment panels to monitor all staffing including
agency. A number of actions listed above will continue into the 2025/26 financial year.

Lead Officer: Strategic Director, Resources

2. Council’s ability as a data controller to comply with, and demonstrate compliance with,
all the data protection principles, UK GDPR requirements and ensuring compliance of our
data processor(s).

Actions taken during 2024/25

» Established Information Governance Board meets regularly, presented reports on data
breaches to understand trends
Review and update of Information Governance policies
Monitoring of completion of mandatory GDPR training and Information Governance policy
acceptance
Continuation of information risk project
Enhanced audit and validation of BCP arrangements and Application
Management/Ownership at Directorate and Service level during 2024/25.

e Further actions will be included within the mitigation plans within the Strategic and
Directorate Risk Registers, monitored through ELG.

e Creation of fit-for-purpose Records of Processing Activity (RoPA) and Information Risk
management processes agreed with Directorates.

Status as of 315t March 2025

This significant governance issue is considered closed, based on the actions taken above.
Delivery risks will continue to be managed and monitored through the risk register process.

10
Page 306




Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

Significant governance issues 2024/25 (to be addressed in 2025/26)

1. Delivery of a balanced budget 2025/26: The Council was only able to set a balanced
budget for 25/26 with exceptional financial support, through the form of a capitalisation direction.
MHCLG approved a capitalisation direction of a maximum of £88m, which was on a worst-case
basis. On a mid-case basis, the Council will need to spend an additional £70.2m in addition to the
net budget requirement of £205m. This represents borrowing of ¢35% on our annual revenue
expenditure. The position includes over £10m of savings agreed for 25/26. Heads of service,
assistant directors and directors will be asked to sign off a budget assurance statement, confirming
they will do everything in their control to manage their budgets within the existing financial
envelope allocated to them. It has been made that budgets will be allocated within the mid-case
scenario, so not to increase the Council’s structural budget deficit. Managers will also be asked to
develop their commissioning/procurement pipeline on the Corporate Contracts register, seeking
better value in re-procurement exercises.

The Council's unit costs have increased compared to where we were in previous years to bring
our costs more in line with other boroughs, however, compared to the national average,
Havering’s unit costs are still lower.

More work is needed to embed the financial management culture throughout the Council.
Managers will be asked to continually deep dive into overspending areas and Finance recovery
boards will continue to hold directors to account on delivery of savings, actions and actions being
taken to reduce their expenditure and increase income.

Actions taken during 2024/25

« Robust baselining of all budgets including metrics

e Accurate monitoring of the cost drivers linked to financial pressures in order to fully
understand emerging budget pressures

« Action plans set up where necessary to ensure delivery of the savings included in the 24/25
budget

e Robust planning approach to future years testing all MTFS assumptions and enabling timely
service options to generate savings and efficiencies

« Monthly reporting of the revenue budget position to Councillors

 Quarterly monitoring reports to cabinet on capital and revenue

e Ongoing dialogue with MHCLG to raise awareness of the Councils continued financial
position

e Reports to MHCLG as required to meet all requirements of the Capitalisation Directives

« Forward planning of the 25/26 position including dialogue with MHCLG at an early stage the
likelihood of a further requirement for exceptional financial support

e S151 Challenge meetings set up to provide service challenge on revenue and capital budgets

Planned actions for 2025/26

. Continue to lobby the Government and proactively contribute to the forthcoming Local
Government Finance reforms

« Recruitment panels in place to control all new staff placements

« Continuation of recovery boards to closely monitor and control all council spend

« Star Chamber process to systematically review all services to identify efficiencies and savings
moving forward

« Robust procurement to maximise benefit of new and existing contracts

« Delivery of the Capital programme to create longer term Housing solutions to mitigate the
Councils temporary accommodation pressures

« Joint work with Health to achieve common aims and priorities whilst ensuring a fair distribution
of funding

11
Page 307




Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

 Robust baselining of all budgets including metrics

e Accurate monitoring of the cost drivers linked to financial pressures to fully understand
emerging budget pressures

= Action plans set up where necessary to ensure delivery of the savings included in the 25/26
budget

» Robust planning approach to future years testing all MTFS assumptions and enabling timely
service options to generate savings and efficiencies

« Monthly reporting of the revenue budget position to Councillors

» Quarterly monitoring reports to cabinet on capital and revenue

 Debt Board to operate to review debt collection methods and processes

e Review of all reserves and balances to both test adequacy but also to allow any surplus funds
to be released to support the overall revenue position

* Budget sign offs of 2025/26 budgets by managers to ensure full ownership of both monitoring
and savings delivery

» Savings delivery to be reviewed through the year and reported to Overview and Scrutiny

Lead Officer: Strategic Director, Resources

2. Council’s ability to successfully end the existing onesource IT shared service with LBN
by 31%* December 2025. This includes both the required technical disaggregation and
return of staff.

Actions taken during 2024/25

» Established Havering specific programme governance to review progress and
programme/project related risks.

Joint split programme board with LB Newham to monitor progress as a whole.

Sign off of Havering target operating model for Digital and IT sovereign service.
Consultation started.

Havering technology roadmap agreed to deliver both technical disaggregation work from LB
Newham and to also modernisation activities.

»_Award of Havering specific MS License agreement.

Planned actions for 2025/26

e Continued delivery of Havering technology roadmap — progress monitored via continued
Havering specific and joint split programme governance
» People change activities for staff returning to the borough

Lead Officer: Strategic Director, Resources

12
Page 308




Appendix F

1

_ London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

3. Procurement: Weaknesses in the governance arrangements for procuring goods and
services may be compounded by resourcing issues, effective link in with commissioning, and
changes to the scheme of delegation and new regulations during 2024.

Actions taken during 2024/25

e Since the Council's Constitution has been re-written, the CPRs can now be reviewed and
changes proposed.

« In line with the upgrade of the Council's intranet platform, there will be renewed focus on
self-service and training for managers across the Council in their obligations around
procurement and compliance for procurements above and below threshold. Initiate training,
videos, drop-in sessions etc. Training has been run for new managers, provide regular drop-
in sessions when we launch new guidance or processes, review intranet pages and ensure
templates and guidance notes are up to date and processes are as streamlined as possible.

o Constitution review to include procurement aspects.

» Implementation of a Corporate Procurement and Commissioning Board to replace GRG.

« A new process for Procurement Initiation Forms and waivers, utilising new technology and
governance arrangements has been developed and will be launched in early 2024/25.

e Launch of a Procurement Forward Plan for Havering, to increase visibility, reduce
bureaucracy and manage demand within the team, following Director approval early 24/25.

e We will adopt a new approach to monitoring Value for Money and Social Value delivered
against what is promised

e We will review roles and responsibilities to ensure the Havering Procurement Team meet
the business requirements in terms of Contract monitoring and management, and links with
transactional services and HR to ensure end-to-end processes are as efficient as possible.

o Implementation of Internal Audit recommendations

e Learning from best practice

« We will plan and prepare for the new Procurement regulations that are due to come into
place later this year.

Planned actions for 2025/26

e Centralisation of social value will be adopted underpinned by the new social value policy
to enable clear understanding of the commitments made, the ability to track and record
outputs and finally to enable accurate reporting.

« Implementation of a new e-procurement tool that will look end to end in the procurement
and contract management cycle to enhance visibility in the process and governance.

e Complete the re-draft of the Contract Procedure Rules (CPR’s) to include new legislative
requirements under the Care Act 2022 and the Procurement Act 23.

Lead Officer: Strategic Director, Resources

13
Page 309



Appendix F

London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

4. Inadequate judgement outcome of Starting Well’s Social Care Department following
Ofsted’s Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACS) in December 2023 —
resulting in the corresponding Children’s Services Improvement Plan which will continue
until full LACS inspection, likely to be in 2025-26.

Ongoing monitoring by Ofsted and DfE. Ofsted monitoring visit reports will be published from
April 2025. An Area SEND Inspection is also due alongside the ILACS framework.

Actions taken during 2024/25

Development of fully costed Improvement plan through workshops with staff, partners and
parent forums to be submitted to Ofsted and the DfE by end of May 2024 ratified by full
council by July 2024.

Further corporate investment of £13.2m.

Completion of Phase one of Starting Well reorganisation to deliver improvements by July
2024.

Recruitment to permanent AD posts within Starting Well by August 2024.

Launch of Phase two of the Starting well reorganisation by October 2024.

Review of processes and forms within the Case Management System (Liquid Logic) to
reduce inefficiencies.

Development and rollout of a programme of thematic training for staff, managers and
supervisors to support practice improvements.

Improvement programme in line with improvement plan delivered before Ofsted first
monitoring visit in October 2024.

Planned actions for 2025/26

Completion of Phase Two of the Starting Well reorganisation to deliver improvements within
the Early help services by end of May 2025

Following the review of Case recording System in 2024-2025, corresponding remedial work
by December 2025

Development of Al apps to support managers and staff to improve

Improvement programme in line with improvement plan delivered with overview from the
practice improvement board and practice Improvement oversight board

Further corporate investment of £7.7m

Lead Officer: Director of Starting Well

14
Page 310




Appendix F

]

_ London Borough of Havering Annual Governance Statement 2024/25

5. A number of control failures have been identified towards the end of 2024/25 across
three service areas. Reviews undertaken of these incidences have highlighted a
combination of inconsistent application of the financial framework and poor management
oversight in a limited number of areas. These issues have led to financial inefficiencies,
potentially resulting in a misallocation of resources, which may have impacted on service
delivery within the areas affected, ultimately resulting in financial loss to the Council.

In all incidences, both the first (service delivery and day-to-day management of risks) and
second (support, advisory and monitoring responsibilities) line of defence were

ineffective.

Actions taken during 2024/25

« Initial internal audit reviews have taken place and, where applicable, fraud investigations
remain underway.

» A summary of the issues, causes and actions provided to Audit Committee with members
requesting a follow up within 6 weeks.

o Work underway by finance

Planned actions for 2025/26

» Follow up to be provided to Audit Committee in June 2025
e Additional reviews added to the Internal Audit Plan 2025/26
Lead Officer: Strategic Director, Resources

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. \We are satisfied that these steps will address the
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Conclusion

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined above, have been
effectively operating during the year. We did not find any matters that needed addressing
during our review other than those that were previously identified and on which action has
been taken to address.

Signed:

Leader of the Council %/ 7/"?‘[_2 Date. 215 . Jwwr 20250

Chief Executive Date 315t July 2025

15
Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

»¢ Havering

g LONDON BOROUGH

Audit Committee
24 February 2026

Subject Heading: Treasury Management Strategy
Statement (TMSS) and Annual
Investment Strategy 2026/27

ELT Lead: Kathy Freeman
Strategic Director of Resources

Report Author and contact details: Mark White
Capital Strategy Manager

Tony Piggott
Treasury Manager

Policy context: The CIPFA Code of Practice (CIPFA TM
Code) on treasury management 2021
recommends that the TMSS is reported to
a committee for effective review. This role
is undertaken by the Audit Committee,
and this report will be reviewed at its
meeting on the 24" February 2026.

Financial summary: The TMSS forms part of the Authority’s
overall budget setting strategy and
financial management framework

Page 313



The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

People — Supporting our residents to stay safe and well X
Place — A great place to live, work and enjoy X
Resource — Enabling a resident-focused and resilient council X

SUMMARY

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (“TMSS”) is part of the Authority’s
reporting procedures as recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management (“TM”) Code and its Prudential code (“The
CIPFA Prudential Code”) for capital finance in local authorities. The TMSS also sets out
recently introduced changes to the legislative framework, which are generally designed to
place restrictions on authorities’ commercial activity.

This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA TM Code/Prudential Code and Government
Guidance, and it covers:

* The Borrowing and Investment Strategies

* Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators

RECOMMENDATIONS

For the reasons set out in the report and its annexes, Audit Committee is asked to:

1. Consider and comment on this report.

REPORT DETAIL

1. Introduction

1.1 The statutory Codes set out that the Authority is required to approve a Treasury
Management Strategy Statement, and the Prudential Indicators.

1.2 CIPFA define treasury management as “The management of the local authority’s
borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital

Page 314



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

3.1

3.1.1

market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Authority is required to operate a balanced revenue budget, which broadly
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the
treasury management operation is to ensure that the Authority’s cash flow is
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies
are invested in counterparties or instruments in accordance with the Authority’s
appetite for risk and liquidity requirements, as priorities before considering
investment return.

The other main function of treasury management is to help fund the Authority’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the
Authority, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning required to meet its
capital spending operations. This management of longer term cash may involve
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and
on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet the
Authority’s risk or cost objectives

Whilst any regeneration initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the
treasury function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities,
(arising usually from capital expenditure which has its own governance process),
and are separate from the day to day treasury management activities. This
expenditure is shown throughout this report as the “regeneration programme”.

The current treasury portfolio is set out in appendix 1.

Key Considerations and Sustainability
TMSS 2026/27
Treasury Management considerations:

e The Macroeconomic outlook

e The Borrowing strategy

¢ Prudential indicators and treasury limits
e The Investment strategy

e TM regulation and policies

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA TM Code and the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Investment Guidance.

Service Delivery and Performance Issues

Macro-economic and Interest rate outlook

MUFG Corporate Markets, assist the Authority with determining its view on

interest rates. The PWLB forecasts below in table 1 are based on Certainty Rate
(the standard rate minus 20 bps (0.2%) which has been available to local

Page 315



authorities submitting a certainty rate return which included a high level
description of capital spend and financing plans. In addition to the certainty rate
there is also access to a lower HRA PWLB rate (standard rate minus 60 bps)
which started on 15th June 2023. This rate is solely intended for use in Housing
Revenue Accounts and primarily for new housing delivery.

Table 1: Link interest rate outlook

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

MUFG Corporata Markets Interast Rate View 22.12.25

Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec-26 Mar-27 Jun-27 Sep-27 Dec-27 Mar-28 Jun-28 Sep-28 Dec-28 Mar-29

BANK RATE 3.75 3.50 3.50 3.25 3.25 325 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25
3 month ave earnings 3.80 3.50 350 3.30 330 330 330 330 3.30 330 330 3.30 3.30
G month ave earnings 3.80 3.50 3.50 3.40 330 330 3.30 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40

12 month ave sarnings 3.90 3.60 360 3.50 340 350 3% 3.50 3.50 .50 360 3.60 3.60

5yr PWLB 4.60 4.50 4.30 4.20 410 410 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10

10 yr PWLB 5.20 5.00 4.90 4.80 480 470 470 4.70 4.7T0 4.60 460 460 470

25 yr PWLB 5.80 5.70 5.60 5.50 5.50 5.40 5.30 5.30 5.30 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20

50 yr PWLB 5.60 5.50 5.40 5.30 530 520 5.0 5.10 5.10 5.00 510 5.00 5.00

A combination of tepid growth (02.%q/q GDP for Q2 and 0.1% g/q GDP for Q3),
falling inflation (currently CPI is 3.2%), and a November budget that will place
more pressure on the majority of households income, has provided an opportunity
for the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to further reduce the
Bank Rate from 4.0% to 3.75% on the 18 December 2025 .

Looking forward further cuts in the Bank rate are forecast during 2026/27.
Gilt yields and PWLB rates: The overall trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to

fall back over the timeline of MUFG Corporate Market’s forecast, in table 1 above
as inflation continues to fall in 2026.

Table 2: PWLB Rates on 9 January 2026

3.1.5

3.2

3.2.1

Duration | Standard | Certainty | HRA
Rate Rate Rate
% % %
1 year 4.56 4.36 3.96
2 years 4.66 4.46 4.06
5 years 4.96 4.76 4.36
10 years | 5.52 5.32 4.92
25years |6.09 5.89 5.49
50 years | 5.87 5.67 5.27

Officers reviewed other economic forecasts and found there is a consensus that
rates are trending down. Officers agree that long term borrowing should be on
shorter durations (1-5 years) and then refinance on longer term durations when
rates are expected to be lower.

Borrowing Strategy
The revenue budget is, by law, balanced such that income is expected to equal
expenditure. However, the timing of government grants and other large items can

lead to large variations in the actual daily cash position, for example the average
monthly payroll alone is in the region of £10.5m.

Page 316



3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

As at 31 March 2025 the Authority had cash balances of £117.0m, this had
reduced to £18.4m by 31 December 2025. In addition to the variability of cash
flow, Capital expenditure, to the extent that it is not financed by government
grants, capital receipts or other external funding, has reduced the cash balance.
Over time this will be matched by borrowing but it should be noted that the exact
timing of the borrowing and expenditure will not match. It should be noted that
cash balances were particularly low on the 315t December due to an early salary
payment date and the effects of the holiday period. Cash levels have increased
immediately after the holiday period and currently are a little above the liquidity
buffer of £40m.

The Capital programme spend 2025/26 through to 2028/29 is £1.05bn of which
£650m is HRA and £245m is Regeneration. This will change if new government
capital grants are announced.

For the reasons set out above the Authority needs to maintain a prudent cash
balance to allow it to cover the variability of expenditure. The extent to which
borrowing would be required will depend on the movement in cash reserves,
working capital, strength of the capital forecast and how much slippage might
occur during each financial year.

It is sensible to plan, based on covering the inevitable month on month
fluctuations in cash balances to avoid what would in effect be an unplanned, and
therefore expensive, short-term overdraft. Based on analysis of the monthly cash
variations then £40m has been established as an appropriate cash balance or
liquidity allowance.

The underlying need to borrow for the capital programme is measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). Havering like most authorities has set its
external borrowing below the CFR level. This means that the CFR, has not been
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Authority’s reserves, balances
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent
as medium and longer dated borrowing rates are expected to fall from their
current levels once prevailing inflation concerns are addressed by tighter near-
term monetary policy.

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will
be exercised on 2026/27 treasury operations. The Strategic Director of
Resources in conjunction with the Treasury Manager will monitor interest rates in
financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances:

o if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing
rates, then long term borrowing will be postponed.

o if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in
borrowing rates than that currently forecast, fixed rate funding will be drawn
whilst interest rates are lower than they are projected to be in the next few
years.

Page 317



3.2.8

3.29

3.2.10

3.211

3.2.12

Plans are also in place to undertake in year HRA long term borrowing on short
durations to meet the borrowing need whilst interest rates remain below the
budgeted rate in the HRA business plan.

Potential borrowing sources are set out below:

Approved sources/type of borrowing

On Balance Sheet
Fixed Variable

PWLB ° °
Municipal bond agency o o
Local authorities . .
Banks . .
Pension funds . .
UK Infrastructure Bank . .
Energy Efficiency Fund MEEF e o
Overdraft .
Negotiable Bonds o o
Internal reserves & balances . .
Finance leases . .

The preferred strategy, as agreed with MUFG Corporate Markets at this stage is
to borrow for fixed term loan durations less than 5 years from the either the
PWLB, Market (Long term and temporary), Local authorities, Banks depending on
who is offering better terms for a relatively short term duration (up to 5 years), to
minimise the immediate interest rate costs. These sources represent the
cheapest and most accessible source for shorter duration debt and for borrowing
of this size. This will then be refinanced as part of the longer-term borrowing
strategy once interest rates start to come off their current elevated levels. The
option to use quasi government loans from the UK Infrastructure Bank (UKIB) for
new long term borrowing may also be used on specific capital projects which
typically provide Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) outputs where
they provide value for money over PWLB certainty rates.

Interest rates may not follow the central outlook set out in this report and there is
a significant risk that they may remain elevated for longer or increase due to
unknown factors such as geopolitical events. In this scenario, the Strategic
Director of Resources in consultation with the Cabinet member for Finance may
decide from a risk management point of view that it would be sensible to secure
the capital investment strategy, if longer term borrowing from one of the approved
sources set out above was undertaken sooner than later. This may result in a
higher cost of borrowing than planned but capital plans will be regularly monitored
to ensure they remain affordable and sustainable.

As it stands the PWLB is currently the most cost effective source except possibly
on specific ESG related capital plans. Treasury officers and MFUG Corporate
Markets will constantly monitor the capital finance market to identify the most cost
effective source of long term borrowing from the above list of approved sources of
capital finance.

Page 348



3.2.13 Other borrowing arrangements: such as the use of leasing, specialist ‘green’
funding that may be more cost efficient for some types of capital expenditure such
as for vehicles, equipment and decarbonisation schemes.

3.2.14 The type, period, rate and timing of new borrowing will be determined by the
Strategic Director of Resources under delegated powers, taking into account the
following factors

Expected movements in interest rates as outlined above

Maturity profile of the debt portfolio set out in graph 1 and table 3 below.
The impact on the medium term financial strategy (MTFS)

Proposed Prudential Indicators and limits as set out in appendix 2.

Graph 1: Debt Maturity Profile as at 31/12/25

Loans Maturities by Type
£250,000,000

£200,000,000
£150,000,000
£100,000,000

£50,000,000

£0

Liquid
<1 Year
1-2
years
years |
5-10
years
10-20 |
years
20-30
years |
30-40 |
years
40 - 50
years
>50 |
Years

Table 3: debt maturity profile as at 31/12/25

Duration Amount % of total | Average rate
£000 % %
<1year 256.0 45.2 451
1to 2 years 17.5 3.1 3.11
2to 5years 51.5 9.1 3.24
5to 10 years 66.1 11.7 3.32
10 to 20 years 30.2 5.3 3.48
20 to 30 years 0.6 0.1 0.38
30 to 40 years 40.0 7.0 4.78
40 to 50 years 105.0 18.5 1.53
Total 566.9 100 3.62

Policy on borrowing in advance of need

3.2.15 This is set out in appendix 4 of this report.

Page 319



3.2.16

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

Debt Rescheduling

Where short term borrowing rates are considerably cheaper than longer term
fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by
switching from long term debt to short term debt. However, these savings will be
considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of the cost of
debt repayment (premiums incurred).

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

e The generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings

e To fulfil the treasury strategy

e To enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the
balance of volatility)

e Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt
prematurely as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than
rates paid on current debt.

CIPFA Prudential Code

The CIPFA Prudential Code sets out a statutory framework designed to ensure
that capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that
treasury management decisions are aligned with an authority’s long-term financial
position.

The Prudential Code requires authorities to demonstrate:

e Affordability — capital investments and borrowing plans must be affordable in
both the short and long term, with particular emphasis on the revenue
implications of borrowing (i.e. interest and MRP) and their impact on the
revenue budget.

e Prudence — borrowing must not exceed the Authority’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) except in the short-term and must not be undertaken for
revenue purposes unless exceptional financial support has been granted.

e Sustainability — external debt levels and the associated ongoing revenue costs
must be sustainable over the life of the capital plans and beyond

e Risk Management — authorities must consider the risk associated with interest
rates, cash flow, refinancing, exposure to commercial risk and long-term
liabilities

e Transparency and decision making — indicators must be approved by Council,
monitored regularly and clearly reported

The Authority is required to set and monitor a suite of prudential indicators, most
of which are contained in Appendix 2. These indicators provide assurance to
Members that the capital plans and treasury strategies meet the code
requirements. A review of the Authority’s forecasts against each of the key
indicators confirms that the proposed capital programme is compliant with the
requirements of the CIPFA prudential code with the assessment summarised
later in this section.

Page 320



3.34

3.3.5

3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8

3.3.9

3.3.10

Whilst the capital programme can be demonstrated as fully compliant with the
Prudential Code, what does not meet the affordability and sustainability
requirements of the code is the projected borrowing as a result of the exceptional
financial support. Projected borrowing as a direct result of the increase in CFR
from the EFS leads to further compounding of capital financing costs leading to
an even higher borrowing requirement.

With no solution to the revenue pressures which is further compounded by the
additional financing costs associated with the borrowing for the EFS, unless
borrowing specifically for the EFS can be provided with no additional cost to
revenue, then the financial situation is simply not affordable nor sustainable. This
would be in full breech of the Prudential Code but not as a result of the capital
programme which is set to try and ease revenue pressures through the large
regeneration projects and invest to save initiatives which support the revenue
budgets.

The non-compliance with the code is clearly shown in the EFS Prudential
Indicators, a key requirement of the code, where the GF borrowing requirement
rises from the current figure of £30m for EFS, up to £346m in just 4 years
(Appendix 2, table 4).

The increase in the statutory charge to revenue as a result of the forced
increased borrowing to fund the EFS means an increase from the 24/25 figure of
£760k to a staggering £28.6m in 2028/29, a time period of just 4 years. With
further compounding of interest and borrowing repayments to follow, the financial
situation is clearly not in the least affordable or sustainable and therefore non-
compliant with prudential code.

There is no better indication of the impact this will have on residents than to show
the financing costs from EFS as a ratio of income from Council Tax (Appendix 2,
table 9). Currently the ratio was just 0.5% in 2024/25 but based on the current
forced borrowing required as part of the EFS, this increases to almost 15%.
Effectively meaning 15% of a residents Council Tax bill is going towards the
financing costs due to the Council being underfunded rather than helping support
front line services.

Setting aside the impact of the EFS on Authority’s finances which have been
shown to be non-compliant with the Prudential Code, the remaining GF and HRA
capital programmes can be demonstrated as fully compliant with the code, though
not without risks.

Affordability and Sustainability Indicators — These indicators consider the
extent to which revenue consequences of capital investment place pressure on
the Authorities finances and are driven by the capital financing requirement or
underlying need to borrow (Appendix 2, table 4). Borrowing as a result of service
spending over the 4 year period prescribed by the code only increases from
£156m in 2024/25 to £197m in 2028/29, less than £10m per year. Regeneration
borrowing climbs higher rising from £90m to £246m over the same time period
however this supports a large programme of regeneration which, whilst not being
the primary objective, generates significant revenue income to offset the financing
costs.

Page 321



3.3.11

3.3.5

3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8

3.3.9

3.3.10

This is demonstrated by showing percentage of financing costs to Council Tax
yield (Appendix 2, table 9) where borrowing as a result of service capital spend
increase by just 1% in 4 years rising from 8.2% to 9.2% in 2028/29. The same
increase relating to regeneration capital spending is under 5%. The growing cost
of servicing the additional service and regeneration borrowing is carefully
managed and built into the MTFS often offset by additional income streams as a
result of the capital spend.

HRA Affordability Indicators — the HRA CFR is forecast to rise from £430.9m to
£729.1m by the 315t of March 2029 (set out in appendix 2, table 4). While the
code permits no MRP charge within the HRA, the revenue impact is borne
through higher interest costs. With financing costs approaching 50% of rental
income, there is an affordability constraint that may limit future investment
capacity but is not considered to be unaffordable.

Given the growing size of the HRA borrowing requirement, Long-term HRA
borrowing will only be undertaken when rates are favourable to ensure financing
costs remain stable.

Whilst these affordability and sustainability indicators show compliance with the
code, they do highlight significant affordability pressures, and the need for
continuous monitoring and mitigation.

Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement — The Prudential Code
requires that gross external borrowing does not exceed the CFR over the medium
term. Table 7 in appendix 2 shows that forecast gross external debt over the
medium term is within the CFR forecasts and thus demonstrating that the
Authority is maintaining a prudent level of internal borrowing and continues to
comply with the Code’s requirement not to borrow above need.

Operational Boundary and the Authorised Limit — The Authority’s external
debt forecasts over the MTFS period remain within both the Operational boundary
and the Authorised Limit, as set out in tables 5 and 6 of Appendix 2. These limits
reflect the maximum prudent and legal borrowing levels. This confirms
compliance with the statutory borrowing controls under the local Government Act
2003 and the Prudential Code.

Risk Management — While the Authority faces significant risks arising from the
increasing levels of debt, the revenue impact of servicing that debt, and exposure
to movements in interest rates, a comprehensive suite of mitigation actions is
already in place. These measures ensure that the Authority remains compliant
with the Prudential Code through the combination of:

Disciplined treasury management

Strengthened cash flow control

Integration with the MTFS

Enhanced governance

Robust oversight of regeneration and HRA business plan through the
respective boards

Page 322



3.3.11

3.3.12

3.3.12

3.3.13

3.3.14

3.3.15

3.3.16

3.3.17

3.4

3.4.1

HRA and regeneration business plan updates all include detailed stress-testing of
rent levels, inflation assumptions and other key data inputs to ensure risk
management is maintained at a high level.

The authority has a clear, credible and proactive approach to mitigating the key
risks arising from its debt profile and capital plans. These measures support
continued compliance with the Prudential Code and help ensure the long-term
risk management of the Authority’s financial strategy.

Transparency and Decision Making — to ensure transparency and compliance
with the Prudential Code the reporting of treasury to Cabinet and Members is set
out in section 3.5.1 below and meets regulatory requirements. In addition to the
statutory reporting, the treasury position is reported monthly to the lead Member
for Finance with additional supplementary reports submitted to Audit Committee
which meets on a quarterly basis.

Any material deviation from the approved indicators (e.g. CFR changes, rising
finance costs, or liquidity risks) will be reported promptly to Cabinet, Audit
Committee and the S151 officer.

the above approach ensures that Members maintain a clear line of sight over
emerging risks relating to the treasury and capital functions and can take timely
corrective action ensuring that the Prudential Code is adhered to.

The CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA TM Code requires authorities to set
treasury indicators The treasury indicators limit treasury risk and activities of the
Authority; This includes a liability benchmark for the General Fund (GF) and the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA); appendix 3.

The purpose of these is to manage the activity of the treasury function within a
flexibly set remit for risk management yet not impose undue restraints that
constrict opportunities for cost reduction or performance improvement.

Overall Conclusion — Based on the indicators set out in Appendix 2 the Authority
meets the requirements of the CIPFA Prudential Code and remains compliant
with all statutory borrowing limits so far as the setting of the capital programme is
concerned. However, the forecasts do demonstrate that the Authority is entering
a period of significant financial risk driven by:

Rapidly rising CFR and debt servicing costs for both the GF and HRA
Increased reliance on short-term borrowing

Higher exposure to interest rate and refinancing risk

Growing pressure on both the GF and HRA revenue budgets

Investment Strategy

The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include
both treasury and non-treasury investments. This report deals solely with treasury
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non Treasury
investments are covered in the capital strategy report.

Page 323



3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

3.4.7

3.4.8

3.4.9

The Authority’s investment policy has regard to the following:

e MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”)
e CIPFA TM Code and Guidance Notes from 2021.

The key intention of the Guidance is to maintain the requirement for authorities to
invest prudently and that priority is given to the security and liquidity of
investments before yield. The Authority’s objective is therefore to achieve, within
this constraint, the optimum return on its investments with the appropriate levels
of security and liquidity. Within the prudent management of its financial affairs, the
Authority may temporarily invest funds that are borrowed for the purpose of
expenditure expected to be incurred in the reasonably near future. Borrowing
purely to invest or on-lend for speculative purposes remains unlawful and this
Authority does not engage in such activity.

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the
management of risk. This Authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing
risk and, its minimum credit criteria is set out in Appendix 5. The Authority’s
investment strategy has not changed from the 2025/26 TMSS which was
approved by full Council as part of the 2025/26 budget setting process.

Investments will refer to the core balance, cash flow requirements and the outlook
for short and medium term interest rates.

Credit ratings should not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution.
This Authority is not bound by the institution’s rating and, importantly, officers will
continually assess and monitor the financial sector and the economic/political
environment in which institutions operate.

Treasury investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed
in Appendix 6. The ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investment categories are in
accordance with the MHCLG Investment Guidance.

The Strategic Director of Resources, on advice, may make operational changes
to these limits in response to prevailing market conditions and regulatory
changes. Presently the Authority’s operational lending list only includes the
highest quality UK financial institutions, other local authorities (limit of £10m per
authority) and the Government Debt Management Office — investment balances
are expected to be generally around the liquidity allowance of £40m and these
are generally held on very short duration investments.

All investments will be denominated in sterling.

3.4.10 Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried out during the year.

Page 324



3.4.11

3.4.12

3.4.13

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

Loans to Third Parties or Non-Treasury investments

The Authority may borrow to make grants or loans to third parties for the purpose
of capital expenditure, as allowable under paragraph 25 (1) (b) of the Local
Authorities (Capital Financing and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003
(Statutory Instrument No. 3146). This facility is likely to be used to support local
economic regeneration and development activity but not limited to those
purposes. The additional capital expenditure may be funded by external
borrowing. Loans for working capital or revenue purposes are permitted as long
as these are funded from the Authority’s internal cash balances as external
borrowing is not permitted in such circumstances.

Pension Fund Cash - The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment) Regulations 2016 requires the Authority to maintain a separate bank
account for the Pension Fund. For the management of Pension Fund cash, there
is in place an agreement to pool internally held pension fund balances (working
cash and those pending external investment) with the investment balances of the
Authority. These balances are invested in accordance with the Authority’s
Treasury Management Strategy.

The Pension Fund receives interest annually on their cash balances at a rate
commensurate with that received by the Authority. Pension Fund cash balances
may be withdrawn at any time. In the event of loss of any investment, this will be
borne on a pro rata basis equivalent to the value of each party’s contribution to
the investment which incurred the loss.

Treasury Management Regulation

Statutory reporting requirements

Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main treasury

reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals

in accordance with the CIPFA TM Code.

a. Prudential and treasury indicators and Treasury Strategy, TMSS (this
report) - The first, and most important report is forward looking and covers:

o The capital plans, (including prudential indicators)

e The Treasury Management Strategy Statement, (how the investments
and borrowings are to be organised), including treasury indicators

« An Investment Strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to
be managed).

b. A mid-year treasury management report — a progress report and updates
Members on the capital position, amending prudential/treasury indicators as
necessary, and whether any policies require revision.

c. An annual treasury report — a backward looking review document providing

outturn details on actual prudential and treasury indicators and treasury
activity compared to the estimates within the strategy.

Page 325



3.5.3 The above reports are required to be adequately reviewed before being adopted
by Full Council. This role is undertaken by the Audit Committee.

3.5.4 The minimum revenue provision policy is included in the 5 Year Capital
Programme and Strategy Report which is presented to Cabinet alongside the
Budget report.

Training

3.5.5 Akey requirement of the CIPFA TM Code is Member consideration of treasury
management matters and the new Knowledge and Skills framework set out in the
revised CIPFA TM Code published in December 2021.

3.5.6 Furthermore, pages 47 and 48 of the Code state that they expect “all
organisations to have a formal and comprehensive knowledge and skills or
training policy for the effective acquisition and retention of treasury management
knowledge and skills for those responsible for management, delivery, governance
and decision making.

3.5.7 The Authority addresses this important issue by:

e Providing training sessions, briefings and reports on treasury management
and investment issues to those Members responsible for the monitoring and
scrutiny of treasury management.

e Prepare tailored learning plans for treasury management officers and
board/council members.

e Require treasury management officers and Committee/Council members to
undertake self-assessment against the required competencies (as set out in
the schedule that may be adopted by the organisation).

¢ Requires all relevant Officers to keep their skills up to date through training,
workshops and seminars, and participating in the CIPFA Treasury
Management Forum and the London Treasury Officers’ Forum.

3.5.8 In further support of the revised training requirements, CIPFA’s Better
Governance Forum and Treasury Management Network have produced a ‘self-
assessment by members responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management’,
that officers will circulate annually to members for completion.

The policy on use of external service providers
3.5.9 The Authority uses MUFG Corporate Markets as its external treasury

management adviser; the contract was procured through a framework and
commenced on 1 July 2024 and is due to expire on 30 June 2029.

Page 326



3.5.10 The Authority recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
always remains with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance is not
placed upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be
undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our

treasury advisers.

3.5.11

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury

management services to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The
Authority will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by
which their value will be assessed are agreed and subjected to regular review.

3.5.12

investment in regeneration schemes.

Reasons for the Decision

REASONS & OPTIONS

The Authority may use specialist advisers on non-treasury investments, e.g.

The statutory Codes set out that the Authority should approve a Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, and the Prudential Indicators.

Alternative Options Considered

The MHCLG Guidance and the CIPFA Code do not prescribe any particular treasury
management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The S151 officer, having consulted
the Cabinet Member for Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative
strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed below.

Alternative

Impact on Income and
Expenditure

Impact on Risk
Management

Invest in a narrower range
of counterparties and/or for
shorter duration

Interest income will be
lower

Lower chance of losses
from credit related defaults,
but any such loss may be
greater

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for
longer duration

Interest income will be
higher

Increased risk of losses
from credit related defaults,
but any such losses may be
smaller

Borrow additional sums at
long-term fixed interest
rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
Non HRA debt cost is
unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact
in the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs may be more certain

Page 327




Borrow short-term or Debt interest costs will Increases in debt interest
variable loans instead of initially be lower costs will be broadly offset
long-term fixed rates by rising investment income
in the medium term, but
long-term costs may be
less certain

IMPLICATIONS & RISKS

Financial Implications and Risks

The TMSS is a key part of the overall budget strategy and financial management
framework and governs the strategic and operational treasury management activities
throughout each financial year to manage the Authority’s financial risks associated with
cash management via borrowing and investments.

Members are approving the programme on the basis that the capital programme spend is
achieved, which feeds through into the Prudential Indicators set out in the report. The
reality is that there is likely to be slippage and this will impact on the MTFS.

The assumption for new borrowing is that interest rates will follow the outlook set out in
table 1 above. The expectation is that borrowing will be on fixed rate terms on maturities
less than 5 years and that these will be refinanced into longer term >5y loans once longer
term interest rates become lower:

Legal Implications and Risks

Local Authorities are required by Regulations 2 and 24 of the Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003/3146 as amended to have regard
to the “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities” and Treasury
Management in the Public Services Code of Practice published by CIPFA when
considering their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003. The Authority
must comply with section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 to keep under review the
amount of money the Authority can afford to borrow. The Authority has fiduciary duties
toward its taxpayers to act in good faith in the interests of those taxpayers with the
considerable sums of money at its disposal. The Strategies being proposed for approval
seek to discharge those duties in a reasonable and prudent manner.

There are no other apparent legal implications arising from of this Report.
Human Resource Implications and Risks
There are no direct Human Resources implications arising because of this report

Equalities Implications and Risks

Page 328



The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

0] The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010.

(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share protected
characteristics and those who do not.

(i)  Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and those
who do not.

The Authority is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. There are no
equalities implications within this report
Health and Wellbeing Implications and Risks
The Authority is committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all Havering
employees and residents in respect of socioeconomics and health 20 determinants.
There are no direct implications to the Authority’s workforce and resident’s health and
wellbeing because of this report.
Climate Change Implications and Risks
There are no climate or environmental implications arising from this report; however the
Council can make significant impact via future investment opportunities and operational
changes. Numerous changes have already been made to ensure that climate is a key
consideration when making investments. In line with the Council's climate change
ambitions of becoming carbon neutral by 2040, investment activities will continue to
contribute towards achieving this target, once requirements for the security and liquidity of
investments have taken precedence.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None
APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Current treasury position

Appendix 2: Prudential indicators & capital expenditure

Appendix 3: Treasury limits

Appendix 4: Policy on borrowing in advance of need

Appendix 5: The Authority’s counterparty credit policy, minimum credit ratings criteria

Appendix 6: Specified and non-specified investments

Page 329



Appendix 1
CURRENT TREASURY POSITION

As at 31 March 2025 and 31st December 2025, Investments and borrowings are set out
in table 1 below.

Table 1: Treasury Portfolio Position

Actual 31/03/25 Actual 31/12/25
£m % £m %
Treasury Investments
Government & Local Authorities 117.0 100 18.4 100
Banks & Other Financial
Institutions 0.0 0 0.0 0
Total Treasury Investments 117.0 100 18.4 100
Treasury Borrowing
PWLB 600.1 98.8 549.1 96.9
Bank Loans (LOBO) 7.0 1.1 7.0 1.2
Local Authorities 0.0 0.0 10.0 1.8
Other loans 0.5 0.1 0.8 0.1
Total External Borrowing 607.6 100 566.9 100
Net Treasury
Investments/(Borrowing) (490.6) (548.5)

Page 380



PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS & CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Authority’s capital expenditure plans, both

Appendix 2

those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. Members are asked
to approve capital expenditure forecasts set out in table 1:

Table 1. Capital expenditure forecast 2025/26 - 2028/29

Capital Expenditure 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
£m Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
General Fund 32.7 51.7 87.8 42.9 10.2
(excluding regen)

Regeneration 22.5 30.2 62.8 49.8 55.6
Exceptional financial 30.4 60.0 77.0 93.0 93.0
Support (EFS)

Total General fund 85.6 141.9 227.6 185.7 158.8
HRA 75.0 161.5 141.0 128.8 127.7
Total 160.6 303.4 368.6 314.5 286.5

Financing of Capital Expenditure

Table 2 below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are

being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a

funding borrowing need.

Table 2: Financing of Capital expenditure forecast 2025/26 - 2028/29

Financing of capital 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29 Total
expenditure £m Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

Capital Receipts 16.6 60.8 9.9 13.5 5.4 106.2
Capital Grants 26.4 44.8 144.1 36.1 25.4 276.8
Revenue & Reserves 17.2 12.3 15.7 13.4 14.1 72.7
Net financing need for 100.4 185.5 198.9 251.6 241.6 978.0
the year (borrowing)

The net financing need for regeneration programme activities included in the above table
against expenditure is shown below:

Page 331




Table 3: Regeneration Programme forecast 2025/26 - 2028/29

Financing of capital 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
expenditure £m Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Capital Expenditure 22.5 30.2 62.8 49.8 55.6
Other Sources of 0.2 0.5 19.1 7.5 0.0
Financing

Regen Net financing 22.3 29.7 43.7 42.3 55.6
need for the year

(borrowing)

Total Net Financing 100.4 185.5 198.9 251.6 241.6
need for the year

Regeneration 22.2% 16.0% 21.9% 16.8% 23.0%
Percentage of total net

financing need

The Authority’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement)

The second prudential indicator is the Authority’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the
Authority’s indebtedness and so it’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure
above, which has not immediately been paid for (e.g. by capital grants), through a
revenue or capital resource, will increase the CFR.

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with
each asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are
used.

The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (OLTL) which relates to PFI schemes and
finance leases.

The Authority is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

Table 4. Capital financing requirement forecast 2025/26 - 2028/29

£m 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

General Fund Service 156.3 170.2 190.7 195.3 197.3

Spending

Regeneration 90.6 117.9 158.0 195.6 245.8

Exceptional Financial 30.4 88.9 161.4 246.0 326.0

support

Right of Use Assets 8.7 3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

(IFRS16)

Housing 430.9 500.5 550.2 651.0 729.1

Total CFR 716.9 880.8 1,060.3 1,287.9 1,498.2

Page 382




| Movement in CFR \ | 1639 | 1795 | 2276 | 2103 |
Movement in CFR represented by
Net financing need for 185.5 198.9 251.6 241.6
the year (Table 2 above)
Less: MRP (14.2) (17.0) (20.4) (25.8)
Less Receipts set aside (7.4) (2.5) (3.5) (5.5)
Movement in CFR 163.9 179.4 227.7 210.3

The Operational Boundary

This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to exceed. In most
cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR but may be lower or higher depending on
the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources.

Table 5: Operational boundary 2025/26 - 2028/29

Operational 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Boundary Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m

Debt 920.8 1,100.2 1,327.9 1,538.2
Other long-term 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0
liabilities

Total 950.8 1,130.2 1,357.9 1,568.2

The Authorised Limit for External Debt

This is a key prudential indicator and represents a control on the maximum level of
borrowing. This represents a legal limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this
limit needs to be set or revised by the full Authority. It reflects the level of external debt
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the

longer term.

Table 6: Authorised limit 2025/26 - 2028/29

Authorised Limit 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
£m Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Debt 970.8 1,150.2 1,377.9 1,588.2
Other long-term 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0
liabilities

Total 1,020.8 1,200.2 1,427.9 1,638.2

The Authority’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table shows
the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need, (the Capital
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing. The forecast
future borrowing requirement assumes existing levels of reserves, working capital and

Paga 333



liquidity buffer whilst factoring in borrowing for capital expenditure and capitalisation

directive.

Table 7: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and Borrowing

£m 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

External Debt

Debt at 1 April 452.4 607.6 662.0 860.9 1,1125

Actual/Forecast borrowing in 155.2 54.4 198.9 251.6 241.7

year

Actual gross debt at 31 607.6 662.0 860.9 1,1125 | 1,354.2

March cumulative

The Capital Financing 716.9 880.8 1,060.3 | 1,287.9 | 1,498.2

Requirement

Under / (over) borrowing 109.3 218.8 199.3 175.4 144.0

Prior Year Equivalent CFR 716.2 992.8 1,323.4 | 1,585.9 -

estimates

Affordability Prudential Indicators

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the
affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of
the capital investment plans on the Authority’s overall finances. The Authority is asked to
approve the following indicators:

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

Table 8 identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long term obligation
costs), against service spending, HRA rents and the regeneration programme. The
estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this

budget report.

Table 8: Ratio of financing costs to HRA rents 2025/26 - 2028/29

Housing Revenue 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Account Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
HRA Rental Income 59.0 61.2 65.4 67.8 71.1
Capital Financing Cost 20.7 23.3 26.3 30.0 34.5
Ratio of Financing 35.1% 38.1% 40.1% 44.3% 48.6%
Costs to HRA Rental

Income

Prior Year Equivalent 28.5% 32.9% 38.2% 42.5% -
Ratio

Page 334



Table 9 shows the trend in the capital financing costs of the General Fund, Regeneration

and the Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) as a percentage of the authority’s council

tax yield (income).

Table 9: Ratio of the General Fund capital financing costs to Council Tax Yield

2025/26 - 2028/29

Service Spending 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
(excluding Regeneration) | Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Council Tax Yield 158.0 164.0 174.0 184.0 195.0
Capital Financing Cost 13.0 13.4 15.2 17.6 18.0
Ratio of Financing Costs 8.2% 8.2% 8.7% 9.6% 9.2%
to Net Revenue Stream
Prior Year Equivalent Ratio 8.4% 9.3% 10.0% 9.7% -
Regeneration 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Council Tax Yield 158.0 164.0 174.0 184.0 195.0
Capital Financing Cost 5.4 7.2 9.9 12.8 15.6
Ratio of Financing Costs 3.4% 4.4% 5.7% 7.0% 8.0%
to Net Revenue Stream
Prior Year Equivalent Ratio 3.3% 4.6% 7.4% 9.8% -
Exceptional Financial 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Support Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Council Tax Yield 158.0 164.0 174.0 184.0 195.0
Capital Financing Cost 0.8 4.5 10.8 18.5 27.3
Ratio of Financing Costs 0.5% 2.7% 6.2% 10.1% 14.0%
to Net Revenue Stream
Prior Year Equivalent Ratio 0.5% 3.3% 8.8% 15.8% -
Total GF 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Council Tax Yield 158.0 164.0 174.0 184.0 195.0
Capital Financing Cost 19.2 25.1 35.9 49.0 61.0
Ratio of Financing Costs 12.1% 15.3% 20.6% 26.6% 31.3%
to Net Revenue Stream
Prior Year Equivalent Ratio | 12.2% 17.2% 26.3% 35.3% -

Page 335




Appendix 3
TREASURY LIMITS

Treasury Management Limits on Activity

There are two debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to restrain the
activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing
the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if these are set to be too
restrictive, they will impair opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.

The Code requires that for the LOBO maturity date should be considered the most
probable maturity date and not the next call date.

The indicators are
Liability benchmark

The Authority is required to estimate and measure the Liability Benchmark for the
forthcoming financial year and the following three financial years, as a minimum. Graph 1
below shows the LB for the Council; this is broken down into its two component funds in
Graph 2: General Fund and Graph 3: HRA.

There are four components to the LB:

1 Existing loan debt outstanding: the Authority’s existing loans that are still
outstanding in future years. This is denoted by the green line that tops the bar
chart showing existing debt (all fixed rate interest) gradually maturing over the
next 50 years.

2 Loans Capital Financing Requirement (CFR): this is calculated in accordance
with the loans CFR definition in the Prudential Code and projected into the future
based on approved prudential borrowing and planned Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) funded from General Fund revenue budget for debt repayment.
This is a measure of the Authority’s borrowing requirement to finance the
Authority’s capital programme and is the very top line graph shown in in blue.

3 Net loans requirement: this will show the Authority’s gross loan debt less
treasury management investments at the last financial year-end, projected into
the future and based on its approved prudential borrowing, planned MRP and any
other major cash flows forecast. This is represented by the solid tan 29 coloured
line graph. The difference between solid tan line and the CFR blue line represents
the amount of internal cash from reserves/balances that has already been
invested in the Authority’s capital programme.

4 Liability benchmark (or gross loans requirement): this equals net loans
requirement plus the £40m short-term liquidity allowance that the Authority is
holding in external liquid treasury investments to manage the daily variability in its
cash flow. This represents the dotted red line in the graphs below and means the
Authority having to externally borrow to maintain the liquidity allowance at £40m.

Page 336



The years where actual loans (Green line) are less than the benchmark (red dotted line)

indicate a future borrowing requirement that the Authority will need to fund from external

borrowing. Were actual loans outstanding to exceed the benchmark this would represent
an over borrowed position, resulting in excess cash requiring investment but as you can

see from the graphs below this is not the position faced by this Authority.

However, any currently unknown future borrowing plans will increase the benchmark loan
debt requirement.

The purpose of the LB is to encourage authorities to use their internal cash reserves to
fund growth in their CFR rather than use external debt which is generally more expensive.
Moreover, it reduces risk as it reduces the need to externally invest the Authority’s excess
cash reserves over long periods with counterparties where there could be default risk.
The benchmark also avoids the risk of over-borrowing and borrowing ahead of need
beyond what is permitted in the short to medium term. Generally, this technique enables
the Authority’s treasury activity to be more efficient and represents good practice.

Liability Benchmark - General fund and HRA

£2,000,000
£1,800,000
£1,600,000

£1,400,000

000)

£1,200,000

o
£ £1,000,000
3
]
£
< £800,000
g
©  £600,000
£400,000
£200,000
£0
DO N DN DH A D N B A O N A N D A D N e
SIP A AP PC AP S S AP P AP S S PN X M. S S MK M - PSP L M P P S
Ul D R A A A A i i R
PWLB Loans Existing Loan Debt Outstanding
—==Net Loans Requirement (forecast net loan debt) e oans CFR

= == Liability Benchmark (Gross Loans Requirement)

This shows currently known future borrowing plans as per Authority’s capital strategy
which covers the three financial years 2026/27 to 2028/29 on the General Fund and 30
years in the draft HRA Business plan.

Page 337



Liability Benchmark - General Fund
£1,000,000

£900,000

£800,000 —

£600,000
£500,000

£400,000

Total Amount (£°000)

£300,000
£200,000
£100,000

£0

D A DN A A A D N D A D NS DA G NS S A S NS D
U I I I I T P I e N i e~ R R S M~ M P g S A P A A S
S e g R S S
PWLB Loans Existing Loan Debt Outstanding - GF
- Net Loans Requirement - GF @] 0ans CFR - GF

= == | jability Benchmark - GF

As there are no known General Fund borrowing plans beyond the MTFS period this
shows the CFR curve being dragged down by successive annual MRP charges to
revenue. ldeally LB requires 10 years of known capital plans, but this is difficult given how
Local Authority finances operate

Liability Benchmark - HRA

£1,000,000

£900,000

£800,000 —
£700,000
£600,000
£500,000

£400,000

Total Amount (£'000)

£300,000
£200,000
£100,000

£0

B A D AN DD A LD N D A B NS A O NS A N
U A I I I R M R P g e e N e e I A - A S
D R S R S R L S S

PWLB Loans Existing Loan Debt Outstanding - HRA
——=Net Loans Requirement - HRA e=| 0ans CFR - HRA

= == | jability Benchmark - HRA

Given the long term nature of HRA capital assets there is no statutory requirement to
make a MRP charge on HRA revenue and hence why the CFR curve is relatively flat after
5 years. Then, over the next three 5 years the net loan requirement is expected to

Page 338



converge with the CFR curve as the HRA externally borrows to reduce its internal
borrowing from the General Fund to finance prior years’ capital expenditure.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing
These gross limits are set to reduce the Authority’s exposure of large sums falling due for

refinancing; these have been kept deliberately wide to provide flexibility for any
restructuring that might be carried out to de-risk the debt portfolio.

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2025/26

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 60%
12 months to 2 years 0% 70%
2 years to 5 years 0% 80%
5 years to 10 years 0% 80%
10 years to 20 years 0% 100%
20 years to 30 years 0% 100%
30 years to 40 years 0% 100%
40 years to 50 years 0% 100%

Investment treasury indicator and limit

Total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days. These limits are set with regard
to the Authority’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an
investment and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. The Authority is
asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit

Upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days

£m 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Principal sums invested £25m £10m £10m
for longer than 365 days

Current investments as at | £0m £0m £0m

31.12.25 in excess of 1
year maturing in each
year

Page& 339



Appendix 4
POLICY ON BORROWING IN ADVANCE OF NEED

The Authority must ensure that its total debt does not, except in the short-term, exceed
the total of the CFR in the preceding year i.e. 2025/26, plus the estimates of any
additional CFR for the year 2026/27 and the following two financial years. This allows
some flexibility for early borrowing for future years but ensures that borrowing is not
undertaken for revenue purposes.

Any decision to borrow in advance will be considered carefully to ensure that value for
money can be demonstrated, and that the Authority can ensure the security of such
funds.

In determining whether borrowing will be undertaken in advance of need the Authority will

» Ensure that the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for future
capital plans and budgets have been considered

« Evaluate economic and market factors that might influence the manner and timing
of the decision to borrow

» Consider the pros and cons of alternative forms of funding, interest rate structures
and repayment profiles

« Consider the positive and negative impacts of borrowing in advance of need on the

Authority’s cash balances, in particular the increased exposure to credit risk that
will arise as a result of investing this additional cash in advance of need

Page 340



Appendix 5
The Authority’s Counterparty Credit policy, minimum credit ratings criteria

Credit Rating: Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest appropriate
published credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. Where available, the
credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise
the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made
solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will
be considered.

Within the parameters set out below the Authority uses the MUFG Corporate Markets (the
treasury management advisor) creditworthiness report to establish a lending list. The
S151 officer will agree an operational lending list within the parameters set out below.

1. Banks (Unsecured) and Building Societies: Accounts, deposits, certificates of
deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks other than multilateral development
banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the
regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. For non UK Banks, the
Authority’s credit criteria will require that banks from AA- rated countries and above can
be used.

Current bank accounts: the Authority’s own banker, Should the credit rating fall below
A-, for liquidity purposes the Authority may continue to deposit surplus cash with the
group providing that investments can be withdrawn on the next working day. Balances will
be reviewed on a daily basis to assess their appropriateness.

Banks (secured): Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other
collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments are
secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely event of
insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment
specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit
rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be
used to determine cash and time limits.

2. Rated Building Societies - The Authority’s credit rating criteria for UK Building
Societies in 2026/27 will continue to limit deposits to those UK Building Societies that
meet the credit criteria in table 1 below.

3. Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments,
regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These investments are
not subject to bail-in, and there is an insignificant risk of insolvency. Investments with the
UK Central Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

4. Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than
banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are
exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent. Loans to unrated companies will only
be made following an external credit assessment as part of a diversified pool in order to
spread the risk widely.

Page 341



5. Registered providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the
assets of registered providers of social housing, formerly known as housing associations.
These bodies are tightly regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing and, as providers
of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.

6. Pooled funds: Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of the above
investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the advantage of
providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager in return for a fee.

7. Money Market Funds (MMF): The Authority will continue to use MMF’s, which provide
lower interest returns but do provide a highly liquid, diversified investment via a highly
credit-rated pooled investment vehicle. Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced
returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the
Authority to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and
manage the underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date,
but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued
suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

8. Ring Fenced Banks, (RFB) The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of
retail / Small and Medium-sized Enterprise (SME) deposits), were required, by UK law, in
response to the global financial crisis to separate core retail banking services from their
investment and international banking 36 activities by 1st January 2019. This is known as
“ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits are exempt, they can
choose to opt up. In general, simpler, activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank
(RFB) will be focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex
and “riskier” activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced
bank (NRFB).

Page 3#2



Table 1. Approved investment counterparties and limits

Credit Banks Banks Registered
. Government Corporates .
rating unsecured* secured Providers
£ Unlimited
UK Govt | n/a n/a n/a n/a
50 years

AAA £15m £15m £15m £5m £5m

5 years 20 years 50 years 20 years 20 years
AA+ £15m £15m £15m £5m £5m

5 years 10 years 25 years 10 years 10 years
AA £15m £15m n/a £5m £5m

4 years 5 years 5 years 10 years
AA- £15m £15m n/a £5m £10m

3 years 4 years 4 years 10 years

£15m £15m £5m £10m
A+ n/a

2 years 3 years 3 years 5 years
A £15m £15m n/a £5m £5m

13 months 2 years 2 years 5 years
A £15m £15m n/a £5m £5m

6 months 13 months 1 year 5 years

UK Local Authorities

£10m per Authority; 50 years
Pooled £25m per fund

These include Bond Funds, Gilt Funds, Enhanced Cash Funds, Mixed Asset Funds
funds

and Money Market Funds,)

Investment Limits

The Authority further proposes the investment limits as set out in the table below to protect
the security of its investments. A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated
as a single organisation for limit purposes. Limits will also be placed on fund managers,
investments in brokers’ nominee accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors as below.
Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development banks do not count against the
limit for any single foreign country, since the risk is diversified over many countries.

Table 2: Investment limits

Cash limit
UK Central Government unlimited
Any single organisation, except the UK Central £15m each

Government

Any group of organisations under the same ownership £15m per group

Any group of pooled funds under the same management | £56m per manager

Financial instruments held in a broker’'s nominee account | £50m per broker

Foreign countries £15m per country

Registered providers £15m in total
Unsecured investments with building societies £25m in total
Money Market Funds £50m in total

Paga 343



Specified and Non Specified Investments

Specified investments:

The MHCLG Guidance defines specified investments as those:

Appendix 6

. Denominated in pound sterling, due to be repaid within 12 months of
arrangement,

. Not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and invested with one of

. The UK Government

. A UK local Authority, parish Authority or community Authority, or A body or
investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Authority defines “high credit quality” organisations and securities as those having a
credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country with a sovereign
rating of AA+ or higher.

Table 1. Specified Investments

Instrument Minimum 'High'

Instrument Institution Type Credit Criteria Limit Max. Maturity Period
UK Banks and UK . .
Accounts, deposits, Banking Groups® per Appendix 5, Table 1 £15m per Appendix 5, Table 1
certificates of deposit and UK Buildi
senior unsecured bonds | o * - ‘tJ.' N9 per Appendix 5, Table 1 £15m | per Appendix 5, Table 1
with banks other than ocieties
multilateral development Sovereign Rating of AA+ and
banks, UK Government above and meet Credit .
Gilts. Non UK Banks Criteria in Appendix 5, Table £15m per Appendix 5, Table 1
1
Covered bonds, floating
rate notes, reverse UK B.anks apd _ Per Appendix 5, Table 1 (and
repurchase agreements Building Societies ) : See .
) Sovereign Rating of AA+ per Appendix 5, Table 1
and other collateralised and Non UK L Note 2
i minimum for Non UK Banks)
arrangements with banks | Banks
and building societies
Local Authorities
Term Deposits and other Public UK Sovereign Rating £15m per Appendix 5, Table 1
Institutions
Loans and bonds issued
by, guaranteed by or Registered Social
secured on the assets of Housing per Appendix 5, Table 1 per Appendix 5, Table 1
registered providers of Providers
social housing.
Money Market Fund AAA3 £15m
Enhanced Cash Funds AA/Aa* £15m

1. £15m Limit per bank / banking group.

2. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured

investments.

3. Investments will be made with those MMF’s which have a rating of AAA

4. Minimum of Fitch / Standard & Poor’s AA or Moody’s Aa rating

Page 344




Table 2: Non specified investments

Instruments

Accounts, deposits,
certificates of deposit,
structured deposits and
senior unsecured bonds
with banks other than
multilateral development
banks. Covered bonds,
reverse repurchase
agreements, and other
collateralised
arrangements with banks
and building societies.
Short Dated Bond Funds,
Diversified Growth Funds,
Absolute Return Funds
and Property Funds.
Unrated Bonds.

Non Specified Institution Type Minimum Maximum Cash
Investments yp Credit Criteria | Duration limit
UK and Non UK
Total long-term Banks'and
investments Building Per Appendix
. Societies, Rated bp 10 yrs. £50m
(investments over 1 . . 5, Table 1
ear) Reglsterec_i Social
y Housing
Providers (RSP)
Unrated
Total investments Registered Social
without credit ratings or Housing
rated below A- (except Providers (RSP), 5yrs.
UK Government and Unrated Banks N/A
local authorities) and Building
Societies £5m
Total Investments made
in pooled investment
vehicles. 7 yrs.
Total Investments made
in un-rated bonds.
Totgl non-specified £55m
investments

Non-specified investments:

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed as non-
specified. The Authority does not intend to make any treasury investments denominated in
foreign currencies, nor any that are defined as capital expenditure by legislation, such as
company shares. Non-specified investments will therefore be limited to long-term
investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of
arrangement, and investments with bodies and schemes not meeting the definition on high
credit quality. Limits on non-specified investments are shown in table 3 below.

Table 3: Non-specified investment limits

Total non-specified investments

Cash Limit £m

Total long-term investments 100
Total Investments without credit ratings or rated below A- (subject to due diligence) 0

100

Page 345




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

»¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

AUDIT COMMITTEE
24 February 2026

Subject Heading: Head of Assurance Progress Report
2025/26

ELT Lead: Kathy Freeman, Strategic Director
Resources

Report Author and contact details: Jeremy Welburn, Head of Assurance

Tel: 01708 432610/ 07976539248
Email: jeremy.welburn@onesource.co.uk

Policy context: To present a summary of the outcomes of
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud work.

Financial summary: There are no financial implications or risks
arising directly from this report which is for
information only.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

People — Supporting our residents to stay safe and well [X]

Place — A great place to live, work and enjoy (X]

Resources — Enabling a resident-focused and resilient Council [X]
SUMMARY

The report in appendix 1 summarises the cumulative outcomes of audit and counter
fraud work (15t April to 31%t January), including actions taken by management in
response to audit and counter fraud activity, which supports the governance
framework of the authority.

Limited assurance reports issued since the last Audit Committee are included in
Appendix 2

Page 347


mailto:jeremy.welburn@onesource.co.uk

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

1. To note the contents of the report.

2. To raise any issues of concern and ask specific questions of officers where
required.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

Introduction

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Council to undertake an effective
internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing
Standards (PSIAS) and other guidance.

Internal audit is a key component of corporate governance within the Council. The
three lines of defence model, as detailed below, provides a framework for
understanding the role of internal audit in the overall risk management and internal
control processes of an organisation:

» First line — operational management controls
+ Second line — monitoring controls, e.g. the policy or system owner/sponsor
» Third line — independent assurance.

The Council’s third line of defence includes internal audit, which should provide
independent assurance to senior management and the Audit Committee on how
effectively the first and second lines of defence have been operating.

An independent internal audit function will, through its risk-based approach to work,
provide assurance to the Council’s Audit Committee and senior management on
the higher risk and more complex areas of the Council’s business, allowing
management to focus on providing coverage of routine operations.

The work of internal audit is critical to the evaluation of the Council’s overall
assessment of its governance, risk management and internal control systems, and
forms the basis of the annual opinion provided by the Head of Assurance which
contributes to the Annual Governance Statement. It can also perform a
consultancy role to assist in identifying improvements to the organisation’s
practices.

The Internal Audit Plan is designed as a dynamic, risk-based framework that
remains adaptable throughout the year. Its flexibility ensures that emerging risks
and changing priorities are addressed promptly. As a result, higher risk areas may
be prioritised for immediate review, which can lead to the deferral of lower risk

Page 348



audits to subsequent years. This approach enables Internal Audit to focus
resources where they deliver the greatest value and assurance.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 — Internal Audit Progress report January 2026

Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Report Summaries

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no financial implications or risks arising directly from this report which is
for information only. It is noted that Internal Audit supports the Council in the
identification and management of risks and ultimately good governance.
Insufficient or ineffective controls may lead to poor service delivery and financial
loss. When managers accept audit recommendations, implementation needs to be
within approved budgets.

Legal implications and risks:

Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Authority to
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control which must be
considered by the relevant committee or by full Council. This report seeks to comply
with that statutory obligation and there are no apparent risks in considering the end
of year report.

Human Resources implications and risks:

The recommendations made in this report do not give rise to any identifiable HR
risks or implications that would affect either the Council or its workforce.

Climate Change implications and risks:

None arising directly from this report. Risks around this are reflected in the Corporate
Risk Register, added into the Internal Audit Plan and incorporated into the scope of
audits where relevant.

Equalities implications and risks:

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have ‘due regard’ to:

0] The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

Page 349



(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and;

(i)  Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and
those who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation,
marriage and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and
gender reassignment.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all
Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health determinants.

An EHIA (Equality and Health Impact Assessment) is usually carried out and on
this occasion this isn’t required.

The Council seeks to ensure equality, inclusion, and dignity for all in all situations.

There are no equalities and social inclusion implications and risks associated with
this decision

Page 350



2025/26 Audit Plan Status (January 2026) Appendix 1

Several audits have been deferred to the 2026/27 Internal Audit Plan. This is largely due to emerging high-risk issues identified during the year that required in-depth
review. These have been discussed with the Audit Committee throughout the year.

Details of audits proposed for deferral, together with the rationale for each, are outlined on the following page. Where audits have been deferred to release capacity for
higher-risk work, this decision has been informed by a risk-based assessment, discussions with the relevant service areas, or consideration of recent reviews within those
areas.

/Audits by Status \ /Audits by Status (as a percentage of the plan) \

This visual does not show a label for the audit removed from the plan, as the slice representing it is too
small for clear display.

Completed
Draft Report 2 (3.39%)

Completed 22 (37.29%)

Not Started Underway 9 (15.25%)

LSt 90Ed

Deferred to Next Year

Underway

Deferred to Next Year
10 (16.95%)

Draft Report 2

Removed from Plan 1

Not Started 15 (25.42%)

10 20 / \ /

o

-




2025/2026 Audit Plan Monitoring_

Appendix 1

Deferred and Removed Audits

Title

Status

PN

Reason

Asset Management - Corporate Landlord

Contracts

Crownfield Infants (TR)
Housing Benefits

Hylands Primary (TR)

o
8rivate Sector Leasing

9]

g)ecial Guardianship payments
N

Squirrels Heath Primary (TR)

Starting Well

Starting Well/ Aging Well - High Cost
Placements

Health and Safety

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year
Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Deferred to Next Year

Removed from Plan

This was an additional audit added in year. Due to capacity, this is being deferred to 26/27 for
completion.

This audit is being deferred to 26/27. This audit was scheduled in the 2025/26 plan to make time
available to audit any high risk contract issues arising in year.

This audit is being deferred to allow the school time to recruit to the School Business Manager post.
This was an additional audit added in year. Due to capacity, this is being deferred to 26/27 for
completion.

School requested that the audit is defered to 2026/27 due to the pilot for the migration of the MIS that
is currently in progress.

This audit has been deferred to 26/27 to allow the service time to embed the recommendations arising
from the Temporary Accommodation audit.

This was an additional audit added in year. Due to capacity, this is being deferred to 26/27 for
completion.

An audit of Squirrels Heath Junior School was originally scheduled for 2025/26. However, following
the amalgamation and the significant issues identified, it has been agreed to defer the audit until
2026/27. This will allow time for the amalgamation process to be completed and for current issues to
be addressed. At that point, the audit will cover Squirrels Heath Primary School as a whole.

This audit is being deferred to 26/27 given the work currently underway within the service in response
to the Ofsted report recommendations.

This audit is being deferred to 26/27 Quarter 1 - given the move during 2025/26 from Commissioning
into Procurement

This audit has been removed from the 25/26 Internal Audit Plan as the Health & Safety Team are
currently undertaking their own audit.




2025/26 Audit Plan Outturn Report (January) - Systems & Schools

/Audits by Status

Completed
Not Started
‘g Deferred to Next Year
5
(73] Underway

Draft Report

Removed from Plan

-

10

(’I

Assurance

| I

_k
K

o
(&)
-_—
o

~

22

15

15 20

<

(@)

Medium

High

Advisory l 2

Recommendation Priority

-~

ecommendations by Priority

20

/
~

Appendix 1

30 /

.

/Audits by Assurance

Reasonable

Limited

Not Applicable

10

~

Recommendation Status

~

/Recommendations by Status

Closed - Advisory

Implremented

o

28
24
2

10

/
~

/




2025/2026 Audit Plan Monitoring - Systems

/Audits by Status \

Underway

(o]

Not Started

w

raft Report

) -
-—

/1798 obed

/Audits by Assurance \

_6
_3
-2

Limited

Not Applicable

Reasonable

Appendix 1

Title Status Assurance
VN

Budget Management (Parking) Completed Limited
Community Leasing (Bretons) Completed Limited
Court of Protection: Deputyship and Appointeeships Follow Up Completed Reasonable
Early Years - End of Year Output Report Completed Not Applicable
Garage Allocations Completed Limited
Marketplace Management Completed Not Applicable
Mayors Charity Fund Completed Not Applicable
Procurement Processes Follow Up Completed Limited
Temporary Accomodation (Additional Overspend) - Follow Up Completed Limited
Tenant Management Organisations Follow Up (Betra and Delta) Completed Reasonable
Tenant Management Organisations Follow Up (Petra) Completed Limited
Asset Data Draft Report
Budget Management Parking (Follow Up) Not Started
Contract Management - Waste Not Started
Tree Maintenance Not Started
Budgetary Control Underway
Cipfa FM Code Underway
Complaints Underway
Council Tax (Empty Property Charges) Underway
Financial Assessment and Benefits Underway
Highways Underway
Mercury Land Holdings Underway
Voids (Tenant Rechargeable Repairs) (24/25) Underway

(]
N
SN

6

\ /




flaYaYal "\Rﬂ 1

2025/2026 Audit Recommendations - Systems Appendix 1

Internal Audit maintains a structured programme of follow-up work to ensure that agreed recommendations arising from audit findings are
implemented in a timely manner. Each auditor is responsible for monitoring the progress of recommendation identified in their audit reports, with
follow-ups scheduled according to the implementation deadlines. For audits where limited assurance was provided, a formal follow-up review is
conducted to verify that recommendations have been effectively implemented.

/Recommendations Raised in 2025/26 by Priority \ /Recommendations by Status \
Medium 5

O

D

D Not Due

D

)

J1

N

Implemented

Recommendation Status

High 20

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

\ / \ Count of Recommendations /




2025/2026 Audit Plan Monitoring_ - Schools

/Audits by Status \

Deferred to Ne... - 3
Underway l 1

0 5 10 /
\

/Audits by Assurance

/998 abed

Appendix 1

Title Status Assurance
Corbets Tey Primary 2425 HC Completed Reasonable
Engayne (HC) Completed Reasonable
Hilldene Primary (HC) Completed Reasonable
James Oglethorpe (HC) Completed Reasonable
La Salette 2425 (HC) Completed Reasonable
Nelmes Primary (TR) Completed Reasonable
Parsonage Farm (TR) Completed Reasonable
Scotts Primary (TR) Completed Reasonable
Shaw Academy (HC) Completed Reasonable
Squirrels Heath Infant School (TR) Completed Reasonable
St Peters Catholic Primary 2425 (TR) Completed Reasonable

Crownfield Infants (TR)

Hylands Primary (TR)

Squirrels Heath Primary (TR)
Branfil Primary (TR)

Clockhouse Primary (TR)
Corbets Tey Primary (TR)

La Salette (TR)

Rainham Village (TR)

St Edwards Primary (TR)

St Josephs Catholic Primary (TR)
St Patricks (HC)

St Ursulas Primary (TR)

The Aspire Federation (TR)

The Learning & Achieving Federation (TR)
Towers Federation (HC)
Emerson Park Academy (HC)

Deferred to Next Year
Deferred to Next Year
Deferred to Next Year
Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started

Not Started
Underway

\ /




INaYal ’\Rn [l
3¢ YVvEa

2025/2026 Audit Recommendations - Schools Appendix 1

Similarly to systems audit recommendations, Internal Audit follows up all audit recommendations when the deadlines for implementation are due.
Where schools buy in an annual Health Check, the scope would include following up on the implementation of recommendations raised during
the previous audit.

/Recommendations Raised in 2025/26 by Priority

High 3

Advisory 2

Medium 25

~

/Recommendations by Status

Recommendation Status

Not Due

Implemented

Closed - Advisory

Implremented

o
N

~

4 6 8 10 12 14
Count of Recommendations /




2025/2026 Counter Fraud Audit Work Appendix 1

The counter fraud service is continuing to follow up, fraud referrals from a number of sources, desk-based intelligence checks and investigations with
doorstep visits and Interviews under Caution where necessary. The Council take a zero tolerance approach to all fraud.

Proactive Counter Fraud Investigations
Proactive work undertaken between 01/04/2025 and 31/01/2026

Type Detail No. Received
Advice to Other Local Authorities All Data Protection Act requests via Local Authorities, Police etc. 33

Ngtional Fraud Initiative

The NFl is an exercise that matches electronic data within and between public | Matches have been released and are being

g and private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud and is conducted every |investigated.
) two years.
w
ol
(00]
Reactive Cases Reviewed

Reactive work undertaken between 01/04/2025 and 31/01/2026
Type Detail
v

Reactive Investigation Cases

As at 31/01/2026 there are ten non housing referrals of which information was provided by Whistle-blowers.

All ten cases have been investigated and concluded.

Mutual Exchanges and Successions
Reviewed

Housing Services refer Mutual Exchanges and Succession to the Counter Fraud Team to review. A total of 33 Mutual Exchanges and
21 Successions have been referred and reviewed.

Two Mutual Exchange and six Successions were denied.

Corporate / Non Housing Referrals

As at 31/01/2026 a total of 53 referrals being investigated by other Council services. This may include Corporate, Procurement, Blue
Badge, Licensing etc.




2025/2026 Counter Fraud Audit Work Appendix 1

Housing Cases

The following table illustrates the work undertaken in relation to housing fraud and right to buy (RTB) applications 01/04/2025 and 31/01/2026

Year Number of referrals Properties Notional Saving * RTB referred and RTB stopped Notional Saving Total Notional
for investigation recovered reviewed Saving
2023/24 127 14 588000 94 3 383820 971820
2024/25 110 7 294000 333 50 6820000 7114000
2025/26 128 8 336000 21 1 38000 374000

* Notional saving recommended method uses a standard formula to arrive at an average national cost to the taxpayer per detected tenancy fraud of £42,000

;DUFrom the 21/11/2024 the maximum RTB discount dropped from £136,400 to £38,000 this originally resulted in the large increase in applications submitted and reviewed.

L% Since the reduction in discount the number of applications submitted has therefore reduced.

w

0]

(@)
Open Cases Status (including previous years) Total Closed Cases (including previous years) Total
Total Number of Cases 88 Total Number of completed / closed investigations 32
Pending bailiff action / Eviction 3 RTB stopped ** 1
Passed to Police 1 Properties Recovered 8
Passed to Legal Services for Criminal / Civil Proceedings 6 NFA / No Offence 22
Passed to Housing 1 Mututal Exchange Cancelled 1

Open Investigations 74
Notice To Quit (NTQ) issued
Awaiting Notice to be Served
Awaiting Court Hearing

[ N QL Ny RN



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Limited Assurance Reports Introduction

This report provides the Audit Committee with an overview of the limited assurance internal audit reviews that have been completed since the
Committee last met. It summarises the key findings, the assurance ratings provided, and the management actions that have been agreed to
strengthen the control environment. The purpose of this report is to support the Committee in its oversight responsibilities by highlighting areas
where improvement is required and ensuring that progress is monitored.

A summary of the limited assurance audit reports issued during this period are set out below. Further detail on each audit is provided in the
sections that follow.

Garage Allocations

Serious weaknesses in garage allocation procedures were identified by the service during the absence of the Garage Officer, including missing
records, non-compliant allocations and uncollected income. Significant inconsistencies across systems were identified during the audit.
Non-compliance with established processes resulted in financial loss, data integrity issues, and operational risks, leading to a Limited assurance
rating. Most affected cases have now been rectified, with income recovery underway and locks changed where needed. Management has
intk,gduced improved controls, reconciliations, and oversight processes, although these require verification through follow-up. Strategic data-integrity
a(Q system-alignment issues remain subject to separate corporate workstreams.

Tethporary Accommodation Additional Overspend Follow Up

The&Xfollow-up confirmed that although some progress has been made, most notably through the introduction of the ARA system and improvements
todata quality and role clarity, key weaknesses remain, particularly in data management, forecasting, and supplier arrangements. Reporting
functions, end-to-end procedures, and formal agreements for nightly lets are still incomplete, meaning the overall assurance rating remains Limited.
Whilst three of the twelve high-risk recommendations have been fully implemented, most recommendations remain in progress and are not
expected to be completed until mid-2026. Significant work is still required to finalise service budgeting processes, clarify Finance and service
responsibilities, and formalise supplier documentation, before risks can be fully mitigated.

Tenant Management Organisations (TMO) Follow Up

The follow-up confirmed that no progress had been made by Petra TMO in implementing any of the original recommendations, with sustained
non-engagement and widespread weaknesses across governance, financial management, bank controls, documentation, and compliance.
Significant risks remained unmanaged and the control environment continued to present major concerns. Due to the continued lack of progress, the
Council has decided to bring Petra TMO back in-house. All original recommendations have been replaced by a single high-risk recommendation to
manage the transition. A three-month wind-down period is underway, after which a further follow-up will assess the effectiveness to manage the
risks identified, under Council control.

h¢ Havering



Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Final Internal Audit Report — Garage Allocations

Background

In July 2025, Internal Audit was advised of concerns regarding the allocation of several garages by the Garage Officer without supporting
documentation or corresponding entries in the housing management system. The issue was identified by service managers during the Garage
Officer's absence through sickness. The service’s initial review found that no formal records of allocations or tenant details had been maintained, no
accounts had been created in Open Housing, and no rental charges were being applied.

Internal Audit subsequently undertook a process-mapping exercise to understand the existing garage allocation process and determine what controls
were in place. This report sets out the findings from that review.

Analysis of the Garage Allocations spreadsheet identified 137 garage allocations made between April 2024 and March 2025. A comparison against
the Open Housing system and Photobook confirmed the following:

Six cases involved existing tenants who were temporarily moved to alternative garages while refurbishments were carried out; in these
instances, charges continued to be applied.

19 garages had been demolished and could not have been let.

Seven garages had never existed and therefore could not have been let.

87 garages had not been let.

One garage had been allocated to an internal Council team.

Three garages had been correctly let and set up on the system, with direct debits in place.

14 garages had been let to tenants who had no corresponding records in the system and no rental payments set up.

. o £9S SRed .

Of these 14 cases involving unknown tenants, nine individuals have now contacted the Council, been formally signed up, and have either settled
their charges or have agreed payment plans. In the remaining five cases, the tenants have not made contact, and action to recover possession of
the garages is underway.

The total rental income incurred on the 14 garages at the point of confirmation of use or identification of tenants was £15,442. As at 5th January
2026, £2,974 had been collected, £5,290 remained outstanding from the identified tenants, and £7,177 was owed by individuals who have not yet
contacted the Council. Locks have been changed, and steps have been initiated to regain possession where necessary.

Overall, the audit provides limited assurance that the control framework is adequate to manage the risks associated with the recording, management,
and allocation of garage assets.

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Summary Key Findings

Weaknesses in Compliance, Oversight, and Record Management Within Garage Allocation Procedures

The garage allocation process transitioned from a manual system to digital management via Photobook in April 2024. However, during the Garage
Officer's absence in July 2025, significant issues were uncovered, including missing formal records, absence of accounts in Open Housing and
Photobook, and uncollected rental charges. Customer emails into the service inbox also highlighted unresolved repairs and confusion over lack of
payment collection.

The Garage Officer only began using Photobook in October 2024 and completed 21 licence agreements, through the expected process. A number
of allocations were only recorded on an excel spreadsheet, outside official systems, and without any identifying tenant information, suggesting the
non-compliance was not due to a lack of training or procedural awareness.

There was no management oversight, with no verification of reported allocations or reconciliation of direct debit setups. Whilst the Housing
Rents/Income Team’s may have picked up a discrepancy between the number of monthly allocations reported against the number of requests for
direct debit set up, their attendance at the monthly meeting only began after the issue was identified.

Incgmplete documentation and system records hindered verification of garage allocations and tenant checks, exposing the service to reputational
rig®and financial loss.

D
Cancerns also emerged regarding the garage waiting list, with no evidence that individuals from the 2019 list were transferred to the current system,
ra@ng risks of exclusion, complaints, and lack of transparency.

At the time of writing, the service informed Internal Audit that, during its investigation, two garages were discovered to have been let, without charge
by a Tenant Management Organisation acting beyond its authority. The service is currently addressing this issue and charges are now being paid.

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Summary Key Findings

Lack of Control and Consistency in Garage Asset Data Across Council Systems

Garage assets are currently recorded across three systems: Open Housing (tenancy and charges), Keystone (physical asset management), and
Earthlight (mapping and location data). These systems differ in structure and usage, with Open Housing recording individual garages and
Keystone/Earthlight recording garage blocks.

Data integrity issues are widely recognised. Garages have reportedly disappeared from Open Housing after long-term inactivity, and Keystone data
was shared with caveats about its accuracy. Refurbishment projects have also led to incorrect numbering and duplicate records.

Internal Audit identified numerous discrepancies across the systems, including missing or mismatched garage records and inconsistent use of Unique
Property Reference Numbers (UPRNSs). Earthlight uses national UPRNs, while Keystone and Open Housing use LBH-assigned ones. A manual
workaround exists to reconcile UPRNSs, but it relies heavily on officer awareness and familiarity with system limitations.

No formal controls were found to ensure consistent updates across systems, increasing the risk of outdated or conflicting data. This misalignment
co_%d lead to underutilisation, missed revenue, and inaccurate insurance reporting.

Q
TH8 ongoing replacement of Open Housing and Keystone with a single integrated system presents a key opportunity to resolve these issues through
str&ctured data migration and validation.

o))
Th® Council faces significant financial and insurance risks due to poor data integrity. Inaccurate reconciliation of garage assets across systems
undermines the reliability of data provided to insurers, posing material risks to insurance coverage and financial reporting, and raising concerns about
the accuracy of asset data across the wider property portfolio. These risks and expected outcomes have been outlined in a separate report.

Failure to Enforce Published Garage Rental and Charging Policies

Despite the Council’'s website stating that garage rent must be paid in advance and that charges apply for lost keys and lock changes, these controls
are not being enforced in practice. There is no established process to ensure charges are consistently applied to tenant accounts, and tenants are
not reliably paying in advance. This undermines financial controls and may result in lost revenue, reputational risk, and inefficiencies in debt recovery.

Gaps in Photobook Workflow for Communicating Garage Licence Conditions

Tenants are not provided with the full garage licence conditions at the point of sign-up. While general terms are included in Photobook, the specific
conditions are expected to be sent separately in hardcopy form by the Garage Officer after the tenant has signed the agreement and received the
keys. However, there is no confirmation process to ensure these conditions are consistently issued, creating uncertainty around tenant awareness
and acceptance. This increases the risk of disputes, non-compliance, and challenges in enforcing the agreement.

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Garage Allocations - Improvement Action Plan

Recommendations

Management Response

Planned Completion Date

1 | High: Garage allocations Garage Officer is using photobook to record all new garage sign ups, this is Complete — Will be verified
follow documented visible via the photobook dashboard. Reports can be downloaded to verify. by Internal Audit as part of
procedures and are the follow up
consistently recorded within
approved systems.

2 | High: Garage asset and The garage officer has completed a full physical check, we have ascertained Complete — Will be verified
tenant records are reconciled | that Havering have 81 garage sites which contain 997 individual garages, these | by Internal Audit as part of
and maintained to support have been checked via earthlight and any discrepancies with open housing the follow up
transparency, service have been addressed.
continuity and data integrity.

3 Robust handover and Estate Services Manager and admin will manage garage inbox, admin will call Complete — Will be verified
contingency arrangements back customers during holidays and sickness. by Internal Audit as part of
are in place to ensure service the follow up

'Econtinuity during staff
%absences.

4 ‘PHigh: Management oversight | Estate Service Manager is checking 20% of all monthly garage signups, Complete — Will be verified
Egand regular checks ensure information is taken from photobook and checked via open housing to make by Internal Audit as part of
drompliance, data accuracy, sure garage accounts have been set up ready for rents to be collected. Screen the follow up

and income recovery. shots are taken throughout the process to witness this procedure.

5 Waiting lists are The garage waiting list has been checked and verified as correct using the Complete — Will be verified
accurate, auditable, and garage application emails. The garage applications are stored in folders within by Internal Audit as part of
managed through clear the garage inbox. Estates Admin member is taking the information from the the follow up
processes for updates and application form and updating the waiting list daily.
transfers.

System integration This recommendation, along with the findings have been included in a separate | Not Applicable
streamlines asset report as they relate to issues identified during the audit that require input from
management, tenancy teams outside the main scope of the original report. To keep the initial report
tracking, and rent charging, focused and avoid sharing its detailed content unnecessarily, these findings and
reducing manual recommendations have been set out in a standalone document.
workarounds.

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Management Response

Planned Completion Date

High: Accurate and complete
garage asset data across all
systems, supports property
valuation, usage reporting,
and insurance coverage,
ensuring compliance with
statutory requirements.

This recommendation, along with the findings have been included in a separate
report as they relate to issues identified during the audit that require input from
teams outside the main scope of the original report. To keep the initial report
focused and avoid sharing its detailed content unnecessarily, these findings and
recommendations have been set out in a standalone document.

Not Applicable

6 Website content and The website has been reviewed and work is underway for the necessary March 2026
internal practices are aligned | changes to be made.
to reflect current procedures
and improve customer
understanding.
7 Income processes Establish a formal process to notify the Housing Rents/Income Team of Complete — Not verified by
‘égensure timely rent collection, | applicable charges, ensuring they are correctly applied to tenant accounts. This | Internal Audit
waccurate reporting, and action is completed via photobook, rents team are sent the DD forms as part of
dalignment with published the sign up process using multimail within the form.
Pholicies.
8 Tenants have clear The garage terms and conditions have been reviewed. The garage Officer will Complete — Will be verified

visibility of the garage licence
terms and conditions prior to

confirming acceptance.

provide a copy of the terms and conditions during the sign up process.

by Internal Audit as part of
the follow up

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Final Internal Audit Follow Up Report — Temporary Accommodation Additional Overspend

Background

In May 2025, Internal Audit issued a memo outlining the key findings relating to the overspend within the 2024/25 Temporary Accommodation budget.
The review identified significant weaknesses across three core areas:

e Data Management and Data Protection

e Budgeting and Forecasting

e Suppliers, Contracts and Rates

To address the issues and associated risks highlighted in that review, a formal Improvement Action Plan was developed. This plan sets out the
required actions for both the service and the Finance Team to strengthen controls, enhance oversight, and improve overall governance.

This follow-up report provides an update on the progress made to date in implementing the agreed actions and highlights any areas where further
work remains outstanding. At this stage, the overall audit opinion remains Limited. While some progress has been made, a significant amount of
work is still required to fully deliver the expected improvements and ensure that the key risks identified are effectively mitigated.

T@?nporary Accommodation Improvement Action Plan

RBgommendations Progress Update
1.3y Review the data from the Data from the Temporary Accommodation spreadsheet has been entered into the Jigsaw Accommodation
2 Temporary Accommodation module (ARA) and checked for accuracy and completeness. A full reconciliation of individuals and addresses

spreadsheet for accuracy was undertaken to ensure accuracy and remove duplication, and rates have been verified. Planned
before transfer to ARA Completion Date: Complete

1.2 | Implement the Housing The Jigsaw Accommodation module ARA went live in October 2025. Planned Completion Date: Complete
Management system ARA

1.3 | Populate ARA with Accommodation and people data has been entered into ARA, and procedures supporting data entry have
accommodation and people been developed and approved. Planned Completion Date: Complete
data

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

1.4 | Decommission the The spreadsheet remains in use as a compensating control until assurance is obtained that all data has been
Temporary Accommodation accurately migrated to the new system and validation checks confirm compliance with documented
spreadsheet procedures. While the service is keen to decommission the spreadsheet at the earliest opportunity, Finance

has indicated a preference to retain it until they are satisfied that these assurances have been fully met.

The spreadsheet remains available; however, it is retained solely as a parallel control during the transition to
the new system. It is not utilised by the service for the management of people or property. On this basis, the
action is assessed as complete and is now considered closed.

Planned Completion Date: Complete

1.5 | Finalise the Housing Benefit | MRI is the supplier of the Jigsaw system. Phase 1 testing has been completed. During testing, it was

interface identified that the automated interface did not include the ‘number of bedrooms’ field. In response, MRI
implemented an alternative interface solution, and a single manual intervention step has been introduced to
address this gap.
g-? A project request has been raised to automate the full process, and a procedure guide has been produced
L(% and approved. Phase 2 testing, intended to achieve full automation, remains dependent on MRI and internal
o IT resource availability. Current timelines indicate that this phase is expected to be completed by April 2026.
o) Planned Completion Date: Partially complete —April 2026

2.%9 Assess and define the The transition from the Temporary Accommodation spreadsheet to ARA has enabled system-generated
management information reporting. Although completion has been delayed due to system implementation, reporting training is complete
necessary for effective and work continues to build and refine reports for business needs.
strategic and operational
control A breakdown of management information expectations, detailing the required categories and associated data

fields, has now been documented and agreed. Planned Completion Date: Complete

2.2 | Evaluate ARA's reporting Although the expectations for management information requirements have been fully defined, further work is

functionality to ensure it
aligns with the necessary
management information
needs

needed to identify, build, and configure the reports within ARA to generate this information in the required
format. This includes ongoing development activity to ensure reporting outputs meet the agreed categories
and detailed information specifications.

In the interim, reporting is underway and the service are exploring the use of tools to enable management
information in ARA to interface with Power BI, which will further strengthen access to reliable service-delivery
information and enhance the overall quality, accessibility, and consistency of performance reporting. Planned
Completion Date: June 2026

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

2.3 | Define roles and A document has been produced that clearly defines the roles and responsibilities across the Temporary
responsibilities for reporting Accommodation service, including Rents, Placements, and related functions. This ensures staff understand
functions their operational duties and where accountability sits within the service.

Planned Completion Date: Complete

3.1 | Define roles and This is addressed in section 2.3 above. Planned Completion Date: Complete

responsibilities:

- Data Management

- Financial Management
- Property Management
- People Management

4.1 | Develop comprehensive set Procedures covering key system activities such as updating the accommodation database and setting up rent
of procedures to address all accounts within ARA, have been documented and approved.
aspects of the process
including the transition of However, these procedures primarily focus on system-based tasks and do not yet provide full coverage of

U cases from ARA to Open end-to-end processes, including activities that take place outside the system.

g Housing

[ As the service has transitioned away from off-system working practices, system-based procedures have

W been developed as a priority. Work will continue to review and update off-system procedures to ensure

© alignment and to identify any gaps requiring further procedural development. Planned Completion Date:
June 2026

4.2 | Agree acceptable placement | Work is underway to ensure the Placement policy guidance adequate reflects acceptable standards for
standards for inclusion to placements. Planned Completion Date: March 2026
documented procedures.

5.1 | Robust use and monitoring The original spreadsheet remains in place as a compensating control during the transition to ARA, pending
of the existing spreadsheet assurance that all data has been accurately migrated and validated against documented procedures. While
(until decommissioned) Finance has requested its retention until these assurances are met, the spreadsheet is no longer used by the

service for managing people or property and serves only as a parallel control. Planned Completion Date:
Complete
5.2 | Staff training on the use of Training completed by staff in July 2025 for data entry into the system. Reporting training was completed by

the Housing Management
system ARA.

MRI and system user guides have been provided to support staff. Jigsaw also offers help guide videos.
Planned Completion Date: Complete

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

6.1 | Assess and define the This is addressed in section 2.1 above. Planned Completion Date: Complete
management information
necessary for effective
budget management
6.2 | Look for an effective tool to ARA is fully functioning and can support budget management via PBCS. Work is now underway to develop
assist Budget Managers in the management information and this will also feed into the budget management and forecasting process.
managing the budget. Couple this with the work that will be done by Finance (Council wide) after the Finance restructure is
- Smartview excel add in complete. Planned Completion Date: July 2026
from PBCS
- Actuals and Budget
report
- Management budget
dashboard
6.3U Updated and reconcile Forecasts are currently prepared by the Finance Business Partner using data provided by the service,
q| forecasts using the new applying forecast assumptions and trend analysis. These forecasts are ultimately approved by the Assistant
L(% system Director of Housing Demand.
2 This is a complex service area that involves analysing large volumes of data through formulae, spreadsheets,
o and reconciliations. To improve understanding of the factors driving forecasts, the service needs to play a
more active role in their production. Moving forward, the service and the Finance Business Partner will
continue to work collaboratively, leveraging newly available system data to enhance the forecasting process
and increase the service’s involvement. The Service Level Agreement to be implemented post Finance
Review will also confirm responsibilities for budget management processes. Planned Completion Date:
Complete
6.4 | Training for Budget ARA is fully operational and supports budget management through PBCS. Work is progressing on improved
Managers (including management information to strengthen budgeting and forecasting. Organisation-wide training will be
generating reports) delivered after the Finance restructure, with interim support offered by the Finance team and experienced
system users. Planned Completion Date: July 2026
6.5 | Build dedicated time into The Finance Business Partner assigned to this service spends a significant proportion of their part-time hours

work schedules to support
proactive budget monitoring
and control.

each month supporting budget management and retains full responsibility for forecasting. Although the cycle
is monthly, the work involved is substantial and already forms a core part of their role. Planned Completion
Date: Complete

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

7.1

Define and document the
scope of responsibilities and
accountabilities of both
services and Finance in
relation to budget
management in a self-
service model including:

- Reconciliation of the
system (ARA and Open
Housing) against the
general ledger; and

- Failure to promote
forecasts within PBCS.

Service Level Agreement to be implemented post Finance Review. Planned Completion Date: July 2026

T,€ abeq ™

Integrate the documented
roles into relevant
procedures, policies or
service level agreements —
This is reliant on wholescale
programme for the Finance
Offer and Budget Holder
Responsibility Definition.

Service Level Agreement to be implemented post Finance Review. Planned Completion Date: July 2026

N
w

For high complex budgets
review the capacity of
resources available to meet
sharp deadlines

Action has been taken to understand the needs of the service and temporary resource identified for Housing
Demand, however this will be addressed across the wider organisation as part of the Finance Review.
Planned Completion Date: July 2026

8.1

Review the intranet guidance
and procedures to ensure it
is up to date, accurate and
accessible

A review has been undertaken, and improvements have been identified. Action will be taken to strengthen
the guidance and procedures once the Finance Review has been completed. Planned Completion Date:
July 2026

%¢ Havering

ONDON BOF




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

9.1 | Include budget management The Council is currently planning to deliver a program of training across the organisation This will be
(including but separate to PBCS) | delivered following a Finance restructure. Staff who have immediate needs are offered support by
as part of essential training finance and experienced system user colleagues. Planned Completion Date: July 2026
requirements for all existing staff
and as part of the on boarding of
new starters
9.2 | Provision of comprehensive, The Council is currently planning to deliver a program of training across the organisation This will be
mandatory and ongoing training delivered following a Finance restructure. Staff who have immediate needs are offered support by
finance and experienced system user colleagues. Planned Completion Date: July 2026
9.3 | Issue a formal reminder to staff An email was issued to all PBCS budget holders which included links to materials. Finance have
that comprehensive training partnered to deliver PO training courses. Planned Completion Date: Complete
materials and guidance on
budget management and use of
o PBCS is available via Fusion.
a | Encourage all relevant personnel
L(% to review these resources to
oo | €nsure consistency, accuracy,
~! | and compliance in budgeting
N | practices.
10.1 | Review of existing rates within All rates have now been reviewed and verified (see 1.1 above). Planned Completion Date: Complete
the Temporary Accommodation
spreadsheet to ensure accuracy
10.2 | Record all negotiations with A PIN Form in Teams is used to record details of nightly rates, which the Placements Team then enters

suppliers and formalise
agreements

into ARA. However, there is no formal document outlining the agreed Terms and Conditions for the use
of nightly lets. This gap exposes the Council to potential liability risks.

As part of implementing this action, the service should review the current arrangements for nightly lets,
considering the Council’s risk exposure in the absence of agreed Terms and Conditions.
Planned Completion Date: March 2026

"¢ Havering




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Recommendations

Progress Update

10.3 | Robust recording and monitoring | Work is underway to audit and upload relevant documents and agreements into the accommodation
of all rates within the system section of the system. An audit monitoring period is in place to ensure data is clean and accurate, and
this will continue until sufficient assurance is achieved to confirm compliance with expectations. Reports
generated from ARA are being used to support the monitoring of data accuracy. Planned Completion
Date: April 2026
11.1 | Develop a comprehensive set of | See 4.1 above. Planned Completion Date: June 2026
procedures to address all
aspects of service delivery
including the recording and
formalising negotiation practices
11.2 | Produce a pro forma to ensure See 10.2 above. Planned Completion Date: Complete
all necessary information is
being collected and recorded
consistently
12_6 Staff to be robustly trained in on Staff have completed negotiation testing, and step-by-step guidance has been developed to ensure
q | boarding properties and their clarity of expectations. Planned Completion Date: Complete
Q | rates
\V
w
\l
w

%¢ Havering

ONDON BOF




Appendix 2 — Limited Assurance Reports

Internal Audit Follow Up Report — Petra Tenant Management Organisations (TMO)

Background

There are three Tenant Management Organisations (TMOS) in operation within Havering, they provide management services to relevant estates
(Betra, Delta, Petra). The management of the estates should be carried out in accordance with Modular Management Agreements (MMA) between
each TMO and Havering.

A review of the management of the TMOs was undertaken in 2024/2025 which highlighted weaknesses in the control environment across all three
of the TMOs resulting in a limited assurance report being issued. Following the completion of that audit an action plan was put in place for each of
the TMOs, with progress against implementing the proposed recommendations being monitored by the Local Authority.

During the follow-up review, it was noted that Petra’s engagement with the Council continued to be limited, and steps were being taken to escalate
this matter. Due to the differing circumstances between Petra and the remaining two TMOs, progress on the recommendations for Betra and Delta
has been addressed in greater detail within a separate follow-up report.

Alpwecommendations related to Petra TMO from the original report remained outstanding. While this report was being finalised, the decision was
m‘%je to bring Petra back in-house. A new high-risk recommendation has been raised to reflect this, superseding previous recommendations but
wigtyan expectation that these risks are acknowledged and managed during the transition period.

\I
TH%original limited assurance rating will remain in place to allow for a further follow-up within three months to assess progress on the transition of
Petra back in-house.

Petra Tenant Management Organisations (TMO) Improvement Action Plan

Recommendation Management Response Planned
Completion Date

1 | High Service to produce and implement an action plan to bring Petra back in- | Agreed April 2026
house, ensuring the original risks highlighted in the detailed action plan
provided to the service, are adequately addressed.

"¢ Havering




	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING
	Minutes
	251125 Exempt Minutes

	5 STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTS 2024/25 AND EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
	Appendix A - EY ARR LBH 2425
	Appendix B - EY ARR HPF 2425
	Appendix C - LBH FINAL SOA 2024-25
	Appendix D - 2024-25 LBH Letter of Representation draft
	Appendix E - 2024-25 PF Letter of Representation draft
	Appendix F - LBH AGS 24-25 Signed

	6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2026/27
	7 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
	Appendix 1 Assurance Progress Report 240226
	Appendix 2 Limited Assurance Reports 240226


